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Definitions

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms have the meanings set forth below:

RAFHRA - BXEZEFEN - T

“14th Five-Year Plan”

[THARE]

"14th Metallurgical New Material Company”

[TEDEFH QT ]

“2021 AGM”

20 FERRBFAE ]

“A Dual Control System of Energy
Consumption”
[BEREEE I

“Aggregate Company”

R/ Zay VNSl

"Articles of Association”

[ (REIERR) |

"associate(s)”

[BHEEA

“Baoshan Building Material”
[RILZEM |

“Board”

[EEg]

“business day(s)”

[&%A]

BT :

“14th Five-Year Plan for National Economic and Social Development and the Outline
of Visions for 2035 of the People’s Republic of China”, a set of targets designed
to strengthen China’s economy from 2021 to 2025 and a vision target for 2035

(FEARANBEEREEMT GHRE THEDFREM035FESBRHE)
732021 F 22025 R P BLEM HERN — RN BRA K 20355 ER B

YCIH 14th Metallurgical Green New Material Co., Ltd.*, a subsidiary of our Company

EFERTDAKEFMHARAR  BARF ZHB AT

our Company’s 2021 annual general meeting or any adjournment thereof to be
held on May 27, 2022 or any other date determined by the Board

RAEER2022F5 A27 Ak A EMEZE R SR T A A BB 2021 FERFBEF
AeEEMES

the “Programme for Improving the Dual Control System of Energy Consumption
Intensity and Total Volume” issued by NDRC in September 2021

BRENEN2021FIA MM (TZRREBERENEELTHE T R)

YCIH Aggregate Co., Ltd.*, a subsidiary of our Company

EEERDEAERARAR - ARARZHWEB AR

the articles of association of our Company

ARFZ ARRIEIR)

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Listing Rules

BEEEBLTARRME THORE

YCIH Baoshan Yongchang Building Material Co., Ltd.*, a subsidiary of our Company

EHERRRIKERMBERRR  RARTZHBAF

the board of Directors of our Company

ARRERE

any day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in Hong Kong) on which
banks in Hong Kong are generally open for normal banking business

BFRRIT-RAPIEFMEERTROEBOENAF (TREEHN . EHRxE
NS L))
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“China” or “PRC"

(Rl - (28] - %A % [BER) tc

“China Environmental Labeling Product
Certification”

[P EERBRE AR Ec
"CBIRC”
[PERRES ] Ec

“Integration of Three Standards”

[=F—81t)] i

“Five in One Batch”

[ T fE—3t ] &

“Company Law”

[ (RFPEY | |

“Companies Ordinance”

[ KRBUED | i

“Company” or “our Company”

[RAE] 2 [ARnE] i

Definitions

the People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this annual report only, excluding
Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan region
PEARKENE  HERAFRME - TRESHE  RPIFITHRERAEHR
the certification of environmentally-friendly products that can meet the requirements
of national environmental protection standards conducted by China Environmental
United Certification Center, the sole certification body designated by the Ministry
of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of China, through the three
stages of document review, on-site inspection and sample testing

=7 EX

mPEARAMBAERBRAEENE —RERETRES (tR) RFPLEBR
X EZ  BSRE - BRl = ERBEH AT Z S BRI ZR B RERENER

HIIR (R T RRE
China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission
FERITRBEEEREES

an organization’s integrated organizational structure, procedures, processes and
resources required to implement the three standards of integrated management
(quality, environment, occupational health and safety). Including quality management
system (ISO9001), environmental management system (ISO14001) and occupational
health and safety management system (ISO45001)

—EESATE=IZ—BLERE (A2 RE BERELTD) TEEH—8tA
BhERE IR BIRNBRNGEATEIRER  c OFEEEEEZ (1S09001)
IRWEEBZR (1S014001) MEBFEERLEEEEZ (1S045001)

the idea of reinforcing and optimizing the quality and size of a group, strengthening
and improving the quality and specialization of a group, merging and reorganizing
a group, mixing and transforming a group, and divesting and optimizing a group
proposed by YCIH in 2016 to reorganize the organization

Mea B IR — 4t - o EMmE it - A EEMA I BEEUEHAR—1t &
FIEED B —H - BEFERN2016FHAMMESERNN —BRKE

the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, as amended, supplemented
or otherwise modified from time to time

(PEARKMBREE) - ETRERT - HRIAEM T ER

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

CRaMgp) (BREEDIE6228) - KRBT » fFRs AR M7 &k
YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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Definitions

“connected person(s)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
[BRE AL & BEBEELWRAME T RE
“Controlling Shareholder(s)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Listing Rules and unless the

context requires otherwise, refers to YCIH and/or YOIC (as the case may be)

[HERPRER ¥ AREELTRAME TORE  BRXESHEMEN - BEEEREFEIMR
& (RIEAME)

“Corporate Governance Code” the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Hong Kong Listing
Rules, formerly known as Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report
[{EER<FAI B BEBLTRAMSETEOAEACEE AT (FIBEEERTRREEERRE)

“Director(s)”

[E=%]

“Domestic Share(s)”

[AE ]

“Double Ten”

&+

“Five Networks”

[F4]

“green building materials label”

[ AR e M S HER ]

“Group” or “we"”

(A& ] 3 [54)

"GFA"

[ sEmAE ]

the director(s) of our Company

EA/NSTE- =5

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for and paid up in RMB

ARRRATFREEARE1.00THERBE - MARERE KSR

major infrastructure construction projects in Yunnan Province, including ten projects
under construction and ten newly-commenced construction projects

EHEERRBEATIZERZRIER B2 TREREA L TEHMHATIIEAR

a development strategy implemented by the Yunnan Provincial Government,
including the construction of networks of road, aviation, energy, water and Internet

THABNERS —HEREE - BFERE  fZEH  ERRES - KE RIS
R

the rating and labeling activities implemented by the Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development of the PRC and the Ministry of Industry and Information

Technology of the PRC, which evaluate building materials according to the green
technical requirements

P BT S AR AR B N B TR ANE AL B P TR RF AR MR SR B - BIKIR
BRERMERFEEY

the Company and its subsidiaries

ARRAREME R

gross floor area

RIS

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

Annual Report 2021



“H Share(s)"”

[HAR ]

“H Share Registrar”

[HARFE 52 AR

"High-tech Enterprise(s)”

(=SR]

“Hong Kong”

(&%)

“HKD" or “HK$"

[#E7T]

“Hong Kong Listing Rules”

[EE LRI

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”

[ & BH P

"“IFRSs”

G

“independent third party(ies)”

Definitions

overseas listed foreign invested ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company,
with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which are listed and traded on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

ARBEATEREEARE1.00TWEIN ETINE TR - REBBRME
RETREE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
BEPRBLFELBRAA

a knowledge-intensive and technology-intensive economic entity that continuously
carries out research and development as well as transformation of technological
achievements within the scope of the High and New Technology Areas with Key
State Support and forms independent core intellectual property rights and carries
out business activities on this basis

ERREMY (ERESHZFNSIRMES) SERN - FEETHRRE BRI
RRE( - PR EEZR OB X ABERE - WAL AR RAEEB 8 M E &
RNz ENgEEE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
PEARENEERBRFRITHE

Hong Kong dollars and Hong Kong cents, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BB - HEEEEEE

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BEBMRZ RS EARA - ENREET » HFR s AR M5 Bk
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERBMERGERAT

International Financial Reporting Standards promulgated by the International
Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and the International Accounting Standards (IAS)
including restated standards, amendments and interpretations issued

BRerrEAEEE (BERGHENESES) RANBRMBREENLERES
ER (BRestER]) - BREEMZETIER - EFIK3RE

persons or entities which, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, are not considered as connected
persons of the Company under the Hong Kong Listing Rules

RIBEREL —VAEERERMAN  [ENREE  REFBELTRYUTHRAAR
NEIZBEBEBALTHOALHER
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Definitions

“KMEIC”

[ |
“Listing”

[E77] Ec|
“Listing Date”

[EHm R Ec

“Latest Practicable Date”

[ER1& R 7T HH i
“m2”

[FJ35K ] Ec
“m3”

[S275K] Ec
“Main Board”

[Ek] Ec
“Model Code”

[124E=r Al |
“mu”

[ Ec
“NDRC"

[BRENRE ] Ec
5 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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Kunming Economic-Technological Development Zone Investment & Development
(Group) Co., Ltd.*

AgERTREREERE (RE) ARA
the listing of the H Shares on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
HAR R B BB R FTE IR
October 31, 2019, the date on which the H Shares were listed on the Main Board
and from which dealings therein were permitted to take place on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange

HEE R B BE R AT ER L R E#ETEERHE] - 8120194108311

April 19, 2022, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this annual
report

20224198 » BIARFIRGENR 2 RAZ B AI17 A

square meter

cubic meter

SLTK

the stock market (excluding the option market) operated by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operated in parallel with GEM of the

Hong Kong Stock Exchange

HMEBBIMEENRZEmE (TRESENS) @ BYREBHXMGEMIEHE
WATIENE

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules

EELTHRAMSETAEN (EMBETAZRRETERRZNERETRD

a Chinese unit of area, also spelled “mou”, equivalent to approximately 0.066
hectares

BB - 9F00.066 AR

National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC*

TERRERNNERES



“Polymer Company”

“PricewaterhouseCoopers”

[ & el ]

“PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian”

[EEExETXR]

"Prospectus”

[ Rl E1E ]

“Qujing Building Material”

[ B3 |

“Reporting Period”

[R5 8

“RMB"

[ARE]

“SAT”

[BEZRRBEB ]

“SFO”

[ KEFRBEE) |

“Share(s)”

[Btn

“Shareholder(s)”

[ ]

“subsidiary(ies)”

[T

Definitions

YCIH Polymer Material Co., Ltd.*, a subsidiary of our Company
TEERSS FMHERAR » RARRIZHMERR
PricewaterhouseCoopers (Hong Kong Certified Public Accountants)
BEBUKBEMER (BEREEE)
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP

LENBR RSB (FHREBER)

our Company's prospectus dated October 21, 2019
RREIAEIA20196F10 21 B2 Bk ER

YCIH Qujing Building Material Co., Ltd.*, a subsidiary of our Company
THERMBEEMARDR - RARBZHEAR

for the year ended December 31, 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLEFE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of China

AR hEREEE®

the State Taxation Administration of the PRC

PREERHRBES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

(BHEHEED) (FEEDFESTIE) - BOEHER] - #MARAEMTT B

the ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each, comprising H Shares and Domestic Shares

RATRARGREEARE1.00THEBR - BEHREAE R
holder(s) of Shares

B A

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Listing Rules

BEAEELTRAME THORE

THERGERMEERELIRNERAA 6
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Definitions

“Substantial Shareholder(s)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Listing Rules

[T2RR]

“Supervisor(s)”

[EE%)

“Supervisory Committee”

§ ABBEBLWRBMETHRE

the supervisor(s) of our Company

EANS]L-=S

the supervisory committee of our Company

[EEFe ] RAFESEE

“YCIH" Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd.*, a Controlling
Shareholder of our Company

[EmeEk] THARERRAEREEFRAR - BARR ZIERARR

"YCIH Financial Company”

“Yunnan Province”

[EmE ]

“Yuxi Building Material”

Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding Group Financial Management
Company Limited*

[ERERHBAE] EHEREEMBEER AT

"YCIH Group” YCIH and its subsidiaries

[EpEREE] SRR NMEMB AR

“yYolic” Yunnan Provincial Overseas Investment Co., Ltd.*, a Controlling Shareholder of
our Company

[BIMRE ] EEABIMNEBRAR - RARRZZEREER

Yunnan Province, China

TEEEE

YCIH Yuxi Building Material Co., Ltd.*, a subsidiary of our Company

[ FREM ] TR EREMBRAGF - BRARFZHEATF]
"%" per cent
[%] Btk

Certain amounts and percentage figures included in this annual report have been subject to rounding. Accordingly, figures shown as totals
in certain tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures preceding them. Any discrepancies in any table or chart between the
total shown and the sum of the amounts listed are due to rounding.

AERPEA)E TEERAD B FEEAEDA > Bt - HTREHTAVEERNVREZ B FHEBAET - (El]ERTE &5
MR - B ROE AR -

* For identification purpose only
Esaal
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CORPORATE NAME

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 1847

REGISTERED OFFICE

YCIH Zhaotong Development Building
Zhaotong Avenue

Zhaoyang District, Zhaotong

Yunnan Province, the PRC

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

5/F and 9/F, YCIH Development Building

188 Linxi Road

Information Industrial Base

Economic and Technological Development Zone, Kunming
Yunnan Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

31/F, Tower Two, Times Square
1 Matheson Street

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

https://www.ynhnt.com

BOARD

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhangjian (appointed on December 21, 2021)
Mr. Lu Jianfeng

Mr. Zhang Long (appointed on December 21, 2021)
Ms. Hu Zhurong (employee Director)

Mr. Ma Minchao (resigned on January 29, 2021)

Mr. Zhang Yingyue (resigned on November 26, 2021)
Mr. Rao Ye (resigned on November 26, 2021)

Company Information
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Non-executive Directors

Mr
Mr
Mr

. Jiang Qian (appointed on January 29, 2021)
. He Jiangiang
. Liu Guangcan (resigned on January 29, 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr
Mr
Mr

. Wong Kai Yan Thomas
. Yu Dingming
. Li Hongkun

SUPERVISORS

. Wu Xinhe

. Yang Guanglei (appointed on January 29, 2021)
. Gu Feng (appointed on January 29, 2021)

. LiNa

. Guo Huan

. Li Yan (resigned on January 29, 2021)

. Chang Hongbing (resigned on January 29, 2021)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr

REMUNERATION AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE

. Li Hongkun (Chairman)

. Jiang Qian (appointed on January 29, 2021)

. He Jiangiang (appointed on December 21, 2021)
. Wong Kai Yan Thomas

. Yu Dingming (appointed on December 21, 2021)
. Liu Guangcan (resigned on January 29, 2021)

. Yu Dingming (Chairman)

. Li Zhangjian (appointed on December 21, 2021)

. Jiang Qian (appointed on December 21, 2021)

. Wong Kai Yan Thomas (appointed on December 21, 2021)
. Li Hongkun

. Rao Ye (resigned on November 26, 2021)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
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. Yu Dingming (Chairman)

. Lu Jianfeng (appointed on December 21, 2021)

. Hu Zhurong (appointed on December 21, 2021)

. Wong Kai Yan Thomas (appointed on December 21, 2021)
. Li Hongkun

. Ma Minchao (resigned on January 29, 2021)

. Zhang Yingyue (resigned on November 26, 2021)
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STRATEGY COMMITTEE

. Li Zhangjian (Chairman) (appointed on December 21, 2021)
. Lu Jianfeng

. Zhang Long (appointed on December 21, 2021)

. He Jiangiang (appointed on December 21, 2021)

. Li Hongkun

. Ma Minchao (resigned on January 29, 2021)

. Liu Guangcan (resigned on January 29, 2021)

. Zhang Yingyue (resigned on November 26, 2021)

. Rao Ye (resigned on November 26, 2021)

. Jiang Qian (resigned on Decemebr 21, 2021)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL COMMITTEE

. Li Zhangjian (Chairman) (appointed on December 21, 2021)
. Zhang Long (appointed on December 21, 2021)

. Jiang Qian (appointed on January 29, 2021)

. He Jiangiang

. Wong Kai Yan Thomas

. Yu Dingming

. Li Hongkun

. Ma Minchao (resigned on January 29, 2021)

. Liu Guangcan (resigned on January 29, 2021)

. Zhang Yingyue (resigned on November 26, 2021)
. Hu Zhurong (resigned on Decemebr 21, 2021)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr.
Ms.
Mr.

Lu Jianfeng (appointed on November 26, 2021)
Wong Sau Ping
Rao Ye (resigned on November 26, 2021)

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr.
Ms.
Ms.

Rao Ye (resigned on March 29, 2022)
Liang Yuwei (appointed on March 29, 2022)
Wong Sau Ping (FCG, HKFCG)
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LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law
Baker & McKenzie

14th Floor, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

As to PRC law

Jia Yuan Law Offices
F408, Ocean Plaza

158 Fuxing Men Nei Street
Xicheng District,

Beijing, PRC

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22/F, Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
17M Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China, Kunming, Panlong Branch
Huaxia Bank, Kunming, Dongfeng Branch

Bank of China, Kunming, Economic and Technological Development Zone Branch

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
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Dear Shareholders,

In 2021, China has formally and comprehensively built a moderately prosperous society,
achieved the first centenary goal, and entered into a new journey for the second
centenary goal. In the face of multiple challenges such as the complex and severe
international environment and the spread of domestic COVID-19 pandemic, China’s
macroeconomic development has been in good health, steady but progressive, but
the growth rate of fixed asset investment in the western region was only 3.9%, which
was obviously lower than that of the central and eastern regions. The growth rate of
fixed asset investment in Yunnan Province was only 4.0%, far lower than the expected
11%. Investment in real estate development represented a year-on-year decrease of
4.3%, causing a certain impact on enterprises related to the construction industry in
the Yunnan Province.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

In 2021, the Group completely broke the traditional management model with
determination and perseverance which there’s no making without breaking, drastically
“removed, merged and transferred” management departments and units, compressed
departments horizontally and management levels vertically, set up seven management
centers, and built a flat, centralized and highly efficient operation management
headquarters. In conjunction with the development trend of the construction industry,
we have set up five major business divisions, namely UHPC business division, resource
utilization of construction waste business division, commercial mortar business division,
new green and low-carbon material business division and intelligent construction
business division, which makes effort to promote the transformation and upgrade of
the Company’s products and businesses. At the same time, the Company deeply studied
the supply chain finance and built three major concentrated raw material procurement
platforms with three wholly-owned subsidiaries to lay a solid foundation for strengthening
the financing ability and realizing cost reduction and efficiency improvement in the future.
In addition, the Company actively connected with banking and financial institutions
to further gather upstream and downstream enterprises while developing the real
economy, gradually built a digital supply chain financial platform to migrate traditional
offline transactions to the online platform step by step, and transformed operational
data into the digitalizational assets, thus facilitating the integration of industry resources
and enhancing comprehensive competitiveness in the future.

Chairman’s Statement

EHMEMER

20214 FEEAZEZR)NFELE - BRE
—EEFEMER  WEBEE _EAFEMH
AR o TR MR IR 0 B R IR 5 M B R T A
RERBHBREZEER  TREERLQERRR
hELt - BT AE  BERESLENOEEEER
BIRERER39% - PARENP LIRS
B EHENEEEEREERETERLIO% -
EEREHN11% - FHEMERERLL TE
43% - BEFERNBRETERMBREEERT —

= By 488
= °

ES e

20214 » ZREEE LA AN S 0000 F1 3% 7 U
TR ESERES - RTIAFEE B HPIA
BAETIH - 6F - B BRABGEBMEE -
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Chairman’s Statement

In 2021, under the severe trend of a slight decline in the construction market in Yunnan
Province, the Group always adhered to the original intention of “being professional,
being precise, being excellent, being strong and being large” and organized the concrete
production and operation around key projects, and the concrete supply for the Nasa-Xingjie
Highway and Yongren-Jinshuihe Highway projects that it participated in was carried out
in an orderly manner; and centered on ensuring the concrete supply for major projects
including Kunming China Resource Tuodong Business Centre Project, the Residential
Community Engineering Project at Annin University of Finance and Economics, Kunming
Integrated Transportation International Hub Project and Urbanization Reconstruction
Project of Anshi Highway and utility tunnel projects. At the same time, the Group
conscientiously fulfilled its social responsibility, quickly and efficiently organized human
and material resources to support the construction of epidemic prevention and control
in Menglian County, satisfactorily completed the construction task, and contributed to
winning the battle of border epidemic prevention and control. The Group organized
=FHE

campaign, planting more than 1,000 trees covering 21 mu. The Company also

the “Protect the Yangzong Sea and Plant Trees for Three Years ({R:EFR/E -
#47)"
spent more than RMB4 million on the environmental improvement and transformation
of the civil aviation batching plant in Zhaoyang District, Zhaotong City, Yunnan Province,
to deeply implement the General Secretary Xi Jinping's green development concept of
“lucid waters and lush mountains are invaluable assets”.

In 2021,
industry and continued to increase investment in technological research and development,

the Company continued to pay attention to the frontier technology of the

achieving fruitful results, including one new patent application for invention and 23
patents for utility models; initiation of editing 3 local standards; obtaining approval for
1 project of Department of Transport of Yunnan Province and 3 projects of Bureau of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development of Yunnan Province; and winning the “Third
Prize of Science and Technology Progress Award in Yunnan Province”, etc. In addition,
as the Company’s holding subsidiary, Qujing Building Material was accredited as a

national High-tech Enterprise for the first time.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

2022 marks an important year for the implementation of the “14th Five-Year Plan”
of the State and Yunnan Province. China will continue to adhere to the general
keynote of seeking progress while maintaining stability, scientifically coordinating
epidemic prevention and control with economic and social development, and keeping
the economy running in a reasonable range. Yunnan Province is in a period of strategic
opportunities, releasing policy dividends and bursting with momentum, and will promote
the construction of a strong industrial province, promote the deep integration of green
energy and green manufacturing, fully demonstrate the advantages of internal attraction
and external linkage, strengthen the radiation center of South Asia and Southeast
Asia, and become an important support for China’s “Great Cycle, Double Loop”. The
Yunnan Provincial Government also timely issued the “Certain Policies and Measures
for Stable Growth in 2022" ( BIR 2022 BIE R &E TEEEHEHE) ), which provides
a rare opportunity to promote the development of enterprises in Yunnan Province.

In the next five years, the general idea of the Company’s development is: to take the
theme of connotative and high-quality development, aim at the overall development
goal of “domestic first-class enterprise”, insist on “one direction” and focus on “one
main line”. We will strive to build a first-class domestic enterprise with outstanding
professional characteristics, obvious technical advantages, complete industrial chain
and strong market leadership.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

“One Direction”

Fully leverage the power of digital finance to achieve transformation and
upgrade. The Company will continue to optimize the corporate governance
structure and organizational management structure, combine with industrial
policies, start from the most familiar and proficient fields, strengthen the principle
business of concrete while promote the implementation of new products and
new businesses, and continue to expand the market, refine management, make
technology more specialized, make the brand more excellent, and make the team
stronger, so as to build a professional and differentiated competitive advantage
in the market and become an integrator of industry resources.

“One Main Line”

Strengthen the centralized management of each function to achieve cost
reduction and efficiency improvement. The Company will take cost reduction and
efficiency improvement as the main line, build an integrated management system
of informatization, further strengthen the unified and centralized management
of various functions such as operation, production, material procurement, capital
management, cost control, technological research and development, quality
control, innovate human resources management and cost quota management,
pay close attention to the weak links of management, and strive to attain benefits
in the market development, economic management, safety development and
scientific and technological innovation, to improve the quality of enterprise
development from all aspects.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to the Shareholders,

investors and business partners for their enduring trust and support to the Company!
Meanwhile, | would also like to express my genuine thanks to all the employees for

their hard work and effort!
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Li Zhangjian

Chairman

March 29, 2022
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Annual Financial Highlights:

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group's:

revenue was approximately RMB2,103 million, which decreased by 47.5% as compared

with the same period in 2020;

gross profit was approximately RMB141 million, which decreased by 67.6% as compared

with the same period in 2020; and

profit before income tax was approximately RMB15 million, which decreased by 94.6%

as compared with the same period in 2020.

Consolidated Financial Indicators of the Company for 2017-2021

Financial Highlights
81 75 1 &

FEMBRE:
HE2021F12A31BIEEE - A&H :

WA ABANREE2,103EE T © 5K2020F R ER
4T 5%

EMHAARBI141E5EIT - 2020F RHIR
167.6% i &

BPTSHBIAEN RARBISEE T » #2020
FRREA94.6% °

ARATF2017-2021FEEHHMEIEEER

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HLLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Year FE 20214 20204 20194 20184 20174
Revenue (in RMB million) WA (ANREBEET) 2,102.53 4,004.03 3,608.08 3,357.12 3,112.09
Gross profit (in RMB million) E# (AREHET) 140.63 434.93 407.40 359.47 403.79
Profit before income tax BT IR lbE|
(in RMB million) (ARBBEET) 15.04 277.98 244.20 217.08 271.47
As at December 31,
MW128318
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Year FE 20214 20204 20194 20184 20174
Total assets BEBTE
(in RMB million) (ARBBEET) 4,761.53 4,600.14 3,541.79 3,159.36 2,794.60
Total liabilities BERRE
(in RMB million) (ARBBEET) 3,414.09 3,198.53 2,313.44 2,204.36 1,986.07
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE R AT

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Ready-mixed concrete industry is a basic building material industry for urbanization and
economic and social development. Conversion of development momentum, change
of development mode, development with the aim of high-end, high value-added and
high quality, and green and low-carbon development have gradually become the
direction and theme of industry development under the new development pattern.
Unblocking the domestic cycle, promoting the domestic and international dual cycle
and infrastructure investment from the “two new-types and one major development”
(i.e. new-type infrastructure construction, new-type urbanization and construction of
major engineering projects for transportation and water conservancy) and “making up
for shortcomings and disadvantages” have brought new development opportunities
to the industry. In July 2021, Yunnan Development and Reform Commission issued
the “14th Five-Year Plan” for Regional Coordinated Development of Yunnan Province
(2021-2025, Consultation Draft), which covers key programs and major engineering
projects including rail transit construction and interconnection of infrastructure at
border and port in central Yunnan, China-Laos industrial park construction, regional
medical center construction, comprehensive transportation system construction, water
conservancy infrastructure construction, comprehensive logistics hub construction and
energy hub construction, and will greatly stimulate the demand for concrete products
in Yunnan Province.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Overview

The Company is a ready-mixed concrete producer located in Yunnan Province. We have
a team with extensive management experience and robust technical capabilities, and
have powerful research and development capabilities with an integration of technical
research and development, technical detection, results promotion and application and
technical consulting services. We have introduced modernized, scientific and green
and environmentally-friendly manufacturing concepts into our production, and lead
and drive the technological progress and green and low-carbon development in the
concrete industry of Yunnan Province. The Company has established a diversified
business landscape focusing on the production of ready-mixed concrete, including
ultra-high performance concrete (UHPC) and related products, and is supplemented
with the production of aggregates, polycarboxylic admixtures and other products,
basically forming the production capacity layout covering the east, west, south and
north markets in the centre of Kunming, as well as prefecture-level cities in Yunnan
Province that are developing and expanding business at the same pace. Our business
scope covers housing construction and infrastructure construction including railways,
highways, integrated pipeline networks and other project areas. We have established a
completed industrial chain of “technical research and development, resource processing,
production and sales”.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In May 2021, the Company was again awarded the title of “China’s Top Ten Ready-
mixed Concrete Enterprise ({7 BITE )R 5 + 3810 %) (ranking sixth for four consecutive
years from 2017 to 2020) and awarded the honorary title of “AAA Credit Enterprise
in Yunnan Province (Ef&AAAZEA® )", In addition, the Company was selected as
one of the “China Top 500 Building Material Enterprises in 2021 (20215 B ## (b2
5005%)" and completed the China Environmental Labeling Product Certification for the
Company, the re-certification of the Company’s energy management system in 2021,
the reassessment of the three-star green building materials at the mixing station site of
the Company’s Kunming Division, and the application for the Qujing Building Material
as a green demonstration plant.

During the Reporting Period, the Group produced and sold 6.12 million m* of ready-
mixed concrete, representing a year-on-year decrease of 44.4%. The Group recorded a
revenue of RMB2,103 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 47.5%; a profit
before income tax of RMB15 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 94.6%; a
profit for the year of RMB6.69 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 97.1%;
and a net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of RMBO0.7 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 99.7%.

As at December 31, 2021, the Group had 49 concrete batching plants and 89 production
lines with an annual capacity of 20,202,000 m3. The Group also had 154 concrete
transport vehicles, 2 pump trucks and 260 sets of main research and development test
equipment.

Results of operation

The following table sets forth the breakdown of revenue, cost of sales, gross margin
and percentage change by business category for the years ended December 31, 2021
and December 31, 2020.

Year ended December 31,
BZ1NANALEE

EIEE S I

202158 » AAR B REEIPRHBHERELT
a2 FBIR(2017-2020F EE BN EHLE
A WHERTFIEMEAAAAEALE JLER
5% W EARRBKINAE 2021 F R BEEM D E
50034 ] + RIEFSERC A A Bl B3R SR IZ R EE MR
FADREROANFERERERERBRE =
KRAAFRREBBEH LB GERM =2
WERT - LAMGER ER IS M 4R & R TR R
WIAE -

RBEERN  AEEEEEBEEENREL
6128 K B TMEA44.4% 5 REEER
WAARB210388 T © AL TH%475% B
WBRABHATFBAREISEET © R TR
94.6% : BERFEMBARK669BET - [
LETRBE97.1% + RBERARRIFTEEFHH
HBARBOTEET * R T99.7% -

MR2021F128318 - NEEHEH49RRRELTE
PEUL - 8IKHEEL - FEREAE2,020208 277
Ko REBMEAERTIEHBE 1548  REH2

& TEWEABREE260E G -
P

TREIILZREBREREE2021F12A3181E
FEN2020F 12 A31HIEFERMRA -« $HEK
AREFEUREEH DL ©

2021 (in RMB million)

2020 (in RMB million)

Percentage change (%)

20215 (AR¥EER) 20205 (ARBEET) EHBH (%)
Gross Gross

Cost of margin Cost of margin Cost of Gross

Revenue sales (%) Revenue sales (%) Revenue sales margin

Business £% KA #HEREX  EFE%) WA EERER  EFIE(%) WA HERE ERE

Ready-mixed concrete  FBREERTL 2,087 1,949 6.6% 3,977 3,548 10.8% -47.5% -45.1% -38.9%

Polycarboxylic admixtures B EEIMA 16 13 18.8% % 21 13.6% -33.3% -38.1% 38.2%

Aggregates WER 0 0 0.0% 1 1 426%  -1000%  -100.0%  -100.0%
Quality and technology ~ BEFHITERE

management services k% 0 0 0.0% 1 0  1000%  -100.0% 0.0% -100.0%

Total @i 2,103 1,962 6.7% 4,004 3,569 10.9% -47.5% -45.0% -38.5%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE R AT

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the majority of our revenue was derived from
the production and sales of ready-mixed concrete. In 2021, our revenue generated from
production and sales of ready-mixed concrete was RMB2,087 million, accounting for
99.2% of the total revenue.

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit of the Group’s operation was RMB141
million (2020: RMB435 million), and the overall gross margin in 2021 was 6.7 %,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 4.2 percentage points as compared with 10.9%
in 2020. Such decreases in gross profit and gross margin were mainly due to a significant
decline in the production and sales volume of ready-mixed concrete, while fixed costs
basically remained unchanged and the economies of scale declined. The gross margin
was 6.6% for the production and sales of ready-mixed concrete and 18.8% for the
production and sales of polycarboxylic admixtures.

Long-term business model

The Group's existing businesses include the production and sales of ready-mixed concrete,
polycarboxylic admixtures and aggregates and the provision of concrete-related quality
and technology management services. In terms of the production and sales of ready-mixed
concrete, we are continuing to focus on the development of ultra-high performance
concrete (UHPC) and related products. We plan to break the bottleneck of the production
and application of ultra-high performance concrete and establish a complete ultra-high
performance concrete industry chain. Accordingly, we plan to use the proceeds from the
global offering (the “Global Offering”) to invest in acquisition of aggregates and mining
resources, improvement of concrete production technology, research and development of
new products and new technologies, investments in fixed assets and equipment purchases
for aforementioned matters. At the same time, we have adjusted our organizational
structure and management model, and established seven centres (material supply chain
centre, quality and technology management centre, financial management centre, cost
control centre, marketing management centre, production management centre and
technology innovation centre) and five major business divisions (UHPC business division,
commercial mortar business division, resource utilization of construction waste business
division, new green and low-carbon material business division and intelligent construction
business division). Under the new management work model, the Company will carry
out centralised management to improve the management efficiency of the Company,
and create three major concentrated raw material procurement platforms to achieve
improvement in cost control management work, streamline the procurement process,
reduce unnecessary cost wastage and practically improve business operation efficiency.
We will first build a digital supply chain financial platform with the Company as the core
around the upstream and downstream industry chain of concrete, migrate traditional
offline transactions to online, transform operational data into the digitalizational assets,
continuously integrate upstream and downstream enterprises in the industry into the
platform for trading, build industry chain clusters, and quickly grow larger and stronger.
In the future, we will continuously transform and upgrade to develop new businesses,
optimise business structure, market structure and customer structure, build a digital
supply chain financial platform and strive to become a globally competitive green building
material enterprise on the basis of maintaining business stability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS STRATEGY AND MAIJOR OPERATIONAL
MEASURES

Strengthen the Group’s leading market position by optimization of production
capacity

Our concrete production network covers the vast majority of prefectures and cities
in Yunnan Province. In order to enhance our market penetration in Yunnan Province,
we have been committed to extending our production network from prefecture-level
cities to county-level regions in Yunnan Province. We continuously participated in the
construction of large-scale infrastructure and projects connected to people’s livelihood,
such as highway and relocation projects, which continued to optimize the layout of our
production network and strengthened our leading position in Southwest China through
leveraging the efficiency of our large-scale operations.

Enhance sales and marketing capabilities and expand sales network

In 2021, to ensure the stable increase of our operating efficiency, the major operational
measures adopted by the Group include: (i) establishing a reasonably structured,
streamlined and efficient organization, and cultivating and developing a proactive and
hardworking team of talent; (ii) effectively integrating operation resources, improving
the salary incentive mechanism, optimizing the marketing network and layout, and
continuously improving our ability to operate independently; (i) improving product
quality in all aspects and efficiently creating brand benefit; (iv) continuously strengthening
safety awareness, and emphasizing production safety; and (v) strengthening service
awareness, maintaining brand image, and promoting the upgrading of the Company's
production management services.

Further reduce raw material costs and optimise operational efficiency
In 2021,
Company continued to innovate and develop and insisted on green development,

in the context of unprecedented pressure on environmental protection, the

giving full play to its technological advantages. The Group continued to carry out
external benchmarking management while “focusing on benchmarking and making
up for shortcomings” to gradually improve operational quality. We continued to refine
cost management, optimize supply chain management, and increase the intensity of
centralized bidding and procurement of main materials such as cement and aggregates,
which have further reduced costs. We enhanced the Company’s competitiveness by
strengthening the research and development and promotion of ultra-high performance
concrete, commercial mortar and special mortar, enhancing product specialisation in
all aspects , improving the acquisition rate of quality project orders and constantly
expanding the external market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE R AT

Actively respond to the COVID-19 pandemic

In the face of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group carefully analyzed the international
and domestic macroeconomic conditions and the development positioning of Yunnan
Province, reformed the organizational structure, streamlined the cadre team, optimized
industry layout, improved management capabilities and service awareness, overcame
adverse effect brought by COVID-19 pandemic and made every effort to resume work
and epidemic prevention. The Group took up the responsibility of a state-owned
enterprise and carried out the supply of concrete for key regions and major projects in
an orderly manner. Taking the “Five Resolutions” and “Five Specialties” as the guide,
we raised the political stance, strengthened risk awareness and bottom-line thinking,
and made winning the battle against the epidemic a major political task for the time
being to ensure the safety and stability of the Company during the period of pandemic
prevention and control. The Company has attached equal importance to the pandemic
prevention and control as well as work and production.

Operation highlights in 2021

In 2021, the Company stepped up its efforts in the consolidation of operational resources,
insisted on high-end operation and coordinated advancement. The Company continuously
deepened the cooperation and communication with national well-known enterprises and
entered into a procurement framework agreement with China Construction First Group
Fifth Construction Co., Ltd. (P2 —REEEREEAEMR A A and Kunming Railway
Construction Company of China Railway No. 8 Engineering Group (FF§/\ /S5 E £ 8
ISR B R A R]). At the same time, the Company continued to further cultivate the
regional market in Yunnan Province and continuously strengthened cooperation with
local government platforms and local enterprises, and successively entered into strategic
cooperation agreements with Yuxi Hongrun Development & Construction Company
(FRRBER%ERZ AR L), Kunming Chengli Trading Company (EFR#HFIZE 5ER
‘A@]) and Yunnan Weiguang Economic & Trade (Group) Company (EFE & E (&
E)BBR A R]). By sticking to leader promotion and key projects, the Company attached
great importance to the operation of major housing projects and highway projects,
and entered into projects such as the General Contracted Engineering for Kunming
China Resource Tuodong Business Centre Project (Land A1), the Residential Community
Engineering Project at Annin University of Finance and Economics, Construction Project
of the Xinping (Jiasha) to Yuanjiang (Hongguang) section of the Yongjin Highway and
Guangnan (Nasha) to Xichao (Xingjie) Highway. At the same time, we focused on
the General Contracted Constuction for Kunming China Resource Tuodong Business
Centre and the Kunming Integrated Transportation International Hub Project, General
Contracted Engineering for Kunming Guandu District Runfu Community Project and
other projects. The Company comprehensively participated in market competition and
practiced the spirit of perseverance in the operation of the Company, driving its business
entity and subsidiaries to break through regional restrictions, explore potential of
customer resources, actively carry out cross-regional operational business, and activate
the operational culture atmosphere of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2021, although the Group has entered into new
concrete supply contracts with an aggregate amount of approximately RMB3.5 billion
in 2021, representing a certain increase as compared to the same period in 2020
(approximately RMB3.3 billion), the concrete supply contracts of the Group with an
aggregate amount of approximately RMB1.9 billion as at December 31, 2021, could not
be fulfilled in 2021, due to the following reasons: (1) the highway projects undertaken
by the Group have successively entered the final stages in 2021, and there has been
delayed commencement of new highway projects and other major projects which were
originally scheduled in 2021, with an apparent slowdown in concrete demands from
downstream as compared with the same period in 2020; (2) according to the “Notice
on the Establishment of the Management Policy for Real Estate Loans Concentration
by Financial Institutions in the Banking Industry*” ( (BERERITE S RMIKIERIE
EREREEEFIEREA) ) issued by The People’s Bank of China (B A RIRTT)
and China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission (FEIRITIRIESEEL S
2) with effect from January 1, 2021, the banks have tightened the loans to the real
estate enterprises and the construction companies confronted with fund shortage, which
resulted the delay of new housing construction projects of the Group and a slower
progress in the original housing construction projects; (3) A Dual Control System of
Energy Consumption published by NDRC in September 2021 has limited the production
of upstream cement industry for the Group's operations, which resulted a sharp increase
in cement prices due to the decrease in cements supply volume, therefore, the concrete
industry was affected by both the aforesaid policy and cements supply shortage at
the same time; and (4) the Group’s projects have been delayed in the prefectures and
municipalities at the border in Yunnan Province due to the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak
impacts on such prefectures and municipalities at the border in Yunnan Province. As a
result, the Group's concrete supply volume decreased significantly during the Reporting
Period compared to the same period in 2020, resulting in a substantial decrease in the
Group's revenue. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group achieved revenue
of RMB2,103 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 47.5%. The total revenue
from sales of ready-mixed concrete was RMB2,087 million, representing a decrease of
47.5% as compared with the previous year. In addition to the sales revenue of concrete
products, the Group also recorded the revenue from sales of polycarboxylic admixtures
products during the Reporting Period. The following table sets forth the breakdown
of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2021 and for the year ended December
31, 2020
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EIEE

am 22 73 AT

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31HLLEFE
2021 2020
2021%F 2020%F

Percentage Percentage

of operating of operating

RMB in million revenue RMB in million revenue

IR [==43

AR¥BEER WALLE AREBET WALLE

Ready-mixed concrete TEFERE L 2,087 99.2% 3,977 99.3%

Polycarboxylic admixtures ez 4l il 16 0.8% 24 0.6%

Aggregates wak 0 0.0% 1 0.0%

Revenue from sales of products EmiEEWA 2,103 100.0% 4,003 100.0%
Revenue from quality and BEEMNEMEER

technology management services 4 A 0 0.0% 1 0.0%

Total &t 2,103 100.0% 4,004 100.0%

Operating Expenses

In 2021, the Group’s accumulated operating expenses for the year were RMB2,112
million, with a decrease of 43.5% compared to the previous year, representing 100.4%
of operating revenue and an increase of 7.0 percentage points compared to the previous
year. The decrease in operating expenses was less than the decrease in revenue, mainly
due to the decrease of economies of scale as business volume decreased significantly.

Gross Profit and Gross Margin

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit generated from operations of the Group
was RMB141 million (2020: RMB435 million). The overall gross margins for 2021 and
2020 were 6.7% and 10.9%, respectively. For specific reasons in relation to the apparent
decrease in gross profit and gross margin, please refer to the analysis in the section
headed “Results of Operation”. The gross margin was 6.6% for the production and
sales of ready-mixed concrete and 18.8% for the production and sales of polycarboxylic
admixtures.

Profitability

Profit before income tax

In 2021, the Group recorded a profit before income tax of RMB15 million, representing
a decrease of 94.6% as compared with that for the previous year, mainly due to the
significant decrease in production and sales volume of concrete in the current year
compared to the previous year, and no significant decrease in fixed costs compared
to the previous year, resulting in a decrease in the economies of scale and a notable
decrease in gross profit and gross margin, which ultimately led to a notable decrease
in profit before income tax.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Income tax expense

In 2021, the income tax expense of the Group was RMB8 million, with an effective tax
rate of 53.3% for the whole year, representing an increase of 35.0 percentage points
as compared to the effective tax rate of 18.3% in the previous year. The Group’s profit
for the year was significantly lower than that of the previous year. The profitability of
the Group’s legal entities with different tax rates was uneven and the main profitable
units of the year were subject to a tax rate of 25%, resulting in a higher consolidated
tax rate for the Group at the consolidated level.

Profit for the year
In 2021, the Group realized profit for the year of RMB6.69 million, representing a
decrease of 97.1% as compared with that for the previous year.

Administration Expenses
In 2021, the Group incurred administration expenses of RMB127 million (2020: RMB136
million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 6.6%.

General Information of Assets and Liabilities

As at December 31, 2021, the total assets of the Group were RMB4,762 million
(December 31, 2020: RMB4,600 million), representing an increase of 3.5% as compared
with that for the end of 2020. The assets of the Group were mainly trade and notes
receivables, cash and bank deposits, and property, plant and equipment. Such assets
accounted for 92.5% of the total assets of the Group, with trade and notes receivables
and other assets accounting for 80.8% and 11.7% of the total assets, respectively.

As at December 31, 2021, the total liabilities of the Group were RMB3,414 million
(December 31, 2020: RMB3,199 million), representing an increase of 6.7 % as compared
with that for the end of 2020.

Borrowings and Solvency

As at December 31, 2021, the total liabilities of the Group were RMB3,414 million
(December 31, 2020: RMB3,199 million), of which 5.9% (December 31, 2020: 4.9%)
were bank borrowings and 92.1% (December 31, 2020: 93.3%) were trade and other
payables.

As at December 31, 2021, the total borrowings of the Group were RMB200 million
(December 31, 2020: RMB156 million), all of which were bank borrowings and must
be repaid within one year.

As at December 31, 2021, the weighted average effective interest rate for bank
borrowings of the Group was 4.53%.

During the Reporting Period, the total finance costs of the Group were RMB8 million
(2020: RMB8 million) and the earnings before interest and tax were RMB23 million
(2020: RMB285 million). The interest coverage ratio (earnings before interest and tax
divided by interest expenses) was 2.9 (2020: 38.3).
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B E & s f AT

As at December 31, 2021, the gearing ratio (i.e. total liabilities divided by total assets)
of the Group was 71.7% (December 31, 2020: 69.5%).

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group focuses on maintaining a reasonable capital structure and continuously
improving its profitability in order to maintain a good credit standing and sound
financial position.

As at December 31, 2021, the total current assets of the Group were RMB4,485 million
(December 31, 2020: RMB4,327 million), including: (i) cash and bank deposits of RMB356
million (December 31, 2020: RMB529 million), accounting for 7.9% of current assets
(December 31, 2020: 12.2%); (ii) trade and notes receivables of RMB3,848 million
(December 31, 2020: RMB3,625 million), accounting for 85.8% of current assets
2020: 83.8%); and (iii) prepayments and other receivables of RMB39
million (December 31, 2020: RMB30 million), accounting for 0.9% of current assets
(December 31, 2020: 0.7%).

(December 31,

As at December 31, 2021, the current ratio (i.e. current assets divided by current liabilities)
of the Group was 132.6% (December 31, 2020: 136.2%), representing a decrease of
3.6 percentage points as compared with last year.

During the Reporting Period, the net cash flow from operating activities of the Group
was approximately RMB151 million net outflow (2020: approximately RMB51 million
net outflow), representing a year-on-year increase of 196.1%. This is mainly due to the
significant decrease in operating revenue in the current year compared to the previous
year, leading to the decline in cash inflow from operations, while the cash outflows from
activities such as payment of employee compensation and bonuses and notes deposits
increased comparing to the previous year. Thus, overall resulting in a higher net cash
outflow in the current year compared to the previous year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Human Resources

As at December 31, 2021, we employed a total of 1,197 employees (December 31,
2020: 1,147). The table below sets out a breakdown of the number of employees by
role as at December 31, 2021:

B E & am EL AT

ABER

M2021F 128318 - HZRMHEB1,197%EE
(2020412 A31H : 1,1474) - TREIIHKM
2021512 A31 B RBEEEI D R E AHF

15

Number
Role BRE AE
Management g 154
Production management FEERE 306
Quality and technology B & BAir 325
Procurement (materials supply) RE (WEHE) 107
Marketing TG HE 131
Administration and finance T 169
Others EHAh 5
Total ol 1,197
We recruit employees in the open market, and established a scientific, reasonable, fair ﬁ%ﬂ’ﬁﬁ” FMEBLEBRERERELEEZTHES
and impartial remuneration management system. The remuneration of employees mainly £ ~ X F A EMNFHMERBR - BEXNFHHE
includes fixed salary, statutory allowances and subsidies, performance-related salary &%HUIIEI§ CORTERMAM BRI E
and benefits. In accordance with the PRC laws, the Group also makes contributions to ~ MWz L& - RIEFPEDERE - AEBE T RES
pension, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance, — #ANEZRE « BERRE - RERRE - THR
maternity insurance and housing fund for employees. For the year ended December 31, B - £EREEKEIEAES - BZE2021F128

2021 and the year ended December 31, 2020, employee benefits and labor expenses
were RMB255 million and RMB254 million, respectively, remaining relatively stable.

We consider employees to be our most valuable resource for our success. To ensure
the quality of employees at all levels, we have set up in-house training programs to
provide training for employees.

During the Reporting Period, we did not have any operation interruption attributable
to major labor disputes or any complaints or claims from employees that were seriously
adverse to our business. The Directors believe that we maintain a good relationship with
employees and the Group did not have any major labor disputes that had a material
impact on its normal business management during the Reporting Period.
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Proceeds from the Global Offering

(@

27

Use of proceeds from the Global Offering

The Company received net proceeds from the Global Offering of approximately
HK$366.11 million. As disclosed in the 2020 annual results announcement of
the Company dated March 26, 2021, the Company’s remaining proceeds from
the Global Offering amounted to HK$288.36 million (equivalent to RMB259.16
million) as of March 26, 2021, excluding the decided utilization portion. On
March 26, 2021, the Board resolved to change the use of proceeds from the
Global Offering to building new production bases and improving the level of
informatization of management.

During the period from March 26, 2021 to March 29, 2022, the Company has
actually utilised RMB5,500,600 in the construction of the new production bases
and plans to continue to utilize RMB3,488,000 for such purpose by the end of
2023. As at December 31, 2021 and March 29, 2022, the relevant utilization
details are as follows:

ERBEMTRE
()  ERREFERACEAER

KATERIRAFAEESREFELY
£366.11TBEEBEIT - HAARFIHEA
202143 26 B MI2020F FEEENE
Tt EE - #E202143H268 © AQF
EHEEMFSHEFNR(TREERE
REABAE D) 288.36EEEIT ¢ IT
AAR®E259.16 B&EIT - 2021463 A
268 F EEERZBERIREEMERE
WARESE AEEMEEREN KR
BIREBILKFE o

H20214F3A26H#B%202293H29H
i - ARREERBAARKES50.06
BTARFEEREERM - WK
2023 F R ATEEE A AR KE348.80 8
TTRZIERS - M2021F 128318 K
202293 A298 - BEAERAFBENT ¢

Net proceeds from the Global Offering and the actual usage

(RMB million)
ERREMSTEFERERERASER
(AR¥EER)
As at March 26, 2021 As at December 31, 2021 As at March 29, 2022
2021535268 20215125318 1202243 A29A
Utilized
(including decided
utilization portion)
Available Utilized Unutilized 28R Unutilized
qHREA 28R RBA (BREEA%XDA) KEA
Building new production bases 73 Gh A EE B b 239.16 433 234.83 8.99 Mo (2) 230.17
Improving the level of
informatization of
management RABEEBKE 20.00 0.00 20.00 0.00 20.00
Total A5t 259.16 433 254.83 8.99 25017
Note: Including the portion of RMB5,500,600 that has been actually utilized and the portion it BHEOERSHANID ARKS50.068
of RMB3,488,000 that has been decided but not actually utilized. TTNERREREEBANITIDOARE
348.80& 7T °
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In addition, as disclosed in the Company’s 2020 annual results announcement
dated March 26, 2021, the Company has decided to utilize HK$12.94 million
(equivalent to RMB11.65 million) for the improvement, integration and expansion
of the existing concrete production lines as of March 26, 2021. As of March
29, 2022, the Company has actually utilized RMB8,366,800 for such purpose
with a balance of RMB3,283,100. With full consideration of future investment
requirements and based on relevant contracts and settlements, it is expected
that RMB2,789,900 will be used by the end of 2023, resulting in a balance of
RMBO0.49 million. Accordingly, taking into account the aforementioned balance,
the net proceeds from the Global Offering available for change of use amounted
to RMB250.66 million.

Change in use of proceeds from the Global Offering

In conjunction with the Company’s development plan, the Board has assessed the
actual business needs of the Company and, after due consideration, resolved to
further change the use of the unutilized net proceeds from the Global Offering:

(a) approximately RMB150.00 million will be used for the acquisition and
consolidation of aggregates and mining resources and investments in
related fixed assets;

(b) approximately RMB75.00 million will be used for technical renovation of
concrete production and related equipment purchases and investments
in fixed assets; and

(o) approximately RMB25.66 million will be used for research and
development of new products and new technologies and related
equipment purchases and investments in fixed assets.

(ii)

B E & am EL AT
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12948 8B T(ITE ARM1,16587T)
ARME - BEMEZRECEMERLTE
E#R o HE2022F3H298 © ARAE
ERHEARES36.688 TRANZIER
% RHARE328318BIL - ERDE
BARRBATKORIRET - RIEEBEE
RREEBERE - B ER2023F KA
FRAARE278.998 T - BHEHAR
¥0.49BHETT - Bt - EE BRI
WIERT - A& E AR IREERME

FIEFEAARE25066EE T ©

BERBEMBSREAER
%é$®ﬂ%%ﬁ%' BEEEETA
NAMNEREESTEVEBEEERE -
R —SETRPARREENBR

EFHENARA
(a) #“AR®E150.008 8 THAY
ARELERIKE - B4 ki
HETEERE
(b) HAREETS. 005 BTN R
ii?&m&L&ﬁﬁ SR
B ETBEERE K
() AR5 66 EETLHERTE
fB T IT A R R AR R R
BE  BETEERE -
EHERGEEMERRLIRHBRA 28

2021F W E



)

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE R AT

(iii)
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The details for use of proceeds after the change are set out as follows:

BEEOFREERIIOT -

Allocation of the
unutilized proceeds Plan for use
from the Global

Offering after the

of proceeds from the
Global Offering

change after the change

BEENKDA
ERPEFME BEANERBE
REN DB e AL A&

(RMB million)

(AR¥EER)
Acquisition and consolidation of aggregates and mining BARELEREE B4 KEHEE By end of 2024
resources and investments in related fixed assets TEERE 150.00 2024F KAl
Technical renovation of concrete production and related R T A E R UE AR R R By end of 2024
equipment purchases and investments in fixed assets E EATEERE 75.00 2024F KAl

Research and development of new products and new HEm ~ FEATE T MR R e

technologies and related equipment purchases and E EATEERE By end of 2024
investments in fixed assets 25.66 2024F KAl

Total Aagt 250.66

Reasons for the change in use of proceeds from the Global Offering
Due to the fact that (1) there has been delayed commencement of new highway
projects and other major projects which were originally scheduled in 2021; and
(2) the banks have tightened the loans to the real estate enterprises and the
construction companies confronted with fund shortage, which resulted in the
delay of new housing construction projects of the Group, we delay the planned
use of proceeds from the Global Offering in relation to the proposed construction
of the Company’s ancillary production bases for products of concrete and/or
aggregates. In addition, the planned upgrade of the Company’s integrated
business and financial information management system by use of proceeds from
the Global Offering has currently not yet been invested due to the long time
taken to prepare for the initial interface, and considering that the Company
also has its own research and development capability, it plans to upgrade the
level of informatization of management of the Company by investing some of
its own funds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

According to the State’s and Yunnan Province's development plan for the
"14th Five-Year Plan” period, the State will promote green building materials,
build low-carbon cities and promote clean, low-carbon, safe and efficient use
of energy; Yunnan Province will accelerate the establishment of a sound low-
carbon recycling development economic system, enhance the green level of urban
and rural construction, vigorously promote green building materials and green
buildings, and build a market-oriented green technology innovation system in
the future. In addition, Yunnan Province will accelerate the construction of new
infrastructure, new urbanization and the construction of major transportation
project.
Against the aforementioned background, the Company, as the largest producer

and water conservancy projects represented by the “Double Ten”
of commercial concrete in Yunnan Province, plans to focus on technological
transformation and upgrading of concrete production and acquisition of related
equipment by mastering certain aggregates and mining resources, investing in
related fixed assets, participating in relevant urban construction projects, and
fully utilizing its own strength in technological research and development to
develop new products and new technologies that will bring economic and social
benefits to the Company.

Material Acquisition, Disposal and Investments
2021,
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. As at December

For the year ended December 31, the Company did not make any material

31, 2021, the Group did not hold any significant investments.
Charge on the Group’s Assets

As at December 31, 2021,
bank collaterals.

no property, plant and equipment had been provided as

Foreign Exchange Risk

Although the Company operates in China and collects revenues and pays costs/fees
in RMB, the Company is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and has raised
proceeds denominated in HKD of approximately HK$366.11 million (less the underwriting
commission and other estimated expenses paid and payable by the Company for the
Global Offering). As at December 31, 2021, the balance of the Group'’s carrying cash and
bank deposits denominated in HKD amounted to HK$18.84 million. The exchange rate
fluctuations have certain influence on the foreign currency that we hold. The Group has
currently not entered into any hedging arrangement against foreign exchange exposure.

Contingent Liabilities
As at December 31, 2021, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE R AT

Major Investment Plans

The Group intends to expand its industrial layout and participate in key projects and
major works under the “14th Five-Year Plan” for the coordinated regional development
of Yunnan Province. The first is to expand upstream raw material resources, carry out
acquisition and integration of aggregates and mining resources and investment in related
fixed assets, including acquisition and integration of aggregates mines, acquisition of
high-quality aggregates and mining enterprises and investment in fixed assets, etc.; the
second is to consolidate the concrete main business, carry out technical transformation
of existing concrete production, and purchase related equipment, invest in fixed assets
as well as build new concrete batching plants; the third is to combine the State and
Yunnan Province’s policies on promoting green and low-carbon development and green
building materials, and carry out research and development of new products and new
technologies, as well as invest in relevant new production capacity. The Company will
continue to improve its industrial chain structure and eventually achieve closure. If such
investment projects are carried out in the next year, their source of funding will be
primarily from proceeds from the Global Offering or liquidity of the Company.

Outlook

The “14th Five-Year Plan" is an important period for the ready-mixed concrete industry to
upgrade, breakthrough and reinvent itself. As for real economy, the 14th Five-Year Plan
for National Economic and Social Development of Yunnan Province and the Outline of
the 2035 Vision put forward the spatial layout of “the rise of central Yunnan Province,
the opening up of the border, the development of northeastern Yunnan Province and
the integration of western Yunnan Province”, and focused on the implementation of
ten major projects for urban construction, the construction of well-off villages along
the border, and the construction project of large transport links. At the same time,
in accordance with the 14th Five-Year Plan for Construction Industry Development of
Yunnan Province, 14th Five-Year Plan Outline for Housing and Urban-Rural Development
of Yunnan Province and other planning documents, the construction industry will see
greater development during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period. In terms of finance,
since the publication of Guiding Opinions on Promoting Supply Chain Finance for
Serving the Real Economy by China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission, the
implementation of such document has been further promoted in various places. The
Group has started to build a digital supply chain financial platform since the end of
2021. On this basis, the Group will further seize the development opportunities in the
construction industry, and at the same time make full use of the green finance policy and
leverage the digital supply chain financial platform to enhance its competitiveness and
continuously integrate upstream and downstream enterprises to expand its business scale.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Industry Outlook

To promote the comprehensive green transformation of economic and social development,
on January 6, 2022, the People’s Government of Yunnan Province issued the Action Plan
to Accelerate the Establishment of a Sound Green and Low Carbon Circular Development
Economy in Yunnan Province. The document clearly points out that it will vigorously
promote green building materials and green construction, promote the production and
application of green building materials and resource utilization of construction waste
and encourage the use of bulk solid waste as raw materials for new wall materials and
decoration materials. The assembled buildings and buildings using assembled technology
system will steadily increase the proportion of new construction area. In addition, the
document pointed out that it will vigorously develop green finance and guide financial
institutions to support the development of green and environmental enterprises. In the
future, the concrete industry will accelerate the promotion of green and low-carbon
development, strive to break through the traditional industry mindset, promote the
upgrade from traditional industry to green transformation, explore a new development
path, and build a new industry development mode. We believe that the industry will
also embrace opportunities for development when facing great challenges.

Market Prospect

Broad market prospect in Yunnan Province. Driven by the rapid economic development
in Yunnan Province, the investment in infrastructure construction and fixed assets in real
estate industry in Yunnan Province has increased rapidly. In the future, as the potential of
economic development continues to be released, the construction of “Five Networks” in
Yunnan Province will continue to advance, the construction of urbanization will accelerate
and maintain strong growth momentum, which will in turn promote the rapid increase in
the demand for ready-mixed concrete in Yunnan Province. In the next five years, on the
basis of the “All Access” project for county highways, Yunnan Province will launch the
“Interconnection and Intercommunication” project, starting construction of 78 highway
projects, covering 6,024 kilometers, with a total investment of RMB1,024.1 billion. The
project will gradually build a well-defined, functional, extensive and interconnected
highway network, laying a solid transport foundation for Yunnan Province to achieve
quality and leapfrog development. As a concrete enterprise with leading technology
and the strongest and most stable supply capacity in Yunnan Province, the Company
has extensive experience in concrete supply for large scale projects. Therefore, we will
take advantage of the opportunities to participate in infrastructure construction projects
in Yunnan Province to the greatest extent, so as to continuously increase market share
and profitability and further consolidate our leading position in the market.

Green building materials and intelligent manufacturing are promising. Against
the background of the State and Yunnan Province promoting comprehensive green
transformation of economic and social development, we will actively participate in the
market areas of new green building materials and intelligent manufacturing. Relying
on the newly established five major business divisions, we will actively promote new
materials and new technologies, including UHPC, resource utilization of construction
waste, new green and low-carbon materials and intelligent construction, to generate
revenue for the Company and continuously promote the development of green and
low-carbon intelligent construction in Yunnan Province at the same time, and take the
lead in new market areas.
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Future Focus

The Group will further optimize its corporate governance structure and organizational
management structure, and earnestly get down to its production and operation
management in 2022 with reducing costs and increasing efficiency as a principal line.
We will continue to build the supply chain and financial industry chain with the three
centralized procurement platforms as the core, innovate business models and integrate
industry resources; continue to promote centralized procurement of raw materials,
carry out cost-quota management and improve management efficiency; accelerate the
development and implementation of new products and new businesses and optimize
the product business structure.

Constructing a digital supply chain financial platform. The total output value of
aggregates, concrete and cement product industries in Yunnan Province is over RMB100
billion. The overall volume of the concrete industry is large but with a low concentration
and a chaotic market. From the perspective of the overall development of the industry,
the Group will constructed a digital supply chain financial platform to solve the long-
standing problem of receivables and payables in the building material industry by
cooperating with banking and financial institutions to transfer the traditional building
materials business to an online platform, turning operational data into digitalization
assets and realizing credit financing for the upstream and downstream. At the same
time, through the digital financial empowerment, it will construct the upstream and
downstream industrial chain clusters; through the digital financial means, it will integrate
the aggregates, concrete and cement product industries to create a platform economy,
and quickly grow larger, better and stronger.

Centralized procurement of main materials to reduce procurement costs and
improve operating efficiency. The Group will start from reducing intermediaries and
lowering raw material costs to build three major centralized procurement platforms. As
subsidiaries of the Company, 14th Metallurgical New Material Company is responsible
for the transportation, procurement and supply of cement, compound and concrete,
Aggregate Company is responsible for the procurement and supply of aggregate
materials, and Polymer Company is responsible for the procurement and supply of
polycarboxylic admixtures. By centralizing the procurement of upstream raw materials
and transportation through tender and utilizing the digital supply chain financial platform
and introducing bank supply chain financial services, the Group will be able to reduce
intermediate advance costs and finance costs, thereby significantly reducing raw material
procurement costs and continuously optimizing the Group’s operating efficiency.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Continue to strengthen scientific research and technological innovation, promote
green building materials and intelligent construction. The Group will also continue
to focus on the development of ultra-high performance concrete and related products.
By strengthening cooperation with Chinese universities (research institutes), we make
full use of the Group’s existing provincial research platform, continuously improve its
technological research and development and technological innovation capabilities, actively
develop high-end manufacturing, green manufacturing and high-quality manufacturing,
comprehensively improve its brand quality, comprehensively promote green and low-
carbon development and the industrial application of advanced technologies, and
promote construction industry to become an ecological and environmental, green and
low-carbon industry with intelligent construction and improve sustainable development
capacity.

Strengthen the Company’s internal management and

continuously improve the construction of the internal control

system

(i) Accelerate the upgrading of information management. We will endeavor
to optimize our production process, promote the upgrading of facilities and
equipment, accelerate informatization upgrades, continuously improve the
efficiency of production and delivery, and ensure that all staff and production
facilities work in tandem, each business segment is implemented in blocks and
all business segment management information is gradually implemented to
further improve operational management efficiency. Based on the construction
idea of "unifying the platform, meeting the needs and responding to the
future”, a collectivized, integrated and intelligent application control platform
will be established. Combining the current situation and future development
plan of the Company, the Company will gradually transfer its production and
management operations to the information system, transform and upgrade
the system in the direction of intellectualization and Internet of things, and
construct a system platform with automation of production and operation
processes, intellectualization of transportation and logistics, visualization of
operations, refinement of business processes and integration of information
and data by means of information technology, so as to achieve the construction
objectives of horizontal synergy and vertical multi-dimensional management
and control, realize the Company’s business and finance integration, satisfy the
integrated management needs of the Company’s various levels of management
in different business modes and multiple business modules, realize centralized
data management and multi-dimensional analysis of information, and enhance
support for leadership decisions, grasp market opportunities and hedge the
Company’s risks.
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(ii)

35

Continuously improve the internal control management system. We
will integrate the quality, environment and occupation health and safety
management systems and the corporate internal control management system,
revise the system and management documents, improve and deepen the business
processes, and enhance the regularity and efficiency of the business processes,
taking into account the new business layout and management functions of the
Company. At the same time, the integration of the management system and
informatization will be accelerated. By allowing information flow and business
flow to run in a closed pipeline through the management information system,
we will release the Company’s management resources, allow the management
department to better perform its supervision and service effectiveness, and
improve the efficiency of daily operation and decision-making. To clarify the
strategic positioning and work objectives of each production and operation unit,
we will continuously enhance the operational efficiency of our subsidiaries and
innovative business units, highlight our core competitiveness while exploring
new businesses, and continuously improve our management standards.
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NEW INDUSTRY RECOGNITION, NEW LEVEL OF IMAGE
IMPACT

Ranking the Sixth in the List of “KZJ Cup - China’s Top Ten
Commercial Concrete Enterprises” for Four Consecutive Years
In May 2021, the Company ranked the sixth in the list of “KZJ Cup — China’s Top Ten
Commercial Concrete Enterprises” for four consecutive years. “KZJ Cup — China’s Top Ten
Ten Commercial Concrete Enterprises” is recommended and selected by “chinaconcretes.
com (www.cnrmc.com)” out of nearly 30 shortlisted concrete enterprises through market
research to recognize the efforts and contributions of such enterprises to the concrete
industry and to improve the overall influence of the industry.

A Scientific Research Achievement Won the Third Prize For
Science And Technology Progress Award in Yunnan Province
In July 2021, the application technology achievements of the project “Key Technology
Research and Engineering Application of High-performance Concrete Preparation with
High-iron-titanium Metakaolin” implemented by the Company have reached the leading
level in the PRC, and won the title of “Third Prize of Science and Technology Progress
Award in Yunnan Province”. For details, please refer to the voluntary announcement
dated July 14, 2021 in relation to “Scientific Research Achievement of the Company Won
‘Third Prize of Science and Technology Progress Award in Yunnan Province’” published
by the Company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company’s websites.

This application of the project effectively solved the technical problem of the high risk
of cracking for ultra-long and ultra-large concrete structures, and first prepared and
issued product specifications and technical specifications for guiding and regulating
the preparation and application of metakaolin concrete, which filled the gaps in the
relevant domestic standards and effectively promoted the sustainable development of
the enterprises and the progress of concrete technology in Yunnan Province.

Qujing Building Material Accredited With High-tech Enterprise
In December 2021, following the successful accreditation of the Company and its wholly-
owned subsidiary (Polymer Company) as “High-tech Enterprises” in 2020, Qujing Building
Material officially obtained the certificate of “High-tech Enterprise” jointly granted by
Science & Technology Department of Yunnan Province, Yunnan Provincial Department
of Finance and Yunnan Provincial Tax Service, SAT. Qujing Building Material will enjoy
certain policy benefits associated with High-tech Enterprise qualification for a period of
three years commencing from 2021, including but not limited to a preferential tax rate
of 15% for its enterprise income tax (the applicable enterprise income tax rate of 25%
before the obtainment of the qualification of High-tech Enterprise). For details, please
refer to the voluntary announcement dated January 27, 2022 in relation to “Qujing
Building Material Accredited with the Title of ‘High-tech Enterprise’” published by the
Company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company’s websites.

Milestone Events in 2021
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The Company and its two subsidiaries were successfully selected as “High-tech
Enterprises”, which further highlights the advantages of the Company’s green high-
performance concrete products. This will further enhance the Company’s overall
market competitiveness and brand influence, further strengthen the Company’s core
competitiveness, and also inject new impetus into the Company’s image promotion and
transformation and upgrading.

NEW BREAKTHROUGHS IN QUALITY AND TECHNOLOGY,
GREAT STRENGTH IN PRODUCTION AND SUPPLY

Successful Concreting of Large Raft

In July 2021, following the successful concreting of the large raft of Tower T1 of the
Kunming China Resource Tuodong Business Centre Project (Land A1) with a total one-
time pouring volume of 16,100 m?, the large raft of Tower 7# of Kunming Fantastic
Garden Project was successfully concreted again, with completing a total one-time
pouring volume of 16,200 m3. The successful concreting of the large raft on two
occasions has greatly demonstrated the Company’s strong and comprehensive strength
in ensuring concrete production and supply, quality and technology control and services.

Successful Concreting of C120 Ultra-high Performance
Concrete (UHPC)

In December 2021, the Company completed the engineering application of more
than 100 m* of C120 ultra-high performance concrete (UHPC) in Yuanjiang Crossing
Bridge, marking the industrialisation of ultra-high performance concrete (UHPC) of the
Company. Ultra-high performance concrete (UHPC) is the new construction material with
Ultra-high mechanical performance, durability, utmost innovation, high value and high
potential, which is of great significance in promoting the industrialisation development
of high-end low-carbon construction technology in Yunnan Province and advancing the
construction industry towards the development of intelligent manufacturing, high-end
manufacturing, green and low-carbon.

BOOSTTHEIMAGE WITH UPGRADING AND REMOLDING,
LEAD THE TREND WITH GREENNESS AND INTELLIGENCE

The Company actively practices the concepts of “intelligent manufacturing, green and
environmental protection”, enhances the level of management of informatization, and
is committed to proactively promoting and leading the green informatization in the
construction industry in Yunnan Province. In June 2021, the Company introduced the
“one machine with two controls + remote monitoring” technology and completed set
of environmental protection equipment in upgrading concrete batching plants, and
successfully built two concrete batching plants as intelligent and environmentally-friendly
batching plants for high-performance concrete.
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FURTHEROPTIMIZATION OF MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE,
EFFICIENCY IMPROVEMENT WITH ENERGY INJECTION

Changes of Chairman and General Manager

Mr. Li Zhangjian and Mr. Zhang Long were elected as executive Directors of the second
session of the Board at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
December 21, 2021 and were elected as the chairman and vice chairman respectively
at the Board meeting held on the same day. At the same time, Mr. Zhang Long was
also appointed as the general manager.

Mr. Li Zhangjian has devoted himself to the field of construction materials for many
years. He has presided over and concluded 14 provincial science and technology projects
in Yunnan Province, participated in the compilation of 14 sets of national standards,
industry standards and Yunnan local standards, won 28 patents and 7 provincial science
and technology awards, and was appointed as a member of the “National Concrete
ELRITZ B ®) and an expert
“Technical Steering Group for the Promotion and Application of High-
(SR B TR E A RITEEA)

ministries and commissions.

Standardization Technology Committee” (% Bl;& )k T 1Z%E
member for

Performance Concrete” of the relevant national

Mr. Zhang Long has also been engaged in the production, sale and management of
ready-mixed commercial concrete, accumulated extensive experience in special projects
such as airport, highways and rail transportation particularly, and participated in work
of relevant industry associations.

Details about the aforesaid changes of chairman and general manager, please refer to
the announcements dated November 26, 2021 and December 21, 2021 and the circular
dated December 2, 2021 published by the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and the Company.

Restructuring Organizational Structure

In order to further centralize the management of resources and improve management
efficiency, as well as actively explore and establish supply chain financial platform in
conjunction with future development plans, the Company has systematically restructured
its organizational structure as follows:

i) The original direct management department which integrated production and
operation management was abolished and divided into production main body
and operation main body to carry out production management and operation
management respectively, to promote operation by production services
management and further strengthen the leading position of operation;

ii) In order to create a centralized procurement platform for three major raw
materials including concrete, aggregates and admixtures, and reduce raw material
procurement costs and comprehensive management costs, six management
centers, mainly for material supply, quality and technology management, financial
management, cost control, marketing management and production management,
were set up to carry out centralized management;
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Milestone Events in 2021
2021 FEEEMH

i) According to the actual work needs, five business divisions will be set up gradually
to carry out new products such as ultra-high performance concrete (UHPC), new
businesses such as resource utilization of construction wastes and the work related
to the research and development and promotion of new products; and

iv)  We are actively exploring and building a supply chain financial platform with
banks and raw material suppliers.

For details, please refer to the voluntary announcement dated January 4, 2022 in relation
to “The Company Restructured Its Organizational Structure” published by the Company
on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

The aforesaid adjustments will surely further optimize the Company’s corporate
governance structure and internal management body, and is conducive to strengthening
the centralized management of the Company, giving full play to its advantages in
production and technology, and continuously promoting the research and development
for new products and new technologies, as well as expanding new business. In addition,
leveraging on supply chain financial platform injects fresh vitality on the transformation,
upgrading and high-quality development of the Company.
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Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EE EENeSREBEAEGN

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the profiles of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company are as follows:

DIRECTORS

(1) Executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhangjian, aged 44, is the the chairman, the executive Director and the deputy
secretary of the Party Committee of the Company. From January 2011 to April 2017,
Mr. Li served as the deputy general manager and the chief engineer of the Company.
In November 2021, Mr. Li joined the Company again.

From April 2017 to November 2021, Mr. Li has successively served as the deputy
chairman, general manager, secretary of the Party Branch, chairman and deputy secretary
of the General Party Branch of YCIH Building Materials Technology Co., Ltd. (&
BEMEHEBRET2AR]) (“Building Materials Technology Company”); from May
2017 to November 2021, Mr. Li has served as the chairman of Yunnan Kebao Formwork

Co., Ltd. (EMBREREREERA).

Mr. Li has been working for Yunnan Construction Engineering Concrete Co., Ltd.
(EEEIRELTARAA]) ("YNJG Concrete”, the predecessor of the Company) since
July 2000; and has successively served as the director of the central laboratory, deputy
manager and manager of Quality Technology Department, deputy chief engineer,
acting chief engineer, chief engineer, and chief engineer of some important project
management departments of YNJG Concrete from March 2003 to July 2012; from July
2012 to January 2017, Mr. Li served as the deputy general manager and chief engineer
of the Commercial Concrete Division of Yunnan Construction Engineering Group Co.,
Ltd. (ZFEETEEHBR2AR]) ("YNIG"), from October 2013 to September 2016, Mr. Li
served as the deputy chief engineer of YNJG.

Mr. Li graduated from Chongging University with a major in inorganic non-metallic
materials in July 2000, and was awarded the title of senior engineer by the Department
of Human Resources and Social Security of Yunnan Province (EF& A H B RNt &R
[%E2) in February 2015.

Mr. Li has devoted himself to the field of construction materials for many years and has
made considerable achievements. Since 2004, Mr. Li has presided over and concluded 14
scientific and technological projects from the Yunnan Provincial Science and Technology
Committee, Department of Industry and Information Technology of Yunnan Province and
other government departments. Since 2003, Mr. Li has participated in the compilation
of 14 sets of national standards, industrial standards and Yunnan local standards. From
2011, Mr. Li has obtained 6 invention patents and 22 utility model patents. During the
period from 2013 to 2021, Mr. Li accumulatively won 3 second prizes and 4 third prizes
of Yunnan Science and Technology Awards. In 2014, Mr. Li was awarded the title of
“Qutstanding Engineer of National Construction Enterprise” (2B EEEMEEFTE
Ei) by China Construction Industry Association (Bl 217 ). In addition, Mr. Li was
engaged as the chairman of the China Commercial Concrete Industry Enterprise Expert
Committee (P BRI MIB R LITE B EHERZEE) in October 2013 and was engaged as
a member of the National Concrete Standardization Technology Committee (£ B2 +
IZE(L R filTZ B &) by the State Standardization Administration (ARIZE(LEEREZE )
in June 2015. Since February 2014, he was an expert member of the “Technical Steering
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Group for the Promotion and Application of High-Performance Concrete” (7= 1488 )E )kt +
T JE I FR BT #5848 jointly appointed by the Standard Rating Department of the Ministry
of Housing and Urban-Rural Development ({3 5 3k 4832 3% SR 2EE 28 A1) and the Raw
Material Industry Department of the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology
(TEAE B/LEBREM B T ). From April 2017 until joining the Company again, Mr. Li
focused on the research and promotion of aluminium alloy formworks and its accessory
systems, aluminium alloy doors and windows with high-performance, which promoted
the development of Building Materials Technology Company.

In 2014, Mr. Li was awarded the title of “Technological Innovation Talent in Yunnan
Province” (Ef& BT &l# A7) by the People’s Government of Yunnan Province and
was awarded the title of “Yunling Industrial Technology Leader” (E4&E ¥R TEE A L)
jointly granted by the Yunnan Development and Reform Commission, the Organization
Department of the Yunnan Provincial Committee of the Communist Party of China and
other government departments.

Mr. Lu Jianfeng, aged 47, is the vice chairman, the executive Director and the secretary
of the Party Committee of the Company. Mr. Lu joined the Company in July 2013,
and successively served as the executive Director, the deputy general manager, the
executive deputy general manager, the general manager and the deputy secretary of
the Party Committee of the Company. Mr. Lu also served as a director or chairman in
various subsidiaries of the Company: he has served as a director of Polymer Company
from September 2013 to May 2021; as a director of 14th Metallurgical New Material
Company from January 2018 to April 2021 and as the chairman of 14th Metallurgical
New Material Company from May 2019 to April 2021; as a director of Baoshan Building
Material from May 2018 to July 2021; and as a director of Qujing Building Material
from May 2019 to July 2021.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Lu served successively as the chief engineer of East
Batching Plant (B2 #8+#£3f), the manager of the 2nd West Batching Plant (P8 — #&#Euk),
the manager of the 1st West Batching Plant (78—#&#£ik), the manager of Chenggong
Batching Plant (2 & f8#£3k), the deputy manager and the manager of the New Airport
Project Management Department G358 B & 12 &), the manager and the assistant
of the general manager of the New Airport Batching Plant (¥T#I518HE3E) of YNJG
Concrete from August 1998 to January 2011; from January 2011 to December 2016,
he served successively as the assistant of the general manager and the deputy general
manager of the Commercial Concrete Division of YNJG.

Mr. Lu obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in construction materials from Southeast
University (B2 AZ2) in June 1996 and a master's degree in business administration
of senior management from Yunnan University in December 2016. Mr. Lu was also
appraised as a professorate senior engineer (1E= &% T#2RM) by the Professorate Senior
Engineer Review Committee of Engineering Technology of YCIH (EF 2R TR
FeRIEAMGTEZEE) in December 2021.
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Mr. Zhang Long, aged 36, is the vice chairman, the executive Director, the general
manager and the deputy secretary of the Party Committee of the Company. Since joining
the Company in January 2017, Mr. Zhang has successively worked as the assistant to
the general manager of the Company, manager of Yuanjiang-Manhao Highway (JT£
=B A %) project and Guangna Highway (Al R A &) project in Wenshan and the
deputy general manager of the Company.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zhang served successively as a senior staff member,
person in charge and deputy manager of the new airport batching plant (371518
FEUL) of YNJG Concrete from July 2008 to February 2012; from February 2012 to
February 2017, he worked for YNJG and successively served as the deputy manager of
the Konggang Area Project Department (%27 [&@ 8 B #B) and manager of the Konggang
Area Central Batching Plant (227 & # /0 B #h) of Commercial Concrete Division, deputy
manager and batching plant manager of Pu’er Branch, security director of the branch
company (7 A R%Z242E5), manager of the East Batching Plant GR#$£UE), manager
of the Jinning Branch (&% %2 A& HE), manager and assistant of the general manager
of Honghe Autonomous Prefecture Highway and Rail Transportation Department (417
MR R ERBIER 0).

Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in mechanical engineering and
automation from Kunming University of Science and Technology in July 2008. Mr. Zhang
was awarded the title of senior engineer by the Department of Human Resources and
Social Security of Yunnan Province (24 A1 ERMEERER) in February 2021.

Since 2008, Mr. Zhang has been engaged in the production, sales and management of
ready-mixed commercial concrete for a long time, and has accumulated rich experience
especially in airports, highways, rail transit and other special projects, and has participated
in the relevant industry associations. In 2012, Mr. Zhang has been awarded as an
advanced worker of the Bulk Cement and Commercial Concrete Association (FtEE7KE
P f R R T 17 ®) of Kunming.
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Ms. Hu Zhurong, aged 48, is an executive Director (employee Director). Since joining
the Company in August 2017, Ms. Hu has also been serving as the deputy secretary
of the Party Committee (2 Z&|E:2) as well as the chairwoman of the Labor Union.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Hu was appointed as the director of the Kunming
Office (BEE M FEE) of Fourth Construction and Installation Engineering Company of
Fourteenth Metallurgical Group of China Nonferrous Metal (FEA &+ A%LE S
PO SEZE TF2AR)) in July 2002; from April 2008 to September 2016, she served
successively as the deputy director of the Party Office (3 #% & 1) as well as the secretary
of the Communist Youth League (ElZ £#72), deputy director of the Female Worker
Committee (Z L&JZE1E) as well as the secretary of the Communist Youth League, and
vice chairwoman of the Labor Union (L& &% %) as well as the director of the Female
Worker Committee (2 T F {F) of the Fourteenth Metallurgical Construction Group Co.,
Ltd. (+VPREREB AR A F); from September 2016 to August 2017, she served as
the vice chairwoman of the Labor Union of YCIH.

Ms. Hu graduated from Guangzhou Nonferrous Metals Technical School (B/& &%
BITZEZM/K) in July 1992, majoring in automobile application and repair; in July 2002,
she graduated from Adult Education College of Yunnan University (Ef KZ25 A B
ZPt), majoring in economics management; in December 2003, she graduated from
Yunnan Provincial Party School (ZEF& Z /) majoring in accounting and auditing.
In September 2012, Ms. Hu was also appraised as a senior engineer by the Urban
Construction Environmental Engineering Senior Engineer Review Committee of Yunnan

Province (EMEMBRRIIESHRTIRMTBTEER).

(2) Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jiang Qian, aged 47, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Jiang joined the Company
in January 2021.

Mr. Jiang successively served as a commissioner and deputy manager of the Installation
Branch of Yunnan Eighth Construction Engineering Company (Ef & 5 \EE TR A A
ZH5 XF]) from July 1992 to June 2006; successively served as the deputy manager
and the manager of the Installation Branch of Yunnan Engineering Construction General
Contracting Company (Ef TREZRLFERBARILESAF]), and successively served
as the deputy general manager and a member of the Party Committee of the head
office (#7~2&]) from June 2006 to February 2011; served as the head of the marketing
department (F135#& & EE1T) of YNJG from February 2011 to June 2013; served as
the director, the general manager and a member of the Party Committee of Yunnan
Construction Engineering Group 10th Construction Co., Ltd. (EEETHEEE T2
BBRZAF]) from June 2013 to February 2014; successively served as the deputy general
manager and a member of the Party Committee of Yunnan Real Estate Development
and Operation (Group) Co., Ltd. (& B HE L= (R E) BRA ) from February
2014 to October 2014; served as the head of the marketing department (Ti354E & &
F1E) of YNJG from October 2014 to September 2016; successively served as the chief
of the marketing department (54L& EfE0EK), the head of the board office (£ &
PWAZEFEAE) and the secretary to the board of directors of YCIH from September 2016
to October 2019; since October 2019, he has been serving as the vice chairman and
the secretary of the Party Committee of YOIC.
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Mr. Jiang obtained a graduation certificate in administrative management (online
education) from Peking University in March 2016; and obtained a master’s degree in
business administration for senior management from Yunnan University in July 2017.
Mr. Jiang was also appraised as an engineer by YNJG Engineering Technology Zhong
Ping Wei (EfEZ TEE TP FFE) in December 2014.

Mr. He Jianqiang, aged 49, is a non-executive Director. Mr. He joined the Company
in December 2009 and served as the deputy general manager of the Company. Mr.
He has been serving successively as the deputy general manager, the general manager
and the chairman of Kunming Jingbai Industrial Co., Ltd. (ERB&EHE BB R A 7)) since
January 2014; since December 2016, he has been serving as the chairman of Kunming
Daguanshan Investment Development Co., Ltd. (EBAAREILIEEFAEERETAA),
Kunming Tengbang Real Estate Co., Ltd. (2RAEHE X HPR A7) and Kunming Tongfu
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (RBREEHERE AR AF]), and as the vice
president of KMEIC; since November 2018, he has been serving as the deputy general
manager of Yunnan Nengtou New Energy Investment Development Co., Ltd. (Ef#E

BFEREXERRERERRAR).

From September 2009 to December 2016, Mr. He served as the assistant of the general
manager of KMEIC; from April 2014 to June 2018, he served as a director in Kunming
Puzhao Water Purification Management Co., Ltd. (R ER/KEFLEEGR A R);
from December 2016 to April 2020, he served as a director of KMEIC; from December
2016 to December 2021, he served as a director of Kunming Tongtai Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. (RABREXBRAR).

Mr. He obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in environmental engineering from
Tongji University (B AE2) in July 1998. In September 2014, Mr. He was also appraised
as a senior engineer by the Urban Construction Environmental Engineering Senior
Engineer Review Committee of Yunnan Province (EfE & WM EZRR TR M TIEMIEL
B); in May 2016, he obtained the qualification for associate constructor (construction
engineering) approved by the Department of Human Resources and Social Security of
Yunnan Province (EfA A 18 R & {REEEE) and Bureau of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development of Yunnan Province (EEf & (£ 5 A 402 L EE).
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(3) Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas, aged 51, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Wong joined the Company in September 2019.

Since March 2018, Mr. Wong has been serving as the managing director of Asset
Management Department of VPower Group International Holdings Limited (listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 01608); since March 2019, he has been
serving as an independent non-executive director of Changsha Broad Homes Industrial
Group Co., Ltd. (listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 02163).

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wong served as an auditor at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants ({2£) » BI=FR 5 Z5HE17T) from June 1995 to May 1997,
from July 1997 to January 2004, he served as the chief financial officer of Kong Sun
Holdings Limited (listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 00295); from
March 2004 to April 2008, he served as a consultant at Pioneer International Enterprise
Limited; from July 2008 to December 2017, he served as a joint authorized representative
and joint company secretary of CRRC Corporation Limited (listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, stock code: 01766); from November 2015 to December 2017, he served as
a director, the deputy general manager and the chief financial officer of CRRC (Hong
Kong) Co. Limited.

Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor of commerce degree in accounting from the University
of Wollongong in Australia in May 1995; and obtained a master’s degree of science
in financial analysis from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in May
2011. Mr. Wong became a member of the CPA Australia in March 1999 and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in July 1999.
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Mr. Yu Dingming, aged 46, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Yu joined
the Company in December 2017.

Since July 2003, Mr. Yu has been teaching at Yunnan University of Finance and Economics
(EFBHEKE), where he currently serves as a professor; since November 2011, he
has been serving as a part-time lawyer in Yunnan Yunyu Law Firm (EmE2EZMEH
Ffr); since July 2017, he has been serving as an independent director in Yunnan Xiyi
Industrial Co., Ltd. (EFF P& LD AR A A)) (listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
stock code: 002265); since June 2019, he has been serving as an independent director
in Yunnan Copper Co., Ltd. (EFERZERMEMR AT (listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 000878).

Mr. Yu was appointed as an invited expert of the Civil Execution Professional Judges
Meeting of the Higher People’s Court of Yunnan Province (EF & @M A RAREEH
TTHEFEEE D) in April 2017; since June 2018, he has been serving as one of the first
batch of experts in the expert bank for the construction of the law-based government
in Yunnan Province (EEEFRABTEZXREREEIER) and as a member of sixth
council (/NI EZIEE) of the Institute of Ethnic Law of China Law Society (FF BlE
BeREREZMIRTE) ; since September 2021, he has been serving as an arbitrator of
the Fourth Committee of Kunming Arbitration Commission (/g EBHHHEZES).

From January 2013 to August 2018, Mr. Yu served as an independent director of
Kunming lida Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (ERFEARREL[% {5 H R A R)).

Mr. Yu obtained a bachelor’s degree in international economic law from Yunnan
University in July 2000; a master’s degree in economic law from Yunnan University in July
2003; and a doctor’s degree in economic law from China University of Political Science
and Law (FEBUEAAKRER) in June 2010. Mr. Yu also obtained the certificate of legal
professional qualification granted by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC in September 2002
and was appraised as a professor by Yunnan College Teachers, Professors and Associate
Professors Review Committee (EF & = IR MM EIE 812IZ T EZ B'E) in October 2014.
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Mr. Li Hongkun, aged 53, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Li joined the
Company in September 2019.

Since March 1995, Mr. Li has been teaching at Yunnan University of Finance and
Economics (Z B4 KE2), where he currently serves as a professor and master tutor;
since August 2021, he has been serving as an independent director in Yunnan Nantian
Electronic Information Industry Co., Ltd. (EMMAEFEEEERHER AT (listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000948).

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor of economics degree in accounting from Yunnan Finance and
Trade College (Ef BT E ZP5%) in July 1990; a master of economics degree in accounting
from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (FaFg B4 48 K E£2) in June 1994;
and a doctor of management degree in financial management from Southwestern
University of Finance and Economics in July 2009. In October 2013, Mr. Li was also
appraised as a professor by Yunnan College Teachers, Professors and Associate Professors
Review Committee; in November 2017, he obtained the Qualification Certificate of
Independent Director of Listed Company (ETARBIEFEKEE) issued by the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

SUPERVISORS

(1) Chairman of the Supervisory Committee and non-employee
representative Supervisor

Mr. Wu Xinhe, aged 49, is the chairman of the Supervisory Committee and a non-
employee representative Supervisor. Mr. Wu joined the Company in March 2019.

From September 2013 to September 2020, Mr. Wu served as a general manager of
Kunming Guoshun Asset Operation and Management Co., Ltd. (ERABEE EL & E 12
BBR A7), from September 2013 to October 2020, he served as a director of Kunming
Guoshun Asset Operation and Management Co., Ltd.; from January 2017 to September
2020, he served as a general manager of Yunnan State-owned Asset Kunming Economic
and Technological Development Zone Industry Development Co., Ltd. (ZEFH & BRFKE
F@EZEREFRQE]), from January 2017 to October 2020, he served as a director
of Yunnan State-owned Asset Kunming Economic and Technological Development Zone
Development Co., Ltd; from October 2018 to February 2020, he served as a director of
Hong Kong Kunjing Capital Holdings Limited (&7 R4 & ARNIFIRA R A7), since April
2017, he has been serving as a deputy general manager of KMEIC; since February 2020,
he has been serving as the chairman of Hong Kong Kunjing Capital Holdings Limited.

From April 2004 to February 2019, Mr. Wu served successively as the deputy manager
of Administration Department, the manager of Project Department, the manager of
Business Solicitation Department, the deputy general manager, the general manager
and the chairman of Kunming Innovation Park Science and Technology Development

Co., Ltd. (EFARIHTEI R B R AR A ).
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Mr. Wu obtained a bachelor of science degree in applied chemistry from Yunnan
University in July 1995; and a master of engineering degree in industrial engineering
from Kunming University of Science and Technology (2833 T XZ) in June 2007. Mr.
Wu also obtained the Professional Technical Qualification Certificate of Real Estate
Economics (Intermediate) conferred by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC (FF B A 5 5f)
(currently known as the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC (
B A DB R 2 RESES) in November 2000; and the qualification of senior economist
granted by the Department of Human Resources and Social Security of Yunnan Province

(EfMAANERMESRERE) in April 2011.

(2) Non-employee representative Supervisors
Mr. Yang Guanglei, aged 50, is a non-employee representative Supervisor. Mr. Yang
joined the Company in January 2021.

From October 2001 to June 2006, Mr. Yang served successively as the chairman of
labor union of the Second Engineering Department (5 — T#2j&), the deputy director
and the director of the Work Department of the Party Committee (¥Z T{F#f) in
Yunnan Eighth Building Engineering Company (Zf& 5 /\ZE T2 A R]); from June
2006 to February 2013, he served successively as the director of Work Department
of the Party Committee, a member of the Party Committee, the deputy secretary of
the Discipline Inspection Commission, the director of the Discipline Inspection and
Supervision Office (42122522 =) and Legal Office in Yunnan Engineering Construction
General Contracting Company (Er LI2ZEFZRLHAE A F]), from February 2013 to
May 2017, he served successively as a member and the deputy secretary of Party
Branch, the chairman of labor union and a member of the General Party Branch in
the First Department of Direct General Contracting (E/&##& 8 —&B) of YNJG; from
May 2017 to March 2018, he served as a member and the deputy secretary of the
General Party Branch in the First Department of General Contracting (48# 8 —%f)
of YCIH; from March 2018 to September 2019, he served as the deputy secretary of
the Party Committee and the vice chairman of the YCIH Sixth Construction Co., Ltd.
(EERBIRFENERERAR); since September 2019, he has been serving successively
as a member of the Discipline Inspection Commission, and the head of the Office for
the Leading Group for Party Committee Inspection Work of YCIH.

Mr. Yang graduated from Kunming Educational College (RFAEI&E S FERIER) in
July 1992, majoring in history education; and obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from Yunnan University in December 2014. Mr. Yang was also appraised
as a senior political engineer (=4 LAM) in December 2007; and as a senior engineer
in November 2016.
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Mr. Gu Feng, aged 39, is a non-employee representative Supervisor. Mr. Gu joined
the Company in January 2021.

I\/Ir Gu was engaged in financial management in YNJG Installation Co., Ltd. (EFE#ET

R AR A A]) from July 2004 to March 2015; from March 2015 to April 2020, he
served successively as the deputy manager and the manager of financial department and
®E

); since April 2020, he has been serving as the deputy manager of the finance

the financial director of Laos-China Joint Venture Investment Co., Ltd. (EF &
BRAT
department of YOIC; since June 2020, he has been serving as the financial director in
Ruili Hailong International Culture and Sport Development Company Limited (¥ BT /&
BB EE B #E AR E T AR]). Mr. Gu has over 15 years of experience in finance.
Mr. Gu graduated from Yunnan Finance and Economics School (Em& B4EER) in
July 2002, majoring in computerized accounting (technical secondary school); and from
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics (/&8¢ KX2) in July 2004, majoring
in accounting (junior college).

(3) Employee representative Supervisors

Ms. Li Na, aged 42, is the employee representative Supervisor, the vice chairwoman
of the Labor Union and the secretary of the First Party Branch of the Company. Ms. Li
joined the Company in January 2017, and has previously served as the secretary of the
Party Branch and the chairwoman of the Labor Union of the Seventh Direct Division
of the Company. From April 2019 to May 2021, Ms. Li has served as the supervisor of
Polymer Company.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Li served successively as the deputy director of the
General Party Branch Office (B2 #tAZE&IEE), secretary of general youth league
branch (E|#8 3 £70), executive secretary of Party Branch (TTHE X Zi & 72), the director
of Female Worker Committee (2 T F{F), and the vice chairwoman of the Labor Union
of YNJG Concrete from September 2008 to January 2016; from January 2016 to January
2017, she served as the vice chairwoman of the Labor Union of the Commercial Concrete
Division of YNJG.

Ms. Li graduated from Kunming University of Science and Technology majoring in
computer information management (junior college) in July 2004; and graduated from
Kunming University of Science and Technology in January 2008, majoring in law.

Mr. Guo Huan, aged 33,
the general manager of the Company and director of the Corporate Management
#EIBEELE), and director of Cost Control Center (FRANE b3

f£). Mr. Guo joined the Company in January 2017, and has previously served as the

is an employee representative Supervisor, assistant of
Department (1t

secretary of the Party Branch and the chairman of the Labor Union of the Tenth Direct
Division of the Company.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Guo served successively as a staff member, the deputy
FEEIER of the
Commercial Concrete Division of YNJG from August 2010 to January 2017.

manager and the manager of the Corporate Management Division (&
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Mr. Guo obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in software engineering from Yunnan
University in July 2010; and a master of engineering degree in software engineering
from Yunnan University in June 2014. Mr. Guo was also appraised as a software
designer (intermediate) issued by the Department of Human Resources and Social
Security of Yunnan Province (E@ & A J1E RA €{RFEEE) in May 2009. He obtained
the Qualification Certificate of Specialty and Technology in Business Management
(Intermediate) issued by the Department of Human Resources and Social Security of
Yunnan Province in June 2017; and the Qualification Certificate of Constructor issued
by the Department of Human Resources and Social Security and the Department of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the PRC in September 2018.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhang Long is an executive Director and a senior management personnel of the
Company, for his biographical details please refer to “Directors” above.

Ms. Ge Ting, aged 46, is a deputy general manager and a member of the party
committee of the Company. Ms. Ge joined the Company in December 2016 and has
previously served as an employee Director and the chairwoman of the Labor Union
of the Company. Ms. Ge has also been serving as a director and the chairwoman of
Baoshan Building Material since July 2021.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Ge served successively as deputy director and
director of the General Office (484 ##/2 =), manager of the Corporate Development
Department ({B3 %R EB), director of the Administrative Affair Department (1T
#%8), manager of the General Management Department (434 &¥2%0), manager of
the General Management Office (25 EIEH*# A E), manager of the Human Resources
Division (A1 & J&EL and deputy general manager of YNJG Concrete from November
2002 to May 2012; from May 2012 to December 2016, she served as the deputy general
manager and manager of the Human Resources Division of the Commercial Concrete
Division of YNJG; from December 2016 to February 2017, she served as a member
of the Party Committee (2ZZ &) and deputy general manager of the Commercial
Concrete Division of YNJG.

Ms. Ge obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in inorganic non-metallic materials
from Wuhan University of Technology (EZT2X2) in June 1997; and a master of
engineering degree in materials engineering from Wuhan University of Technology in
July 2003. In August 2007, Ms. Ge was also appraised as a senior engineer by the
Urban Construction Environmental Engineering Senior Engineer Review Committee of
Yunnan Province (EFEHERRIERHBIEMIFEZE®), in July 2009, she was
appraised as a level-1 corporate human resource specialist by the Occupational Skill
Testing Center of Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security (A /1 &R 24t & (R
(ERE 35T Rl il
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Mr. Li Xiang, aged 40, is a deputy general manager and a chief economist of the
Company. Mr. Li joined the Company since January 2017 and worked as an assistant
of the general manager and deputy chief engineer of the Company as well as the chief
engineer of the Kunming branch. Mr. Li also served as an executive director of Aggregate
Company from April 2021 to January 2022; and as a director and chairman of Qujing
Building Material since July 2021.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Li served successively as the chief engineer of
Chenggong Batching Plant, the chief engineer of the Airport Project Department
(#3578 8 36), deputy manager of the Quality and Technology Department
(E 2R AT36) as well as chief engineer of the New Airport Batching Plant, and deputy
manager of Project Management Department of Kunming New Airport Project (8
518 B B2 3F) as well as deputy chief engineer from February 2007 to February
2012; from February 2012 to January 2017, he served successively as the deputy chief
engineer as well as the director of the Central Lab (/0558 =), deputy general manager,
assistant of the general manager and deputy chief engineer in the Commercial Concrete
Division of YNJG.

Mr. Li has been serving as a member of the Concrete Quality Professional Committee
of the Concrete and Prestressed Concrete Branch of China Civil Engineering Society (#
Bt ATESZERET IBAENERETSSRELEEEXZEEE) since August 2017.

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in civil engineering from Kunming
University of Science and Technology in July 2004. In August 2015, Mr. Li was also
appraised as a senior engineer by the Construction Engineering Senior Engineer Review
Committee of Yunnan Province (EFfEEET RS R IEMIELZER).

Mr. Liu Renzhi, aged 46, is a deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Liu joined
the Company in February 2017, and has previously served as a chief economist of the
Company. Mr. Liu has also sucessively served as a director and chairman of Yuxi Building
Material from July 2015 to July 2021.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Liu served as the deputy manager and manager of
the Operation Department of YNJG Concrete from January 2011 to February 2012; from
February 2012 to February 2017, he served successively in the Commercial Concrete
Division of YNJG as the manager of the Operation Department, assistant of the general
manager as well as manager of the Operation Department, and chief economist; from
July 2015 to July 2017, he served as the general manager of Yuxi Building Material.
Mr. Liu was appointed as the vice chief supervisor (g|25% &) of Kunming Bulk Cement
and Commercial Concrete Association (BT AL KR RSt L1 ®) in July 2017.

Mr. Liu graduated from Yunnan Construction Engineering School (EF&REETRE
) in July 1996, majoring in industrial and civil architecture; graduated from Yunnan
University in July 2007, majoring in marketing and e-commerce (junior college); in January
2017, he graduated from Yunnan University majoring in business administration. Mr.
Liu also obtained the Qualification Certificate of Specialty and Technology of the Senior
Economist in Business Management issued by the Department of Human Resources and
Social Security of Yunnan Province (Ef & A B R ERIERE) in August 2019.
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Ms. Liang Limin, aged 46, is the chief engineer of the Company. Ms. Liang joined
the Company in January 2017 and has previously served as deputy chief engineer and
director of the Technical Innovation Center of the Company. Ms. Liang also served as
an executive director of Polymer Company from May 2021 to January 2022.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Liang served successively as the deputy director,
director and deputy chief engineer of the Technical Innovation Center in the Commercial
Concrete Division of YNJG from January 2011 to January 2017.

Since August 2017, Ms. Liang has been serving as a member of the Concrete Quality
Professional Committee of the Concrete and Prestressed Concrete Branch of China
Civil Engineering Society (FBI+RTEZRETREBENBRTIHGREELTEESR
¥ZE9)

Ms. Liang obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in inorganic non-metallic materials
from Shenyang Institute of Civil Engineering (JEFZ £ T2 E6%) in July 2000; a master
of engineering degree in materials science from Shenyang Architecture University (J0F5 52
£ KE2) in March 2005; and a doctor’s degree in highway and railway engineering from
Nanjing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (F AR ZE M AAER) in June 2011. In
November 2017, Ms. Liang was also appraised as a professorate senior engineer (IEf
4 TF28M) by the Professorate Senior Engineer Review Committee of Yunnan Province

(EHEEaRTRRMTEERES).

Mr. Li Yongqing, aged 45, is the deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Li joined
the Company in January 2017 and served successively as the assistant of the general
manager of the Company, the chief of the Marketing Department, the manager and
the secretary of Party Branch of Kunming Branch, and the manager of the First Direct
Management Department (5 —&EZ &6). Mr. Li also served as the general manager of
Quijing Building Material from February 2017 to March 2018; and served successively as
the general manager and executive director of 14th Metallurgical New Material Company
from February 2019 to January 2022.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Li worked in Shenzhen Antuoshan Investment &
Development Co., Ltd. (RIITHLFEILIZEER B R AF]) from July 1999 to May 2008;
he served successively as the deputy manager of the Quality and Technology Department
and the deputy manager of the Production and Operation Department in YNJG Concrete
from March 2010 to January 2011; he served successively as the deputy manager and
the manager in the Commercial Concrete Division of YNJG, Jinning Commercial Concrete
Branch (B2 s E it 2 A)) and Zhaotong Commercial Concrete Branch (P33 7 &
SRR /A R]) from January 2011 to November 2016; he served as the assistant of the
general manager in the Commercial Concrete Division of YNJG and the general manager
of Yunnan Construction Engineering Qujing Building Material Co., Ltd. (EFE T #hiE
ZEM AR AT from November 2016 to January 2017.

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in silicate engineering from Wuhan
University of Technology (2 T % KX £2) in June 1999; he obtained a master’s degree in
engineering from Xi‘an University of Architecture and Technology in June 2019. Mr. Li
was also appraised as a professorate senior engineer (1E =4 T#26M) by the Professorate
Senior Engineer Review Committee of Engineering Technology of YCIH (EFE#T
M ES R TR TEZ B]) in December 2021.
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Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

B EEMEREEAEEN

Mr. Liu Zhen, aged 35, is the chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Liu joined the
Company in January 2017. He served successively as the deputy manager and chief of
the Finance Department of the Company, and concurrently served as a member of the

second Party Branch of Administration (#4158 — %37 #6), a member of the Labor Union
and the chief of the Funding Review Committee of the Labor Union of the Company.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Liu served as an ordinary staff and the accounting
head of the Finance Division of YNJG Concrete from July 2009 to February 2012; served
successively as the deputy manager of the Finance Division of the Commercial Concrete
Department of YNJG from February 2012 to January 2017, and concurrently served as
the manager of the Finance Department of Zhaotong Commercial Concrete Branch of
YNJG from February 2013 to June 2013; and the manager of the Finance Department
of YNJG Yunling Cement Co., Ltd. (EFZETLEL&E/KERBRAF]) (formerly known as
Yunnan Phosphorus Group Yunling Building Material Co., Ltd. (ErI F R B Z 82 M
ABRZAF]) from June 2013 to August 2017.

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor's degree of management in accounting (computerized
accounting) from Yunnan University of Finance and Economics in July 2009. Furthermore,
Mr. Liu obtained the title of Accountant (intermediate) issued by the Department of
Human Resources and Social Security of Yunnan Province (Ef& A H &Rt 2RE
EZ) in September 2016.

Ms. Liang Yuwei, aged 34, is the secretary of the Board, the director of the Board Office
and the General Management Office of the Company. Ms. Liang joined the Company
in January 2017, and has previously served as the deputy director and deputy director
(in charge of overall operation) of the Board Office of the Company.

Ms. Liang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Hubei University of Economics
in July 2009; and a master’s degree in management science and engineering from Yunnan
University in July 2016. Ms. Liang obtained the title of intermediate economist of finance
issued by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC (Bl A 1 &R
Mt € REEL) in November 2018. She also obtained the Qualification Certificate of the
Secretary to the Board of Directors (£EEWEE T A) issued by the Shanghai Stock
Exchange in August 2018 and the Qualification Certificate of Independent Director (J&
B EEAMKFEE) issued by the Shanghai Stock Exchange in November 2018.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Liang Yuwei is a senior management personnel and joint company secretary of
the Company. For her biographical details please refer to “Senior Management” above.

Ms. Wong Sau Ping is a joint company secretary of the Company. Ms. Wong currently
serves as an associate director of the listing services department of TMF Hong Kong
Limited (a global corporate services provider). Ms. Wong has over 21 years of experience
in the field of company secretary. She is currently a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom.
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The Board hereby presents the report of the Directors and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2021.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on October 31, 2019 and
issued 133,882,000 H Shares with a par value of RMB1.00 at HK$3.36 per Share. After
completion of initial public offering, the Company had a total of 133,882,000 H Shares.
As at December 31, 2021, the Company issued 446,272,000 Shares in total, including
312,390,000 Domestic Shares and 133,882,000 H Shares. The Company raised a total
of approximately HK$449.84 million, with net proceeds of approximately HK$366.11
million (net of underwriting commission and other issuance and listing expenses). As of
December 31, 2021, the Company’s unused proceeds amounted to RMB258.92 million,
of which RMB4.09 million was decided to be used for the improvement, integration
and expansion of the existing concrete production lines, but was not actually used.

Details about the purpose and use of the proceeds from the Global Offering are set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES

The Group's principal businesses include production and sale of ready-mixed concrete,
polycarboxylic admixtures and aggregates and provision of concrete-related quality and
technology management services. The analysis of the Group’s principal businesses for the
year ended December 31, 2021 is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

RESULTS

The Group's results for the year ended December 31, 2021 are set out in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the
consolidated financial statements from pages 168-169 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

Dividend policy

The Company’s dividend policy is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.
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Final dividend for 2021

The Board proposed that no final dividend would be declared for the year ended
December 31, 2021 to the Shareholders, subject to the approval of the Shareholders
at the 2021 AGM.

The notice of the 2021 AGM, containing details of the book closure period and the
registration of share transfer, will be published and dispatched to the Shareholders in
due course.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, discussions and analysis of the Group’s performance
for the year, material factors related to performance and financial position, and the
future development of the Group’s business are set out in the sections headed “Financial
Highlights”,
this annual report, respectively.

“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of

MAJOR RISKS

Although the Group has established a risk management system to identify, analyze,
evaluate and address risks, our business remains exposed to a certain number of risks
which may affect the Group’s strategy, operation, compliance and financial position.
Major risks and uncertainties the Group facing are as follows:

Macro-environmental risk

The Group’s business and future growth may be affected by the macroeconomic
situation and the performance of the construction industry in the PRC and Yunnan
Province. Any slowdown or recession in China’s and Yunnan Province's economy and/
or the construction industry may adversely affect the concrete industry, which will in
turn adversely impact the Group's business, operating results and financial position. In
addition, the Group's business is susceptible to adverse changes in government policies
related to the construction industry in the PRC and Yunnan Province, including regulations
affecting land supply for real estate development, project financing and taxation, as
well as local government budgets.
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Operational cost risk

The Group's operations and growth prospects will be affected by transportation costs,
production capacity constraints and labor costs. The Group’s operations depend on the
capability to effectively optimize the allocation of raw materials, human resources and
equipment, improve management efficiency and reduce management costs. If the Group
fails to effectively control transportation costs, labor costs or management costs, the
Group's business, operating results and financial position may be adversely affected.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash. The Group fulfills
due obligations and maintains flexibility in funding mainly through committed credit
facilities to maintain sufficient cash. The management monitors rolling forecasts for the
Group's liquidity reserves (including undrawn bank credit) and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows. All borrowings are in compliance with the relevant
contractual terms (if any), and the Group expects to be able to meet future cash flow
requirements through internally generated operating cash flows and borrowings from
financial institutions.

In addition to the major risks above, there may be other risks and uncertainties. Please
refer to the section headed “Risk Factors” of the Prospectus for the relevant content.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group considers environmental protection as an important corporate responsibility
and attaches great importance to implementing environmental protection measures in
its daily operations. The Group chooses mixing, transportation and testing equipment
featuring advanced technology, low carbon and energy saving, low noise, low emissions,
and high production efficiency. It adopts fully closed production lines, closed silos,
spray systems and powder recycling devices. Its dust control for production and noise
control within the factory boundary complies with the relevant requirements. The Group
adopts aggregates separation technology and seriflux recycling system for treatment of
waste slurry and water to achieve zero discharge. The Group's advanced ERP concrete
production control system is used to realize automatic control and data management in
the concrete production process, and the production energy consumption quota and the
comprehensive energy consumption quota have reached advanced levels. The Group has
assigned senior management personnel responsible for safety, health and environmental
protection, and set up a safety monitoring department. The Group has formulated
the Administrative Measures for Environmental Factors, Administrative Measures for
Environmental and Occupational Health and Safety, Administrative Measures for Solid
Waste, Administrative Measures for Energy Conservation and Resource Control and
other systems to regulate the management of environmental factors involved in the
production and operation of the Group as well as the occupational health and safety
management of the Group. Although the Group’s main business does not belong to
pollution-intensive or hazardous industries, its production activities will still generate
certain noise and waste, for which the Group has taken control measures such as new
mixing equipment, noise reduction of pneumatic equipment and installation of pollution
prevention and control equipment.
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Details of the Group’s environmental and social policies and performance are discussed
and disclosed in the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
Report” of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group shall comply with a number of laws and regulations, mainly including the
Company Law, the Civil Code of the People’s Republic of China, the Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Construction Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other laws and regulations.

The Group ensures its compliance with applicable laws, regulations and standardization
legal documents through multiple measures including internal control, compliance
management, business approval procedures and employee training. The Group will notify
relevant departments and employees from time to time of any change in applicable
laws, regulations, and standardization legal documents related to the main business.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has never failed to comply with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on it.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that its employees, customers and business partners are crucial
for its continuous development. The Group has been committed to maintaining close
relationships with employees and providing customers with high-quality products and
services, and strengthening cooperation with business partners.

The Group provides employees with a good working environment to protect their
health and safety, and competitive remuneration and benefits and fair competition and
development opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group also makes
constant efforts to provide employees with adequate training and development resources
to keep them up to date with the latest developments in the market and industry, and
improve their work performance and promote their self-actualization at the same time.

The Group adheres to the path of safe production, tech-driven, intelligent manufacturing
and green development and puts a premium on the environmental protection of its
products by enhancing construction efforts of smart and green factories. The Group is
committed to providing customers with high-quality green products, and continuously
optimizes its service system to connect information systems at the same time. The Group
has built multiple communication channels to learn about the needs and opinions of
customers and seek to provide the best services for customers, with an aim to fully
protect their rights and interests.

The Group maintains good business relationships with suppliers, manages suppliers
in a fair, just and open manner, and achieves a win-win situation with them through
honest operation.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The financial summary of the Group for the previous 5 financial years (i.e. 2017 to
2021) is set out in the section headed “Financial Highlights” of this annual report. This
summary does not constitute a part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major customers

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the volume of transactions with the Group's top
five customers accounted for 71.8% of the Group's total revenue (for the year ended
December 31, 2020: 84.7%), and the volume of transactions with the Group's largest
single customer (YCIH Group) accounted for 61.6% of the Group's total revenue (for
the year ended December 31, 2020: 75.9%).

Major suppliers

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the volume of transactions with the Group's top
five suppliers accounted for 18.4% of the Group’s total purchase amount (for the year
ended December 31, 2020: 24.3%), and the volume of transactions with the Group’s
largest single supplier (China Railway Materials Company Limited (Bl B E RN B
fR 2 R))) accounted for 7.2% of the Group’s total purchase amount (for the year ended
December 31, 2020: the largest supplier is China Railway Materials Company Limited,
accounting for 10.0%).

During the Reporting Period, to the knowledge of the Board, save for YCIH Group (being
a holder of more than 5% of the issued Shares of the Company), none of the Directors,
any of their close associates or any of the Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the issued Shares of the Company) had any interest in
any of the Group's top five customers or suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2021 are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Company and the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2021 are set out in Note 38(a) to the consolidated financial statements
on page 291 and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 172
respectively to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

RETAINED EARNINGS

As at December 31, 2021, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB198,823,000. As at December 31, 2020, the distributable reserves
of the Company amounted to approximately RMB254,589,000.
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BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings and other borrowings of the Group as at December 31,
2021 are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the compositions of the second session of the Board
and the Supervisory Committee are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Zhangjian (chairman)

Mr. Lu Jianfeng

Mr. Zhang Long

Ms. Hu Zhurong (employee Director)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Jiang Qian
Mr. He Jiangiang

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas

Mr. Yu Dingming

Mr. Li Hongkun

Supervisors:

Mr. Wu Xinhe (chairman of the Supervisory Committee)
Mr. Yang Guanglei

Mr. Gu Feng

Mr. Guo Huan (employee representative Supervisor)
Ms. Li Na (employee representative Supervisor)

Details of the general election of the Board and the changes of the Directors of the
Company as well as the general election of the Supervisory Committee are set out in
the sections headed “Corporate Governance Report” and “Supervisory Committee’s
Report” of this annual report respectively.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Details of the confirmation of independence of the independent non-executive Directors
are discussed and disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service contract with the
Company. Such service contracts do not stipulate any compensation (other than statutory
compensation) payable by the Company if it terminates such contracts within one year.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN
SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

For the year ended December 31, 2021 and as of the Latest Practicable Date, none
of the Directors or Supervisors had any material interest, directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the Group's business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party.

INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, the Company had arranged appropriate liability insurance
for each of the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period and as of the Latest Practicable Date, the Company did
not sign or enter into any contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICIES

Directors, Supervisors and senior management receive remunerations from the Company
in the form of salaries, Director’s fees, benefit schemes and discretionary bonuses.
Remunerations of Directors, Supervisors and senior management are determined with
reference to the industry market standards and operations of the Company.

The Group’s employees’ remunerations mainly include fixed salary, statutory allowances
and subsidies, performance-related pay and achievement-related pay. In accordance with
PRC laws, the Group also makes contributions to pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing
provident fund for employees.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details about the Group’s retirement and employee benefit schemes are set out in Note
8 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Due to the change of session of the Board, on January 29, 2021, Mr. Ma Minchao
ceased to serve as the chairman, executive Director, chairman of the strategy committee,
member of the nomination committee and the risk management and control committee,
and Mr. Liu Guangcan ceased to serve as the non-executive Director, chairman of the risk
management and control committee, member of the audit committee and the strategy
committee. On the same day, Mr. Zhang Yingyue and Mr. Jiang Qian were appointed
and took over the above duties of Mr. Ma Minchao and Mr. Liu Guangcan respectively.

Due to the change of session of the Supervisory Committee, on January 29, 2021, Mr.
Chang Hongbing and Ms. Li Yan ceased to serve as the non-employee representative
Supervisors. On the same day, Mr. Yang Guanglei and Mr. Gu Feng were appointed
and took over the above duties.

Due to the change of session of the Board, Mr. Wu Kun and Mr. Zhang Wenhua ceased
to serve as the deputy general managers on January 29, 2021. On the same day, Mr.
Li Xiang, a deputy general manager, was appointed as the chief economist and deputy
general manager, and Mr. Liu Renzhi, a chief economist, was appointed as the deputy
general manager and resigned from the position of the chief economist, and Mr. Li
Yongging was appointed as the deputy general manager.

For details about the above changes, please refer to the announcements dated January
5, 2021 and January 29, 2021, and the circular dated January 8, 2021 published by
the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

Ms. Xu Airong ceased to serve as the financial director on April 8, 2021. On the same
day, Mr. Liu Zhen was appointed and took over the above duty. For details, please refer
to the announcement dated April 8, 2021 published by the Company on the websites
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

On November 26, 2021, Mr. Zhang Yingyue ceased to serve as the chairman, executive
Director, chairman of the strategy committee, member of the nomination committee
and the risk management and control committee, and Mr. Rao Ye ceased to serve as
the vice chairman, executive Director, member of the remuneration and evaluation
committee and the strategy committee. For details, please refer to the announcement
dated November 26, 2021 published by the Company on the websites of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

Due to work arrangements, on December 21, 2021, Mr. Lu Jianfeng ceased to serve as
the general manager, and Mr. Rao Ye and Mr. Zhang Long ceased to serve as the deputy
general managers. On the same day, Mr. Li Zhangjian was appointed as the chairman,
executive Director, member of the remuneration and evaluation committee, chairman of
the strategy committee and chairman of the risk management and control committee,
and Mr. Zhang Long was appointed as the general manager, executive Director, member
of the strategy committee and the risk management and control committee.
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Due to changes of members of the Board committees, on December 21, 2021, Mr. Lu
Jianfeng was appointed as the member of the nomination committee, Ms. Hu Zhurong
ceased to serve as the member of the risk management and control committee and was
appointed as the member of the nomination committee, Mr. Jiang Qian ceased to serve
as the chairman of the risk management and control committee and the member of the
strategy committee, and was appointed as the member of the risk management and
control committee and the remuneration and evaluation committee, Mr. He Jiangiang
was appointed as the member of the audit committee and the strategy committee, Mr.
Yu Dingming was appointed as the member of the audit committee, and Mr. Wong
Kai Yan Thomas was appointed as the member of the nomination committee and the
remuneration and evaluation committee.

For details about the above changes, please refer to the announcement dated December
21, 2021 and the circular dated December 2, 2021 published by the Company on the
websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as of the Latest Practicable Date, no other changes in the
information of any Directors, Supervisors and chief executive officer were required to
be disclosed according to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2021, none of the Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the
Company had any interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which should be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which are taken or deemed to be held under such provisions of the SFO),
or which would be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register referred to therein, or which would be required, pursuant to the Model Code,
to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

RIGHTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period did the Company or its subsidiaries enter into
any arrangement to enable the Directors or Supervisors to acquire benefits through
acquisition of the Shares or debentures of the Company or any other corporation, nor
had any Directors, Supervisors or their spouses or children aged under 18 been granted
any rights to acquire Shares or debentures of the Company or any other corporation
or exercised any of such rights.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at December 31, 2021, to the knowledge of the Directors, the following parties (other
than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares, which is required to be disclosed to
the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and has been entered in
the register kept by the Company according to Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRRKROKREBRGF
MERERRR

2021F12A318  HEEHMA - TH AL
(PIHEE  BEERAQARESTERAE)RE
MR, A RBCGES M EGGE
XVEBE2 3N PAMARRBELEELRA
NAMRIB(ER LBAEIROIDFEI6CATERFZE
stz TR A

Approximate

percentage of
the number Approximate
of the  percentage of
corresponding  shareholding in
class of issued the total issued
Shares share capital

hiEEER HERT
Number of  Long/short BRTRS RABE
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Class of Shares Shares position EEPZ REZ BN
HE 5/ REEE R A3 5 R®E HE/ %R BAt BAK
YCIH Mote ) Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 228,600,000  Long position 73.18% 51.22%
Interest held by controlled Domestic Shares 51,450,000  Long position 16.47% 11.53%
corporations Mot 2)
Total: 280,050,000  Long position 89.65% 62.75%
Emek (0 EERAA RER 228,600,000 HE 73.18% 51.22%
REAEREER NER 51,450,000 HE 16.47% 11.53%
CHE 280,050,000 HE 89.65% 62.75%
YOIC (ete2) Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 51,450,000  Long position 16.47% 11.53%
BIMEE = ERBEAA NER 51,450,000 HE 16.47% 11.53%
KMEIC (ote3) Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 32,340,000  Long position 10.35% 7.25%
KREE EafEBA NER 32,340,000 HE 10.35% 7.25%
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Interest held by controlled H Shares 13,388,000  Long position 10.00% 3.00%
Technology Co., Ltd. (ete®) corporations ot 4)
REERRHARAR e REEER AR 1 HER 13,388,000 e 10.00% 3.00%
Zoomlion HK. Holding Co., Interest held by controlled H Shares 13,388,000  Long position 10.00% 3.00%
Limited Mt 4) corporations et 4
REBER (BE) BRARAR M REEER AR W0 HE& 13,388,000 e 10.00% 3.00%
Zoomlion International Trading (H.K.) Co., Beneficial owner H Shares 13,388,000  Long position 10.00% 3.00%
Limited (Mete 4
THENERES (B8) BRAF 1 EREBA HER 13,388,000 e 10.00% 3.00%
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Approximate
percentage of
the number Approximate
of the  percentage of
corresponding  shareholding in

class of issued the total issued

Shares share capital

EAEEER HERT

Number of  Long/short BRITRA RABE

Name Capacity/Nature of interest Class of Shares Shares position #EZHD B2 #L

®E 5/ ERHE R &R RHG#E HE/ %R BAt BAK

China Resources Company Limited > Interest held by controlled H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.00%
corporations Mt

REEEERAR WY REAERSA RS Hi 40,164,000 HR 30.00% 9.00%

China Resources Inc. (te) Interest held by controlled H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.00%
corporations Mo

EERNERAR H5) SRR AR (50 Hi 40,164,000 e 30.00% 9.00%

CRC Bluesky Limited (e Interest held by controlled H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.00%
corporations o9

CRC Bluesky Limited () LR RENER HE) Hi& 40,164,000 55} 30.00% 9.00%

China Resources (Holdings) Company Interest held by controlled H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.00%
Limited Mte ) corporations ot )

£H (5E) BRAR 1 REEER AR 1 HER 40,164,000 e 30.00% 9.00%

CRH (Cement) Limited (e Interest held by controlled H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.00%
corporations (Nete3)

EEEE (R) BRAR W RERER AR 1 HE& 40,164,000 e 30.00% 9.00%

China Resources Cement Holdings Limited Interest held by controlled H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.00%
(Note 5) corporations ot %)

ERARERARAR e REEER AR 1 HER 40,164,000 e 30.00% 9.00%

China Resources Cement Holdings (Hong  Beneficial owner te H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.00%

Kong) Limited et

FRORER (B8) FRAF HE) ERfAA s HER 40,164,000 HE 30.00% 9.00%

Kunming Iron & Steel Holdings Co. Ltd.  Beneficial owner H Shares 12,360,300  Long position 9.23% 2.77%

EAMSERER AR EREAA Hilk 12,360,300 e 9.23% 2.77%

Hua An Fund Management Co., Ltd. Others (Mote6) H Shares 12,350,000  Long position 9.22% 2.77%

Others (et 6l H Shares 8,137,000  Long position 6.08% 1.82%

Total: 20,487,000  Long position 15.30% 4.59%

EREGERARAR Hfgy (5 HE& 12,350,000 e 9.22% 2.77%

B () Hik 8,137,000 HE 6.08% 1.82%

Ch 20,487,000 HE 15.30% 4.59%
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Approximate
percentage of
the number
of the
corresponding
class of issued

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total issued

Shares share capital
3R] HERT
Number of  Long/short B2RITRA RABE
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Class of Shares Shares position #EZHD B2 #L
HE 5/ ERMHE RGEHR RHG#E HE/ %R BAt BAK
Hua An Fund — QDlII single asset Others (et 7) H Shares 8,137,000  Long position 6.08% 1.82%
management plan of YCIC Investment
ERESTHRRREQQIE—EEE Hfph W) HER 8,137,000 He 6.08% 1.82%
by |
Yunnan Communications Investment & Others (et ?) H Shares 8,137,000  Long position 6.08% 1.82%
Construction Group Co., Ltd. Mete?
EHERBRERREE Hiy (s 7) HE& 8,137,000 e 6.08% 1.82%
BRAR HE7)
YCIC Investment Co., Ltd. Mete?) Beneficial owner H Shares 8,137,000  Long position 6.08% 1.82%
Beneficial owner H Shares 8,137,000 Loanable 6.08% 1.82%
shares
ERRREBREBRAR W=7 EafEAA HER 8,137,000 He 6.08% 1.82%
EafBA HE 8,137,000  FH{EHM 6.08% 1.82%
i)
Hua An Fund — QDII single asset Others (o8 H Shares 12,350,000  Long position 9.22% 2.77%
management plan of Yunnan State
Farms
EnES—TEPQDIE—EEEEHE Hfp = HE& 12,350,000 HE 9.22% 2.77%
Yunnan State Farms Group Co., Ltd. ®*® Beneficial owner H Shares 12,350,000  Long position 9.22% 2.77%
EHREEEBREMAAR W EafEBA HER 12,350,000 e 9.22% 2.77%
Yunnan Industrial Investment Holdings Beneficial owner H Shares 12,500,000  Long position 9.34% 2.80%
Group Co., Ltd.
EMETXRELREEERAERR  BaEBAA HER 12,500,000 HE 9.34% 2.80%
YUNNAN PROVINCIAL ENERGY Interest held by controlled H Shares 12,350,000  Long position 9.22% 2.77%
INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LTD Mote? corporations ee?)
YUNNAN PROVINCIAL ENERGY REEER A ER R Hi 12,350,000 e 9.22% 2.77%
INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LTD (&9
Yunnan Energy Investment (H K) Co. Beneficial owner H Shares 12,350,000  Long position 9.22% 2.77%
Limited (ete®)
Yunnan Energy Investment (H K) Co. ERBEAA HiR 12,350,000 HE 9.22% 2.77%
Limited (#9)
HWABAO TRUST CO., LTD et 10) Trustee (ete 10 H Shares 12,360,300  Long position 9.23% 2.77%
HWABAO TRUST CO., LTD 10 SFEA 0 Hi 12,360,300 e 9.23% 2.77%
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Notes:

(10)

State-Owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Yunnan Province (EfA A
REFEAEEEBEEEZBE) holds 97.35% equity interest in YCIH and Yunnan Provincial
Department of Finance (Z£f%& 8 BFE) holds 2.65% equity interest in YCIH.

YOIC is wholly-owned by YCIH. By virtue of the SFO, YCIH is deemed to be interested in the
51,450,000 Domestic Shares held by YOIC.

The State-owned Assets Administration Commission of Kunming Economic and Technological
Development Zone (EBAEERMHEEEEEEERZ B E) holds 90% equity interest in
KMEIC and Yunnan Provincial Department of Finance (E7%& B ) holds 10% equity interest in
KMEIC.

Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Co., Ltd. (FESERIRH BB AT is the sole
shareholder of Zoomlion H.K. Holding Co., Limited (F&tERHEH)IERARRAF), which in turn
is the sole shareholder of Zoomlion International Trading (H.K.) Co., Limited (FEtERIEERZ 5(F
)R AR).

China Resources Company Limited (REIZEE AR A F)) is the beneficial owner of the entire issued
share capital of China Resources Inc. GEERH AR E]), which in turn is the beneficial owner
of the entire issued share capital of CRC Bluesky Limited, which in turn is the beneficial owner
of the entire issued share capital of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (ZEE(%E)E
BR 2 &]), which in turn is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of CRH (Cement)
Limited (CEEEEGKR)ER A F]) and Commotra Company Limited (& 2 &R AF]). CRH (Cement)
Limited (2 M£ B (KE)AR Q7)) directly held approximately 68.63% of the issued share capital
of China Resources Cement Holdings Limited (ZE/KJEIEIR AR A F]), whereas Commotra
Company Limited (& &AM 7)) directly held approximately 0.09% of the issued share capital of
China Resources Cement Holdings Limited (27K B2 A% A R 7)), which in turn is the beneficial
owner of the entire issued share capital of China Resources Cement Holdings (Hong Kong)
Limited (ZEEARIZIR(FB) B R A F).

Hua An Fund Management Co., Ltd. CEZE S EREHFRAF)) is the asset manager of two asset
management plan products, (i) Hua An Fund — QDII single asset management plan of Yunnan
State Farms; and (ii) Hua An Fund — QDII single asset management plan of YCIC Investment.

YCIC Investment Co., Ltd. (EFERZIEEEEEHFR A R]) is wholly-owned by Yunnan Communications
Investment & Construction Group Co., Ltd. (EmEERBIEEEEEEARRAR]). YCIC Investment
Co., Ltd. (ZEmIEEEIRE AR AR invested in the underlying Shares issued by the Company
as client through Hua An Fund — QDII single asset management plan of YCIC Investment. By
virtue of the SFO, Yunnan Communications Investment & Construction Group Co., Ltd. (EFE X
BIRERREBARAT) is deemed to be interested in the 8,137,000 H Shares held in the Hua
An Fund — QDI single asset management plan of YCIC Investment.

Yunnan State Farms Group Co., Ltd. (EERZEE AR ET A F]) invested in the underlying
Shares issued by the Company as client through Hua An Fund — QDII single asset management
plan of Yunnan State Farms.

Yunnan Energy Investment (H K) Co. Limited is wholly-owned by YUNNAN PROVINCIAL ENERGY
INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LTD. By virtue of the SFO, YUNNAN PROVINCIAL ENERGY INVESTMENT
GROUP CO., LTD is deemed to be interested in the 12,350,000 H Shares held by Yunnan Energy
Investment (H K) Co. Limited.

By virtue of the SFO, HWABAO TRUST CO., LTD, as trustee, is deemed to be interested in the
12,360,300 H Shares held by HWABAO OVERSEAS INVESTMENT SERIES 2 NO 42-8 QDI SINGLE
MONEY TRUST.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2021, to the knowledge of the Directors, no

other person (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the Company)

had any interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which are required

to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register
as specified in Section 336 of the SFO.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company did not enter into any equity-
linked agreement.

PURCHASE,
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any

SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED

of the Company’s listed securities for the year ended December 31, 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association and PRC
laws which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

YCIH entered into a non-competition agreement with the Company on September
25, 2019 (the “Non-Competition Agreement”), pursuant to which, YCIH has
unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken to the Company (for the interests of the
Company itself and other members of the Group) that YCIH shall not, and shall procure
that its associates (excluding the Group) will not, directly or indirectly, whether on their
own or jointly with another person or company, own, invest in, participate in, develop,
operate or engage in any business or company which directly or indirectly competes
or may compete with any business of the Company. Please refer to the Prospectus for
details of the non-competition undertakings.

The Company has received the annual confirmation that YCIH has complied with the
Non-Competition Agreement during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the performance of the Non-
Competition Agreement during the Reporting Period according to the information and
confirmation provided or given by YCIH, and are satisfied that YCIH has complied with
the Non-Competition Agreement.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at December 31, 2021, none of the Directors nor any of their associates had any
interest in any business which competes or may compete directly or indirectly with the
business of the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group has entered into the following non-
exempt continuing connected transactions.
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Continuing connected transactions subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements but exempt
from strict compliance with the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement

Land and Property Leasing Framework Agreement

The Company entered into the land and property leasing framework agreement (the
“2019 Land and Property Leasing Framework Agreement”) on September 25, 2019
with YCIH. As the term of the 2019 Land and Property Leasing Framework Agreement
expired on December 31, 2021, the Company and YCIH entered into the new land
and property leasing framework agreement (the “2021 Land and Property Leasing
Framework Agreement”) on November 26, 2021 to renew the 2019 Land and Property
Leasing Framework Agreement.

Pursuant to the 2019 Land and Property Leasing Framework Agreement, the Company
may lease land and properties lawfully owned by YCIH and/or its associates. During the
Reporting Period, the land and properties leased from YCIH and/or its associates included:

(i) two pieces of land in Kunming where two batching plants of the Company
are located to serve the regional market, covering areas of 16 mu and 42 mu,
respectively;

(i) one property in Kunming leased for use as the Company’s headquarter office,
with an aggregate GFA of 4,179.61 m? and

(i) one property in Zhaotong leased for use as the Company’'s office, with an
aggregate GFA of 463.71 m?.

The initial term of the 2019 Land and Property Leasing Framework Agreement commenced
on the Listing Date and ended on December 31, 2021, subject to early termination by
either party giving at least 30 business days’ prior written notice to the other party.
For details, please refer to the section headed “Connected Transactions — Non-exempt
Continuing Connected Transactions” of the Prospectus.

The main pricing principles stipulated in the 2019 Land and Property Leasing Framework
Agreement are as follows:

(i) both parties shall refer to the prevailing market rates of similar land and properties
in the neighboring area of the relevant land and properties, and determine the
rentals with reference to such market rates on normal commercial terms to ensure
a fair and reasonable rental level;

(i) both parties shall review and adjust (if applicable) rentals upon the renewal of
the Land and Property Leasing Framework Agreement by reference to the then
market conditions, including factors like the geographical location, the standard
of construction and the surrounding area; and
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(iii)  the Company shall bear all utility charges incurred in using the relevant properties
during the term of the lease, and also be responsible for costs incurred from
maintenance and repair of the land and properties.

Pursuant to the 2021 Land and Property Leasing Framework Agreement, the Company
may lease the land and properties lawfully owned by YCIH and/or its associates for a
3-year period from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2024. For details, please refer
to the announcement dated November 26, 2021 published by the Company on the
websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

The main pricing principles stipulated in the 2021 Land and Property Leasing Framework
Agreement are as follows:

(i) both parties shall refer to the lease contract (if any) that has been or is being
performed by the parties, the market rental of similar land and properties in the
neighboring area of the relevant land and properties, and determine the rentals
on normal commercial terms to ensure a fair and reasonable rental level;

(i) both parties shall review and adjust (if applicable) rentals upon the renewal of
the Land and Property Leasing Framework Agreement by reference to the then
market conditions, including factors like the geographical location, the standard
of construction and the surrounding area;

(iii)  the Company shall bear all utility charges incurred in using the relevant properties
during the term of the lease; and

(iv)  the Company shall be responsible for maintenance and repair of the leased land
and properties and also bear the cost incurred hereunder during the term of the
lease.

As of December 31, 2021, YCIH directly and indirectly held 62.75% of the Company's
issued Shares and was the Controlling Shareholder of the Company. Therefore, YCIH
and its associates were connected persons of the Company and the transactions under
the 2019 Land and Property Leasing Framework Agreement and 2021 Land and Property
Leasing Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

For the three years ended December 31, 2019, 2020 and 2021, the annual caps under
the 2019 Land and Property Leasing Framework Agreement were RMB5.56 million. The
actual amount incurred during the Reporting Period was RMB3.74 million.
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Continuing connected transactions subject to the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements

Products Sales Framework Agreement

The Company entered into the product sales framework agreement (the “Product
Sales Framework Agreement”) with YCIH on March 27, 2020. According to the
agreement, the Group may sell concrete, aggregates and other products to YCIH and
its associates. The Product Sales Framework Agreement became effective upon the
approval of independent Shareholders at the 2019 annual general meeting held on
June 29, 2020 and shall remain valid until December 31, 2022. For details, please refer
to the continuing connected transaction announcement dated March 27, 2020 and the
2019 annual general meeting circular dated May 14, 2020 published by the Company
on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

The main pricing principles stipulated in the Product Sales Framework Agreement are
as follows:

(i) the price of the products shall be determined in accordance with the pricing
policies and guidelines adopted and regularly reviewed by the Company for
the sales of products to all customers with reference to upstream materials
and product prices and other costs, and be generally in line with the prevailing
market price at which the same type of product is provided by the Group to an
independent third party customer on normal commercial terms; the following
factors will also be taken into account to determine the prevailing market price:
the price the Group offers to the independent third party customers for the same
type of product, the payment terms, the specific requirements of the contracting
parties, the quality of the products required and the geographical areas where
the products are provided, etc., to ensure the price will be no less favorable to
the Group than that of the same type of product it provides to independent third
party customers; and

(i) in the unlikely event that no comparable market price can be taken, experts in
the Group with sufficient industry experience shall opine on the fairness and
reasonableness of the price by reference to the comparable price and/or historical
transaction price of the most similar products to ensure the price would be fair
and reasonable to the Group and no less favorable to the Group than the price
it offers to independent third party customers.

As of December 31, 2021, YCIH directly and indirectly held 62.75% of the Company’s
issued Shares and was the Controlling Shareholder of the Company. Therefore, YCIH
and its associates were connected persons of the Company, and the transactions under
the Product Sales Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company.

For the three years ended December 31, 2020, 2021 and 2022, the annual caps under
the Products Sales Framework Agreement were RMB3,300 million, RMB3,400 million
and RMB3,900 million, respectively. The actual amount incurred during the Reporting
Period was RMB1,294 million.
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Raw Materials, Products and Services Procurement Framework Agreement

The Company entered into the raw materials, products and services procurement
framework agreement (the “Raw Materials, Products and Services Procurement
Framework Agreement”) on March 27, 2020 with YCIH. According to the agreement,
the Group may procure raw materials, products and services from YCIH and its associates.

The raw materials, products and services procured thereunder include, without limitation,

the following:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

raw materials: cement, aggregates and others;

products: production equipment and other products used in the Company’s
production operations; and

services: construction services, property management services and consultancy
services, etc.

The Raw Materials, Products and Services Procurement Framework Agreement became

effective upon the approval of independent Shareholders at the 2019 annual general
meeting held on June 29, 2020 and shall remain valid until December 31, 2022. For
details, please refer to the continuing connected transaction announcement dated March
27,2020 and the 2019 annual general meeting circular dated May 14, 2020 published
by the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

The main pricing principles stipulated in the Raw Materials, Products and Services

Procurement Framework Agreement are as follows:

With respect to raw materials:

@)

(ii)

71

the price shall be generally in line with the prevailing market price at which the
same type of raw material is provided to the Group by independent third party
suppliers on normal commercial terms. The Group will conduct market research
and regularly contact its suppliers (including both YCIH and/or its associates
and independent third party suppliers) to understand the market conditions and
determine the prevailing market price of the relevant type of raw materials; and

where a public tendering or a competitive negotiation process is required for the
procurement of the relevant raw materials, the price shall be determined based on
the results of such process in accordance with the Company’s internal regulations
and rules applicable to all suppliers of the same type of raw materials. Pursuant
to such regulations and rules, if YCIH and/or its associates win the bid, the terms
they offer, including the price quoted, shall be no less favorable than those offered
by any independent third party supplier that participates in the process.
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With respect to products:

@)

(ii)

the price shall be generally in line with the prevailing market price at which the
same type of product is provided to the Group by independent third party suppliers
on normal commercial terms; to determine the prevailing market price, reference
will be made to the historical prices of the same type of product, where applicable,
the guidance price published by authoritative organizations and institutions and
costs for the relevant product determined through market research to ensure the
price will be no less favorable to the Group than that of the same type of product
provided to the Group by independent third party suppliers; and

where a public tendering or a competitive negotiation process is required for the
procurement of the relevant product, the price shall be determined based on the
results of such process in accordance with the Company’s internal regulations
and rules applicable to all suppliers of the same type of product. Pursuant to such
regulations and rules, if YCIH and/or its associates win the bid, the terms they
offer, including the price quoted, shall be no less favorable than those offered
by any independent third party supplier that participates in the process.

With respect to services:

@)

(ii)

(ii)

the price of construction services shall be determined with reference to the pricing
guideline and method as set out in the Pricing Guidelines for Construction and
Engineering of Yunnan Province (2013 Edition) ( (2% 2013k Ti2iEEHE
¥ ) ) and where a public tendering process is conducted for the procurement,
based on the results of such process;

the price of the property management services shall be determined with reference
to the prevailing market rates and conditions for the same type of service provided
in the neighboring area, taking into account factors such as the geographical
location, the standard and quality of services and the condition of the property,
by independent third party service providers on normal commercial terms; and

the price of consultancy services shall be determined with reference to the
prevailing market rates at which the same type of service is provided to the
Company by independent third party service providers on normal commercial
terms.

As of December 31, 2021, YCIH directly and indirectly held 62.75% of the Company’s
issued Shares and was the Controlling Shareholder of the Company. Therefore, YCIH

and its associates were connected persons of the Company and the transactions under

the Raw Materials, Products and Services Procurement Framework Agreement constituted

continuing connected transactions of the Company.
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For the three years ended December 31, 2020, 2021 and 2022, the annual caps under
the Raw Materials, Products and Services Procurement Framework Agreement were
RMB430 million, RMB460 million and RMB500 million, respectively. The actual amount
incurred during the Reporting Period was RMB80 million.

Financial Services Framework Agreement

The Company entered into the financial services framework agreement (the “Financial
Services Framework Agreement”) with YCIH Financial Company on March 27, 2020.
According to the agreement, YCIH Financial Company agreed to provide the following
financial services and the Company agreed to use some or all such financial services
depending on its requirements:

(i) deposit services;
(i) bills acceptance and discount services;
(iii)  letters of guarantee services; and

(iv)  other financial services (including assistance in fund receipt and payment and
other business approved by the CBIRC).

The Financial Services Framework Agreement became effective upon the approval
of independent Shareholders at the 2019 annual general meeting held on June 29,
2020 and shall remain valid until December 31, 2022. For details, please refer to the
continuing connected transaction announcement dated March 27, 2020 and the 2019
annual general meeting circular dated May 14, 2020 published by the Company on the
websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

The main pricing principles stipulated in the Financial Services Framework Agreement
are as follows:

(i) with respect to deposit services, the interest rates payable by YCIH Financial
Company shall not be lower than the interest rates in respect of the same type
of deposit service provided by major domestic commercial banks in the PRC to
the Group in the same period;

(i) with respect to bills acceptance and discount services, the service fees or interest
rates to be charged by YCIH Financial Company shall not be higher than those
of the same type of service provided by major domestic commercial banks in the
PRC to the Group in the same period;

(i) with respect to letters of guarantee services, the fees to be charged by YCIH
Financial Company shall not be higher than those of the same type of service
provided by major domestic commercial banks in the PRC to the Group in the
same period; and
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(iv)

with respect to other financial services (including assistance in fund receipt and
payment and other business approved by the CBIRC), the fees to be charged
by YCIH Financial Company shall not be higher than those of the same type of
service provided by major domestic commercial banks in the PRC to the Group
in the same period.

As of December 31, 2021, YCIH directly and indirectly held 62.75% of the Company’s
issued Shares and was the Controlling Shareholder of the Company. YCIH Financial

Company is a subsidiary of YCIH. Therefore, YCIH Financial Company was a connected

person of the Company and the transactions under the Financial Services Framework

Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company.

The following table sets forth the transaction caps and the actual amounts incurred for

2021 under the Financial Services Framework Agreement.

(iv)

HZE2021F12A31H
BARRNT62.75%C 31TRAD
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Transaction Actual amounts
caps for 2021 incurred for 2021
20215 EW 2021 FEREMN
X5 LR BREHE
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(ARBEET) (AREBEETR)
Deposits services FHRARTS
— maximum daily deposit balance —BHEESEFERHE (BEEFFLR)
(including interest accrued thereon) 150 133
Bills acceptance and discount ES S E RN 50 (]

Notes:

Q)

In respect to letters of guarantee services under the Financial Services Framework Agreement, such
transactions constitute financial assistance provided by a connected person for the benefit of the
Company. As such transactions are on normal commercial terms (or better to the Company) and
no security over the assets of the Company is granted in respect of the transactions, they are fully
exempt from all reporting, announcement, annual review and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

In respect of other financial services (including assistance in fund receipt and payment and other
business approved by the CBIRC) under the Financial Services Framework Agreement, as such services
are on normal commercial terms and all the relevant percentage ratios are less than 5%, as well as
the total consideration are less than HK$3,000,000 on an annual basis, such transactions are fully
exempt from all reporting, announcement, annual review and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
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Highway Projects Batching Plants Leasing Framework Agreement

The Company entered into the highway projects batching plants leasing framework
agreement (the “Highway Projects Batching Plants Leasing Framework Agreement”)
with YCIH on August 24, 202 1. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group may lease batching
plants equipment and construction facilities in relation to highway projects from YCIH
and its associates. The batching plants equipment and construction facilities to be leased
thereunder include, without limitation, the followings:

i

) production equipment of batching plants and other equipment used in the
operation of batching plants, such as concrete mixer and batching machine; and

(i) construction facilities.

The Highway Projects Batching Plants Leasing Framework Agreement became effective
upon the approval of independent Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting
held on October 11, 2021, and shall remain valid until December 31, 2023. For details,
please refer to the continuing connected transaction announcement dated August 24,
2021 and the extraordinary general meeting circular dated September 17, 2021 published
by the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

The main pricing principles stipulated in the Highway Projects Batching Plants Leasing
Framework Agreement are as follows:

(i) The rental for leasing batching plants equipment shall be determined in accordance
with the market purchase price of relevant equipment, management fees and taxes
after arm’s length negotiations between the parties to the agreement. The rental
shall be generally in line with the prevailing market price at which the same type
of equipment is leased to the Group by independent third party lessors on normal
commercial terms and shall be determined based on the results of public tendering
or invited tendering in accordance with the Company’s internal regulations and
rules applicable to all lessors of the same type of equipment. Pursuant to such
regulations and rules, if YCIH and/or its associates win the bid, the terms they
offer, including the price quoted, shall be no less favorable than those offered
by any independent third party lessors that participates in the process;
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(i) The rental for leasing construction facilities shall be comprised of the construction
costs, management fees and taxes after arm’s length negotiations between the
parties to the agreement. The construction costs shall consist of field engineering
fees and construction costs for auxiliary facilities, including but not limited to
plants, laboratories, supporting facilities for office and living and stock ground
and shall be subject to the settlement letter setting out the breakdown of actual
costs incurred and agreed by both parties. The construction costs are subject to
various factors including but not limited to location, transportation conditions
and construction difficulties of the batching plants, and shall be calculated
on a case-by-case basis. Based on the previous experience in construction of
batching plants and information currently available of highway projects proposed
to commence the construction, it's estimated that the construction costs for the
construction facilities of each batching plant generally range from approximately
RMB3.5 million to RMB5.0 million. Considering that it is the first time for both
parties to cooperate in relation to batching plants leasing, YCIH has agreed to
waive the management fees for leasing construction facilities during the term of
the Highway Projects Batching Plants Leasing Framework Agreement;

(i) YCIH and/or its associates shall be responsible for maintenance and repair of the
batching plants equipment and construction facilities during the lease term; and

(iv)  YCIH and/or its associates shall be responsible for transportation of the equipment,
tearing down the construction facilities, land reclamation, and payment of relevant
expenses thereof after the conclusion of the lease term.

As of December 31, 2021, YCIH directly and indirectly held 62.75% of the Company's
issued Shares and was the Controlling Shareholder of the Company. Therefore, YCIH and
its associates were connected persons of the Company, and the transactions under the
Highway Projects Batching Plants Leasing Framework Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company.

From the effective date of the agreement to December 31, 2021 and for two years
ending December 31, 2022 and 2023, the annual caps under the Highway Projects
Batching Plants Leasing Framework Agreement were RMB300 million, RMB500 million
and RMB520 million, respectively. The actual amount incurred from the effective date
of the agreement to December 31, 2021 was RMB18 million.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above-mentioned continuing
connected transactions during the Reporting Period and confirmed that these transactions
have:

(i) been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) been conducted on normal commercial terms or better; and
(iii)  been conducted in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on

the terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.
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SERRE

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, has performed certain procedures
and confirmed in writing to the Board with respect to the above continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2021 that:

(i) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been approved by
the Board;

(i) for the transactions involving the provision of goods or service by the Group,
nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects, conducted in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group;

(i) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv)  nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to believe that
the amounts of the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the annual cap.

Please refer to Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements prepared under the
IFRSs for details of the significant related party transactions. Information on connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions required to be disclosed under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules is set out in this section. Save as disclosed above, the related
party transactions disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements do not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company
nor are they connected transactions or continuing connected transactions exempt from
disclosure requirements. The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules in relation
to the relevant transactions.

CHARITY DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no charitable donations and other
contributions.

MAJOR LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended December 31, 2021, our Company had no major legal proceedings
or arbitration. To the knowledge of the Directors, there were no major legal actions or
claims that had not been concluded or may threaten our Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2021, our Company had purchased liability insurance for
Directors and Supervisors to provide appropriate protection for Directors and Supervisors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Our Company’s audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), together with the
management and our Company’s external auditors, has reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the audited consolidated financial

statements for the year ended December 31, 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has been committed to improving its corporate governance standards since
its establishment. Pursuant to the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code,
it has established a modern corporate governance structure under which the general
meeting, the Board, the Supervisory Committee and senior management of the Company
effectively exercise checks and balances on each other and operate independently. The
Company adopts the Corporate Governance Code as its corporate governance practice.

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance
practices. Information on the corporate governance practices and compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code adopted by our Company is set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best knowledge
of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total number of issued Shares (being
the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and permitted under the Hong Kong Listing Rules) was held by the public for
the year ended December 31, 2021 and up to the Latest Practicable Date.

AUDITOR

The Company has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers and PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian as the Company'’s international auditor and domestic auditor for the year
ended December 31, 2021, respectively. PricewaterhouseCoopers has audited the
accompanying consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

The Company will submit a resolution of intent at the forthcoming 2021 AGM for the
re-appointment of the PricewaterhouseCoopers and PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong
Tian as the Company’s international auditor and domestic auditor for the year ending
December 31, 2022, respectively.

By Order of the Board
Li Zhangjian
Chairman

Kunming, China, March 29, 2022

Directors’ Report
EEgWmS

BT EEG
ARBEFZEG((EFEEENCHERE
Ko 82 R OB A BB R 28 B AN = B PR AR Y
SR RAINES - AREE2021F12A3181E
FEEEZAHHB@RE -

EERTA

KRB BRI ARIG L BUL R T B R E R K
¥ 2ROEERTANTEANG - B TH
AREBRERE EEE EFTETRARE
BEABBRGIE - BUEENRRLERAER
B ARARAGEEATANERAEMEER
B e

ARRBNEFERKFZEEERER - B
ARBFRACEEERAERNETREER
SAMERENARFR 2 REERRE IRE -

NEBFEE
BERARAAIAFESHERRRESZAR
Mo HE2021F12A31HEFEREZREA
THE C ARRABEHITRMHBEFZELE25%
(NEBBHRARES LTRARENHELR
BRI BHARALES -

M

ARRAB)EREERROKE K& EAGET KD B
RARNTEZE2021512 731 B IEFEERIMZ
SUAD MR EHAD o 28 RGBS BE P iR B
BRUBREENRENAFUBERRETTE
% o

RRFR RS RITH2021 FERFAF RS
FREEMAZR  BRERBGERTEX
BRRD A BARRFEE2022F12A31 B IEF
R BESMZ B AN IR A RTED

REEZEW
EER
E R

REIERR - 202243 A29H

THERGERMEERELIRNERAA 78
2021F W E



)

Corporate Governance Report
rEEAMmE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures, as the Board believes that sound and effective
corporate governance practices are particularly critical to gaining and maintaining
the trust of Shareholders, and are an essential element in encouraging accountability
and transparency to sustain the success of the Group and create long-term value for
Shareholders.

The Company has adopted and complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company had complied
with all applicable code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code, except for
deviations from the relevant code provision C.2.1 (former code provision A.2.1) as
described below.

THE BOARD
Duties of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, and monitors the
Group's strategic decisions as well as its business and performance. The Board has
delegated to the senior management the powers and duties of the daily management and
operations of the Group. To monitor specific areas of the Company’s affairs, the Board
has established five Board committees, including the Audit Committee, the remuneration
and evaluation committee (the “Remuneration and Evaluation Committee”), the
nomination committee (the the strategy committee
(the “Strategy Committee”) and the risk management and control committee (the
“Risk Management and Control Committee”) (collectively referred to as “Board
committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board committees the duties set out in
their respective terms of reference.

“Nomination Committee”),

Each Director has the relevant qualifications and experience required for performing his/
her duties as a Director. All Directors shall ensure that they act honestly and in good
faith, comply with applicable laws and regulations, and at all times perform their duties
in a manner that is in the interests of the Company and Shareholders.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company was not involved in any material
legal proceedings liable by any Directors. The Company has also provided appropriate
liability insurance for legal proceedings against Directors and will review the insurance
coverage on an annual basis.

Functions of the Board and the Management
The Articles of Association have clearly defined the respective terms of reference of the
Board and the management of the Company.

The Board, as the operation decision-making body of the Company, is accountable to
the Shareholders. Its main duties and powers include implementing the resolutions of
the general meeting, making decisions on the Company’s business plans and investment
plans, determining the establishment of the Company’s internal management bodies
and the establishment or closing of the Company’s branches or representative offices,
and employing senior management, etc..
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The duties and powers delegated to the management by the Board include presiding over
the Company’s production and operation management, organizing the implementation
of Board resolutions and the Company’s annual operation plans and investment plans,
drawing up proposals for the establishment of the Company’s internal management
bodies, proposing the Company’s basic management system and formulating the
Company'’s basic regulations.

To maintain the Company’s highly efficient operation, as well as flexibility and swiftness
in operational decision-making, the Board, when necessary, may delegate its managing
and administrative powers to the management, and provide clear directions regarding
such delegation so as to avoid impeding or undermining the overall capabilities of the
Board in exercising its powers.

Composition of the Board
The composition of the first session of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ma Minchao (chairman)

Mr. Rao Ye

Mr. Lu Jianfeng

Ms. Hu Zhurong (employee Director)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Guangcan
Mr. He Jiangiang

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas

Mr. Yu Dingming

Mr. Li Hongkun

In view of the expiry of the term of office of the first session of the Board, the Company
convened an extraordinary general meeting on January 29, 2021 to elect the non-
employee Directors of the second session of the Board and held the Board meeting
to elect chairman on the same day. In addition, the joint meeting of the employee
representative delegations (group) leaders of the Company elected the employee Director
of the second session of the Board. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated January 5, 2021 and January 29, 2021, and the circular dated January
8, 2021 published on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.
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On January 29, 2021, the composition of the second session of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhang Yingyue (chairman)

Mr. Rao Ye

Mr. Lu Jianfeng

Ms. Hu Zhurong (employee Director)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Jiang Qian
Mr. He Jiangiang

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas

Mr. Yu Dingming

Mr. Li Hongkun

Given that Mr. Zhang Yingyue resigned as the executive Director and the chairman on
November 26, 2021 due to work arrangements, and Mr. Rao Ye resigned as the executive
Director and the vice chairman on November 26, 2021 due to work arrangements, the
Company held an extraordinary general meeting on December 21, 2021, and elected
Mr. Li Zhangjian and Mr. Zhang Long as the executive Directors (non-employee Directors)
of the second session of the Board, and the chairman was elected at the Board meeting
held on the same day. For details, please refer to the announcements dated November
26, 2021 and December 21, 2021 and the circular dated December 2, 2021 published
by the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the composition of the second session of the Board
was as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Zhangjian (chairman)

Mr. Lu Jianfeng

Mr. Zhang Long

Ms. Hu Zhurong (employee Director)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Jiang Qian
Mr. He Jiangiang

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas

Mr. Yu Dingming

Mr. Li Hongkun

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Profiles of
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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No Director has any personal relationship with any other Director or the Company’s chief
executive (including financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships).

Independent non-executive Directors

The Company has adopted the Terms of Reference of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, which stipulates the qualifications, selection procedures, powers and obligations
of independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive Directors
provide independent and objective advice and opinions on the Company’s development
strategies, results issues and other matters, and maintain their independence required
as independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive Directors are
invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Strategy Committee and the Risk Management and
Control Committee, and the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration and Evaluation Committee are all chaired by independent non-executive
Directors.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company had complied with Rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10(2) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules regarding the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and at least one of whom shall have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or relevant financial management expertise.
Independent non-executive Directors represent one-third of the Board, which is compliant
with the requirement of Rule 3.10A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

The Company has received written confirmations of independence from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules. Therefore, the Company is of the view that they are independent persons.

Board Diversity Policy

To enhance the effectiveness of the Board and maintain a high standard of corporate
governance, the Company has adopted a board diversity policy that sets out the aim and
approach towards achieving and maintaining diversity of the Board. According to the
Company'’s board diversity policy, the Company will take into consideration a number of
factors when selecting candidates to the Board, including but not limited to gender, age,
culture, educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service, in order to achieve board diversity. The ultimate decision of appointment will be
based on merits and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including knowledge
and skills in relation to the business of concrete production and manufacturing,
financial management, accounting and law. They have obtained professional degrees
in various majors, including business administration, law, accounting, inorganic non-
metal materials, mechanical engineering and environmental engineering. The Company
has three independent non-executive Directors with different industry backgrounds,
representing one-third of the Board. In addition, the age range of the members of the
Board is wide, ranging from 36 to 53. Currently, there is one female executive Director.
The Company recognizes that, as the majority of the Directors are male, the gender
diversity of the Board needs to be improved, and will continue to appoint Directors based
on competence and with reference to the overall board diversity policy. The Board will
also ensure that an appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved with reference
to investors’ expectations as well as international and local recommended best practices.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring a diverse Board. Since the Listing
of the Company, the Nomination Committee has been responsible for monitoring the
implementation of the board diversity policy and reviewing and revising the policy when
appropriate to ensure its effectiveness.

After consideration of the Company’s current business model and specific demands, the
different backgrounds, competence, ages and genders of the Directors, the Directors
are of the opinion that all the Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
have brought various valuable business experience, knowledge and professional skills
to the Board, to ensure its effective operation and that the board diversity policy has
been effectively implemented.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

All newly appointed Directors are provided with the necessary induction training and
information to ensure they are adequately informed of the operations and businesses
of the Company and their responsibilities under relevant laws, regulations, rules and
ordinances. The Company also regularly arranges seminars for Directors in order to provide
them with updates on the latest developments and changes regarding the Hong Kong
Listing Rules and other relevant laws, regulations and regulatory provisions. Directors
are also regularly provided with updated data about the Company’s performance, status
and prospect, so that the Board and all the Directors can fulfil their respective duties.

The Company encourages and supports the continuous professional development of
all the Directors to develop and update their knowledge and skills, so as to ensure that
they have comprehensive information to continue to make contributions to the Board
according to actual needs. The joint company secretary of the Company updates and
provides written training materials in relation to Directors’ roles, functions and duties
from time to time.
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According to the information provided by the Directors, the training received by all the  RIEEFREHER - HE2021F12831H 1t
Directors for the year ended December 31, 2021 is summarized as follows:

TR SREFEEOHUBLMT

Nature of continuous
professional development
courseote )

Name of Directors EEHR BESERREREMLE mwa

Executive Directors: HITEF

Mr. Ma Minchao®ete 2 EfRB AL (Hi2) D

Mr. Zhang Yingyue®ote 3 SRR S A (W) A/C/D

Mr. Li Zhangjian®ete ® PERELAE HEE D

Mr. Rao Yefotes) grr s (s A/C/D

Mr. Zhang Long®ete &) SREESE A (6 A/C/D

Mr. Lu Jianfeng B RIsg k& A/C/D

Ms. Hu Zhurong AR L+ A/C/D

Non-executive Directors: FHTEF -

Mr. Jiang Qian®ete 4 [ St S A/C/D

Mr. He Jiangiang (B St A/C/D

Mr. Liu Guangcan®ete 2 B A ) D

Independent non-executive Directors: HUHBRTESE -

Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas FEMEE A/C/D

Mr. Yu Dingming FREREE A/C/D

Mr. Li Hongkun FUWEE A/C/D

Note 1: MiET -

A Attend seminars and/or meetings and/or forums and/or briefing sessions A HERNEGR/SGHER LHmERRERE

B: Make a speech at seminars and/or meetings and/or forums B: QUSR-S )Y E bt

C: Attend trainings provided by the law firm and trainings in relation to the Company’s business C: SONEMMATIREMNIEY - BARZEKEBEI

D: Read documents on various topics, including corporate governance, Directors’ duties, the Hong D : MEZEAREENME  ZFRBECEER &
Kong Listing Rules and other relevant laws and regulations and regulatory provisions ;%E BB ETRAIREAMERER AR REE

Note 2: Mr. Ma Minchao and Mr. Liu Guangcan ceased to be the Directors since January 29, 2021. FisE2 ;ﬁ?{ﬁzggi&%ﬂ%%fé%iazom F1A29HETH

Note 3:Mr. Zhang Yingyue served as the Director from January 29, 2021 to November 26, 2021. MiFE3 : SRIDER L A B 202141 H29H £2021411 264

HMBETEES -

Note 4: Mr. Jiang Qian served as the Director since January 29, 2021. MisEa : Bt A E20214F1 A29ARETES -

Note 5:Mr. Rao Ye ceased to be the Director since November 26, 2021. BIRES « BERESEAE B2021F 11 A26 H R T BIEEESE -

Note 6: Mr. Li Zhangjian and Mr. Zhang Long severed as the Directors since December 21, 2021. MizE6 - B A RORBEEE A B20216F 12 A21 BEERE

BF -
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Chairman and General Manager

According to code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, the roles of
chairman of the Board and the general manager should be distinguished and assumed
by different persons.

During the period from January 1, 2021 to January 29, 2021, Mr. Ma Minchao served
as the chairman. Mr. Ma Minchao ceased to be the chairman since January 29, 2021,
and Mr. Zhang Yingyue replaced him to be the chairman until November 26, 2021.
Mr. Zhang Yingyue ceased to be the chairman since November 26, 2021, and Mr. Lu
Jianfeng, the then vice chairman, performed the duties of the chairman during the
period from November 26, 2021 to December 21, 2021. Mr. Li Zhangjian served as the
chairman since December 21, 2021.

During the period from January 1, 2021 to December 21, 2021, Mr. Lu Jianfeng was the
general manager. Mr. Lu Jianfeng ceased to be the general manager since December
21, 2021, and Mr. Zhang Long replaced him to be the general manager.

During the period when Mr. Lu Jianfeng, the general manager, performed the duties of
the chairman, notwithstanding the deviation from code provision C.2.1, the supervision
of the Board (then comprising two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors) was sufficient to ensure a proper structure of
checks and balances of power and to provide sufficient checks to protect the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders. In addition, since December 21, 2021, Mr. Li
Zhangjian served as chairman of the Company, and Mr. Zhang Long succeeded Mr. Lu
Jianfeng as general manager of the Company. Accordingly, the Company currently has
been in compliance with the requirements of code provision C.2.1.

Such two different positions between the chairman and the general manager are
distinguished in functions and powers. The chairman is mainly responsible for presiding
over the work of the Board and overall administrative management, which mainly
includes major decision making, formulation of development strategies, major market
development, corporate restructuring, auditing, mergers and acquisitions, resource
integration and other important work. The general manager is mainly responsible for the
Company’s work of management, convening and presiding over office meetings of the
general manager of the Company, organizing and implementing the Board resolutions
and managing the Company’s daily administration, production and operation.
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Appointment of Directors

The term of office of a Director is three years. The term of office of the incumbent
Directors is from the date after the said Directors were elected at the general meeting
or employee representative meeting to the date of expiry of the term of office of the
second session of the Board. Upon the expiry of the terms, the Directors may be re-
elected. If, upon the expiry of his/her term, a Director is not re-elected in a timely manner
or if any Director resigns during his/her term of office such that the membership of the
Board falls short of the quorum, the said Director shall continue to fulfil his/her duties
pursuant to relevant laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association
until a new Director takes office.

The procedures and processes for appointment, re-election and removal of Directors
are all set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the composition of the Board and makes recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-election and succession of Directors.

Board Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of regularly holding a Board meeting according to
the Corporate Governance Code and holds at least four regular Board meetings every
year, that is, about once every quarter. A notice will be sent to all the Directors at least
14 days before the convening of a regular Board meeting, so that all the Directors have
the opportunity to attend regular meetings and discuss the matters on the agenda.

Regarding other meetings of the Board and the Board committees, the Company will
send a notice containing the meeting agenda and the relevant Board documents within
the time specified by the Articles of Association, so as to ensure the Directors have
sufficient time to review the relevant documents and adequately prepare for attending
the meeting. If any Director or member of the Board committees fails to attend the
meeting, the said Director or member of the Board committees will be informed of the
matters to be discussed and have the opportunity to make their views known to the
chairman of the meeting before the meeting is convened.

The joint company secretary keeps minutes for each meeting. The minutes of the
meetings of the Board and the Board committees record in detail the matters considered
and decisions made by the Board and the Board committees, including any concerns or
dissenting opinions raised by the Directors. The draft version and final version of the
minutes of meetings of the Board and the Board committee are/will be sent to all the
Directors within a reasonable period after the meetings. The draft version is for their
consideration and the final version is for record keeping purposes. The minutes of the
Board meetings are available for inspection by all the Directors.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company held 14 Board meetings and four
general meetings. The entitlement of each Director to attend at the Board meetings
and the general meetings is set out as follows:

BE2021F12A31HIEFE - ARFRETT14
REZREHNARBRARE - BEEFHRLE
EXeed3 A MERAGHBERAFNTE -
Board Meeting General Meeting
Number of Number of
meetings attended/ meetings attended/

meetings entitled meetings entitled

to attend to attend

Exge BRRAE

CHERE, BHEREY,

Name of Directors EENR BREERE BREERE
Mr. Ma Minchao®ete V) BEuBLE WD 2/2 0/0
Mr. Zhang Yingyue®ote 2 SRR S (MED) 8/8 3/3
Mr. Li Zhangjian®ete 2) TERLE M) 2/2 11
Mr. Rao Yeftete 4 5 JES A (e 10/10 3/3
Mr. Lu Jianfeng B RIg k& 14/14 4/4
Mr. Zhang Long®ete 2 SREESL A (M) 2/2 1/1
Ms. Hu Zhurong HRIREE 2 14/14 4/4
Mr. Liu Guangcan®ete B g s A 2/2 0/0
Mr. Jiang Qian®ote 9 R (s 11/12 3/4
Mr. He Jiangiang®ete ® fr] 358 S A (WHe) 13/14 4/4
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas FEMREE 14/14 4/4
Mr. Yu Dingming FREREE 14/14 4/4
Mr. Li Hongkun AR AE 14/14 4/4

Note 1:Mr. Ma Minchao and Mr. Liu Guangcan ceased to be the Directors since January 29, 2021.

Note 2:Mr. Zhang Yingyue served as the Director during the period from January 29, 2021 to November
26, 2021.

Note 3:Mr. Li Zhangjian and Mr. Zhang Long served as the Directors since December 21, 2021.

Note 4:Mr. Rao Ye ceased to be the Director since November 26, 2021.

Note 5:Mr. Jiang Qian served as the Director since January 29, 2021, and validly authorised Mr. Rao Ye,
the Director as proxy, to attend and vote for the Board meeting once.

Note 6:Mr. He Jiangiang validly authorised Mr. Rao Ye, the Director as proxy, to attend and vote for the
Board meeting once.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for all the Directors,
Supervisors and relevant employees of the Company (as defined in the Model Code)
to conduct securities transactions of the Company. Upon specific enquiries with all
the Directors and Supervisors, the Directors and Supervisors confirmed that they have
strictly complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code for the year
ended December 31, 2021.

87 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

MisET : BEUBA A MBI R A EF2021F1 A298 ETH
BEEEE -

Ffi5E2 : SR A 202141 A29R £20214F 11 A26H
HAREEEE -

MisE3 T E R A A MRS EE2021F12A21 AR EF
EE -

MisEa : B A E20214F11 A26 B R NBETEE -

Mi3E5 : Rt E20214F1 AR RIETES - AUUEE
EFgpsERALEEREERLTRIL -

e  RREEAURBERHRLERREFESS
BHERKRAIR ©

EITHRZRZ WREES A
ARFAERMBLTA - EAFEES  EF
RARTEBES(EELMETAETAL
AIEAR ST AT - RIEWHAEHRE
FMABRENE  EFREFHRINE2021
F12A3BILFE - BEHEREETEET
RUBTET 2 8 -



Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board confirms that the Directors shall be jointly responsible for corporate governance
and their corporate governance functions include:

1. reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices in compliance
with laws and regulatory provisions;

2. reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management of the Company;

3. formulating, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors;

4. formulating and reviewing the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, and making suggestions and reporting relevant matters to the Board;
and

5. reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Board committees are designed to supervise certain matters of the Company within
specific scope. All Board committees stipulate their terms of reference in the clear work
rules and shall report their work and recommendations or advice to the Board.

The procedures and arrangements of the meeting held by the Board committees are in
consistent with those set out in the work rules on a practicable basis.

Sufficient resources were provided to all Board committees to fulfill their duties. All
Board committees could ask for independent professional advice based on reasonable
requests when appropriate at the expense of the Company.

Audit Committee

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Li
Hongkun as the independent non-executive Director, and comprises Mr. Wong Kai Yan
Thomas and Mr. Yu Dingming (who served as the member since December 21, 2021) as
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Jiang Qian (who served as the member since
January 29, 2021) and Mr. He Jiangiang (who served as the member since December
21, 2021) as the non-executive Directors, and Mr. Liu Guangcan (who ceased to be the
member since January 29, 2021) as the former non-executive Director.
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The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as follows:

N

matters relating to the relationship with the Company’s auditors;

to review the Company’s financial information;

to regulate the Company’s financial reporting system and internal control system;

to review the arrangements established by the Company to allow employees of
the Company to confidentially raise concerns regarding to possible misconduct in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The Committee shall ensure
the appropriate arrangements are in place to allow the Company to investigate
such matters in a fair and independent manner and take appropriate actions;

to act as the key representative for overseeing the Company’s relationship with
the external auditors;

to supervise and evaluate the internal and external audit work of the Company,
and be responsible for the coordination of internal audit and external audit; and

to exercise other duties and powers as specified in the applicable laws and
regulations, the Hong Kong Listing Rules, rules and systems of the Company or
authorized by the Board.

The work rules for the Audit Committee are available for inspection on the websites of

the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Audit Committee held a total of 3 meetings
on March 26, 2021, August 24, 2021 and November 26, 2021, respectively, and
considered the self-evaluation report on internal control for 2020, the re-appointment

of domestic and international auditors in 2021, the profit distribution plan for 2020,

the audited consolidated financial statements and the independent auditor’s report for

2020, the 2021 interim report, the Highway Projects Batching Plants Leasing Framework

Agreement entered into between the Company and YCIH, and the Land and Property

Leasing Framework Agreement renewed by the Company with YCIH and other matters.
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The attendance of members of the Audit Committee at the meetings is set out as follows:

TEERME

BRETLZEENELRELZEGZNBEREANT
*

Number of meetings attended/
meetings entitled to attend

BHEXE
Name of members EEHE BRHERE
Mr. Li Hongkun (Chairman) FREE (F5E) 3/3
Mr. Liu Guangcan(ete 2| pr o D 0/0
Mr. Jiang Qian®t UE 86 4 A (i) 23
Mr. He Jiangiang®°te {a]gag Sp e (Ha3) 0/0
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas FEMEE 3/3
Mr. Yu Dingming®ete 2 FERLA W 0/0

Note 1:Mr. Liu Guangcan ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee since January 29, 2021.

Note 2:Mr. Jiang Qian served as a member of the Audit Committee since January 29, 2021, and validly
authorised Mr. Li Hongkun, the Director as proxy, to attend and vote for the meeting once.

Note 3:Mr. He Jiangiang and Mr. Yu Dingming served as the members of the Audit Committee since
December 21, 2021.

Nomination Committee

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr.
Yu Dingming as the independent non-executive Director, and comprises Mr. Wong Kai
Yan Thomas (who served as the member since December 21, 2021) and Mr. Li Hongkun
as independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lu Jianfeng (who served as the member
since December 21, 2021) as the executive Director, Ms. Hu Zhurong (who served as
the member since December 21, 2021) as the executive Director (employee Director),
and Mr. Ma Minchao (who ceased to be the member since January 29, 2021) and Mr.
Zhang Yingyue (who served as the member during the period from January 29, 2021
to November 26, 2021) as the former executive Directors.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are as follows:
1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and

experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors and to select and
nominate relevant persons to serve as Directors or advise the Board on such
nomination;

3. to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
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4. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman of
the Board and the general manager;

5. to research and make recommendations on selection criteria and procedures of
Directors and senior management;

6. to select competent candidates for senior management;

7. to review and make recommendations on the candidates for senior management;

8. to report its recommendations or advice to the Board, except for those that cannot
be reported due to legal or regulatory restrictions; and

9. to exercise other duties and powers as specified in the applicable laws and

regulations, the Hong Kong Listing Rules, rules and systems of the Company or
authorized by the Board.

In performing relevant duties, the Nomination Committee shall consider the board
diversity policy, review its implementation and effectiveness annually and report to
the Board. In reviewing the size and composition of the Board and in searching for
and proposing candidates as Directors, the Nomination Committee shall consider the
diversity of Board members in accordance with the Company’s business model and
specific demands from various perspectives, which includes but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. After considering the above relevant factors, the Nomination
Committee evaluates the candidates or incumbents based on criteria such as integrity,
experience, skills and time and effort spent in performing their duties and contribution
to the Board, and makes the final recommendation to the Board.

The work rules for the Nomination Committee are available for inspection on the websites
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Nomination Committee held a total of 3
meetings on January 5, 2021, April 8, 2021 and November 26, 2021, respectively, and
considered nomination of Directors of the second session of the Board, the financial
director and the general manager and other matters.
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The attendance of members of the Nomination Committee at the meetings is set out
as follows:

TEERME

ERAEZEENBHFEEENBENEN TR -

Number of meetings attended/
meetings entitled to attend

EHERE
Name of members EEHE BRHERE
Mr. Yu Dingming (Chairman) FEREE (FE) 33
Mr. Ma Minchao®ete EEGRAeE D 11
Mr. Zhang Yingyue®ete 2 SRADER S A (M) 11
Mr. Lu Jianfeng®ete 3) & B8 o A ) 0/0
Ms. Hu Zhurong®ete 3 TR LS At (Ha3) 0/0
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas®ete 2 FEMELE W) 0/0
Mr. Li Hongkun FRREE 3/3

Note 1:Mr. Ma Minchao ceased to be a member of the Nomination Committee since January 29, 2021.

Note 2:Mr. Zhang Yingyue served as a member of the Nomination Committee during the period from
January 29, 2021 to November 26, 2021.

Note 3:Mr. Lu Jianfeng, Ms. Hu Zhurong and Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas served as the members of the
Nomination Committee since December 21, 2021.

Remuneration and Evaluation Committee

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee is
chaired by Mr. Yu Dingming as the independent non-executive Director, and comprises
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas (who served as the member since December 21, 2021) and
Mr. Li Hongkun as independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Li Zhangjian (who served
as the member since December 21, 2021) as the executive Director, Mr. Jiang Qian (who
served as the member since December 21, 2021) as the non-executive Director, and
Mr. Rao Ye (who ceased to be the member since November 26, 2021) as the former
executive Director.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management’s remuneration and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

2. to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the
individual executive Directors and senior management. This should include benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors;
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5. to consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment

and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Company;

o

to review and approve the compensation payable to executive Directors and
senior management in connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive;

7. to review and approve the compensation arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
consistent with contractual terms and otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

8. to ensure that no Directors or any of his/her associates is involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration;

9. to review the assessment criteria for Directors and senior management, conduct
assessments and make recommendations;

10.  to review and study the remuneration policy and schemes for Directors and senior
management;

11.  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

12.  toreport its recommendations or advice to the Board, except for those that cannot
be reported due to legal or regulatory restrictions; and

13.  to exercise other duties and powers as specified in the applicable laws and
regulations, the Listing Rules, rules and systems of the Company or authorized
by the Board.

The work rules for the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee are available for
inspection on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee
held a total of 4 meetings on January 5, 2021, March 26, 2021, April 8, 2021 and
November 26, 2021, respectively, and considered remuneration of Directors of the
second session of the Board, the Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration for
2020 and 2021, the financial director’'s remuneration and other matters.
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The attendance of members of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee at the
meetings is set out as follows:

TEERME

SHMEEREAGRE BT EOERRR
T

Number of meetings attended/
meetings entitled to attend

BHERE
Name of members EENA BRLHERE
Mr. Yu Dingming (Chairman) FEBEE (FE) 4/4
Mr. Rao Yefete D 5 2 A (EED) 33
Mr. Li Zhangjian®ete 2 AT A (i) 0/0
Mr. Jiang Qian®ete 2 JE 864 A (i) 0/0
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas®ete 2 FEMEE Ha2) 0/0
Mr. Li Hongkun FHIRSTAE 4/4

Note 1:Mr. Rao Ye ceased to be a member of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee since November
26, 2021.

Note 2:Mr. Li Zhangjian, Mr. Jiang Qian and Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas served as the members of the
Remuneration and Evaluation Committee since December 21, 2021.

Strategy Committee

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Strategy Committee is chaired by Mr.
Ma Minchao (who ceased to be the chairman since January 29, 2021) and Mr. Zhang
Yingyue (who was the chairman during the period from January 29, 2021 to November
26, 2021) as the former executive Directors and Mr. Li Zhangjian (who served as the
chairman since December 21, 2021) as the executive Director, and comprises Mr. Lu
Jianfeng and Mr. Zhang Long (who served as the member since December 21, 2021) as
executive Directors, Mr. He Jiangiang (who served as the member since December 21,
2021) and Mr. Jiang Qian (who served as the member during the period from January
29, 2021 to December 21, 2021) as the non-executive Directors, Mr. Li Hongkun as the
independent non-executive Director, Mr. Liu Guangcan (who ceased to be the member
since January 29, 2021) as the former non-executive Director, and Mr. Rao Ye (who
ceased to be the member since November 26, 2021) as the former executive Director.

The main responsibilities of the Strategy Committee are as follows:

1. to conduct research and submit proposals regarding development strategies,
business policies, strategic plans for the long-term development and other strategic
plans of the Company;

2. to issue notices on formulating the Company’s strategic plans, organize the
analysis and discussion of the strategic plans, and consider the strategic plans
and the adjustments thereto;

3. to supervise the implementation of strategic plans and regularly assess the
implementation thereof;
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to conduct research and make recommendations regarding the major issues
affecting the Company’s development strategies, such as company transformation,
restructuring, listing, major investment and financing, asset acquisition, capital
operation and equity acquisition, which are subject to consideration or approval
by the Board as required by the Articles of Association;

5. to conduct research and submit proposals regarding other material issues that
may affect the Company’s development;

6. to carry out examination on the implementation of issues specified in the
abovementioned items 4 and 5, and report the results to the Board;

7. to submit the Board meeting proposals to the Board regarding the development
strategies of the Company;

8. to report its recommendations or advice to the Board, except for those that cannot
be reported due to legal or regulatory restrictions; and

9. to exercise other matters as specified in the applicable laws and regulations, the
Hong Kong Listing Rules, rules and systems of the Company or authorized by the
Board.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Strategy Committee held 1 meeting on
March 26, 2021, and considered matters relating to changes in the use of proceeds

from the Global Offering.

The attendance of members of the Strategy Committee at the meeting is set out as
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follows:

Number of meetings attended/
meetings entitled to attend
BHERE
Name of members ZENMA HRHERY
Mr. Ma Minchao (Former Chairman)tete BEBEE (FrE/E) HWED 0/0
Mr. Zhang Yingyue (Former Chairman)®ote SRAMBSEE (FIEfE) W 11
Mr. Li Zhangjian (Chairman)et 3 FEREE (FFE) W) 0/0
Mr. Rao Yetote® B S e (Hika) 11
Mr. Lu Jianfeng Ehlfz e 11
Mr. Zhang Long®ete ) IR BE 4L A (WiES) 0/0
Mr. Liu Guangcan®ete® B2 iR o A (i) 0/0
Mr. Jiang Qianete?) FarotE e 11
Mr. He Jiangiang®°te 2 AR S A (is) 0/0
Mr. Li Hongkun LIRS A 171

95 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

Annual Report 2021



Corporate Governance Report

Note 1:Mr. Ma Minchao ceased to be the chairman of the Strategy Committee since January 29, 2021.

Note 2: Mr. Zhang Yingyue served as the chairman of the Strategy Committee during the period from January
29, 2021 to November 26, 2021.

Note 3:Mr. Li Zhangjian served as the chairman of the Strategy Committee since December 21, 2021.
Note 4:Mr. Rao Ye ceased to be a member of the Strategy Committee since November 26, 2021.

Note 5:Mr. Zhang Long and Mr. He Jiangiang served as the members of the Strategy Committee since
December 21, 2021.

Note 6:Mr. Liu Guangcan ceased to be a member of the Strategy Committee since January 29, 2021.

Note 7:Mr. Jiang Qian served as the member of the Strategy Committee during the period from January
29, 2021 to December 21, 2021.

Risk Management and Control Committee

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Risk Management and Control Committee
is chaired by Mr. Liu Guangcan (who ceased to be the chairman since January 29, 2021)
as the former non-executive Director, Mr. Jiang Qian (who served as the chairman during
the period from January 29, 2021 to December 21, 2021 and served as the member since
December 21, 2021) as the non-executive Director and Mr. Li Zhangjian (who served
as the chairman since December 21, 2021) as the executive Director, and comprises
Mr. Zhang Long (who served as the member since December 21, 2021) as executive
Director, Mr. He Jiangiang as the non-executive Director, Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas,
Mr. Yu Dingming and Mr. Li Hongkun as the independent non-executive Directors, Ms.
Hu Zhurong (who ceased to be the member since December 21, 2021) as the executive
Director (employee Director), Mr. Ma Minchao (who ceased to be the member since
January 29, 2021) and Mr. Zhang Yingyue (who served as the member during the
period from January 29, 2021 to November 26, 2021) as the former executive Directors.

The main responsibilities of the Risk Management and Control Committee are as follows:
1. to review the risk management of the Company, supervise the establishment of
the Company'’s risk management system and the day-to-day risk management of

the Company;

2. to discuss the risk management system with the management and ensure that
the management has fulfilled its responsibilities in setting up an effective system;

3. to conduct major investigation findings on risk management matters as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative and the management’s feedback on these
findings;

4. to organize and carry out preliminary risk assessment on the Company’s strategic

decisions, major investment decisions, major financing decisions, major restructuring
decisions, major asset disposal decisions, corporate merger and division decisions,
organizational structure decisions and other risk-related matters;
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5. to organize and formulate the Company’s risk management system in accordance
with the basic rules for internal control, and supervise the implementation and
effectiveness thereof;

6. to assist the Board in preliminary risk assessment of the matters to be considered
by the Board as needed, and prepare risk assessment reports accordingly;

7. to report its recommendations or advice to the Board, except for those that cannot
be reported due to legal or regulatory restrictions; and

8. to exercise other duties and powers as specified in the applicable laws and

regulations, the Listing Rules, rules and systems of the Company or authorized
by the Board.

The work rules for the Risk Management and Control Committee are available for
inspection on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Risk Management and Control Committee
held a total of 2 meetings on March 26, 2021 and December 21, 2021, respectively, and
considered the audited consolidated financial statements and independent auditor’s report
for 2020, 2020 annual results announcement and 2020 annual report, remunerations
of Directors and senior management for 2020 and 2021, the profit distribution plan for
2020 and election of Mr. Li Zhangjian as the chairman of the Risk Management and
Control Committee and other matters.

The attendance of members of the Risk Management and Control Committee at the
meetings is set out as follows:
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Number of meetings attended/
meetings entitled to attend

BHRERE
Name of members EEMR BRLHERE
Mr. Liu Guangcan (Former Chairman)®et " B E (FiEE) R 0/0
Mr. Jiang Qian (Former Chairman)®et? st (BiLjE) M2 WY
Mr. Li Zhangjian (Chairman)®t? FERELE (TE) W8 171
Mr. Ma Minchao®ete 4 BB S A (i) 0/0
Mr. Zhang Yingyueete s SRR A S 11
Ms. Hu Zhurong®ete ® HRTR &L &+ (HiEe) 1”7
Mr. Zhang Long®ete 7 SRBESL A (WED 17
Mr. He lJiangiang®°te ® fAEEdR o A (i) 12
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas FEMEE 2/2
Mr. Yu Dingming TFEREE 22
Mr. Li Hongkun ATIRE A 22
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Note 1:Mr. Liu Guangcan ceased to be the chairman of the Risk Management and Control Committee since
January 29, 2021.

Note 2: Mr. Jiang Qian served as the chairman of the Risk Management and Control Committee during the
period from January 29, 2021 to December 21, 2021 and a member of the Risk Management and
Control Committee since December 21, 2021.

Note 3:Mr. Li Zhangjian served as the chairman of the Risk Management and Control Committee since
December 21, 2021.

Note 4:Mr. Ma Minchao ceased to be a member of the Risk Management and Control Committee since
January 29, 2021.

Note 5:Mr. Zhang Yingyue served as a member of the Risk Management and Control Committee during
the period from January 29, 2021 to November 26, 2021.

Note 6:Ms. Hu Zhurong ceased to be a member of the Risk Management and Control Committee since
December 21, 2021.

Note 7:Mr. Zhang Long served as a member of the Risk Management and Control Committee since December
21, 2021.

Note 8:Mr. He Jiangiang validly authorised Ms. Hu Zhurong, the Director as proxy, to attend and vote for
the meeting once.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

For the year ended December 31, 2021, Mr. Rao Ye (“Mr. Rao”) was the joint company
secretary of the Company. On March 29, 2022, the Board received a written resignation
from Mr. Rao, the secretary to the Board and the joint company secretary of the
Company, who resigned as the secretary to the Board and the joint company secretary
of the Company due to work arrangement, the resignation became effective at the
Board meeting held on March 29, 2022. At such Board meeting, Ms. Liang Yuwei (“Ms.
Liang”) was appointed as the secretary to the Board and joint company secretary of
the Company. For details of the change of joint company secretary, please refer to the
announcement dated March 29, 2022 in relation to “Change of Secretary to the Board
and Joint Company Secretary” published by the Company on the websites of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

Ms. Liang is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters
and ensuring compliance with the Board’s policies and procedures, applicable laws,
regulations and rules. Details of her biography are set out in the section headed “Profiles
of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

In order to maintain good corporate governance and to ensure compliance with the Hong
Kong Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws and regulations, the Company has
also appointed Ms. Wong Sau Ping (“Ms. Wong"), an assistant director of TMF Hong
Kong Limited, a global corporate services provider, as another joint company secretary
of the Company to assist Mr. Rao and Ms. Liang in discharging their duties as joint
company secretaries of the Company respectively. For the year ended December 31,
2021, Ms. Wong's principal contact person in the Company was Mr. Rao. Currently,
her principal contact person in the Company is Ms. Liang.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, Mr. Rao and Ms. Wong had taken relevant
professional trainings for no less than 15 hours in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

As of the Latest Practicable Date, the composition of the second session of the Supervisory
Committee was as follows:

Shareholder Representative Supervisors:
Mr. Wu Xinhe (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Guanglei

Mr. Gu Feng

Employee Representative Supervisors:
Mr. Guo Huan
Ms. Li Na

Details of the general election of the Supervisory Committee during the Reporting Period
are set out in the section headed “Supervisory Committee’s Report” of this annual report.

The Supervisory Committee is the Company’s supervisory body. It strictly performs its
duties in accordance with the Company Law, the Articles of Association and the Hong
Kong Listing Rules, and is responsible for the general meetings. It supervises the duty
performance of the Company’s finance personnel, the Board and its members, the
general manager and other senior management, prevents their abuse of power and
safeguards the interests of Shareholders.

A Supervisor shall serve a term of three years, and may seek re-election upon expiry of
the said term. A Supervisor shall continue to perform his/her duties in accordance with
the requirements of the laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association
until a formally re-elected Supervisor takes office, if re-election is not conducted in a
timely manner upon the expiry of his/her term of office or if resignation of the Supervisor
results in the number of Supervisors being less than the quorum.

REMUNERATIONS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The range of remunerations for the year ended December 31, 2021 of senior management
(including those who serve concurrently as a Director) of the Company is as follows:

The range of remunerations (RMB’000)
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POLICY FOR THE NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

According to the work rules of the Nomination Committee, the Directors are selected
as per the following procedure:

1. conduct comprehensive evaluation and analysis of the existing Directors, fully
communicate with relevant departments of the Company, study the Company’s
demand for new Directors;

2. based on job requirements and the board diversity policy, look for candidates
for Directors through a variety of channels such as from the Company or its
subsidiaries, and from the job market;

3. gather information of each preliminary candidate, including his/her occupation,
education, professional title, detailed work experience and all part-time work
record, and put together a written document;

4. in accordance with the requirements under the relevant laws and regulations,
the Articles of Association and the Rules of Procedure for the Board, seek the
consent of the candidates to their nominations as Directors by relevant bodies
or persons, otherwise they shall not be selected as candidates for Directors;

5. convene a Nomination Committee meeting to review the qualifications of the
candidates according to the job requirements for Directors;

6. form a resolution of the Nomination Committee meeting, and make
recommendations for candidates and submit relevant materials to the Board; and

7. conduct other work subsequently according to the decisions or feedback of the
Board.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FORTHE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements
of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Company’s management has provided the Board with the necessary explanations and
data to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements submitted to it for approval.
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The Directors are not aware of any significant uncertainties related to events or conditions
that may cast a shadow on the Company’s sustained operation.

The statement of the auditors regarding their obligation to report the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 161-167 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has established a complete and sound risk management and internal
control system and has formulated a series of rules to ensure the institutionalization and
systematization of the Company’s risk management and internal control work. In terms
of organizational structure, the Company has set up different functional departments to
be responsible for financial operations and monitoring, risk management, internal audit,
anti-fraud, safety and environmental protection and other specific work. The Company
has established a Risk Management and Control Committee which is responsible for
reviewing the Company's risk management system, conducting risk assessment and risk
analysis, and overseeing day-to-day risk management. The Company has designated the
Board office as the office to handle daily matters of the Risk Management and Control
Committee and the legal affairs department as risk management department.

Based on the progress of previous risk management and control work and the annual
work objectives, the Company formulates the risk management and control work plan
at the beginning of each year, analyzes the Company'’s risk profile on a monthly and
quarterly basis, and pays special attention to risks affecting the Company's production
and operation or relating to economic indicators and ESG and standardizes the counter
measures in respect thereof, so as to reduce overall operational risks. The Company
focuses on preliminary control of major risks, makes active efforts in comprehensive risk
management, establishing a sound mechanism for regular risk assessment, and special
risk assessment systems for major domestic and overseas investments, major capital
operation management and other important matters to strengthen internal control. The
Company has formulated the “Information Disclosure Management Measures”, “External
Information Disclosure Practices” and other systems to specify the responsibilities and
obligations of each department in the process of handling internal information, and clarify
confidentiality measures and corresponding responsibilities in the disclosure procedures
for periodic reports and interim reports.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an appropriate risk management and internal
control system to secure Shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets, and with
the support of the Audit Committee, reviews the effectiveness of the system annually. The
risk management and internal control system is designed to identify, assess and report
on potential risks and implement control measures to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk of failing to achieve business objectives, and provide reasonable rather than
absolute guarantee that there will be no material misrepresentation or loss.
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During the Reporting Period, the Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control system, including
financial monitoring, operational monitoring and compliance monitoring and the risk
management system, and no material issues or errors were found. The Board believes
that the current monitoring system of the Company is effective and that the Company
has sufficient experience and resources in relation to the qualifications and experience of
employees, performance of accounting and financial reporting duties, training courses,
and relevant budgets of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The profit distribution policy of the Company:

1. the Company gives full consideration to the returns to investors. Where the
earnings and accumulative undistributed profits of the current year are positive
and enough provision has been made for statutory reserve fund and surplus reserve
fund, the Board will propose a profit distribution plan taking into consideration
of the Company’s overall business developments, operating results, financial
results, working capital, capital demands, future prospects, cash flow and any
other factors deemed relevant by it and submit the plan to the general meeting
for approval,

2. the profit distribution policy of the Company shall be continuous and stable and
take into account the long-term interests of the Company, the overall interests
of all Shareholders and the sustainable development of the Company;

3. the Company shall distribute profits by means of cash, shares, a combination of
cash and shares or other appropriate means in proportion to the Shareholders’
shareholding. In principle, the Company shall distribute profits once a year. The
profits distributed for each year shall be no less than one-third of the distributable
profits of the parent company realized in the current year and shall be distributed
within the following year;

4. the profit distribution policy can be adjusted upon proposal by the Board and the
deliberation and approval at the general meeting in case of any force majeure such
as war, natural disaster, or changes in external business environment that have
a significant impact on the Company’s production and operation, or significant
changes in the Company’s own business status; and

5. the plan for adjusting profit distribution policy shall be formulated by the Board, and
considered and approved by the general meeting. The adjusted profit distribution
policy shall not contravene laws and regulations, departmental rules, normative
documents and the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association.
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REPORTING, INTEGRITY RISK PREVENTION AND

CONTROL POLICY

The Company has issued a notice on the work relating to the reporting and whistle-
blowing, requiring the Group to pay attention to efficiency, strict confidentiality and
clear responsibility when submitting reporting and whistle-blowing cases and to publish
an electronic reporting channel on the Company’s website, so that employees of the
Group and members of the community could report directly to the Discipline and
Supervision Department of the Company any suspected corruption, dereliction of duty,
misconduct or non-compliance with laws, disciplines or regulations of high concern
to the Group. At the same time, the Company has formulated the “Integrity Risk
Prevention and Control Handbook” to explain the internal environment of the Group’s
integrity risk prevention and control through the general presentation of the Company’s
management philosophy and code of conduct for employees, working mechanism,
publicity and education mechanism, supervision mechanism, etc. in relation to integrity
risk prevention and control, to fully reflect the Group’s requirements on integrity risk
prevention and control, and to facilitate all employees to fully understand and master
the relevant requirements and implementation on integrity risk prevention and control.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended December 31, 2021, PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong
Tian and PricewaterhouseCoopers have been appointed as the domestic and international
auditors of the Company, respectively.

The remuneration paid or payable in respect of the audit and non-audit services rendered
to the Company is set out below:
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Amount (RMB’000) (including tax)

Service type RS SEARETT) (BH)
Audit service ZE R 2,840.00
Non-audit service regarding issuing PN730 report BARA L ALPN7305R & JE X 2R AR 75 30.00
Non-audit service regarding issuing PN740 report B APN740TR &5 IEZ RIS 30.00
Total st 2,900.00

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective communication with Shareholders is important
for strengthening investor relations and enabling investors to understand the Group'’s
business, performance and strategy. The Company also firmly believe in the importance
of timely and non-selective disclosure of our information available for Shareholders and
investors to make informed investment decisions.
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Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting provides an opportunity for direct communication between
Shareholders and Directors. The chairman of the Board and the chairmen of the respective
Board committees will attend annual general meetings to answer questions put forward
by Shareholders. The external auditors of the Company will also attend annual general
meetings and answer questions on audit work, the preparation and content of auditor’s
reports, accounting policies and auditor’s independence.

Disclosure of Information on the Company’s Website

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a shareholder communication
policy which aims at establishing a two-way relationship and communication between
the Company and the Shareholders, and also has a website (https://www.ynhnt.com)
where we publish the latest data, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information on our business operations and development for public access.

Investor Relations

The Company insists on disclosing relevant and uniform information to investors to
ensure that they are updated on a regular or occasional basis on the Group’s business
development, operational strategies and industry-related information. At the same time,
the Company actively develops investor relations through various channels and methods
to ensure effective bidirectional communication and close ties with investors.

During the Reporting Period, the Company communicated
and interacted with investors in the following ways:

® Publishing annual and interim reports,
which disclosed the results and
S business of the Group
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® Holding 2 online results conferences for
direct and in-depth communication
with investors
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Issuing 3 voluntary announcements to
present the latest operational management
and business development of the Group in
a timely manner
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® Holding 4 general meetings, with the
Shareholders’ circulars detailing the
contents of each resolution, all of which
were passed
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e Convening 7 seminars with brokers,
banks, Shareholders, suppliers and
others to discuss the future development
of the Group together
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® Updating and publishing news, business
environment, technology and products,
social responsibility and other contents of
the Company on its website in a real-time
manner
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¢ Responding to investors”™ enquiries by
phone and email in a timely manner
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Investors who wish to make enquiries to the Board about the Company may do so by
mail, telephone or email to the Company’s headquarter at 188 Linxi Road, Information
Industrial Base, Economic and Technological Development Zone, Kunming, Yunnan
Province, the PRC, telephone number 0871-6318 7896 and email address GHPC02@
ynhnt.com.

The Company considers that the shareholder communication policy has been effectively
implemented through the above channel and approach.

SERVICES FOR SHAREHOLDERS

Any matters regarding transfer of shares, change of name or address, loss of share
certificates or dividend warrants, registration and requests for printed copies of annual/
interim reports may be made to the Company's H Share Registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, telephone number +852 2862 8555 and fax number
+852 2865 0990.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To protect the interests and rights of Shareholders, the Company will submit separate
resolutions on various matters, including the election of individual Directors, at the
general meeting. Under the Hong Kong Listing Rules, all resolutions submitted at
the general meeting will be voted on, and the voting results will be published on the
websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in a timely manner after
the general meeting.

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
AND PROPOSALS SUBMISSION

Shareholders who request an extraordinary general meeting or a general meeting of
a class of Shareholders shall comply with the following procedures according to the
Articles of Association:

1. two or more Shareholders individually or collectively holding more than 10% of
the voting Shares at the proposed meeting can request the Board to convene a
class meeting by signing one or several written request(s) with the same content
and in the same format, and stating the matters to be considered at the meeting.
The Board shall convene the class meeting as specified in the aforesaid written
request(s) as soon as possible. The shareholdings referred to above shall be
calculated as at the date when the request is put forward by the Shareholders;

2. if no notice of convening a general meeting is issued within 30 days after the
Board receiving the above mentioned written request(s), the Shareholders making
the request(s) can request the Supervisory Committee to convene an extraordinary
general meeting or a class meeting;
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3. if the Supervisory Committee fails to issue a notice on the convening of meeting
within 30 days after receiving the aforesaid written request, the Shareholders
individually or collectively holding more than 10% of the Company’s voting
Shares at the proposed meeting for at least consecutive 90 days may convene the
meeting on their own within four months after the Board receives the request.
The convening procedures shall be the same as the procedures for the convening
of general meeting by the Board.

A general meeting convened by the Shareholders themselves shall be presided over by
a representative elected by the convener.

Shareholders individually or collectively holding at least 3% of the Shares may submit
a temporary resolution in writing to the convener 10 days prior to the convening of
such meeting. The convener shall issue a supplemental notice of the general meeting
to announce the contents of such temporary resolution within two days after receipt
of the resolution, and submit such temporary resolution to the general meeting for
consideration. The contents of such temporary resolution shall fall within the scope
of the functions and powers of the general meeting, and clearly set out a topic to be
discussed and specific matters for resolution. The contact information set out in the
section headed “Investor Relations”above may be used for the purpose of putting
forward proposals at the general meeting.

For the purpose of recommending a person to be a Director, please refer to the relevant
procedures on the Company’s website.

AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

No amendments have been made to the Articles of Association during the Reporting
Period.
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In 2021, the members of the Supervisory Committee strictly complied with the relevant
provisions of the Company Law and other relevant laws and the Hong Kong Listing Rules,
the Articles of Association and the Rules of Procedures of the Supervisory Committee,
abided by the principle of good faith, earnestly performed their supervisory duties,
actively carried out their work, participated in the meetings of the Supervisory Committee,
attended the Board meetings and general meetings, and performed effective supervision
on the legal operations, the financial conditions and the performance of the Directors
and management with a responsible attitude towards all Shareholders, which promoted
the standardized operation of the Company.

BASICCOMPOSITION OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The composition of the first session of the Supervisory Committee are as follows:

Shareholders representative Supervisors:
Mr. Wu Xinhe (Chairman)

Ms. Li Yan

Mr. Chang Hongbing

Employees representative Supervisors:
Mr. Guo Huan
Ms. Li Na

Given the expiry of the term of the first session of the Supervisory Committee, the
Company held an extraordinary general meeting on January 29, 2021, at which the non-
employee representative Supervisors of the second session of the Supervisory Committee
were elected, and on the same day, the Company held a meeting of the Supervisory
Committee, at which the chairman of the Supervisory Committee was elected. In
addition, the joint meeting of the employee representative delegations (group) leaders
of the Company elected the employee representative Supervisors of the second session
of the Supervisory Committee. For details, please refer to the announcements dated
January 5, 2021 and January 29, 2021 and the circular dated January 8, 2021 published
by the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the composition of the second session of the Supervisory
Committee are as follows:

Shareholders representative Supervisors:
Mr. Wu Xinhe (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Guanglei

Mr. Gu Feng

Employees representative Supervisors:
Mr. Guo Huan
Ms. Li Na
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Supervisory Committee’s Report

OVERALL RESPONSIBILITY OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee is the Company’s supervisory body. It strictly performs its
duties in accordance with the Company Law, the Hong Kong Listing Rules and the
Articles of Association, and is responsible for the general meetings of the Company. It
supervises the duty performance of the Company’s finance personnel, the Board and its
members, the general manager and other senior management, preventing their abuse
of power and safeguarding the interests of the Shareholders.

OPERATIONS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Supervisory Committee has convened 5
meetings and reviewed 23 proposals. All Supervisors attended the following meetings
in person:

1. On January 5, 2021, the Company convened the eighth meeting of the first
session of the Supervisory Committee by way of on-site meeting. It reviewed
and approved the proposal on nominating candidates of the non-employee
representative Supervisors of the second session of the Supervisory Committee.

2. On January 29, 2021, the Company convened the first meeting of the second
session of the Supervisory Committee by way of on-site meeting. It reviewed and
approved the proposal on electing Mr. Wu Xinhe as the chairman of the second
session of the Supervisory Committee.

3. On March 26, 2021, the Company convened the second meeting of the second
session of the Supervisory Committee and 2020 annual meeting of the Supervisory
Committee by way of on-site meeting. It reviewed and approved various reports
for the year of 2020, including the working report of the Supervisory Committee,
the annual report, the annual results announcement, the final financial accounting
plan, the profit distribution plan, the remuneration matters of Directors, Supervisors
and senior management and the engagement of the independent auditors, which
are in total of 14 proposals.

4. On August 24, 2021, the Company convened the third meeting of the second
session of the Supervisory Committee by way of on-site meeting. It reviewed and
approved the proposals on the unaudited consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended June 30, 2021, the 2021 interim results announcement,
the interim report and leasing matter of the highway projects batching plants
leasing, which are in total of 4 proposals.

5. On November 26, 2021, the Company convened the fourth meeting of the second
session of the Supervisory Committee by way of on-site meeting. It reviewed
and approved the proposals on the renewal of the land and property leasing
framework agreement between the Company and YCIH and the determination
of the proposed annual caps for the related continuing connected transactions.
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During the Reporting Period, the members of the Supervisory Committee attended the
general meetings and the Board meetings of the Company, put forward relevant opinions
and suggestions with a serious and responsible attitude, conducted supervision on the
procedures and content of the meetings, and effectively supervised the decision-making
procedures, legal operations and financial conditions of the Company’s business, as
well as the duty performance of the Directors and management in the daily operations
of the Company, which well-safeguarded the legal interests of the Company and the
Shareholders.

THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE’S BASIC EVALUATION
ON THE OPERATIONS CONDUCTED BY THE BOARD
AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the year ended December 31, 2021, through supervising the Directors and senior
management, the Supervisory Committee believed that the Company’s major business
decision-making procedures were legal and effective; when performing their duties,
the Directors and senior management earnestly implemented the laws and regulations
of the PRC, the Articles of Association and the resolutions of the general meetings
and the Board meetings, and there was no behavior that harmed the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders and no violations committed by the Directors or senior
management were found during operations.

INDEPENDENT OPINION TO THE RELEVANT MATTERS
OF THE COMPANY DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

Independent Opinion of the Supervisory Committee on the
Company’s Legal Operation

In 2021, the Supervisory Committee supervised the convening procedures and resolutions
of the general meetings and the Board meetings of the Company, the implementation of
resolutions of the Company’s general meetings by the Board, and the duty performance
of senior management in accordance with the rights granted under the Company Law
and the Articles of Association.

The Supervisory Committee believed that the Company’s decision-making procedures
complied with the relevant provisions of the Company Law, the Articles of Association
and the Hong Kong Listing Rules, and the Board has standardized operations, legal
procedures, reasonable decisions, and earnestly implemented each resolution of the
general meetings. The Directors and senior management were loyal and diligent when
they performed their duties, with no violation of laws, regulations, the Articles of
Association or damage to the interests of the Company. Each resolution of the general
meetings has been implemented.
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Supervisory Committee’s Report

Independent Opinion of the Supervisory Committee on the
Company'’s Financial Situation

The Supervisory Committee supervised the Company’s finance, and believed that the
Company'’s financial system was sound, its financial operations were in good condition,
and considered that the Company strictly met the requirements of the accounting
system and accounting standards for business enterprises and other relevant financial
regulations. Meanwhile, after the Supervisory Committee critically reviewed 2021
financial report and relevant documents proposed to be submitted by the Board to
the general meeting, which was audited and issued an unqualified opinion by the
independent auditor, it believed that the financial condition and operation results of
the Company were objectively and truly reflected by the financial report.

Independent Opinion of the Supervisory Committee on the
Company’s Connected Transactions

The Supervisory Committee believed that the Company’s relevant connected transactions
were implemented in strict accordance with the relevant systems and agreements of
connected transactions and were in line with the principles of fairness and reasonableness,
without prejudice to the interests of the Company and the Shareholders.

2022 ANNUAL WORK PLAN

In 2022, the Supervisory Committee will continue to seriously abide by the requirements
of the Articles of Association and the Rules of Procedures of the Supervisory Committee,
exercise its supervisory authority independently in accordance with laws and perform its
fiduciary duty, effectively safeguard the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
and ensure the standardized and healthy operation of the Company.

1. The Supervisory Committee will carry out its daily work to convene meetings of
the Supervisory Committee according to the actual situation of the Company and
endeavor its best efforts to review and consider various proposals;

2. The Supervisory Committee will strengthen the implementation of its supervisory
functions. The Supervisory Committee will enhance the supervision of the Directors
and senior management in the discharge of their duties and responsibilities, the
execution of resolutions and compliance with regulations, improve the supervision
and correction of violations, misconduct and omissions of senior management, and
promote the standardization and legality of their decision-making and operating
activities; conduct focused supervision on the implementation of the Company’s
major operating decisions, major asset acquisitions and external investments, and
regularly review and audit the Company’s financial reports to effectively prevent
business risks;

3. The Supervisory Committee will learn about laws, regulations and relevant policies
in a timely manner. The Supervisory Committee will seriously study the PRC
laws, regulations and relevant policies amended by the PRC from time to time,
continuously urge the construction and operation of the internal control system,
promote a long-term effective mechanism of standardizing corporate governance
of the Company and facilitate the sustainable and healthy development of the
Company; and
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4. The members of the Supervisory Committee will diligently and responsibly pay
close attention to the production, operation and management as well as important
measures of the Company on a daily basis, participate in the Board meetings,
general meetings and other important meetings of the Company, and actively
provide its opinions or advice.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Wu Xinhe
Chairman

Kunming, China, March 29, 2022
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report
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1 ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
OVERVIEW

1.1 ABOUT ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

1.1.1 Standards of report preparation

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report describes the environmental, social
and governance performance of the Group to enable each interested party to have a
better understanding of the Group’s sustainable development philosophy, management
practices, measures and related performance. This report sets out the principles that
underpin the Group's corporate social responsibility (“CSR") and describes the Group's
vision and commitment to CSR.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules,
of which the contents are also defined and disclosed on the principles of materiality,

quantitive and consistency.

Through multiple discussions and direct communication with stakeholders, the Group
understood the core issues that stakeholders concerned and identified significant
environmental, social and governance factors, based on which the Group formulated
corresponding strategies, goals, plans and measures to promote the sustainable
development of the Company’s business. The compilation of key performance indicators
herein is with reference to the calculation standards and methods provided in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to
the Hong Kong Listing Rules. The calculation method and the coverage are consistent
with those of the report in previous year, and the possibility of influencing the reader’s
decision or judgment or choice, omission, or presentation format is avoided.

The board of directors of the Group seeks to incorporate the philosophy of sustainable
development into its daily operations, so that the overall strategic direction of the
Group is aligned with the sustainable development goals. The board of directors of the
Group has established a monitoring system to ensure that the operations can achieve
the corresponding goals and the performance of the Group in environmental, social
and governance aspects can be continuously improved.
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The Board is committed to establishing the Company as a globally competitive green
building material enterprise. To achieve this goal, the Group has adjusted the internal
organizational structure of the Company and carried out relevant planning focusing on
green and low carbon development, intelligent manufacturing, technological research and
development, and prevention and control of COVID-19. In terms of internal organizational
structure, the board of directors of the Group adjusted the organizational structure of the
Company at the end of December 2021 in accordance with the actual production and
operation governance needs of the Company, and established seven new management
centers for material supply chain, quality and technology, financial management, cost
control, marketing management, technological innovation and production management,
and gradually set up five business divisions for ultra-high performance concrete (UHPC),
commercial mortar, resource utilization of construction waste, new green and low-
carbon materials, and intelligent construction. In terms of strategic planning, the Board
believes that the main challenge for the Company’s operations in the next 3-5 years is
to scientifically coordinate the prevention and control of the COVID-19 pandemic and
business development. In this regard, the Board proposed five plans for the sustainable
operation of the Company that 1) during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, the Company
shall be well prepared for a protracted war on pandemic prevention and control to raise
such awareness, especially for employees at the border areas in Yunnan Province, and
strengthen measures related to pandemic prevention and control; 2) the Company shall
accelerate the optimization of its stations layout, promote intelligent manufacturing,
improve capacity utilization and vigorously develop a green and low-carbon economy; 3)
the Company has increased its investment in technological research and development to
promote the research and development of topics related to UHPC, resource utilization of
construction waste and new green and low-carbon materials, so as to practically enhance
the Company’s core competitiveness; 4) the Company has changed its operation and
service philosophy to be customer demand oriented and to improve customer satisfaction
and the Company’s soft power; and 5) centering on the Company’s main operation
business in concrete, the Company would continue to expand into the upstream and
downstream industry chains in accordance with policy direction and market demand to
enhance the Company’s competitiveness in the whole industry chain.

1.1.2 Report scope
The time range covered by this report is January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021.

The revenue of ready-mixed concrete business accounts for a majority of our operating
revenue. The remaining businesses are related to the ready-mixed concrete business. This
report covers the Company and its subsidiaries. Unless otherwise stated, the information
involved in this report is derived from our Group’s documents and statistical reports,
and the currency involved is RMB.
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1.1.3 Advice and feedback

The development of our Group also depends on the valuable advice from various
interested parties. Should you have any questions about or comments on this report, please
feel free to contact the Group by the following means: E-mail: ghpc1847esg@163.com.

1.2 ABOUT US

1.2.1 Development history

The predecessor of the Company, YNJG Green High-Performance Concrete Company
Limited, was established as a limited liability company in June 2007 by Yunnan
Construction Engineering Concrete Co., Ltd., a state-owned wholly-owned subsidiary
of the former Yunnan Construction Engineering Group Co., Ltd. In 2016, according
to the “Five in One Batch” idea of YCIH, formerly known as Yunnan Construction
Engineering Group Co., Ltd., as an important professional segment of the Group's
collaborative development, the Company moved its registered address to Zhaoyang
District, Zhaotong and changed its name to YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete
Co., Ltd. in December 2016, by stripping the assets of the concrete part and carrying
out the integration and reorganization of assets and businesses with the main concrete
industry as the core. In December 2017, the Company completed joint stock system
transformation and set up YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited.
On October 31, 2019, the Company was listed on the main board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (stock name: GHPC, stock code: 01847).

Our Group is mainly engaged in the production and sales of ready-mixed concrete,
aggregates and polycarboxylic admixtures, which has established an industry chain of
“technological research and development, resource processing, production and sales”.
After years of development, our Group has became a ready-mixed concrete production
enterprise with advanced equipment, leading technologies, standardized management
and in the largest scale and strong comprehensive strength in the concrete industry
of Yunnan Province, which is one of the first concrete enterprises with a three-star
green building materials label and the energy management system certification in
Yunnan Province. At the same time, the Group passed “Integration of Three Standards”
management system certification of quality, environment and occupational health
administration system, China Environmental Labeling Product Certification and energy
management system certification, and successfully obtained the accreditation of Yunnan
Provincial Enterprise Technology Centre (EF 4 A ZEHK T 0)). Two subsidiaries have
passed recognition of national High-tech Enterprise and one subsidiary has passed
recognition of Kunming Municipal Enterprise Technology Centre (B3T3 H il
1»), forming an enterprise research and development pattern based on Yunnan High-
performance Concrete Engineering Research Center with common development of
several research and development platforms.
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1.2.2 Corporate culture and our perspective on social
responsibility

Corporate core values

(&]7 o[ =1 - Help dreams come true with our ingenuity, help
core values buildings stand tall with our concrete

(@e)do L] 1N Committed to building a globally competitive
vision green building material company

(@7 JJEIEN  Lay a solid foundation for hundred-year long
mission development and a better life

Development Safe production, tech-driven, intelligent
philosophy manufacturing, green development

Corporate
spirit

Integrity, quality, service, win-win

Operation philosophy
Passion, innovation,

_—~ cooperation, sharing ~_

Environmental Production and

protection philosophy 'management philosophy
What takes from Strengthen process
nature goes back to control, set a model for
nature the industry
Service philosophy Employment
Meet requirements, philosophy
pursue excellence ; Working is the best raining,
Basic Concept an gooc premance s e
System of the greatest recognition
\ Enterprise /
Quality philosophy Safety philosophy
Based on profession, Respect life, mindful
win by quality operations
Technology

philosophy _
Technology creates
classics, innovation
leads the future

As a product and service oriented company, the Group has always been a devout believer
of craftsmanship, creation, excelsior, customer-first services and cultivating the future
with the beginner’s mind to prop up the construction of green home, with the core
value of “help dreams come true with our ingenuity, help buildings stand tall with our
concrete”. We adhere to safe production, tech-driven, intelligent manufacturing and
green development, proactively changed our development mode, paid more attention
to ecological environmental protection and energy conservation, and strived to achieve
the goal of “energy saving, consumption reduction, and efficiency improvement”, which
has brought comprehensive benefits to our economy, society and resource environment
and improved our market competitiveness. We believe that the development of green
building materials has changed people’s perspective on urban construction. As a resource-
consuming enterprise, we must make best use of the power of science and technology
from the very beginning of production, in an effort to protect the nature, and make
sure what takes from nature goes back to nature to promote the harmony between
people and nature.
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1.2.3 Product concept and product innovation

Product concept

In the production process, the Group always follows the concept of “green manufacturing,
low-carbon manufacturing and intelligent manufacturing”, the quality philosophy of
“based on profession, win by innovation” and the environmental protection philosophy of
“what takes from nature goes back to nature”. We are actively exploring and researching
the project such as comprehensive use of industrial solid waste, construction waste and
waste seriflux from our batching plants, and applying them to the actual production
process to reduce the emission of waste and pollutants through energy conservation,
consumption reduction, water saving, dust prevention and noise reduction and other
measures, thereby achieving green production of concrete.

Our Group adheres to the road of safe production, tech-driven, intelligent manufacturing
and green development, and pays attention to the green and environmental protection
of products. The Company passed China Environmental Labeling Product Certification
in 2006 and receives the supervision and audit of the certification authority every
year and has been maintaining China Environmental Labeling Product Certification
Certificate which covers 12 grades of ordinary concrete for C10-C70. In 2021, our
Group commissioned the National Center for Quality Supervision and Test of Building
Engineering to inspect the concrete produced, and the results showed that the concrete
indicators met the requirements of Technical Requirement for Environmental Labeling
Products — Ready-mixed Concrete (HJ/T412-2007).

To positively respond to the call of the national green building materials evaluation, our
Group focuses on the evaluation of green building materials and has become one of
the first winners of the three-star green building materials label for concrete in Yunnan
Province. A total of eight batching plants of the Company were awarded the three-star
green building materials label for concrete, namely batching plants located in Jingkai
Kunming, Changshui Kunming, Xicheng District Kunming, Mashipu of Chuxiong Branch,
Zheyan of Dehong Branch, Civil Aviation of Zhaotong Direct Division (F2 38 & & i),
Jinlong of Qujing Building Material, Baoshan of Baoshan Building Material. The batching
plants in East of Kunming and Longquan of Kunming have obtained two-star green
building materials label for concrete.
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The Group focuses on solid wastes such as coal ash, ground slag, discarded stone chips,
tailings aggregates and waste seriflux and wastewater in batching plants as its main
application targets, and develops new technologies for resource utilization of solid wastes
to achieve the goal of energy saving, environmental protection and green production
and promote the green and low carbon development of the concrete industry. In the
future, the Group will focus on the cutting-edge technologies of the concrete industry
and the development needs of the low-carbon construction technology industry of
construction projects and infrastructure in Yunnan Province, and comprehensively center
on the ultra-high performance concrete, special mortar, resource utilisation of solid
waste, low-carbon construction, 3D printing and negative carbon concrete application
chain in the fields of construction industrialisation and bridge industrialisation, strive
to overcome the economic ultra-high performance concrete integration technology,
key technologies for high performance of cement-based materials and green and low
carbonization, and integrated utilization technologies of solid waste resources such as
construction waste, tailings and industrial solid waste, and other core technologies with
market competitiveness and industry demonstration effect, so as to significantly raise the
standard of research and development and application of new green building materials,
the new building structure design and construction technology level, and the standard
of intelligent production and manufacturing in Yunnan Province.

With the aim of saving energy, reducing consumption and reducing emissions, our
Group adopts advanced environmental protection equipment, management technology,
monitoring means and advanced preparation technology to produce high-performance
concrete with excellent mechanical properties and durability, and has passed China
Environmental Labeling Product Certification and energy management system certification,
as well as the “Integration of Three Standards” management system certification of GB/
T19001, GB/T24001 and GB/T28001. Our Group selects the mixing, transportation and
test equipment with advanced technology, low carbon and energy saving, low noise,
low emission and high production efficiency, and adopts fully closed production lines,
closed silos, spray systems and powder recovery devices. The dust control for production
within the factory boundary conforms to the provisions of Emission Standard of Air
Pollutants for Cement Industry (GB4915-2013), and the noise control within the factory
boundary conforms to Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary
(GB12348-2008). Our Group adopts seriflux recycling system for aggregates separation,
and recycling treatment equipment on waste seriflux and wastewater, to achieve zero
discharge of seriflux. The advanced ERP concrete production control system is used to
realize the automation control and data management of concrete production process, and
the production energy consumption quota and the comprehensive energy consumption
quota have reached the advanced level. Moreover, concrete products have stable quality,
low strength dispersion and high durability, which can meet the green requirement of
100 years life of concrete in extremely complex environments, thereby reducing the
comprehensive cost of the whole life cycle of projects.
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Product innovation and technology innovation

Our Group is committed to driving the development with scientific and technological
innovation, keeping up with the pace of industrial development, focusing on improving
the service life of concrete projects and the technical requirements of green building
energy conservation to carry out research on the preparation and application of key
technology on high-performance concrete to meet the needs of major engineering. In
2021, the Group successfully obtained the accreditation of Yunnan Provincial Enterprise
Technology Centre. Two subsidiaries have passed recognition of national High-tech
Enterprise and one subsidiary has passed recognition of Kunming Municipal Enterprise
Technology Centre (EEATMARMBERIM P L), forming an enterprise research and
development pattern based on Yunnan High-performance Concrete Engineering Research
Center with common development of several research and development platforms.

Relying on a strong research and development platform and with the objective of building
a base for the industrialisation application of high-end construction materials in Yunnan
Province, the Group is determined to follow the path of industrialisation of scientific and
technological achievements and vigorously expands the research of high-performance
concrete materials in 2021. Through using local materials to develop high-performance
concrete materials that are economically reasonable, technologically advanced, safe
and applicable and meet the needs of lightweight, low-carbon and industrialisation
development, we gradually develop a high level, hierarchical and systematic set of
application technologies to create new growth points for the economic development
of Yunnan Province.

In 2021, the Group developed new products such as ultra-high performance concrete, high-
strength lightweight aggregates concrete and ultra-high pumping concrete, completed
the application of ultra-high performance concrete in the Yuanjiang Crossing Bridge,
and became the first enterprise in Yunnan Province to achieve the local industrialisation
application of ultra-high performance concrete.
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The first enterprise in Yunnan Province to achieve local industrialisation application of ultra-high performance concrete
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Ultra-high performance Concrete (UHPC)

The Group passed the project of Demonstration of Research and Development
and Engineering Applications on Ultra-High Performance Concrete in High-
temperature and Low-humidity Environments, a science and technology project
of the Department of Transport of Yunnan Province. Using local materials, we
have systematically carried out research on the mix design, self-compacting
properties and shrinkage properties of UHPC, starting from preparation and
shrinkage characteristics of ultra-high performance concrete and taking into
account the characteristics of local materials, high temperature and low humidity
environment and structural design requirements of closed steel cells in Yunnan
Province, and have mastered the technical keys of UHPC mix design, production
and construction. As the concrete has been verified through a trial production
stage simulation casting test, we produce the self-consolidating, slightly expanded
ultra-high performance concrete with the initial expansion greater than 700mm,
2h expansion greater than 600mm, compressive strength more than 120MPa,
self-shrinkage less than 800um/m and dry shrinkage less than 300um/m. The
Company became the first enterprise in Yunnan Province to achieve the local
industrialisation application of ultra-high performance concrete when it completed
the application of C120 ultra-high performance concrete in the Yuanjiang Crossing
Bridge Project and poured more than 100 m? of concrete into steel latticed chamber
for steel-concrete combined section on December 3, 2021, realizing engineering
application of ultra-high performance concrete.

High-strength lightweight aggregates concrete

The Group established the project of Research on Preparation and Application
Technology for Green High-Strength Lightweight Aggregates Concrete, a science
and technology project of Department of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
of Yunnan Province. In conjunction with the development of modular construction
and the demand for application of lightweight aggregates concrete for long-span
bridges, the project has identified LC30 concrete with a capacity of 1800, 1600
and LC50 concrete with a capacity of 1900 through experimental studies, providing
technical support to the use of high-strength lightweight aggregates concrete in
highway bridge deck construction and high-rise building projects.
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Ultra-high pumping self-compacting concrete

The research on the preparation and application technology of ultra-high pumping
self-compacting concrete was systematically carried out for the highest landmark
building under construction in Yunnan Province, namely the “Eye of Spring”. Based
on the workability of the high strength and high performance concrete, the local
solid waste resources such as water washing machine-made sand and high quality
mineral admixture are fully utilised in accordance with local conditions and combined
with polycarboxylic acid high performance water reducing agent compounding
technology to formulate SCC60 and SCC65 ultra-high pumping concrete with
initial expansion 650+50mm, 2h gradual loss <50mm and inverted slump cylinder
emptying time <6s. On the basis of thorough investigation and research, combining
the characteristics of local resources and climate diversity in Yunnan Province, and
summarising the construction experience of representative projects, we supervised
the publication of Yunnan Provincial Engineering Construction Local Standard
on Technical Regulations for the Application of Ultra-high Pumping Concrete in
Yunnan Province for 2021, promoting the sustainable development of technology
in the field of engineering construction in Yunnan Province.
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Supervised the publication of Yunnan Provincial Engineering Construction Local Standard on Technical
Regulations for the Application of Ultra-high Pumping Concrete in Yunnan Province
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In addition, the Group has overcome the key technical problems in the production
and application of high-strength and high-performance concrete from machine-
made sand and developed a highly adaptable and low-sensitive polycarboxylic acid
water reducing agent, which has greatly enhanced the performance of concrete.
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Key Technology for the Development and Application of High Performance
Concrete from Machine-made Sand

The project was approved by Department of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
of Yunnan Province, entitled Research on the Preparation and Application
Technology of High Performance Concrete with Machine-made Sand, to carry
“stone — sand — powder” for high
performance concrete with machine-made sand, thereby proposing a methodology

out design research on the integration of

for the mixture proportioning design with dual constraints on the workability
and mechanical performance of high performance concrete mixes made from
machine-made sand. In line with the strategic needs of green construction,
green building materials and environmental protection in Yunnan Province and
the needs of industrial development, the local standard of Technical Regulations
for the Application of High Performance Concrete with Machine-made Sand
was compiled to provide technical support for the construction of a standard
system and an application technology system for high performance concrete with
machine-made sand in line with the local characteristics of Yunnan Province.
The Key Technology for Development and Application of Concrete for Highway
Bridges in High Temperature Valley won the Second Prize of Technical Innovation
of China Concrete & Cement-based Products Association in 2021.
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Concrete for Highway Bridges in High Temperature Valley

(BRTABRERHS

OB BT RS R B S R )

121

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2021




Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report
IRE - 1wg NER (ESG) Wi

Key Technology for the Production and Application of High Strength and
High Performance Concrete

We have systematically conducted research on the preparation and application
of C80-C100 high strength and high performance concrete, and have overcome
the technical difficulties in the production of high strength and high performance
concrete based on the characteristics of local materials in Yunnan Province. Based
on the most compact accumulation theory, the C80-C100 high-strength and
high performance concrete with expansion >600mm, 2h gradual loss <50mm,
T500 <8s and inverted slump cylinder emptying time <10s was developed by
using the solid waste compound compounding technology, realizing green and
low carbon production of high-strength concrete. In 2021, we edited Yunnan
Provincial Engineering Construction Local Standard on Technical Regulations for
the Application of High-Strength Concrete in Yunnan Province, which promoted
the industrialisation of high strength and high performance concrete in Yunnan
Province.
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The Company edited the Yunnan Provincial Engineering
Construction Local Standard on Technical Regulations for the
Application of High-Strength Concrete in Yunnan Province
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- Synthesis and Application Technology of Highly Adaptable and Low
Sensitive High Performance Polycarboxylic Acid Water Reducers
We established the project of Synthesis and Application of Highly Adaptable and
Low Sensitive High Performance Polycarboxylic Acid Water Reducers, a science
and technology project of Department of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
of Yunnan Province, which used a greener and more environmentally-friendly
inorganic salt-based chain transfer agent instead of mercury-based chain transfer
agent to synthesize polycarboxylic acid technology, and improves the stability of
inorganic salt-based chain transfer agent with special reducing agent. We have
developed DJ-320, DJ-400 and DJ-210, meeting the requirements of high water
reduction and low doping of special concrete admixtures and greatly improving
the performance of concrete.

Green production

Our Group practices the environmental protection concept of what takes from nature
goes back to nature in the production activities and plays an active role in exploring
and developing the waste utilization, seriously implements the corporate production
method of environmental protection production, integrates the planning awareness of
environmental management into the production process, and actively develops eco-
industry and circular economy. In 2021, the Group obtained the ISO14001 Environmental
Management System Certification, which urged the Group to continuously enhance the
Group's production technology in the course of production, operation and services in
order to improve production efficiency, while strengthening environmental management
and strictly controlling the emission of various pollutants to achieve green production.

In 2021,
Certification Certificate. Since the launch of the China Environmental Labeling Product

the Group once again passed the China Environmental Labeling Product

Certification in 2006, the Group has been making the China Environmental Labeling
Product Certification a long-term priority. Through 15 years of system operation,
the Group has continuously improved its product quality, standardised its corporate
management system and improved its product development in accordance with the
technical requirements and safeguards of the environmental label. The certification
covers the validation report for the Group’s 12 grades of ordinary concrete products for
C10-C70 in terms of compressive strength, water penetration resistance and durability,
as well as the inspection reports on the internal and external exposure indices of
concrete, the release of pollutants from concrete and the water-soluble hexavalent
chromium in concrete. The Group strives to achieve clean production by meeting specific
environmental protection requirements in the production, use and handling of concrete
products while ensuring product quality.

In the production process, the Group always follows the concept of “green manufacturing,
low-carbon manufacturing and intelligent manufacturing”. Through measures such
as energy conservation, consumption reduction, water saving, dust prevention and
noise reduction, the Group has vigorously carried out research and application of
comprehensive utilization of industrial solid waste, construction waste and waste seriflux
from our batching plants, thus realizing the rational use of solid waste, reducing waste

and pollutant emissions and achieving green production of concrete.
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To promote the promotion and application of clean production technology for ready-
mixed concrete, the construction of the plant highlights the features of “overall
layout, functional zoning, green and environmental protection”, and adopts mixing,
transportation and testing equipment featuring advanced technology, low-carbon and
energy saving, low noise and emission, and high production efficiency. It adopts fully
closed production lines, closed silos, spray systems and powder recycling devices, realizing
dust and noise control at the plant boundary. It uses the self-developed patented “waste
slurry and wastewater recycling technology”, combined with the domestic advanced
aggregates separation technology, to realize the comprehensive utilization of wastewater,
waste slurry and waste concrete, and the loop utilization rate reaches 100%, realizing
zero discharge of production sewage and solid waste and the loop use of resources.
In addition, the Group introduced imported fine filter cleaner products to effectively
reduce waste oil pollutant emissions and achieve green production.

1.2.4 Overview of our honors

With the extensive experience accumulated from more than 1,000 engineering projects,
our Group has established a leading market position in Yunnan Province, created a
good corporate image, and deeply fulfilled the environmental and social responsibilities.
In 2021, the Company’s GHPC Technology Centre was recognised as one of the 24th
batch of Enterprise Technology Centres in Yunnan Province, while the Technology
Centres of Polymer Company and Qujing Building Material, the Group’s subsidiaries,
were recognised as Kunming Enterprise Technology Centres and High-tech Enterprise
respectively. The Company was honoured as one of the “China Top 100 Building
Material Enterprises in 2021", the second time the Company has been awarded
this honour since 2020. The Group’s invention patent of “Metakaolin Concrete for
Oversized Structures and the Design Plan of Mixture Proportioning” won the first
prize of the High Promotion Value in Engineering Construction awarded by China
Association of Construction Enterprise Management. “Key Technology for Development
and Application of Concrete for Highway Bridges in High Temperature Valley” won
the second prize of the 2021 China Concrete & Cement-based Products Association’s
Technical Innovation Award. The scientific research result of “Key Technology Research
and Engineering Application of High-performance Concrete Preparation with High-iron-
titanium Metakaolin” implemented by the Company won the “Third Prize of Science
and Technology Progress Award in Yunnan Province”.
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The main honors awarded to our Group in 2021 are as follows:
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In 2021, GHPC Technology Centre was recognised as one of the

24th batch of Enterprise Technology Centres in Yunnan Province
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The Company was awarded as one of the “China Top 100
Building Material Enterprises in 2021"
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"Key Technology for Development and Application of Concrete
for Highway Bridges in High Temperature Valley” won the
second prize of the 2021 China Concrete & Cement-based

Products Association’s Technical Innovation Award
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In December 2021, Qujing Building Material was awarded
the High-tech Enterprise Certificate
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The invention patent of “Metakaolin Concrete for Oversized
Structures and the Design Plan of Mixture Proportioning” won
the first prize of the First High Promotion Value in Engineering

and Construction Industry
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The scientific research result of “Key Technology Research
and Engineering Application of High-performance
Concrete Preparation with High-iron-titanium Metakaolin” won
the “Third Prize of Science and Technology Progress Award
in Yunnan Province”
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1.2.5 Engagement of stakeholders

Maintaining communication with interested parties plays an important role in our
Group's sustainable development. Our Group's interested parties include the government,
shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers, partners, employees, the environment,
communities and the public as well as the charitable organizations etc. Our Group actively
maintains communication with various interested parties through various channels
to actively know about their opinions and expectations on our Group’s sustainable

development performance.

Shareholders
and Investors

Government Client

Charitable
Organizations

Supplier and
Partner

Community
and Public

Environment

Interested Parties

Expectations and Requirements
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Communication Method
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Drive the local employment Report the work regularly
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Return on investment

Ensure open and transparent information

Secure the rights and interests of
shareholders

RE BB

E=NGEl

R R R A

Provide high-quality products
Provide premium services
Protect rights and interests

REBEER
REERERS
RIEHE

Report the business situation regularly

Disclose announcements and periodic reports

Organize investor communication activities
actively

JE HAE RS AR

WENERE RS

BRRIHREEBBEY

Set up multiple communication channels to
understand customer needs and opinions

Disclose relevant information

REZEBRREETREFPTRNER

HEE RRE
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Interested Parties

MRS

Expectations and Requirements

HEEER

Communication Method

BEAX

Supplier and Partner

BAERRA (R R

Employees

0
H

Environment

B

Community and Public

HEMAR

Charitable Organizations

N T

Maintain good business relation

Manage justly, fairly and openly

Operate with integrity and perform timely
Involved in mutual help and benefit

%ﬁﬁﬁ%%&%
RERIERFHER
MERE  BREDH
BENE A
Receive competitive salary and benefits
Get fair promotion and development
Boost competence
Secure health and security
Enjoy enabling work environment

BHFNHFHERT
NPETEER
BE R
RIBEREZ 2
RO TERRE

Engage in energy conservation and emission
reduction

Conserve resources

Involve in ecological protection and
restoration

AIRERL T
EIHIETR
ERERENER

Ensure safe operation of business
Serve community development
Safeguard social stability

EB LB

BRI+ 2 R

M EIRE

Care for the vulnerable group
Espouse public causes

FAE LR

FREUNGEE

Conduct strategic cooperation
Establish and improve bidding and
procurement management

Engage in communication activities regularly

Disclose relevant information

MRS

BUTERERBER

E HRGA R 2 &

MEEE EHEE

Establish comprehensive employee
management system

Launch training activities actively

Strengthen employee communication through

multiple channels
Care for employees with hardship
Carry out employee activities
Disclose relevant information
EVTENEIEERER
B REIES
ZRE N8 8 TBA
HAER#®EEST
HRE TEE)
RS SRR

Develop green products

Promote clean production technology

Utilize waste liquid and waste
comprehensively

Enhance energy-efficient awareness
education

Strengthen information disclosure

BEREERREMR
HEBREERM
FEFRBEKNERY
IERETREEHS EHE

hnsgfE BIRER

Regulate business management
Reinforce the community interaction
Disclose relevant information
REEBEE

hnaR B4t [ 5 B)

MHEE BRE

Organize public activities actively
Disclose relevant information
TERAEE N EE

RS IR EE
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2 ANALYSIS OF OUR ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
2.1 ANALYSIS OF OUR EMISSIONS

Our Group adheres to the path of green development, conscientiously implements various
national environmental protection policies, and focuses on sustainable development plans
to promote green growth of the industry. Our Group strictly manages its emissions to
the environment and adopts new technologies and new equipment to achieve the goal
of energy conservation and emission reduction. Our Group strictly abides by the relevant
laws, regulations, standards and provincial, municipal, and local environmental protection
management measures regarding air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste, which may
have a significant impact on our Group, including but not limited to the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, Air Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes, Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution, Integrated
Wastewater Discharge Standard (GB8978-1996), Environmental Noise Emission Standard
for Industrial Enterprises (GB12348-2008), General Industrial Solid Waste Storage and
Disposal Site Pollution Control Standard (GB18599-2020), and Standard for Pollution
Control on Hazardous Waste Storage (GB18597-2001).

2.1.1 Analysis of our emission indicators

Total waste gas emissions and density of enterprises

The waste gas generated by our Group’s business from the combustion of fossil fuels
mainly includes nitrogen oxides (NO,), sulfur oxides (SO,) and suspended particulate
matter (PM). In 2021, our Group emitted a total of about 25.66 tons of waste gas,
with an emission density of about 1.22 ton/RMB100 million. In 2022, the Company has
established a target of achieving 100% compliance rate of dust and noise emissions.

2 DERBENSN

2.1 DEFEBUERS N
AEERBEFEERZE  BEEEBRRE
HIRIRECE - BESERENR - HETE
BEBR - ASEERREBEARENIENR
WERAHMEMN - 186 UEBRSERED
BiZ - AKEERETHEHBERAERE
W AKRTHBEES  BEREETEEY
MELASHENHASEFEAZENARE
BERZERE T HAREREE
BYE  BEEATERNPEARLMEIRE
RIEE)(PEARKEMB AR5 LEBEE)(F
FEARKRBEAKFLBEARZE) (PEARKERM
B & B8 BE W5 R IR B RE) (P EAR KA
IRIBIRE S 200 R0E) C5KERE BEIZ2E) (GB
8978-1996) T S 1b 5 B SLIR 5 1R 2 HE pUIZ 242 )
(GB12348-2008) { —f TERERBEWTT » &
B 55 R HIZHE) (GB18599-2020) K ( /B [ FE
VTS5 RAEHIIR%E) (GB18597-2001) ©

2.1.1 LREBHADIEEEIEES T
PEERBHNERZE
AEBEBHEARBREMEENERES
BREAA/IYINO) * AW (SO REFE
KA (PM)EE © 2021 S [E RS B ARk EE R 4
25.66M  BEMERE X R1.228 ARBET -
2022 [E + REIMEL TIE - BEBHRUEEX
100% 8 B 1F °
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The following table shows our Group’s emissions and density by type of waste gas in

202 FEREREEASETNE RTEFR

2021: WNRAR
Emission Density
(ton/RMB100
Emission (ton) million)
HFHREE M AR
BRER Type of Waste Gas BEpk 2 (1) =9
AEALYINO,) Nitrogen oxides (NO,) 23.61 1.12
WE b (S0, Sulfur oxides (SOx) 0.05 0.002
SR ERY(PM) Suspended particulate matter (PM) 2.00 0.09
et Total 25.66 1.22

Note: Waste gas emissions mainly include waste gas generated by our Group's self-owned vehicles and
equipment.

Total greenhouse gas emissions and density of enterprises

Our Group's business results in direct and indirect emissions of greenhouse gases due
to fossil fuel consumption and the use of electricity and other resources. In 2021, our
Group's total greenhouse gas emissions were approximately 20,329.52 tons of carbon
dioxide equivalent, and its emission density was approximately 965.11 tons of carbon
dioxide equivalent/RMB100 million.

The following table shows our Group’s emissions and density by greenhouse gas type
and source in 2021:

Direct Greenhouse Gas Emissions

B BRHNETEEAREE A ERNRENES

PRBERBEFMERER
AEBEBAMEARBERERENEERD
£/ - ERCRERENEEMBEETER - 2021
EASEBHAHHURAEREE420,329.520E =&
{LIXEE @ FREELN RIS 1 —AlixE
2/ARERET -

2021 FERREREREANARA S BT RE
REEBRMTRAR :

BERBEEER

Emission Density

Emissions (Tons (Tons of Carbon
of Carbon Dioxide Dioxide Equivalent/
Equivalent) RMB100 million)

HREE

HHE (HogStREE

BEREER Type of Greenhouse Gas (WS REER) AR¥ET)
Z&1LHK(CO,) Carbon dioxide (CO,) 10,905.65 517.73
FRR(CH,) Methane (CH,) 10.03 0.48
A/b I AN,0) Nitrous oxide (N.O) 134.46 6.38
Ry Total 11,050.14 524.59
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Indirect Greenhouse Gas Emissions

BEREHEEER

Emission Density
(Tons of Carbon
Dioxide Equivalent/

Emissions (Tons
of Carbon Dioxide

Equivalent) RMB100 million)

BHEE

HHE (HogtnEE

9 338 B R IO Source of Indirect Emissions (F-—FtEE) AREET)

ENEREA Use of power resources 8,742.10 415.02

H g Other indirect emissions 537.28 25.51

st Total 9,279.38 440.52
Note: Direct greenhouse gas emissions mainly include greenhouse gas generated by our Group's self- G BAERBEENETFTERSAEEEEERHMRK

owned vehicles and equipment. Other indirect emissions include greenhouse gas emissions indirectly
generated by the use of water resources and paper consumption.

Total discharge and density of enterprise wastewater and solid waste

Our Group attaches great importance to the management of sewage and solid waste and
minimizes the discharge of solid waste. Our Group advocates saving water and recycling
water, and the production assembly is equipped with a sewage treatment system to
recycle and reuse the production sewage, achieving zero discharge of production sewage.
In 2021, our Group discharged a total of approximately 13.44 tons of solid waste, with
a discharge density of approximately 0.64 tons/RMB100 million. In terms of solid waste
discharge, the Group has established a target of zero discharge of waste concrete and
waste aggregates, and a 100% discharge rate of hazardous waste.

The following table shows our Group’s discharge and emission density by type of waste
in 2021:

BAELRERE - HtuMZEHREe R BkERE
ERMEF RS AMEELOREREBIR

PEBENKKEIEEZY BN E K
FEEREERSKNERBEZYNER - X
REURRSEREEYNHR - REBBEH
HMRK - BERERAK LEREESKEER
o WEESKETERENA BREES
IKEHER © 2021 FEAKE KA EREE
WHN3.4408 - BERERE L) /0.64M8 AR E
T o HEREEYHRE - NEEETEE
RELMBEEVAORZHR  AREREEY
EVHERCE IR EIE100%E) B 1R

o

0N FERBENEBEASEFNERZER
AN KRR

Emission Density

(ton/RMB100

Discharge (ton) million)

HRBE (W AR

BEyER Type of Waste BE k= (W) &)
mEE R EY) Non-hazardous solid waste 11.37 0.54
BEREBREEEY) Hazardous solid waste 2.07 0.10
st Total 13.44 0.64

All waste discharged by our Group shall be properly treated in accordance with relevant
national environmental protection policies and regulations. Our Group purchases bulk
cement and admixtures for galled materials and avoids the use of packaging materials
in the logistics process. Our Group does not use packaging materials for other types
of raw materials required for the production of concrete, which effectively avoids the
discharge of solid waste from related packaging materials.

REBPRO A BEEYISRERBAORER
REBKIERETLZERE - AEERBREY
HRBARINKERZEHR  BREMRBIET
ERABEMH - AEELERRTATEHEM
BREM BB T ERBEME - BRELIE
BB EMEE e EEZ MBI -
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2.1.2 Measures that enterprise promotes to reduce discharge
and its achievements

Strictly follow the policy system and develop internal management
methods

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations such as “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Integrated Wastewater
Discharge Standard”, “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution” and “Integrated Wastewater
Discharge Standard” to regulate the Group’s energy saving and emission reduction
management system. The Group commenced the construction of its energy
management system in January 2018, set up an energy management system
construction team, established an energy management system covering the entire
process of energy utilization, and obtained the energy management system
certificate in May of the same year. As of 2021, the Group has operated the
energy management system with a good condition and has successfully passed
the annual external audit and obtained the energy management system certificate
again. At the same time, in order to strengthen energy management, reduce
energy consumption, realize the recycling of production energy and achieve the
goal of energy saving and emission reduction, the Group has formulated the
“Management Measures for Energy Conservation and Resource Control of YCIH
Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited ” and “Energy Management
System Manual of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited”.

Introduction of system for aggregates separation with slurry water reuse
In 2021, the Group continued to introduce the system for aggregates separation
with slurry water reuse to recycle the separated aggregates and concentrated
slurry water and achieve zero discharge of waste slurry. Through the system for
aggregates separation with slurry water reuse, the waste generated from rinsing
the inner side of tank on concrete mix truckers, left materials, and bunker leaks
and spills under the production lines could be separated, and the separated
aggregates would be recycled to the yard by tractor shovel, while the separated
thick slurry water will be recycled for production after blending in the mixing
tank, realising truly zero emission.

2.1.2 DEBTHEEHKENEBHER
V=)

BREBBRHE » tIEABERME
REEBREETFCPEARLMBEIRER
FEVCFTKAMBEBUREN P EEAR KM
BRI R A 5 20805 ) RCRRI5 R 4R
BHMIRE)S R EER - RBEAEEE
BERBEEIREER - ZK‘EEE/\zmsimFﬂ
FERERERERTE - AEERE
BERER @l% %igﬁéﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁgﬂk
WEEREEBER - WHRFSAEEBER
EEBEAREFEFEEZ - HE2021FEF - K&
FHEEERERERBITIERRL - JEFBE
BERINBET  BABBEREEER
REMEIEFE - R - BT INRER
K/EE’]

ﬁii Kd: EEHZ/ \/ﬁ§% EEEEF
BRMA - ZRSHERSNER A&
@%HET(EEﬁE&Zfé R B T I
MERRBELEER - EIRE S E 25
5£>>%D<<%F‘T§$$x%§iém HEERR RN E
RAFREREIZEBRFM) -

SIEDADBEEKE ARG

20214F « ANEEFESHED A BREEK
BARS - BERABSBEND AR
oK - BEREFEATHR - BADAS
BRSO A RS - ATEDRE LB ER
T FRARAEEG TERURR - B
LEANBETHE  DHEOY AR
BIEBEGERIKNERISFER - HBEEAR
HEOKES B2 Be T F Ac & [ WOR R AR E
BERTEEEZNTHN -

System for aggregates separation with slurry water
reuse

BhaoBEKEB RS

Separation of left materials and rinsing the
inner side of tank on concrete mix truckers

Rt BE

bl
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Equipped with fog-pile dust suppression system in the plant

Through the installation of the fog-pile dust suppression system for the outdoor
area of the plants, movable fog cannon for the indoor area of the plant, intelligent
fog spraying and dust removal equipment of fog-forest system and gantry-type
car washing system in the sheds of the yard, and spray dust removal systems
on the main roads, the Group has effectively suppressed dust inside and outside
the plant and on the main roads to maximise dust control. The fog-pile dust
suppression system is time-controlled and is connected to a dust monitoring
device for automatic sensor control. With a single pole covering an area of 1,470
square metres, the spraying coverage is up to the entire production plant to ensure
the detection of dust particles in the area is within the standard requirements.
The movable fog cannon sprays dust in the plant in a timely manner, effectively
preventing dust pollution in the plant. The fog-forest system sprays numerous
water mist particles, which increase the moisture content in the air and at the
same time, the water mist adhere to the dust particles to achieve dust removal
and air purification. Spray dust removal devices are set up in the main roads to
remove the dust by fog cannons on the main roads at the appropriate time. At the
same time, the sprinkler truck is used to timely spray the road surface to reduce

REREBRBNERS
AEERBAUMEREILEZBNER
B EREEAREA BB Z R
RS AR EREARE S EERR
Bl FIRAABERG EXE2BEK
REEMRERBESREE - ARG E
AINIE ZBEANE - ZAREMZES
e - BIEYIEE R g Al SR A R R -
ERF R R THERERIESE - UETTE
By BT - BIEBEMEE1,470F A
K-EEHEEEREEERE - MU
TR IR [ A 4D EE SE AL W) i BT AR 2E s
ER o AIRERZEEEEREA LIRS E
RESEOHEREE - BB LR E AR ES
F o BREFILEZERBHREM I KE
AF o EMERFHKAEENRE -
KFBDFHIZERER E - EFRERFL
ERAR o fEF BB EENRESR

dust so as to realize the effective control on the dust in sheds and on the roads. B O HEREASEMETIZERETR
EE - [RRS I F BB 7K B8 38 Fp T R BR T 1T P4
BE - HEMEER EMBEEITERING] o
Fog-pile dust suppression system
BHRIERS
Noise counter measures 5B EET IR e

The Group strictly complies with the Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises
Noise at Boundary in respect of noise emissions and actively adopts effective
energy-saving and noise reduction measures. The Group requires its production
equipment to meet energy conservation and emission reduction standards when
procuring equipment. At the same time, we carried out comprehensive noise
reduction upgrading to existing equipment and conducted strict monitoring of
noise emissions in production areas. The Group has strengthened collaboration and
information sharing among departments and actively implemented the prevention
and control of noise pollution in the area by setting up remote operation control
centres in batching plants and reasonably arranging production and operation
time so that noise emissions do not exceed 65dB in the daytime and 55dB at
night, thereby effectively avoiding the impact of noise on the Group’'s employees
and disturbance to the surrounding public. During transportation, the vehicles
of our Group comply with local government regulations of no-honking in urban
areas, limiting speed and using silencers to reduce noise when passing through
urban areas.

AEEERBHERERET(IREER
FRBRBYMITE) - REEIE M
EIREFEIRIEIE - AREAERBREEFER
EERBEDMERIHZE - AR - Y
BAERBEETEH MR ITRSE -
I S A BE I I R B BE IR U 1T R AR B2
A REEMBHIZEHBRES - 5
BiE  EEETEIRESENAT
1 REHAUMERBREZSFL &
BRHELEFERRE  SZHBRBHRS
HiBe50 B - RERB R HEE557
B #maREeRESHAEEREENY
BUAREEABRRNTE - AREBEHE
BRI T ST S BUT E T R 8 E AL
IHISEMMRE - BBETRFRARET
B ERHERSIARERE -
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Our method of processing hazardous and non-hazardous waste,

measures to reduce its production and the results

- Comprehensive implementation of full-time conference system
In 2021, the Group fully promoted the use of full-time conference system, Ding
Talk system and paperless conference system, encouraging employees to adopt
duplex printing and recycle waste paper, etc., so as to advocate and guide all
employees to save paper and enhance their awareness of environmental protection
and conservation.

- Comprehensive implementation of the Management Measures for Solid
Waste
In 2021, our Group abided by laws and regulations including Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Wastes, General Industrial Solid Waste Storage and Disposal Site Pollution
Control Standard and Standard for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste
Storage in respect of solid waste emission, and comprehensively implemented
the Management Measures for Solid Waste of YCIH Green High-Performance
Concrete Company Limited, and followed the control principles of making the solid
waste minimizing, recycling and harmless to reduce environmental pollution. The
Company’s waste is divided into general solid waste and hazardous waste, with
the majority of general solid waste from concrete test blocks used for strength
testing and sediment recovered from waste slurry and wastewater, which can
be recycled as raw materials. Hazardous waste is placed in a storage room and
recorded with the relevant government departments for clearance and disposal
by a qualified third party when handle such wastes.

- Recycle industrial waste residue and waste aggregates

The Group has formulated and strictly implemented relevant systems such as the
Management Measures for the Control of Sewage, Dust and Noise, Management
Measures for Oil and Chemicals and Management Measures for Solid Waste.
During the production process, industrial wastes residue such as coal ash, ground
slag, volcanic ash, phosphate slag powder and metakaolin is used to replace
some cement, and solid waste resources such as debris flow river sand, tailings
sand and waste stone debris with stone powder content are effectively utilised
to achieve zero emission of industrial wastes residue and waste aggregates and
recycling of resources.

2.2 ANALYSIS OF OUR RESOURCE CONSUMPTION

2.2.1 Our consumption structure of major types of energy
Our Group advocates saving resources and energy, reducing the consumption of
energy and raw materials, and strengthening energy management to improve the level
of reasonable energy use, thereby reducing energy consumption and raw materials
consumption of engineering projects, and enhancing the recycling of energy and resources
in the production process. In 2021, our Group consumed a total of approximately
201,000 liters of gasoline, approximately 3,990,500 liters of diesel fuel, approximately
12,488,700 kWh of electrical energy, and approximately 1,334,600 tons of water.
Gasoline, diesel and water are direct energy, while electrical energy is indirect energy.
To further improve the Group’s energy economic benefits, the Group has established
an energy saving target of 1% reduction in electricity consumption per square metre
of concrete in 2022 compared to 2021.
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The following table shows our Group’s various types of energy consumption in 2021:

20215 E > ARBERBEGERERENTRM

e

Consumption

Energy HER Energy Type RERER Unit B HEE
Gasoline i Direct Energy BHEER Liter N 201,044.17
Diesel fuel g Direct Energy BEREER Liter N 3,990,508.25
Water K Direct Energy HEER Ton Mg 1,334,579.00
Electrical energy ~ E&E Indirect Energy IV kWh TR 12,488,720.96

The following table

shows our Group’s various types of energy consumption density

2021F[E - AEBSEMNEREREENTE

in 2021: s
Consumption
Density
Energy HER Energy Type RERER Unit B HEERE
Gasoline i Direct Energy HERR Liter/RMB1 million — AF / AREEHET 95.44
Diesel fuel L5 Direct Energy BEREER Liter/RMB1 million  AF / AREEHET 1,894.43
Water K Direct Energy BEREER Ton/RMB1 million Wi/ ARBAEEL 633.57
Electrical energy ¢ Indirect Energy R R kWh/RMB1 million TR AREEET 5,928.81
Note: The consumption of gasoline and diesel fuel mainly include the consumption of our Group's self- i VA REEREIRZESARE AR ERME

owned vehicles and equipment.

2.2.2 Our effective energy consumption measures and their
effects achieved

Upgraded and renovated batching plants

In 2021, the Group upgraded Jingkai Batching Plant, East Batching Plant and
Central Batching Plant in Xicheng District, enabling these batching plants to
fully implement the concept of energy saving and emission reduction in terms
of green production, building appearance and energy consumption. In the
process of upgrading and transforming, batching plants would take into account
the safety and environmental factors to ensure the reasonable reduction of
production according to the market conditions. And through the dust removal
system developed by the Group, we could reduce waste slurry and wastewater
discharge and dust pollution in mixing plant, so that the production process of
batching plants can achieve the control of green and environmental protection
throughout the whole process.

Adopted energy-saving sound control lamp in office buildings to promote
the turning-off of lights when leaving

In order to save energy and reduce emissions, the Group actively attempted various
methods to realise energy conservation and consumption reduction. Energy-
saving sound control lamps with longer service life, shorter start-up time, higher
luminous efficiency, more environmentally friendly materials and better electricity-
saving effect were adopted in office buildings. Based on environment changes of
occasions and traffic, sound control lamps can properly manage the lighting time
and lighting brightness through controlling and dimming technology in different
time periods, so as to effectively manage the electricity consumption and realise
significant energy-saving and environmental protection effects. Meanwhile, the
Group advocates the reasonable use of electricity in the daily office environment,
with lights turning-off when leaving.
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Successfully passed the annual audit of energy management system
certification

Our Group started the construction of the energy management system in January
2018, set up an energy management system construction team, established an
energy management system covering the entire process of energy utilization, and
obtained an energy management system certification in May of the same year, in
compliance with GB/T23331-2012 idt ISO 50001:2018 and RB/T121-2016 energy
management system building materials enterprises (excluding cement, glass and
ceramics) certification requirements. Our Group’s energy management system
was operating well in 2021, successfully completing the energy-saving assessment
indicators issued by relevant national departments, and successfully passing the
annual external audit to obtain an energy management system certification. The
establishment, operation and certification of our Group’s energy management
system has become an important guarantee for our Group’s energy saving,
efficiency improving and rapid development, greatly promoting the realization
of our Group's energy saving goals, and significantly optimizing our Group's
energy management level.
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Comprehensive implementation of the Management Measures for Energy
Conservation and Resource Control

In 2021, our Group fully implemented the Management Measures for Energy
Conservation and Resource Control of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete
Company Limited to strengthen energy management, improve the level of
reasonable energy use, and reduce energy consumption in order to achieve the
reuse of production energy and resources and reach the goal of energy saving and
emission reduction. Each direct management department and subsidiary regularly
collected statistics on water consumption produced, technically transformed
production links or processes that consume large amounts of water, and
strengthened the recycling of water resources. At the same time, it strengthened
water-saving publicity and education, enhanced employees’ awareness of water-
saving, and regularly calculated the water consumption of the project. Each direct
management department and subsidiary implemented fuel-saving management
of transportation vehicles and fuel oil machinery to prevent the occurrence of
“missing, spilling, leaking, and dripping” of transportation equipment, and at the
same time strengthened the repair and maintenance of motor vehicles to ensure
equipments in good running condition. Each direct management department
and subsidiary preferentially chose production equipment and tools with mature
technology, reliable quality, high efficiency, low energy consumption, and less
environmental pollution, and minimized the no-load operation time of the
equipment when in use, so as to achieve our goal of energy efficiency.
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Annual Report 2021
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- Strictly implemented the Energy Management System Manual of YCIH
Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
In 2021, the Group strictly implemented the Energy Management System Manual
of YCIH Green High- Performance Concrete Company Limited ( ( Em 2L E
=IERERE TN BR AR EREERE
managing the |mp|ementat|on of energy targets, monitoring energy-related
technologies, operating parameters and indicators, as well as indicators of key
energy-consuming equipment and on-site legal energy use circumstances, system

2 ZFff) ), focusing on monitoring and

operation effectiveness and compliance. The manual clearly lists the management
responsibilities and authorities of each energy management system, establishes the
key points of energy review and management and energy performance indicators
(EnPIs), effectively monitors and measures energy performance, and provides a
systematic and clear guide for the Group's energy management.
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Energy Management System Manual
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2.2.3 Our accesses to ready-to-use water source, plans to
improve on efficiency of water use and achievements

Our Group sought the serviceable water source in accordance with the relevant national
environmental protection policies, laws and regulations, without generating any issues
in seeking the serviceable water source.

In 2021, our Group's total water consumption was 1,334,600 tons, and the energy
consumption density was 633.57 tons/RMB1 million. While our Group’s business scale
has grown steadily, the water density and water efficiency have remained at a relatively
stable level to achieve water conservation and efficient water use. To enhance water
efficiency, the Group's target for 2022 is to reduce water consumption per cubic metre
of concrete by 1% compared to 2021. To this end, the Group has formulated the
“Management Rules for the Control of Sewage, Dust and Noise” to regulate water
conservation within the enterprise.

- Tertiary sedimentation tanks for all batching plants
Our Group's batching plants were equipped with tertiary sedimentation tanks. After
the waste slurry and wastewater has passed through the tertiary sedimentation
tanks with gradual precipitation, it would be recycled after adjustment of the
concentration by the Company’s patented technology to achieve zero discharge
of waste slurry and wastewater.
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Tertiary sedimentation tanks for waste slurry and wastewater

- Rainwater harvesting tanks next to batching plants
The Group has set up rainwater collection ponds at each mixing station to achieve
the Group's goal of water conservation and improvement of water efficiency. The
collected rainwater is used as water for washing vehicles and venues to achieve
efficient water consumption in the cycle.

- Use of sensor water taps
The Group has installed sensor water taps in the office areas of the Company
and prominently displayed water conservation signs. In response to the policy
call, the Group has been improving and enhancing the environmental and saving
behaviour of its staff on all fronts.

2.2.4 Total amount of packaging materials used for the
finished products and the percentage of each production
unit to the total packaging materials

The Group mainly produces concrete, polycarboxylic acid water reducing agent and
aggregates products. Concrete is transported by special concrete trucks, polycarboxylic
acid water reducing agent is transported by tanker trucks and aggregates materials are
transported by trucks, which no packaging materials are used. Thus, this article is not
applicable to our Group.

2.3 ANALYSIS OF OUR ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

2.3.1 Analysis of relevant measures taken to deal with the
environment and natural resources

Our Group conducts business operations in accordance with relevant national
environmental protection policies and emission requirements, and strictly treats the
emissions and pollutants generated. The Group has formulated the Management
Measures for Energy Conservation and Resource Control, pursuant to which, all produced
emissions and pollutants are recorded with detailed testing and records, which meet the
requirements of relevant national environmental protection regulations and emission
regulations, and have no significant impact on the environment and natural resources.

The Group has actively introduced new energy electric mixers, which have the
characteristics of strong power, extended range, cost-effective, zero emission and
multiple intelligence. The new energy vehicles are about 120% more powerful than
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traditional fuel vehicles and have a range of over 250 kilometers, promoting the use of
clean energy, realising green transportation, reducing carbon emissions, enhancing the
competitiveness of the Company in the field of green transportation and contributing
to the protection of the environment.
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New energy pure electric mixers
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The Group focuses on the recycling of construction waste resources, tailings and industrial
solid waste, breaking through the integrated utilization of solid waste resources with
complete sets of technologies to realize the integrated utilization of solid waste resources
and the integration of the concrete industry. The use of industrial waste such as pulverised
coal, slag powder, volcanic ash, phosphate slag powder and metakaolin to replace part
of the cement, and the effective use of solid waste resources such as mudflow river
sand, tailings gravel and stone dust content of waste stone chips to prepare green and
low-carbon concrete, can save an average of about 50 kg of cement per cubic meter
of concrete, reduce about 25 kg of carbon emissions, reduce the amount of aggregates
and mining and cement consumption, and reduce energy consumption of resources.
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Research on comprehensive utilization of solid waste resources

2.4 ANALYSIS OF OUR RESPONSE TO CLIMATE CHANGE
2.4.1 Analysis of our initiatives to address climate change

For the purpose of our Group, material natural disasters such as flooding, fire and
earthquake arising from climate change might affect the enterprise’s operation. Our
Group formulated Comprehensive Contingency Plans of Work Safety Accidents in order to
prevent material losses due to the following disasters, and established a safety supervision
and management department to oversee the management of natural disasters such as
landslides, mudslides and flash floods. In addition, our Company also regularly organized
knowledge trainings in relation to natural disasters such as fire, flooding, earthquake, etc.
Meanwhile, in accordance with the actual situation, our Company organized emergency
drills of fire protection safety, flood disaster accidents and earthquake.
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The Company carried out emergency drills of fire protection
REFEEN 2 2 E2ORR

Regular meeting of the Company’s production

RAREEEEBRIITEE

safety operations

In addition, in order to seriously respond to the Yunnan Development and Reform
Commission’s request to rectify the problems of the existing “two high” projects, the
Group actively organised relevant production units to conduct compliance management
training and adopted strict control over high energy-consuming and high-emission projects
in an effort to achieve a green and sustainable impact on climate and environmental
changes.

3 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ANALYSIS

3.1 ANALYSIS OF OUR CURRENT WORKFORCE

3.1.1 Overview of our employees and employment guidelines
Our Group strictly abides by various laws and regulations such as the Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China (“Labor Law"), the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Employment Contracts (“Law on Employment Contracts”) and various laws and
regulations. Our Group has developed an optimized human resources management
system, and clearly stipulates the rights and obligations of employees in the employee
manual. Our Group has formulated the Remuneration Management Regulations ( {Zr
BHE IR HE%) ) to regulate the remuneration management of the Company, establish
a performance appraisal system, fully motivate employees to work, and pay pension
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, work injury insurance, maternity
insurance and housing provident fund for employees in accordance with the laws and
regulations. The working hours of employees meet the requirements of relevant national
laws, and at the same time they also enjoy the required rest and vacation in accordance
with the law. Our Group has established a labor union in accordance with relevant PRC
laws and regulations, actively providing care and assistance to employees, organizing
related activities, and safeguarding the legitimate rights and interests of employees.
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Labour union’s staff care activities
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Our Group adheres to the principle of “openness, fairness and impartiality” at recruiting,
adopts two-way choice, selects the best candidates for employment, and avoids any
discrimination during the recruitment. In order to achieve the common development
of our Group and employees, each employee of our Group enjoys the opportunity to
receive training and promotion. At the same time, our Group’s employee dismissal
process strictly follows various national laws and regulations related to human resource
such as the Labor Law and the Law on Employment Contracts.

Working staff by key indicators
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Proportion of employees in our Group by main indicators in 2021
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As of December 31, 2021, the Group had 1,197 full-time in-service employees, 91.5% of
them obtained associate degree or above, and 62.9% of which hold bachelor’s degree or
above. Our employees have relatively high scientific literacy and cultural level in overall.

By gender, our Group's in-service employees are mostly male, accounting for a significant
portion of the production unit. In order to create a good working environment for female
employees, our Group implements the State’s Provisions on Labor Protection for Female
Employees and Special Provisions on Labor Protection for Female Employees to ensure
that female employees enjoy due vacations and insurance in accordance with the law,
and women workers enjoy prenatal check-up leave during pregnancy. In addition, our
Group actively carry out a series of cultural activities such as “Women's Day” to enrich
the leisure life of female employees and create a more harmonious working environment.
By age group, our Group has a reasonable distribution of in-service employees at all
ages. While focusing on injecting fresh energy into its workforce, our Group cherishes
employees with work experience.
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Employment turnover by key indicators

As of December 31, 2021, our Group's total employee turnover during the Reporting
Period was 69, accounting for approximately 5.8% of the total number of employees
in service, of which, 53 were male employees, accounting for 76.8%, and 16 were
female employees, accounting for 23.2%; by age group, 16 were under 25 years old,
41 were aged 26-35 years old, 12 were aged 36-45 years old, and zero turnover for
employee aged 46 years old or above, accounting for 23.2%, 59.4%, 17.4% and 0.0%
respectively; by area group, 47 were in Kunming area, accounting for 68.1%; 16 were
in Zhaotong area, accounting for 23.2%; 4 were in Yuxi area, accounting for 5.8%; 2
were in Baoshan area, accounting for 2.9%, and zero turnover in Qujing area.

3.1.2 Overview of employee health and security

Our Group pays great attention to the health and security of employees, and strictly
abides by the relevant laws and regulations such as the Safety Production Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Occupational Disease Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Regulations on Occupational Health Supervision and
Management in the Workplace, and the Work Injury Insurance Regulations, and strives
to create safety, health, and affinity workplace environment. On the basis of observing
and implementing relevant work safety regulations, systems, and standards such as
the Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Labor Law and the Law
on Employment Contracts, inspect and urge managers and employees at all levels of
our Group to consciously perform safety duties in their work, regularly organize safety
inspections to rectify any hidden safety hazards in a timely manner.

Our Group regards occupational health and safety as one of the important social
responsibilities. Our Group’s business operations involve product processing, power use,
equipment maintenance, loading and concrete transportation processes. As a result, our
employees may be at risk from work related injuries and accidents. Our Group attaches
great importance to safety control in order to minimize safety risks in the manufacturing
process. Our Group provides employees with protective equipment such as safety helmet,
dust masks, ear plugs, protective shoes, protective gloves, reflective vests and safety
ropes, and guide and supervise employees to wear such equipment, improving their
awareness of occupational diseases prevention. Meanwhile, we set up safety supervision
and management department to manage occupational health and production safety.
Our Group formulated the Management Measures for Environmental and Occupational
Health and Safety and improved the management system of labor safety of employees,
working condition and occupational health and safety, to ensure the safety of employees’
operations and avoid occupational hazards. The Company has passed management system
certification under GB/T28001 Occupational Health and Safety Management System since
2010. In the course of business engagement, it strictly abides by the requirements of the
system. It has maintained continuous certification of the Occupational Health and Safety
Management System in 2021. A healthy and safe working environment for employees
has been established by promoting occupational health and safety management level
of the Group and improving employees’ awareness of production safety, so that our
Company has effectively ensured continuously standards-reaching and improvement
of our Company’s various safety management and occupational health management.
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The Group has established a production safety committee and a safety management
organisation, and set up a safety management system to promote production safety
management and ensure that the Group’s safety management affairs are in order. In
strict accordance with the relevant safety management system and occupational health
and safety management system, our Group carefully organizes employees to carry out
occupational health examinations and occupational health and safety education and
training in order to improve the occupational health and safety awareness of all employees.
Our Group actively promotes various occupational health and safety management in place
and the management of the Company signs the work safety management responsibility
statement with various departments under directly administrated by the headquarters
and subsidiaries, and implements the safety and occupational health management
responsibility at various levels including rules and regulations, safety education and
training, health examination and implementation of health and safety management
responsibilities, so as to enhance the awareness of occupational health and safety
management, as well as maximumly provide employees with a safe working environment
and avoid occupational hazards.

Number of work-related fatalities and Lost days due to work injury
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2019 2020 2021
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Number of work-related fatalities A TEREMILTHAE 0 0 0
Rate of work-related fatalities AT EBERERML TR ASLLE 0% 0% 0%
Lost days due to work injury ATEELAIIEFE# 142 350 2

The following are the main measures taken by our Group in 2021 to ensure the health
and safety of employees:

- Establishment of a Safety Production Committee and a Safety Management
Organisation
In order to create a healthy and safe working environment, the Group has
established a Safety Production Committee headed by the chairman of the
Company, with the Party secretary and the general manager serving as the
Standing Deputy Directors of the Committee. The responsibilities of the Safety
Production Committee include five main areas: (1) to implement the relevant
national laws and regulations on safety production and the safety management
requirements of higher authorities; (2) to organise and deploy the Company's safety
production management. To strengthen the safety control such as production
safety, vehicle transportation safety, fire safety, electricity safety, occupational
health and environmental protection, so as to provide a solid protection for the
safe production, tech-driven, intelligent manufacturing and green development
of the Company; (3) to study and decide on major issues relating to production
safety, vehicle transportation safety, fire safety, electricity safety, occupational
health and environmental protection work; (4) to receive reports on production
safety, vehicle transportation safety, fire safety, electricity safety, occupational
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health and environmental protection work, and to review the implementation
of the annual plan for safety management work of each direct management
department and subsidiary; (5) to consider the amount of production safety
expenses; and (6) to organise the formulation of emergency plans and establish
and improve emergency disposal management.

In addition, the Company has established a comprehensive safety management
organisation, with a safety supervision and management department and a safety
director at the Company level, a safety management department and a safety
director at the direct management department and subsidiary level, and a full-time
safety manager at the mixing station to ensure that the laws and regulations such
as the Safety Production Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Road Traffic Safety are firmly complied with
in the course of work, and that the relevant regulations of the state and the
Company on safe production and occupational health and safety of employees
are thoroughly implemented.

Establishment of a comprehensive safety management system

The Company has established a complete safety management system by formulating
various measures such as safety management systems, operation specifications
and production safety accident contingency plans. The Company has long insisted
on implementing the shift handover system for the leadership team to lead the
production safety, simultaneously developed measures such as assistance from
leaders at a stationary point during festivals and holidays and comprehensive
inspection among functional departments, to promote the production safety
management at a high level, and regularly carried out regular safety meetings,
safety training, special safety inspections and safety handover work to enhance
the effectiveness of safety management.

In response to emergency safety incidents, the Company has established
a comprehensive emergency management mechanism and formulated the
Comprehensive Contingency Plans of Work Safety Accidents of YCIH Green
High-Performance Concrete Company Limited, which was filed with the Zhaoyang
District Emergency Management Bureau. 18 emergency drills were conducted by
the Group in 2021, including 4 desktop drills and 14 live drills, with a total of
474 persons participating in the emergency drills. The Group strictly complies with
relevant national laws and regulations such as the Measures for the Administration
of Emergency Response Plan for Work Safety Accidents and organises at least
one comprehensive emergency plan drill every year and at least one special and
on-site emergency plan drill biannually.
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Grass-roots employees to conduct occupational health examination was
organized

Our Group organized all employees to carry out physical examination and front-line
employees to conduct occupational health examination. Medical staff conducted
detailed screening of medical examination items based on the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases and
Technical Specifications for Occupational Health Surveillance (GBZ 188-2014),
and selected examination categories based on industry characteristics and job
differences, as well as included health status in occupational health records for
management. The launch of occupational health examination has been well
received by staff, not only raising their awareness of disease prevention, but also
enabling the Group to have a clear understanding of the health status of its staff
and establish a long-term preventive control mechanism to protect their health.
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Occupational health examination
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The Management Measures for Environmental and Occupational Health
and Safety were formulated and implemented

Our Company formulated and implemented the Management Measures for
Environmental and Occupational Health and Safety of YCIH Green High-Performance
Concrete Company Limited, improved the labor safety of employees, working
environment, and occupational health management system, which effectively
safeguarded the employees’ operation safety, avoided the occupational risks
and regulated the affairs related to environmental and occupational health and
safety management and strengthened process control to achieve our Group's
environmental and occupational health and safety management objectives to
ensure the environment and occupational health and safety of employees in
production activities. Our Group detailed planning and deployment of work
procedures such as the signing of safety responsibility certificates, labor protection
control, operator certification and safety training management, standardized work
and production site design and layout, logistic service staff management, on-site
safety management. The Safety Supervision Management Department regularly
inspected the work safety, environmental protection, and prevention and control
of occupational diseases in the office, production and living areas of workers,
so as to discover hidden risks and supervise such rectification in a timely manner
and establish a good production and operation environment through the source
control.
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- Carry out health clinic activities

In order to care for the workers, further enhance their health awareness, grasp
scientific health knowledge and cultivate a healthy lifestyle, the Company’s labour
union organised a four-day health clinic. The medical staff combined food and
health care and meridian health care to introduce in detail the knowledge of
Chinese health care and prevention of occupational diseases, and helped the
workers find the source of diseases and sort out the causes of diseases through
instrument testing and pulse taking. On-site treatment was conducted through
cupping, massage and other methods, and patiently answered questions raised
by the workers on the prevention and treatment of some common diseases.
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3.1.3 Overview of employee development and training

Our Group formulates practical training plans every year according to development
needs of our Group, and conduct employee training according to job functions, in
order to help employees update and replenish their work knowledge and improve their
work skills. In 2021, the Group conducted quality control technology training, business
capability enhancement training, investment and financing training, safety management
training, risk prevention and control training and file management training, involving
approximately 421 participants in the training and a total of approximately 9,200 hours
of training, of which 77.9% were male employees with 21.0 hours of training per
capita, while 22.3% were female employees with 24.9 hours of training per capita. By
category of employees, 1.0% were senior management with an average of 16.0 hours
of training, 17.6% were middle management with an average of 30.4 hours of training
and 81.5% were junior staff with an average of 20.1 hours of training.
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Proportion of trained employees in our Group by main indicators in 2021
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The Company adopts a combination of internal and external training to develop talent
training. On the one hand, we improve the professional skills of our staff through
external training. On the other hand, we have created a team of internal trainers within
the Company to implement the training and assessment work of full staff training, full
staff assessment and full staff achievement. At the same time, we have adopted the
mentor-apprentice approach to nurture comprehensive talents. In addition, the Company
regularly arranges professional skills training in order to improve the professional technical
level of the staff, combined with the current development of the Company. The relevant
departments select training materials such as electronic teaching materials and books,
teaching PPTs, and the latest regulations for concrete mix ratio design, raw material
quality control, and production quality control principles, and develop suitable training
plans for quality technology at all levels from the Company, the direct management
department, and mixing stations, and also organise regular seminars to exchange
information on the latest changes in the concrete industry, to provide guidance on the
application of new technologies in the concrete industry and to improve the Company's
technical standards.

In order to effectively improve the professionalism of the staff, the Company completed
the comprehensive ability assessment of 98 technical talents through written tests and
interviews, organized 68 new employees to conduct ability assessment, and organized
theoretical and practical training for them according to the assessment results to improve
the professionalism of the technical staff. At the same time, the Group shared with
new staff the common issues of concrete quality and preventive measures for highway
projects, establishing preventive measures and mechanisms, and building awareness
of lifelong responsibility for quality, in conjunction with the Group’s participation in
highway construction quality control difficulties and key control points in recent years.
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New employee training
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In addition, in order to mobilise employees’ enthusiasm and improve their professional
skills, the Company launched a labour competition called “concentrate and work hard
for 60 days, and fight a hundred-day battle”. Each direct management department and
subsidiary has its own duties and responsibilities to ensure the production progress,
and at the same time, pay more attention to quality control work, to ensure that the
products meet the design requirements with a strict and responsible attitude.

s - RABE TG - RRETHEER
Bt REFRERIELLDENAB60K - T HE AR
BE|NSHBREEY  SHEN  WBLARS
AHRE BEEERE  EHFREEEEMNRE -
FERESERTFE UBRZEEENEE &
A8 EE o B BT EK o

EHERGERMHERERLIRNDERAA 146

2021 F EWwE



)

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report

IRIE e &ER (ESG) e

Labour competition activity ceremony

BBRELDEN

3.1.4 Standards and measures to prevent child or forced labor

The Group strictly complies with provisions of the relevant laws and regulations such
as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Minors and the
Regulations on the Prohibition of Child Labour. The Group avoids any use of child labour
or forced labour in its business operations and maintains a zero tolerance attitude and
stance towards any form of child labour and forced labour. In the future, the Group
will further strengthen the supervision of suppliers in avoiding child labour and forced
labour, and consider including such a clause in the assessment criteria for suppliers, so
that if use of child labour or forced labour is found, the supplier’s rating will be affected
and suppliers with serious cases will not be cooperated with.

3.2 ANALYSIS OF CURRENT OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT
STATUS

3.2.1 Overview of supply chain management

Our Group makes clear regulations on the selection and management of suppliers
to ensure that supplier management practices and selection are appropriate. In the
selection of suppliers, our Group will fully consider the following factors: whether the
supplier has passed the legal production and operation of the enterprise approved
by the relevant departments of state and comply with national and local laws and
regulations; whether the supplier’'s products meet the quality requirements, price and
related production qualification certification and passing relevant tests; whether the
supplier has appropriate technical capabilities, delivery capabilities, economic capabilities
and good social reputation; whether the supplier has relevant environmental certifications
to reduce the potential environment and social risks in the supply chain. The Group
implemented the Group’s relevant regulations for suppliers to all of its 834 suppliers.

To ensure that the tendering process is legal, compliant, disciplined, efficient and
transparent, the Group has formulated and strictly implemented the Administrative
Measures for Tendering of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited.
In line with the characteristics of raw materials for concrete production, the Group
procures raw materials through open tender, invitation to tender and competitive
bidding. Prior to tendering, supplier development is carried out through information
gathering, basic data collection, supplier contact and sample identification, following
the principles of quality, cost, delivery and service. A comprehensive survey of suppliers
is conducted to identify a shortlist of qualified suppliers through audits on qualification,
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price, quality and production management. The Group has established a black-and-white
list elimination system, whereby monthly assessments are conducted on suppliers to
assess their creditworthiness and their ability to be classified as qualified suppliers for
the following year. The Group establishes a communication mechanism with suppliers
who have passed the assessment, strengthens the intensity of cooperation with quality
suppliers, signs strategic cooperation agreements with them in conjunction with the
Company’s needs, and pays regular on-site visits or invites suppliers to the Group for
training and exchanges. In order to maintain a good relationship with our suppliers, the
Group maintains frequent visits with them to ensure that they deliver goods on time and
in quantity, to urge them to improve their contract performance standards and to adjust
the supply of raw materials in a timely manner according to the production operation.
At the same time, the Group strengthened quality supervision of suppliers’ products,
dealt with substandard products in a timely manner and imposed penalties on suppliers
who provided substandard products. In addition, equipment procurement follows the
annual evaluation of suppliers organised by the Equipment Information Department at
the beginning of each year, based on which an annual “Equipment Qualified Supplier
List” of equipment providers such as major production equipment, testing equipment,
office equipment and accessories and oil is formed. During the year, we conducted timely
supplier evaluations as necessary to add to and update the list of qualified suppliers, and
strictly controlled the quality and price of equipment and accessories. The purchase of
small equipment, conventional household electrical equipment, and sporadic purchase
of accessories and materials is carried out by the direct management department or
branch after a simple evaluation of the brand, performance and price of the equipment
in accordance with the price comparison mechanism and after approval by the relevant
departments of the companies under the Group.

The Group will conduct a reasonably regular selection of suppliers based on the usual
evaluation criteria, including but not limited to (1) business licence of the supplier; (2)
production licence, or proof of authorised distributor; (3) quality assurance commitment
and relevant certification, quality assurance capability evaluation materials, or required
ex-factory technology standards of the product, sampling and inspection proofs; (4)
introduction to the scale of the supplier’s enterprise, production and supply assurance
capability and performance, credibility and performance proofs; (5) product price,
performance, performance ratio; (6) support service, after-sales service commitment;
and (7) survey of other users’ feedback.

In working with concrete raw material suppliers, the Group is committed to promoting
the use of environmentally friendly products by suppliers. The Group will investigate
the main raw materials used in the suppliers’ products, whether their raw materials are
hazardous and pose a quality risk to the production process and the finished concrete
products. When signing the contract, we add an indicator requirement clause to require
the products to be supplied to comply with HJ/T412-2007 Technical Requirements for
Environmentally Labeling Products Ready-mixed Concrete. In monitoring the use of
environmentally friendly products and services by suppliers, the Group requires suppliers
to provide product certification and environmental certification marks, quality assurance
undertakings and relevant certificates to ensure that suppliers achieve green production.
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In 2021, the Group had 834 suppliers from all over China, of which 795 were from
Yunnan Province, accounting for 95.3%. By supplier type, there were 720 raw material
suppliers, accounting for 86.3%, with 686 suppliers from Yunnan Province; there were
67 logistics service suppliers, accounting for 8.0%, with 65 suppliers from Yunnan
Province; there were 47 equipment suppliers, accounting for 5.6%, with 44 suppliers
from Yunnan Province.

= Raw material
suppliers
[RATEHERE R

= Logistics service
suppliers

W AR RS
= Equipment
suppliers

R HRER
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3.2.2 Overview of product liability

Our Group adheres to the path of safe production, tech-driven, intelligent manufacturing
and green development, attaches importance to the environmental protection of its
products, is committed to providing customers with high-quality products, and constantly
optimizes its service system to provide customers with the best quality service. Our
Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations on the health and safety,
advertising, labeling and remedy of the products and services provided, which may have
a significant impact on our Group, including but not limited to the Product Quality Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Safety Production Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China, and Trademark Law of the
People’s Republic of China. During the Reporting Period, our Group did not have any
lawsuits in violation of the above laws and regulations related to the health and safety
of products and services, advertising, labels and remedies. Among the products sold
by our Group in 2021, there were no products that must be recalled due to safety and
health issues, and no complaints have been received regarding products or services.

Product quality management and identification

To ensure the quality and safety of our products, the Group has developed and
implemented Concrete Product Testing Regulations of YCIH Green High-Performance
Concrete Company Limited, Quality Process Control Regulations of YCIH Green High-
Performance Concrete Company Limited, Ex-factory Inspection Rules for Mixture of YCIH
Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited and the Evaluation and Treatment
Principles for Nonconforming Concrete Products of YCIH Green High-Performance
Concrete Company Limited, comprehensively implementing the quality management
responsibility system, strengthening process quality management, improving the quality
assurance rate of the Group’s concrete, cement, admixtures, aggregates and other
products, reducing quality risks, preventing quality incidents and ensuring the completion
of the project’s quality, safety, progress and cost objectives. The Group’s product and
service targets set at the beginning of the year included 100% delivery of concrete to
the site within 2 hours after mixing, 99% pass rate for first time delivery and customer
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satisfaction scores not less than 91. According to the survey, the Group’s products
achieved a 99.94% pass rate for the first time delivery and customer satisfaction scores

of 95 in 2021, satisfying its product and service targets for the year 2021.

The Group has established a comprehensive quality technology system to monitor and
manage product quality from various aspects such as quality technology management
and assessment, raw material management, ratio management, technical plan and
handover management, product testing management, test technology management,
quality incident management, non-conformity assessment management, product quality
process supervision and management, production management, product inspection and
testing. Before the concrete products leave the factory, the technicians and factory
inspectors of the mixing plants under the each direct management department and
subsidiary will carry out ex-factory workability tests to verify the flowability, cohesiveness
and water retention of the mixes, and then fill in the “Ready-mixed Concrete Ex-
factory Certificate” after qualification. If, in the course of ex-factory inspection, the
factory inspector finds any abnormality in the working performance or colour of the
concrete mix, the testers shall conduct concrete sampling tests in a timely manner and
report to the director of the test laboratory, make reasonable adjustments within the
authorised scope, and test again for qualification before leaving the factory, and make
corresponding records. To ensure the traceability of concrete quality, technicians take
in-station samples of the mix, and after standard maintenance, concrete test blocks
which reach the appropriate age shall have timely pressure testing, data collation and
statistical analysis to ensure continuous improvement in product quality control. For
concrete pouring on important or special projects, the technical staff shall be on site
to supervise and control the quality of the concrete, to carry out timely testing of the
working properties of the concrete on site to ensure that the working properties of
the concrete meet the construction requirements, and to provide timely feedback to
the mixing plant so that reasonable adjustments can be made to the concrete being
produced. In the event of unauthorised watering and irregularities in pouring and
maintenance, which compromise the quality of the Company’s products, evidence of
irregularities which are detrimental to the quality of the concrete should be collected
and such behavior shall be warned and stopped. In addition, the mixing station has set
up an account of the projects pouring, recording information on the strength of the test
blocks of the construction unit, the maintenance situation, the progress of the physical
inspection, the age of the inspection, the execution standard of the inspection and the
inspection unit, so as to provide them with the necessary technical services. When a
dispute over inspection arises, the physical components of the project will be mapped
and inspected in a timely manner, and corresponding measures will be actively taken
to resolve the dispute and prevent hidden quality problems and accidents.

In order to ensure the quality rate of the ex-factory concrete, the Company has formulated
and implemented the “Unqualified Concrete Assessment and Handling Method”, in
which the operators would conduct self and mutual inspection of the products in the
process, and the unqualified products found should be prohibited from leaving the factory
according to the quality control requirements after re-inspection by the technicians,
and should be handled in accordance with the “Unqualified Concrete Assessment and
Handling Principles”. For concrete products that fail to meet the technical requirements

and are returned by the site, the testing laboratory of the mixing plant shall evaluate
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the performance of the returned concrete and the chief engineer of the mixing plant
shall confirm the evaluation results and fill in the “Record of Assessment of Unqualified
Products” and dispose of them in accordance with the quality control requirements. For
unqualified concrete products identified by the issue of 28-day strength data of concrete
test blocks, or concrete products whose quality fails to meet the design requirements
as reported by the construction units, the relevant testers should immediately report
to the lead engineer and the project chief engineer, who will organise investigation at
different levels according to the seriousness of the situation and report to the Quality
Technology Management Centre. If necessary, the quality and technical management
centre of the Company will carry out physical non-damage tests on the pouring parts
of the batch of concrete in accordance with the relevant national standards, and if the
test results are still judged to be unqualified, a qualified testing unit recognised by both
parties shall be invited to carry out tests on it. Based on the test results, the contractor
and the design unit will make a comprehensive judgment on the specific situation of
the whole project to decide on such batch of the concrete product to be accepted,
reinforced or scrapped.

The Group continued to optimise its management processes, improve its management
structure, consolidate various management methods and supplement key management
measures, and revised and completed 11 quality and technical management system
documents. In order to ensure strict implementation of the Group’s product quality
system, the Company signed 16 copies of 2021 Quality Management Responsibility
Contract of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited, and 6 copies of
Quality Control Undertaking for Major Projects with each direct management department
and subsidiary. We have identified quality responsibility units and responsible persons at
different levels, clarified quality and technical management responsibilities, decomposed
responsibility targets, emphasized the double responsibility of quality control, and
increased the incentive and constraint mechanism assessment to ensure the achievement
of responsibility targets.

We enhance the timeliness of our technical planning and the comprehensiveness of
our technical services by conducting technical planning, raw material quality research
and testing in advance. For the first piece system of new projects, important parts,
special bridges, special concrete and major projects, we plan ahead according to
project characteristics, construction requirements and actual conditions, and regulate
product production and quality control practices to ensure that product quality meets
requirements. At the same time, according to the progress of key projects, we actively
conduct research on the quality of raw materials, master the characteristics of ground
materials through self-inspection and external inspection, optimize the mix ratio design,
testing and verification, reporting and approval, and compile technical plans, and carry
out technical briefing to mixing stations to make technical reserves in advance.

The Group strengthened the implementation of matching ratios, improved the efficiency
of dynamic adjustment and actively carried out supervision and inspection of key projects
to ensure product quality control. The Group has designed three sets of benchmark
ratios, namely A, B and C, in accordance with the requirements of the relevant national
regulations, combining the quality of ground materials, climatic conditions and acceptance
standards of each direct management department and subsidiary, and specifying the
scope of use of each set of ratios to ensure stable and controllable concrete quality
and improve the level of refine quality and technical control. In addition, in conjunction
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with its participation in the construction of highways, the Group actively responded to
the quality supervision and inspection plans of the Provincial Department of Transport
and the Group’s highways, and launched a self-inspection of quality control of highway
projects, focusing on inspection and strengthening the management of various aspects
such as incoming inspection of raw materials, storage and management of signage to
ensure effective control of all aspects of quality control.

At the same time, the Group actively developed quality technical training and continued
to carry out technical inspections. A total of 54 quality technical inspections were carried
out in 5 rounds throughout the year, including 8 comprehensive inspections to identify
defects and deficiencies in technical control from multiple angles and to regulate quality
technical control behaviours. In addition, the Group extensively launched the “Quality
Month” activities, organising publicity and education activities in the form of standardised
laboratory management competitions, concrete mini-component competitions, online
quizzes, thematic debates on “quality of knowledge and development of thinking” and
exchanges and learning with advanced enterprises to create a management atmosphere
in which everyone attaches importance to quality, advocates quality and pursues quality,
to raise employees’ awareness of quality risk management, and to build up a sense of
lifelong responsibility for quality and a quality brand image.
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Intellectual Property Management

The Company has implemented the intellectual property strategy, paid attention to the
research and development of intellectual property rights and the cultivation of major
technological achievements. The Company set up a technology innovation centre (High-
performance Concrete Engineering Research Centre of Yunnan Province) to manage
intellectual property rights, which is mainly responsible for the management of the
Company'’s scientific and technological information and achievements, completing the
preparation of technical standards and norms, patent declaration, technical paper writing
and other results reporting work. In 2021, we granted 3 invention patents and 17 new
utility model patents, and participated in the preparation of 2 national, 1 industry,
1 association and 3 local concrete-related standards. As at December 31, 2021, 10
invention patents and 57 utility model patents ware authorized by the Company. Our
Group has also participated in the preparation of 8 national, 10 industrial, 3 association
and 10 local concrete-related standards, and obtained 2 software copyrights.
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In order to ensure the implementation of the technology development strategy of our
Company, standardize the intellectual property management of our Company, improve
the intellectual property development, and promote the transformation and application
of intellectual property, in accordance with the laws and regulations of the PRC and
the actual situations, our Company has formulated a series of technology management
methods to maintain and protect the intellectual property rights of our Company,
including the Management Measures for Scientific and Technological Innovation of
YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited, Management Measures for
Intellectual Property of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited and
Organization and Implementation of Transformation of Scientific and Technological
Achievements & Incentive and Reward Methods of YCIH Green High-Performance
Concrete Company Limited. We also have integrated intellectual property management
into our internal control system, so as to strengthen the management on scientific
and technological innovation such as technology development, technical innovation
and popularization and application of new technologies, and achievement application
management of our Company, standardize the intellectual property management,
enhance the scientific and technological innovation management and motivate the
enthusiasm and creativity of technical personnel, promote the capacity for independent
innovation and technological progress, and speed up the transformation of scientific
and technological achievements into productivity, thus to build the core competitiveness
of the enterprise. The Group has basically developed a number of patent layouts
focusing on its core products, continuously enhancing its intellectual property protection
capabilities and protecting its core products on all fronts, thereby laying a legal and
market foundation for brand building. In 2021, the invention patent of “Metakaolin
Concrete for Oversized Structures and the Design Plan of Mixture Proportioning” won
the first prize of the High Promotion Value in Engineering and Construction awarded
by China Association of Construction Enterprise Management.

Protection for Client Information and Privacy Policy

The Group has arranged for dedicated staff to manage customer information through
the ERP network system and incorporated customer management into its internal control
system, formulated the “ERP Information System Management Measures” to clarify
customer management processes and measures, and regularly evaluated the effectiveness
of internal control measures. Customer data is primarily provided for business related
personnel to apply in establishing customer information files, marketing information
files, customer rating management, market data analysis, customer relationship contact
and other services. The outflow of customer information is strictly prohibited. At the
same time, we have signed confidentiality clauses in some of our contracts to protect
customer information in strict accordance with the agreements.

As the Group required, the content of external information disclosure must be reviewed
by the personnel in charge of the department, direct management department and
subsidiary and the corresponding branch head after which submitted to the Board office
of the Company and organized to be disclosed externally by the Board office as required
by the Management Measures of Information Disclosure of the Company.
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3.2.3 Brief analysis of our anti-corruption measures

Our Group has formulated the rules of conduct and management system through the
Employee Manual and anti-corruption training provided for the Directors and staffs to
encourage employees to be honest and self-disciplined, and handle affairs impartially,
keeping away from the abuse of power for personal gain and bribery. Furthermore, it is
strictly forbidden for leaders to abuse their powers, use their power for personal gain,
bribery or kickbacks. It is prohibited for employees to ask for property from cooperative
units, material equipment suppliers, engineering sub-contractors, embezzle, work in
collusion with others, or conduct black box operation to damage the Company’s interests.
In addition, it is strictly prohibited for employees to report false figures, fill in documents
with false information, make false accounts, deceive superiors and delude subordinates,
or provide false information to our Group. Meanwhile, the Group has also conducted
multiple trainings on the topic of anti-corruption for directors and employees, so as to
deeply promote construction of “Clean Green Concrete — the Company”. Our Group
has imposed administrative sanctions and economic penalties on behaviors including
stealing the enterprise’s property, embezzling money, offering and accepting bribes,
colluding with others, deceiving superiors and deluding subordinates and other illegal
behaviors, which cause serious influence on the enterprise.

In addition, the Group organised 15 anti-corruption training sessions for Directors and
staff, which mainly covered prohibited acts and risk prevention and control in relation to
bidding and tendering, implementation of clean and honest Party conduct accountability
system, the “negative list” of provincial enterprises in implementing the spirit of the
eight provisions of the central government, the use of the first form supervision and
discipline in grasping early and catching small cases and organizing to watch a number
of warning educational films related to anti-corruption.

- Focus on key positions and improve rules and regulations

The Group focuses on key positions and key personnel to strengthen supervision,
and publishes Notice of the Company’s Discipline Inspection Committee on the
Reporting of Clues to Report Problems, Notice of the Disciplinary Committee of
the Company on the Forwarding of the Notice of the Group’s Party Committee
on the Issuance of the Implementation Rules for Further Implementation of the
Eight Provisions of the Central Government, Notice of the Disciplinary Committee
of the Company on Learning and Implementing the “Negative List” for the
Implementation of the Spirit of the Eight Provisions of the Central Government
in State-owned Enterprises of the Province, Notice of the Company's Discipline
Inspection Committee on the Publication of the Discipline Inspection and
Supervision Manual and other related systems. We have strengthened our anti-
corruption efforts by improving our rules and regulations, implemented effective
systems and strictly regulated our monitoring mechanism.
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Establish an Integrity Risk Prevention and Control Team

In order to firmly implement and oversee the construction of the Company’s
integrity, the Group has set up an integrity risk prevention and control team, a
clean and honest Party and anti-corruption coordination group, incorporating
members of the leadership and responsible persons of relevant departments into
the coordination mechanism of the construction of a clean and honest Party and
anti-corruption work, persistently grasping corruption and firmly eliminating the
use of power for personal gain and the acceptance of bribes. Through cross-
checking, open and secret visits and performance monitoring, we strengthened
the supervision of the implementation of party discipline and rules, as well as
the follow-up of the work arranged by the Party Committee and the Discipline
Inspection Committee of the Company, and promptly pointed out and urged
the rectification of irregularities. By continuously strengthening the supervision
responsibilities of the integrity risk prevention and control team, the Group's
comprehensive anti-corruption capability was enhanced.

Issued the Integrity Risk Prevention and Control Manual

The Group issued and revised the “Integrity Risk Prevention and Control Manual”
to ensure that the duties and responsibilities of the positions are specific and clear
and the integrity risks are clear. The positions are the points, the procedures are the
lines and the systems are the facets, and the prevention and control measures are
set up according to the departments, positions and powers in a targeted manner.
At the same time, we urged all functional departments, direct management
departments and subsidiaries to seriously study the spirit of integrity, improve
their understanding of integrity risk prevention and control, and continuously
strengthen integrity risk prevention and control.

Strengthen Publicity and Education on Party Integrity Construction

The Group continued to strengthen publicity and education on the construction of
a clean and honest Party. In 2021, the Group actively organised all party branches
to disseminate and study materials from higher-level circulars, organised watching
education and publicity films on the construction of the clean government, and
taught the staff of the Group to enhance their concept of discipline and law, and
awareness of discipline and rules. The Group focused on anti-corruption training
for the staff of the logistics system and organised 13 Ding Talk courses for the
Company'’s discipline inspection and supervision staff, (deputy) secretaries of party
branch and discipline inspection members to continuously enhance the political
awareness and awareness of discipline and law among the party members and
cadres, so as to promote the continuous development of the construction of a
clean and honest Party. In addition, the Group organised anti-corruption training
sessions on “Prohibited Practices and Risk Prevention and Control in Tendering
and Bidding”, “Implementation of Clean and Honest Party Conduct Accountability
System”, “The ‘Negative List’ for the Implementation of the Eight Provisions of
the Central Government in Provincial Enterprises”, and “Use of the First Form of
Supervision and Discipline in Grasping the Early and Catching the Small”.
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Regulate the investigation of cases

The investigation and handling of cases are regulated and handled in strict
accordance with the rules and regulations. For the handling of clues, conversations
and letters, preliminary verification, case examination, case review and disposal
of important issues in implementation, after collective study, approval is given in
accordance with procedures to ensure procedural compliance. It is also responsible
for supervising the Party in a comprehensive and strict manner, focusing on its
main duties of supervision, discipline enforcement and accountability, and assisting
the Party Committee of the Company in strengthening the construction a clean
and honest Party and organising and coordinating anti-corruption work. At the
same time, the Group has increased its punitive efforts, strictly enforced its
investigative and punitive actions by means of refined regulations, strengthened
the responsibility of all staff of the Group, and strictly enforced its supervisory
responsibilities in the investigation and handling of cases.

Smooth reporting channels

The Group actively maintains a telephone number, mailbox and report box
for correspondence, and has designed and produced a QR code for electronic
correspondence based on the Ding Talk platform, which is attached to the Group’s
Integrity Culture Wall and notices on rectifying work style and discipline issued on
important holidays. By scanning the QR code, the public can choose to upload text,
pictures and other reporting materials through anonymous or real names, and the
content of the reports will be sent directly to the Company’s Discipline Inspection
and Supervision Department to ensure a smooth channel of letters and reports.

Our Group has formulated and implemented the Management System for Anti-
Money Laundering of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
in accordance with relevant laws and administrative regulations such as the
Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China, Regulations
on the Anti-money Laundering of Financial Institutions issued by the People’s
Bank of China and Guidelines against Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing
through Payment and Clearing Organizations, established a risk control system
for money laundering in three aspects: risk responsibility of each department,
risk responsibility of senior management, and risk responsibility of internal audit.
Our Group has organized the establishment and improvement of systems for
customer identity identification, customer identity information and transaction
record keeping, customer classification on money laundering risk, large transaction
and suspicious transaction report, submitted large transactions and suspicious
transaction reports in accordance with the laws, and organized to implement the
audit of anti-money laundering on a regular basis.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has none of such cases as corruption,
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

RERUTER

RBEMEE  BERERASHEMR
B HNERREE  AERH - VIFHK
B URES  EMERE - BEHTP
MEZME  KEBTRR  REFE
o EREFAR  REZEZZEKE
AREEERMT BEET 4L ME
ITEIH  BPHAREZRMNEERERBE
R R BT - A - K
BOBNE - BBRBAHNRE T AEEE
TERITR  NRASEEEETINAE
EE ERUERT  BREATEEE
£ o

IEEEERRE
REEEG G EEDHERRERE - BAME
WA RAERMEERITS FEMETERD
BW— W - AREERRBULRE LM
EEZMBEBMHERBLBINEGHNE
SR BB ITIHRBBRE 4
% AAEsERlERLERNT
EEXF BREEHEMH - FHRAS
BEZEEXRIRRLRERS - REQTF
BRI ESEL S I

REBBRBCPEARKMBEREREE)
TERARBKERMEEBRAERE)
(XBEEBOTENRBMEERES)
SRR TEER - BIELHIKE
FEEGESHRERLIRNERAF
RAZRTIEERGIE) - B ZEFIER
B sREEASRREE  REE
F R Fe & (2 = 18 J5 1 A % 55 B 22
BX AKEABEYREEFINH
A BERPENERNMZZTHRT - %
BERREPSE - KEXSAIRR 5 W
EEHE - ROERZABRZHMARR 5
HE - WEHABRERSOLEEF TE

WEMA > AEERELEER - BEK
PR - MEFRABRFFARM -

EHERGERMHERERLIRNDERAA 156

2021F W E



)

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report

EIE e REA (ESG) ¥ &

3.3 OVERVIEW OF OUR INVESTMENT IN COMMUNITY

Our Group has actively promoted the construction of a harmonious society, and always
takes it as an important mission to pay back the society and fulfill social responsibilities.
As improving the business operation, our Group has avoided causing disturbance to the
nearby community during the operation activities. We also tried our best to pay back to
the society, extend our care to the community and practice social responsibilities. Each
unit of our Group has formed a good tie with the relevant departments of local sub-
districts, communities and governments, and has given a strong support to the relevant
departments in works such as employment arrangement, tax payment and poverty
alleviation. In 2021, a total of 6,249 persons from the Group participated in trade union
staff sympathy activities with a total investment of approximately RMB1.581 million.
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Chinese New Year greeting activity

MEREEE

In order to promote the traditional virtue of respecting and caring the elderly in the
Chinese nation, and to promote the new social trend of helping each other and sharing
difficulties together, the Group’s leaders conducted a Chinese New Year greeting activity
for the elderly and disabled friends in the community at the advent of the Chinese
New Year. The Group's leaders and cadres visited the 90-year-old elderly people in the
community, asking them about their health and living conditions, urging them and their
families to keep warm and take care of their health, and sending them daily necessities
so that the elderly could feel the care and warmth of the Party. During this Chinese
New Year visit, the leaders of the Group also visited the disabled friends in Yangliu Yi
and Bai villages, purchasing rice, cooking oil and other daily necessities for them, and
asked them about their work and living conditions, and extended their best wishes for
the New Year. The District Disabled Persons’ Federation would like to express its heartfelt
gratitude to all the staff members of the Group for their kindness and love, which
has demonstrated the Group’s care for the staff and its active commitment to social
responsibility, while allowing staff in difficulties to share the fruits of social development.

The leaders of the Group went to the grassroots level and sent their care and warmth
to the people in need. The leaders had long talks with the people in need, asking them
about their health and daily living conditions, learning more about their family expenses,
social security and difficulties, giving them rice and cooking oil, and encouraging their
families to face life positively, relax the state of mind and take care of their health.
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report
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Comforting people in need

T el R B R R

Faced with difficulties such as inadequate community infrastructure, complex staffing
structure, insufficient labour force, high employment pressure and overall low income
level, the Group actively organised staff to conduct long visits to the community to
investigate and understand the situation, actively explored the entry point for work,
discussed the relevant issues with the staff of the poor community and proposed effective
measures to solve the problems. In order to show concern for the village team members,
the Company’s leaders went to Zhaoyang District to visit the village team members,
check the working conditions and accommodation of the team, and understand in
detail the current situation of poverty alleviation, as well as the difficulties and problems
encountered by the team members in their work.
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Commiserating with the team members in the village

R E

The Group actively responded to the call of the Central Party to co-ordinate the prevention
and control of the epidemic and to take an active part in the prevention and control
of the epidemic. While taking the lead in nucleic acid testing for all staff, the youth
volunteers worked in tandem with the community to remind the public to wear masks,
not to gather, not to pile up, to publicise epidemic prevention and control measures,
and to put into practice the concept of “community units working together, building
and developing together”, and to take on social responsibility to contribute to the
COVID-19 pandemic prevention and control as a constant battle.
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Active participation in epidemic prevention and control

EE2 RSN EIE

In response to the domestic waste separation system of Ministry of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development of the PRC and in line with the concept of “Building a Civilized
Community, Building a Better Home"”, the Party Branch and the community carried
out activities to clean up the streets and promote the concept and methods of waste
separation. After more than two hours of hard work, the volunteers of Party branch
cleaned up the community environment and gave it a new look. At the same time, we
distributed Quijing social insurance pamphlets and urban rubbish sorting guidebooks,
advocating that we shall start from ourselves and participate in rubbish sorting, so as
to fully implement rubbish sorting, improve the standard of rubbish management and

create a national civilized city.

The Group thoroughly implemented the spirit of Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with
Chinese Characteristics for a New Era and General Secretary Xi Jinping's important
instructions on the work of trade unions and women’s work, implemented gender
equality in the workplace, protected the legal rights and special interests of female
workers in accordance with the law, and launched a series of activities to celebrate the
8th of March under the theme of “Enchanting Women's Work for a New Era, Popularising
the Law and Warming People’s Hearts”. Through women'’s health knowledge seminars,
we raise awareness of health and self-protection to protect “her” health. Through flower
arranging classes, pottery classes and calligraphy classes, organising female workers to
watch the film “Hi Mum” and badminton, various activities were conducted to bring

t “her” smile. Through legal knowledge competitions and online quizzes, female
workers’ awareness of protecting their legal rights and interests was raised and her
rights were protected.
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Community cleaning activities

HERBREE

A series of activities to celebrate 8th of March

BI=N\IR5ES

159 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2021




APPENDIX
P 6%

TERMS

4hea
i

14th Five-Year Plan

TR RE
Hong Kong Listing Rules

EE LTHRAI

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
BB P

Reporting Period/2021
e, 20216
Company/our Company
NIV N

Our Group/We

ANEE A

YCIH Group

EHEREE

Baoshan Building Material
TR

Quijing Building Material
phIBEM

Polymer Company

= FRAE

Employee Manual

BT FH

Green Building Materials Label

e B

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report
IRE - 1wg NER (ESG) Wi

“14th Five-Year Plan for National Economic and Social Development and the Outline of Visions for
2035 of the People’s Republic of China”, a set of targets designed to strengthen China’s economy
from 2021 to 2025 and a vision target for 2035

(REARAMBEREENG S ERETNERFRETM20355FESBEME) © B2021F52025
F #E58 rh B A T 5 E A0 — 271 B IR A R 2035 F B R B 1R

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as amended, supplemented
or otherwise modified from time to time

EEBRES LR SNRHERT - sk A AT e

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BEMERSMBRAE

Accounting period from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021

2021 F1A1HE2021F12A31HE5HH

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

THERZERERETROBRARE

Our Company and its subsidiaries

RRFIREME AT

Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd., the controlling Shareholder of our
Company

EHAERREZEREERRAR - BARQAIMERRER

YCIH Baoshan Yongchang Building Material Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of our Company
EERERRILKERMBRART - BRRFHMERR

YCIH Qujing Building Material Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of our Company

TRRRHBEEMERAR - RAARAKHE QA

YCIH Polymer Material Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of our Company

EEERSHTFMEERAR - RARARMER A

Employee Manual of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
THERZERERRELTROAR AR E TFMH

Rating and labelling activities conducted by Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the

PRC and Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the PRC, i.e. evaluation of building
materials according to green technical requirements
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B Az B e RS

To the Shareholders of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set
out on pages 168 to 291, comprise:

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended,;
o the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

3 the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31,

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(“ISAs"”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter identified in our audit is related to Recoverability of trade receivables.

Key Audit Matter
BREEFEE

Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)
TN Z B MRS (48)

BRESSE
BRBHFELRBRAOTLAN - RAY
ABAGHEBENBIBAESNEE &
L EERERMBHEBAHYBRERLA
BREETEEN - RATEYELERERME
EBHER -

BT BB RRE TR EY
FRAREY AT U

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ETNAEEFERESFSER

Recoverability of trade receivables

JE Wi B K B T [ i e

Refer to Note 3.1(b) (Financial risk factors-Credit risk), Note 4
(Critical accounting estimates and judgments- Recoverability
of trade receivables) and Note 22 (Trade receivables) to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

B RI2BE M IS IRER 3 (b) (R E R —ERER) - Mt
T4 (BE QTR RAE — BURRSRA ATI B ) & fi7E22 (FEUER

HK) e

As at December 31, 2021, the Group’s gross trade receivables
were approximately RMB3,835 million, provision for impairment
of trade receivables was approximately RMB94 million, and net
trade receivables of approximately RMB3,741 million represented
approximately 79% of the Group's total assets.
20216128310 - E5EERERREFERUHERIEELO /A
R¥3,835B8T  BERFHAERBEHRERARBUEET @ &
WERFHEAR3, 741 BB WEEREBEETI% °

The Group applied the simplified approach to assess expected
credit loss by grouping trade receivables based on shared credit
risk characteristics and aging days. Under this approach, expected
lifetime losses were recognised from initial recognition of the trade
receivables.

5 £ B8 A 4L 77 0 T 12 BR AR B 1915 PR L B s A0 D R e R BT B
R D HEATHATEEME RIRK - RIBZ L - VA BRI R TR
BImER R HIRK -

We performed the following procedures to address this key audit
matter:

B ERRET FERTONENEF 2R

(i) We understood, evaluated and validated the key internal
controls over collection of trade receivables, credit control,
determination and approval of provision for impairment of
trade receivables, and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk such as
subjectivity and changes.

(1) FHMBEE - A RBREEEANBEHSERBRRKR - &
B G RO E BN AR E RAE - WiBBE RS EEt T E
EMRREMEMEE RRAKT - MEBHEME T - &
BRI E S RRETT T AHE o

(i)  We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment
of expected credit loss on trade receivables to assess the
effectiveness of management’ estimation process.

(2)  FPIEHE T LARTEA R R B BR R 5 R B ARG AR -
AFHEE IR E M RRN AL -

(iii)  We involved our internal valuation expert to assess the
appropriateness of inputs and assumptions used.

()  HMEST AMEEREH MG BIES B ANBIE LR
SRR AT T EPAE o

(iv)  We circulated confirmations of trade receivables on a sample
basis. For those confirmations without reply, we performed
alternative procedures by inspecting the relevant documents
supporting the trade receivable balances.

(4)  FPIHE TEIDOERBRTRATE - BERKENEBANEB L -
HPIRE 7 A FEX G ARITERIERRF -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont’d)
B Az RS (E)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont‘d)

Key Audit Matter
BRETER

BREESEH(A)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ETNAEERRETFER

The lifetime expected credit loss allowance is determined based
on past settlement profiles and the observed default rates over
the expected life of the trade receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics and is adjusted with current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors that affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

2 HATEEIIR A R A ERHE RN BENFRR RECUE A BB S E
WIRRFEMABRINENE BZENXRBTEEPIINEE
DR RBLEE R RATEEEFELE -

In assessing forward-looking information, the Group considered
factors including economic policies, macroeconomic indicators,
industry risks and changes in customers’ conditions.

SR AN - BEBEANEESFEERE « BREH
H1E  TERARNESEROS -
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(v)

(vi)

For trade receivables for which provision for impairment was
assessed individually, we reviewed management’s assessment
of the financial position and creditworthiness of customers,
historical payment records and forecasted future economic
conditions. We also corroborated management’s assessment
by searching for customers’ background, reviewing the
Group's historical transactions with the customers and
collection patterns, and examined the data supporting
determination of forward-looking factors and checked the
data sources. We validated the accuracy of expected credit
loss rates and expected credit loss allowances by performing
recalculation.
HREBFFANEYERT - BREBEBEENT P HMSAK
AMEEER - BLERCERARE R BEAR RO TR o
H APt E IR B H AT R M BIRR RSN EBER
o AREARFNEREN  UAEN EEBNXRSE
SERIEIFIEI - AR EHEE AT 1 E A BRI iR S H BRI
B BRMBAENTEREERERBRAXE R RESRER
BReEERIE -

For trade receivables for which provision for impairment was
assessed collectively, we performed the following procedures
to assess the reasonableness of the grouping of trade
receivables and validated the expected credit loss:

PR RA A TR A EUBRR - MR RS DA S A KRAE
FEMERELERBRILAS IR RATEEEZNEREA
BEARNSEIE -

We examined the grouping of trade receivables by checking
evidence supporting the credit risk characteristics of these
receivables on a sample basis;

HEAS O ENA R  HAEREALREERRRSR
HORIFAE 5 RAERE L

We validated the calculation of historical credit loss by
testing the accuracy of trade receivable aging on a sample
basis, and recalculating migration rates and historical default
rates;

FHHELEAEL  RM2ZELEAKR SRR
BRiRHEMENE - WEHAHBERNMELELE

We examined the data supporting determination of forward
looking factors and checked the data sources;
FHERRMATIEERE - OGRS MEE 2 ER
BEEERIR °

We checked the mathematical accuracy of calculation of the
expected credit loss allowance.

HERREMIELR - HMREE RS ENE LR -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont‘d)

Key Audit Matter
BRETER

Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)
TN Z B MRS (48)

ERETSH(E)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ETNAEERRETFSER

We focused on this area as the balance of trade receivables
was material to the consolidated financial statements and the
assessment of expected credit loss on trade receivables was
subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent
risk in relation to the assessment of expected credit loss on
trade receivables is considered significant due to the inputs and
assumptions used involved significant management judgments and
estimations.

B IR ZEE AR B RRBREE S MM BHREREANL BT
HEYEREHEREXEASENMGF T EEYE - AREAEN
BRPREEEBHEANASMMGE - BURARKTEB{ERERFTHE
BNEE RBRERREEKRD °

(vii)  We tested the cash collections subsequent to year end on a

sample basis.

(7) BRI EE T HELBRER

(viii) We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to

assessment of expected credit loss on trade receivables in

the context of applicable financial reporting framework by

agreeing the presentation and classification of reported

balances to supporting documentation.

(8) BMEBAOMBREERLT @ BBREMSATENT R
DEEATFUEERN - - FETAH B EKRRERER
BRFHEAERREEN T M -

Based on our work, we considered that the risk assessment
of assessments remained appropriate and found the
judgments and estimates made by management in
determining the recoverability of trade receivables were
supported by available evidence we obtained.
RBEHRMOITIE - HMRRENRRFEDAREED
I B3R B IR [EFEHE T B 5 FE YR Y AT Y [ 14 A5 /E L A0 21
EFHSE) T RIS E RN T °
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont’d)
B 2B A E ()

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

3 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

3 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

3 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont’d)
B Az RS (E)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont‘d)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Lee Chung Bor.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 29, 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement

/_\ N/ \\
SRATANEES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLE2021F12A31HILFE

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE
Note 2021 2020
i 20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREETTT
Revenue WA 2,102,526 4,004,026
Cost of sales & AR (1,961,895) (3,569,094)
Gross profit EAH 140,631 434,932
Selling expenses DIHEA 7 (7,883) (8,629)
Administrative expenses 1THE R 7 (127,313) (135,547)
Net impairment losses on financial assets 4 & & ZR{E 18 5 F 48 7 (14,497) (26,979)
Other income HAb s 5 20,243 15,946
Other gains — net HhFE—F5 6 2,506 1,319
Operating profit BERE 13,687 281,042
Finance income B 75k 2 10 9,932 4,916
Finance costs B 75 & 10 (8,582) (7,981)
Finance income/(costs) — net Bisizs(BA) — 558 10 1,350 (3,065)
Profit before income tax BRET {8 8L AT RH 15,037 277,977
Income tax expense FrSHER 11 (8,344) (50,888)
Profit for the year FEFME 6,693 227,089
Profit attributable to: FIESER
— The equity holders of the Company —ZARQ&EFTEHE 701 206,451
— Non-controlling interests — IEPE R e 5,992 20,638
6,693 227,089
Earnings per share for profit EFRAERUZFEEBRELTMESE
attributable to the equity holders (LIS A R¥E)
of the Company during the year
(expressed in RMB per share)
— Basic and diluted earnings per share — EANF AR & RGN ES 12 0.00 0.46

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with the — Fift& GFFE 2 fEERRERT 2 M s — G RI:8 -

accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement Of Comprehensive Income

-
JHar e W
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BE2021F12A31HILFE
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A318LEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
Profit for the year FEFE 6,693 227,089
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hfttim& Uz, (1B%)
Items that may be reclassified to profit B £ RfE & E £ M8 = 18256978 B
or loss
— Changes in the fair value of debt NARBEFEEHZESHTA
instruments at fair value through other HEtirAaaEmER TR
comprehensive income NAEBEE 1,666 (339)
— Income tax relating to the item —HEZEIEE BEAEN (266) 86
Other comprehensive income/ TEFHMEE RS (BX)
(loss) for the year, net of tax MBRBIIE 1,400 (253)
Total comprehensive income REEHAZRERE
for the year 8,093 226,836
Total comprehensive income APGEERRERR
attributable to:
— The equity holders of the Company —AARIFEHE 2,090 206,143
— Non-controlling interests — FEPE MR A 6,003 20,693

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BRI BN R
As at December 31, 2021
R20214F12H31H

As at December 31,

M12HA31H
Note 2021 2020
k=3 2021F 2020%F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREETTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Land use rights T fE A 13 42,687 31,552
Property, plant and equipment TEE - WE K& 14 199,919 199,280
Investment properties & B E 15 66 2,433
Intangible assets BEE 16 850 1,055
Deferred income tax assets BB EE 18 27,284 20,301
Other non-current assets Hib3EmeEh&E 17 6,197 18,382
277,003 273,003
Current assets REVEE
Inventories FE 20 27,464 30,909
Financial assets at fair value through AR AR (BEEBHEES T AHbLRE
other comprehensive income WMo R EE 21 95,221 80,003
Trade and notes receivables B 5 EUGRIE R E W E & 22 3,847,991 3,624,925
Prepayments and other receivables AT BR R R H At FE UK 23 39,005 29,633
Restricted cash R EIE & 24 119,036 32,280
Cash and bank deposits & RIRTTIFER 25 355,812 529,389
4,484,529 4,327,139
Total assets HWEE 4,761,532 4,600,142
ETHERGESMUREEREIBROBRAR 170
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Cont’'d)

)
BHTBARRNK(E)

As at December 31, 2021

R20214F12H31H
As at December 31,
M12H831H
Note 2021 2020
Bt 20215 20204
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBT T
EQUITY =
Share capital AR AR 26 446,272 446,272
Reserves & 27 477,506 475,794
Retained earnings Bl 28 336,916 391,474
Total equity attributable to equity BEBAXRLQTFEE
holders of the Company 1,260,694 1,313,540
Non-controlling interests P 86,752 88,072
Total equity R 1,347,446 1,401,612
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 29 30,233 18,400
Provision for close down, restoration BB - 1828 MIRIRAK AN B S
and environmental cost 30 2,060 3,220
32,293 21,620
Current liabilities REIEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A ERTFRIE 31 3,143,885 2,983,888
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 20,856 19,326
Provision for close down, restoration B8EA - 1828 KRRk A B
and environmental cost 30 3,157 8,035
Contract liabilities ARAE 5 5,981 1,093
Current income tax liabilities EHFEHARE 7,441 8,428
Borrowings & 32 200,473 156,140
3,381,793 3,176,910
Total liabilities waE 3,414,086 3,198,530
Total equity and liabilities ERREEAE 4,761,532 4,600,142

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction b3t & GFEAFSHA % 8 EABEF 2 Fff 5 — RIS o

with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on page 168 to 291 were approved by the SF168EHEFE291H WAL HHBREAEH
Board on March 29, 2022 and were signed on its behalf.

Chairman: Li Zhangjian

BEXR2EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

SEHERSRBE

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

B Z2021F12A31HIFFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FRRRFEE
Share Non-controlling Total
Note capital Reserves  Retained earings Total interests equity
s i fif Biks @it Flt s EHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
As at January 1, 2020 200F1A1858 446,272 458,658 260,937 1,167,867 60,481 1,228,348
Comprehensive Income: Gals
Profit for the year EEHE - - 206,451 206,451 20,638 227,089
Other comprehensive loss ARk - (308) - (308) 5% (253)
Transactions with owners:  EERFEZHNE
fiEEhEH
ETHRE
Contribution from non- Rl ERRA
controlling interests - - - - 12,600 12,600
Dividends WAREMEE
to equity holders RS
of the Company 3 - - (60,470) (60,470) - (60,470)
Dividends to non- BEZaEE 5
controlling interests ks - - - - (5,702) (5,702)
Appropriation to statutory reserve ERE AR 27,28 - 17,444 (17,444) = = =
As at December 31, 2020 2020F12A318 48 446,272 475,794 391,474 1,313,540 88,072 1,401,612
As at January 1, 2021 WNE1 184 446,272 475,19 391,474 1,313,540 88,072 1,401,612
Comprehensive Income: fFal -
Profit for the year ERHE - - 701 0 5992 6,693
Other comprehensive income ~ E b4 Mz - 1,389 - 1,389 11 1,400
Transactions with owners:  EERFAZNE
fiEEHEH
EHRE
Dividends to equity holders ~ AAARFAS
of the Company THRRE 33 - - (54,936) (54,936) - (54,936)
Dividends to non- 3 R
controlling interests THRE - - - - (1323) (1303)
Appropriation to ERTETRRE
statutory reserve 27,28 - 3 (323) - - -
As at December 31, 2021 1 E12831A &4 446,272 471,506 336,916 1,260,694 86,752 1,347,446

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction  _bift & GffEss & Bhak e ERRE M 2 i 55— (FRIE
with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHRERER

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BE20214F12H31HIFFE

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALLEE
Note 2021 2020
B EE 20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHNRERE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &% (Fif8) ELHIRS 34(a) (134,207) 20,623
Interest received [=AL &R 10 4,948 2,175
Interest paid EARFE 10, 32 (7,444) (7,444)
Income tax paid B ETEH (14,306) (66,377)
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBFTAFRE (151,009) (51,023)
Cash flows from investing activities REFTBNRERE
Purchase of land use right FEE T AR (2,402) (8,610)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEERBIE - BE MKEE (20,176) (54,508)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE - (320)
Maturity/(Placement) of term deposits fEm,(FEE)EHER 70,000 (170,000)
Interest received on financial EARERENESREEMNFIS
assets held as investments 400 -
Proceeds from disposal of HETBE « BE REEMER
property, plant and equipment 135 822
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEFRBEL (TR FRE
investing activities 47,957 (232,616)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHNRESTE
Contribution from non-controlling interests FT/B A A FEIE IR HERS T &
of the subsidiaries - 8,400
Proceeds from borrowings BB R 34(c) 200,473 251,492
Repayments of bank borrowings BEEBER 34(c) (100,000) (160,000)
Payment for listing expenses Y EREA - (4,041)
Payment for lease liabilities TRHEEBE 34(c) (40,085) (32,562)
Dividends paid to the Company’s equity MR AR R AR B
holders 33 (55,084) (60,134)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [ F 2 & 3E4% Hl 1E #E %8 S (A% S
of the subsidiaries (5,329) —
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing & &S (FTF), ELFRE
activities (25) 3,155
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 3% KIBSEEWFRD (103,077) (280,484)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHReRREEED
beginning of the year 25 359,389 640,009
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Re kRS EEYIENEEE) (500) (136)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year F4IH & RIS EEY 25 255,812 359,389

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with it & GF38 £ 7 85K e EAREHT 2 M sE—GTRIE o
the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

YNJG Green High-Performance Concrete Co., Ltd. was incorporated in Yunnan
Province of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) on June 19, 2007 as a
limited liability company under the Company Law of the PRC. On December 22,
2017, the Company was converted into a joint stock limited liability company
with registered capital of RMB312,390,000 and changed its name to YCIH Green
High-Performance Concrete Company Limited (the “Company”). The address of
its registered office is YCIH Zhaotong Development Building, Zhaotong Road,
Zhaoyang District, Zhaotong, Yunnan Province, the PRC.

The parent company of the Company is Yunnan Construction and Investment
Holding Group Co., Ltd. (“YCIH"). YCIH is operating under the supervision and
regulation of the State-Owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of Yunnan Province (“Yunnan SASAC").

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the research, development, production, sales, transportation and pumping of
ready-mixed concrete as well as providing quality and technology management
service in the PRC.

The Company completed its global initial public offering and listed its H shares on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on October 31, 2019.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi thousand
(RMB'000), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have
been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on March 29, 2022.

& SR MR
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BT EHmRMEE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE20214F12H31HIFFE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the

preparation of these consolidated financial statements of the Group. These policies

have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

2.1.1

2.1.2

Compliance with IFRSs and HKCO (as defined below)

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“HKCO") Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for the certain financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following new and amended accounting standards and
interpretations become applicable for annual reporting periods
commencing on or after January 1, 2021, and have been adopted
by the Group in current period:

TESHHEREE

REAEHUBRRRANEZSHBR

BRTX - REAHRAIN

ERERAE

PROVBRAIEFENERER -

EREE

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

BTEBRMBREENNE
BARED (MU TER)
AEBENA G BERKRER
1 BRI R B 75 i o E R ([ BB
B mEER D REERA
ARG (55622F ) MR TR
B o

RS2 AR

B OF B IS 3R R IR IR I SR B A
ERE BUAARBER
ENRNEEREENERA

& °
213 REECRMANFTNCE
SRy ZE B

AT #TET28) - 2R Z {858
ANMARRBR2021FE1 183K
H&RRMEE SR ES
RNEBE R AR S H R RA
THFTRIFIE SRR

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8

Rt AERISE 15 R R e Et R £ 85% (18FT)
Amendments to IFRS 3

I 5% B 765 i = B BN 58 355 (1&RT)

Revised conceptual framework

BT ESR

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IAS 7

BB 15 S R F 95 - REIFR S FHERIZE395% K B

BrE et ERIE 798 (1E5])
Amendments to IFRS 16
BUPR B A 3R & 22 A 5 1655 (185T)
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Definition of Material

BRNESE

Definition of Business

EIEHERE

Revised conceptual framework for financial reporting
BT A SRS B AESR

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

EESSe
Covid-19 Rent Relief
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
2.1.4 New standards and amendments of IFRS issued effective for
the financial periods beginning on and after January 1, 2022
and have not been early adopted by the Group

B HTEHRRMEE)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

FESFTBERUE
(#&)

2.1 REEE(E)
2.1.4 £ K12 AT IR A0 92022
F1R1EREAMBHERE
HIRS A A H TR - 2R
Z BT A

Effective for annual
periods beginning on
or after
AT B B H 1%
16 H)F /B FE A

Amendments to annual improvements project
FREUBCERE (BFTA)
Amendment to IAS 16

et R E 1658 (E5]4%)
Amendment to IAS 37

BIFR &5t 2RI E 3755 (5T AN)
Amendments to IFRS 3

BB B 75 3 5 M R 22 35 (18 RT AR )
IFRS 17

B PR B 7 ¥ & 22 A 58 1 757
Amendments to IAS 1

\ = u“k /E”;P—JF)T DTZ’K)
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2
\ = u“k E|J%15ﬁ
E'J BB RAEE25
Amendments to IAS 8
\ = u“k Elj%sfﬁ DTZK)
Amendments to IAS 12

ERIAN) K BB B 75 3 o5 4

Rt R 125 (BRI A)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

BB B 7 5 2R A58 1 09 S BFR & 5t 4R A58 28
S (ERTAS)

The Group is assessing the full impact of these new standards
and amendments. According to the preliminary assessment, these
standards and amendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group in the current or future reporting periods and

Annual Improvements 2018-2020 cycle
—N\FE_Z_TEZFEHE
Property, plant and equipment — proceeds
before intended use

M - BB LRE  BERER S HIR

Onerous contracts — Cost of fulfilling a
contract

BEIREE L - B1Ta KRB

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

EN 2 7

Insurance contracts

1% A/\ :l ,]

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current

BEDE AN IERNE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting Estimates

iRt ZER

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction
BE-RHEENEERABEEBANERE
T8

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

KEERABEPESIEELFE CHANEE
HESEE

January 1, 2022
20221 A1H
January 1, 2022

20221 A1H
January 1, 2022

20221 A1H
January 1, 2022
20221 A1H
January 1, 2023
2023F1H1H
January 1, 2023

2023 1A1H
January 1, 2023

2023F1H1H
January 1, 2023
2023F1H1H
January 1, 2023

2023F1A1H

To be determined

BRHEE

AN £5 (8] 1E AT i 5% S5 8 248 B 70
ERINERAZE - REQS

S WEBYEYE A
AT B A W o

on foreseeable future transactions. The Group expects to adopt
relevant new standards, amendments to standards and conceptual
framework when they become effective.

RRABEEERE - AEH
Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’]%ﬁ Bl - (BT
DRBEBBER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BT EHmRMEE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE20214F12H31HIFFE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

177

(Cont’d)
2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

(@)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change
of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their
capacity as owners. The difference between the fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

2

TESTHEREE

(&)

2.2 ¥RH

2.2.1 ¥B46

FRAEASESHAG R
IR PTA TR (BRI
TR EARERA/ZEZ
= B8 i A HE A 2 (o] 3 9 R B
AEFAEEHRNES 0 I
BRENEBEEZ TR
FENFORE - AEE
BIfEHlZ 8 - FTARER
HEEREAEE 2 AREE
PEARR o TRREEHIER
b2 AR IEE AR -

(@) MTEIHKREEBIED

T AT
AN £ [ % H B SR o6

MEREREHTT  TEH
REBBROHZ S A
EAENT S - HE
FARFAE N
BHEEFHETH
25 o FX Y
B2 42 B {8 540
FE 165 P MO 72 7S
BEEEENERE
89 BB o FIEEH)
1 25 10 B B 10 A
IRRARAE MRS o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHHEHE
(Cont’d) (#&)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d) 2.2 FRARE(E)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d) 2.2.1 ¥%&6t(#&)

(b)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in the consolidated income statement. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial information
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

(b) HWEFRAA
EAKETBREAE
- EERNEM
REERANREZES
BEHEFFEER
AEE S FEED
HEHERRTER -
AR BERRREE
@A RBARM S &
VR EREE - (ER R
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fib 7 & U 21 HE R Y
EMHEBHENAEE
EERRERMEE
MEE - EEREZ
AT H {47 & 1R &8
ERNBMBEEHN HH

855 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

ot R R M ek (AR

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE20214F12H31HIFFE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

179

(Cont’d)
2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal

2.4

reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The chief

operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as

executive directors of the Company that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") throughout the year, which is the Company’s functional
currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and bank deposits are presented in the consolidated income
statement within “finance costs — net”. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated income statement

within “other gains/(losses)-net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHHEHE
(Cont’d) (#&)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 FHE  BERRXRE

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at historical cost less depreciation and provision for impairment loss,
if any. Historical cost includes the expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
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FtE

Years

FB
Right-of-use assets — building and facilities 1 to 30 years
EREEE - BT RRE 15304
Right-of-use assets — machinery and equipment 1 to 5 years
EFAREEE — S MR 1255
Buildings and facilities 2 to 30 years
BT R 2230%
Machinery and equipment 3 to 10 years
Hees R 2R 3E104
Motor vehicles 5 to 8 years
B 5284
Electronic equipment 3 years
BEFRE 3%
Other equipment 2 to 5 years
HiRiE 2F85F
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(Cont'd)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under
construction or pending installation and is stated at cost less provision
for impairment loss, if any. Cost includes the costs of construction and
acquisition as well as interest expenses during the periods of construction
and installation. When the assets concerned are available for use, the
costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised within “other gains/(losses)-
net” in the consolidated income statement.

Land use rights

All land in the PRC is state-owned or collectively-owned and no individual
land ownership exists. Land use rights are recognised as right-of-use assets
(see Note 2.22). The consideration paid for such rights are stated at cost
less accumulative amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Land use rights are amortised over the lease period of 50 years using
straight-line method.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represented the purchased computer software which are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire the specific software.
These costs are amortised over periods ranging from 3 to 10 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’'d)

2.8 Investment properties

2.9

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that are not occupied by the Group, are classified as investment
properties. The Group’s investment properties comprise buildings located
in the PRC, which is measured initially at their costs, including the related
transaction costs and borrowing costs, where appropriate.

After initial recognition, an investment property is measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the properties. The building portion of investment properties is depreciated
over their estimate useful lives of 25 or 30 years.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed
in the consolidated income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

An investment property shall be derecognised on disposal or when
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Gains or losses arising from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property shall be determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and shall be recognised in the consolidated income statement
in the period of the retirement or disposal.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation, but
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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IR RR MR ()

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
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(Cont'd)

2.10 Financial assets
2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through
other comprehensive income (“OCl"), or through profit or
loss); and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business
model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

See Note 19 for details of each type of financial assets.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B HTEHRRMEE)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)
2.10 Financial assets (Cont’d)

2.10.2

2.103

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.
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(Cont’d)
2.10 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2103 Measurement (Cont’d)
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in “other gains/(losses) - net” together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHHEHE

(Cont’d) (#&)
2.10 Financial assets (Cont’d) 2102 REE(F)
2103 Measurement (Cont'd) 2.10.3 sHE ()
Debt instruments (Cont’d) EBTAE)
. Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"): . LARBEFEARE

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in OCI are reclassified from equity to
profit or loss and recognised in “other gains/(losses) - net”.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other
income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in “other gains/
(losses) - net” and “net impairment losses on financial assets”.

Fair value through profit or loss: Financial assets that do not
meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net
in the consolidated income statement within “other gains/
(losses) - net” in the period in which it arises.
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(Cont'd)
2.10 Financial assets (Cont’d)

2.103

2.104

Measurement (Cont‘d)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit
or loss as other income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised
in “other gains/(losses) - net” in the consolidated income statement
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHHEHE
(Cont’d) (#&)

2.10 Financial assets (Cont’d) 210EMEE (&)
2104 Impairment (Cont’d) 2.10.4 BB (&)

For trade receivables and FVOCI, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires to recognise the lifetime
expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit losses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting
date to its recognised amount is recognised in profit or loss, as an
impairment loss or a reversal of an impairment loss.

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses over the expected life of the trade receivables. Expected credit
losses on trade receivables are calculated by using the provision
matrix approach. Trade receivables are categorised by common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms, and
assessed collectively or individually for likelihood of recovery. The
provision matrix is determined based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted
for forward-looking estimates. At each reporting date the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

While cash and bank deposits and restricted cash are also subject
to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified impairment
loss was immaterial.
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(Cont'd)

2.10 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2104 Impairment (Cont’d)

Impairment on other receivables is measured as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable
has occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is measured
as lifetime expected credit losses.

Trade and other receivables, notes receivable, cash and bank deposits
and restricted cash are written off (either partially or in full) when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

2.11 Financial liabilities

(a)

Recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at amortised
cost. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are recognised initially at
fair value net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently stated at
amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of transaction
costs and the redemption value is recognised in the profit or loss
over the period of the other financial liabilities using the effective
interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

See Note 19 for details of each type of financial liabilities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHHEHE
(Cont’d) (#&)

2.11Financial liabilities (Cont’d) 2NMNERMEEE)
(b) Derecognition (b) ARIEER

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the EREBRETHETERR
BEH IR R - 48 1E
HREeMBE - W—IBRAB
CRIBERERBRARE
modified, such exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition APRGEFEHRN S —BE
HER - R AEERIE
difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised FEXNEH - ZBAHBERE
in profit or loss. HERERIIERAREEBER
ER-EHARERE  m&
FHEENEZEESNIERE

o

liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially

of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the

7
A

212 T A

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or
the counterparty.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.
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(Cont'd)

2.14Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. See Note 2.10 for further information
about the Group’s accounting policies for trade and other receivables.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flows statements, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and financial
institutions and readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2.17 Trade and other payables Q17ES R HEMENRE

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. See Note 2.11 for further information about the Group's accounting
policies for trade and other payables.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.
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2.19 Borrowings cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, which will be capitalised, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial
position date in the areas where the Company’s subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation, and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending
on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of
the uncertainty.
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2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, if deferred income tax liabilities arise from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss, it is not accounted
for. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of
financial position date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liability is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, joint controlled entities and
associates, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligation

The full-time employees of the Group in the PRC are covered by the
government-sponsored defined contribution pension plans under
which the employees are entitled to a monthly pension based on
certain formulas. The relevant government agencies are responsible
for the pension liability to these retired employees. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these pension plans. Under these
plans, the Group has no obligation for post-retirement benefits
beyond the contributions made and contributions to these plans are
included in profit or loss as incurred.
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2.21 Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(b) Housing fund, medical insurance and
other social insurances
Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to participate in
various government-supervised housing fund, medical insurance and
other employee social insurance plans. The Group contributes on a
monthly basis to these funds based on certain percentages of the
salaries of the employees, subject to certain ceiling. The Group's
liability in respect of these funds is limited to the contributions
payable in each period.

(c) Bonus entitlements
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability when
the Group has a present contractual or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimation
of the obligation can be made.

2.22 Leases

The Group leases various property, plant and equipment and land use

rights for the production of ready-mixed concrete. Properties, plants and

equipment and land use rights leases are typically made for fixed periods

of 1 to 30 years and 50 years respectively.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group

allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease

components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases

of real estate for which the group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate

lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.
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2.22 Leases (Cont’'d)

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain various terms
and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Property, plant and equipment and land use right leases are recognised as
right-of-use assets and the corresponding liabilities at the date of which
the respective leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case
for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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2.22 Leases (Cont’'d)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does not
have recent third party financing, and

3 makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency
and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual
lessee (through recent financing or market data) which has a similar payment
profile to the lease, then the Group entities use that rate as a starting point
to determine the incremental borrowing rate.
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2.22 Leases (Cont’'d)

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments
based on an index or rate, which are not included in the lease liability until
they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index
or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against
the right-of-use asset.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's
useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short- term leases of equipment and properties
and all leases of low- value assets are recognised on a straight- line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short- term leases are leases with a lease
term of less than 12 months without a purchase option. Low- value assets
comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

2

TESTHEREE

(&)

2.22/E (&)

REBARRA L 2 EERER B
) 2= R E O R S TH N SRR AN Y
Rbe - EROFEHEENREEE
RELARMHABRERRE - EER
BN R HENRBETRHE
i HEAGERETUAE[MLRIERE
REEERE -

ERBEE REBENERS®D
B E B E NE B AR ER
ERTRITE - MAKHSERES
THRBEE  MESHEENR

SRR ERREET IR
Z o

BREREIREEZERNEENME
BEBEEE<HENNK - BUAE
BERBEANERARER - BHH
SHERERATESHNERE12(E
AHWME - REEEERREITR
FMEHFRRIA o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)
2.22 Leases (Cont’d)
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present

value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following
lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease

incentives receivable,

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

3 amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees,
o the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably

certain to exercise that option, and

3 payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the liability.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEEHHBEHE

(Cont’d) (#&)

2.22 Leases (Cont’d) 2.22/0E (&)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following: FREEERKATTE - B
. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability, . HEBBENYVIBTESRE
. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less . EHEBRS B2 AT

any lease incentives received, R E N BB AR &9 8
BB E

. any initial direct costs, and . TREEER AR
. restoration costs. . BREA o
Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised AEBEADHAAKINEEHE
in “other income” on a straight-line basis over the lease term (Note 5.3). IWAEHERRNIREREERASE
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the U A (FF5ES.3) « BERKLE M
carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over EMBEAENYIBREEEBRTAER
the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased EEMEREDSRE  WEHASEHRE
assets are included in the statement of financial position based on their REASKRAERNOERERSE
nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting A -HEEEREHETEERE
for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard. KHIR c REERBTHHEE

R - AMEFEESEBARTE
& EE R 2 St B IR i (T EE o

2.23 Provisions and contingent liabilities 223 EEFERFBEEE
Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or constructive EASERAERENSHMESLR
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of BEHVEARSHEEER: RAES
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been BERHMEAEEER: ke
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. EWAI A REELER - BT

ERARE 2 ERERES -
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(Cont’d) (#&)
2.23 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Cont’d) 223 EERBIBEEE(E)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as finance costs.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and
its existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the Group's
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow of economic resources probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.
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2.24 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the goods or services is
transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of the contract and
laws that apply to the contract, control of the goods and services may be
transferred overtime or at a point in time.

Revenue is recognised when a performance obligation is satisfied by
transferring control of the promised goods or services to a customer in
an amount that reflects the consideration expected to be collected in
exchange for those goods or services. The revenue recognition of the Group
is determined through the following five steps:

(i) Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer;

(i) Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;

(iii)  Determination of the transaction price;

(iv)  Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in
the contract;

(v)  Recognition of revenue when, or as, a performance obligation is
satisfied.

At contract inception, it is performed that the assessment and the
identification of a performance obligation for each promise to transfer
to the customer a product or a service (or bundle of products or services)
that is distinct. To identify the performance obligations, the Group consider
all the products and services promised in the contract with the customer
based on the Group’s customary business practices, published policies, or
specific statements.
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B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHHEHE
(Cont’d) (#&)
2.24Revenue recoghition 224 AR (&)

The Group determines whether control of a product or a service is transferred
to a customer over time or at a point in time based on the analysis of the
following three criteria. Revenue is recognised over time if any of such
criteria are met that the Group:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed simultaneously
by the customer; or

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group
perform; or
3 does not create an asset with an alternative use of the Group and the

Group has an enforceable right to request the customer for payment
for performance completed to date.

A performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time if none of the above
criteria for satisfying a performance obligation over time are met.

The Group recognises costs incurred in obtaining contracts with customers
that are directly associated with the contracts as contract costs if those
costs are expected to be recoverable. The contract costs are amortised on
a basis consistent with the pattern of the transfer of the goods or services
to which the asset relates. As a practical expedient, the Group recognises
the incremental costs of obtaining a contract as profit or loss when incurred
as the amortisation period of the asset that the Group otherwise would
have recognised is one year or less.

RE BT —HE MR IE
HEERETPRE —REH AR
RRAER B EE LR - BORR
WTE=EEE - EAKEREES
—IRMRITES - WATE— BRSO T

7 .
[T

. Al 2 12 (A B R B B RIS
WHFENFTA M =X

. EAXAKERONRERES
EaTEPEMNNEE X

. UEEAHASEAARR
RSRHEE  BAEEHRE
SERRMBHORDEEE
BB o

& L R B EERNRME — RS
RABAmE - AIBHREER—
By ) B 3R o

HESEFARMEENESRE
EHEBR KRR E - BIAE
BiEZEXNANERSERMAA -
BRI AR R 8 o A A AR P
SIRFBFTAER T X - FRE
Bz BARENAEMT R
Rz EENSHHR BB —F
R ANEE A RERA REE S K
AHER BB

EHERGERMERERLIRNERAA 204

2021F EW|E



)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BT EHmRMEE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE20214F12H31HIFFE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

205

(Cont'd)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to render the services to a

customer for which the Group has received consideration from the customer.

The application of the Group’s revenue recognition policies and a description

of the principal activities, organized by segment, from which the Group

generate its revenue, are presented below.

(a)

Sales of goods

The Group produces and sells ready-mixed concrete, aggregates, and
polycarboxylic admixtures to customers in the Yunnan Province of
the PRC. Customers include distributors, constructors and property
development companies. Revenue from sales of goods is recognised
when control of the products are transferred at a point in time to its
customers, that is when the products are delivered and accepted by
the customers. The customers have full discretion over the products,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products.

All of the revenue is recognised at the point in time when the control
of goods is transferred to the customers.

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’'d)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Interest income

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes, see
Note 10 below. Any other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired
financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Quality and technology management services

The Group provides quality and technology management services to
other ready-mixed concrete manufacturers. Revenue from quality and
technology management services is recognised based on the units of
ready-mixed concrete produced by the customers at a point in time.
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(Cont'd)

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grants from the government will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
consolidated income statement over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited
to consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets. Note 5.3 provides further information on the
accounting policies of the Group for government grants.

2.26 Research and development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred.

When the future economic benefits become apparent as a project progresses
into the development stage the costs incurred on development projects
which satisfy the criteria of capitalisation (relating to the design and testing
of new or improved products) are capitalised as intangible assets when
recognition criteria are fulfilled and tests for impairment are performed
annually. Other development expenditures that do not meet those criteria
of capitalisation are recognised as expenses as incurred.

Development costs previously recognised as expenses are not recognised as
assets in subsequent periods. Capitalised development costs are amortised
from the point at which the assets are ready for use on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders is recognised as a
liability in the consolidated statement of financial position in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s equity holders.

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, commodity price risk, cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group currently does not use any derivative financial
instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk relates principally
to its cash and bank deposits denominated primarily in Hong
Kong dollar ("HKD").

As at December 31, 2021, if RMB had weakened/strengthened
by 10% against HKD with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year ended December 31, 2021
would have been approximately RMB 1,309,000 higher/lower
(December 31, 2020: RMB1,649,000) respectively, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of HKD
denominated cash and bank deposits.

There have been no changes in the risk management
department since year end or in any risk management policies.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk is mainly attributable to its
cash and bank deposits, bank borrowings and lease liabilities.
Financial assets and liabilities at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Financial assets and
liabilities at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. Details of the Group’s cash and bank deposits and
bank borrowings have been disclosed in Note 25 and Note 32
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

As at December 31, 2021, if interest rates on cash and bank
deposits and bank borrowings had been 10% higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, profit after income tax
for the year would have been approximately RMB394,000
higher/lower (December 31, 2020: RMB36,000 higher/lower),
mainly as a result of higher/lower net interest income/expense
being recognised/incurred.

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’'d)

(b)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and bank deposits, restricted cash
balances, trade and notes receivables, and other receivables included
in the consolidated financial statements represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.
The objective of the Group’s measures to manage credit risk is to
control potential exposure to recoverability problem.

The majority of the cash and bank deposits and restricted cash
balances, were deposited in the banks in the PRC and YCIH Financial
Company, a related company of the Group, which the directors of
the Company believe are of high credit quality. Management believes
these financial institutions are reputable and there is no significant
credit risk of losses on such assets.

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately providing
for expected credit losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical loss rates
for each category of receivables and adjusts for forward-looking
macro economic data including the growth rate of China’s gross
domestic product (“GDP"), the growth rate of China’s construction
industry or the Consumer Price Index. The Group regularly predicts the
macro economic data under three economic scenarios (i.e., optimistic
scenario, basic scenario, and pessimistic scenario). The predictions are
used in the expected credit losses model. Basic scenario is defined as
the most probable situation, which will become benchmark for other
scenarios. Optimistic and pessimistic scenarios are possible scenarios
which are better or worse than basic scenario respectively and can
also become a source of sensitivity test. The Group comprehensively
considers statistical analysis and expert judgement results to determine
economic forecasts and weights under various scenarios.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’'d)

(b)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

If the optimistic weighting increased by 10% and basic scenario
decreased by 10%, the impact on the allowance of expected credit
loss as of December 31, 2021 would be less than 4%. If the pessimistic
weighting increased by 10% and basic scenario decreased by 10%,
the impact on the allowance of expected credit loss as of December
31, 2021 would be less than 5%.

If key economic indicator GDP under base scenario changed by 10%,
the impact on the allowance of expected credit loss as of December
31,2021 would be less than 7%. If key economic indicator the growth
rate of China's construction industry under base scenario changed
by 10%, the impact on the allowance of expected credit loss as of
December 31, 2021 would be less than 1%.

(i) Trade receivables
The Group applies the simplified approach to provide expected
credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables from
third parties and related parties.

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

3

Bt 7% [ B

EE(E)

M EREE(E)

(b)

ERRE(E)
BRELEBEROREEEMN
10% @ MERISROESER
D10% 72021412 B 31
HEEAREEENZEE
NNRA% - BEEEBS
HEEIEIN10% - ﬁﬁ%ﬂi ==
REERD10% 72021
F12A31 Bz AREEE
VR BN % ©

BREEFR THBEREE
B2 GDPIE R K EE)10% -
%’Tﬁ:‘ézomiuﬂamm

m&ﬁﬁm Z-FSUNIN
7% BEREEBERTHHAE
fLZ%/ETETEq:'.E EREER
EEH#10% + ¥20215F12 A
3T ERREEENTZE
N1 % ©

(i EBRKFIA
REBRBBEET B
EERIZ SR AL
AT ERMERE
K SR BEE=T
N BT B 5 W
RIAMEREBEFE Y
B TREIR R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE2021912H31HILFE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 MERREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 3.1 Bi¥EMEEE)
(b) Credit risk (Cont'd) (b) EHERE)
(i) Trade receivables (Cont'd) () EFEUGRIEE)

To measure the expected credit losses of trade receivables,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the ageing days, and assessed collectively or
individually for likelihood of recovery. The expected loss rates are
based on the payment profiles of sales and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macro economic factors affecting the
ability of the debtors to settle the receivables. As at December
31, 2021, the expected loss rate for trade receivables from
YCIH Group is around 0.52% (December 31, 2020: 0.50%),
with a gross carrying amount of RMB2,789,079,000 (December
31, 2020: RMB2,530,226,000) and the allowance provision of
RMB14,402,000 (December 31, 2020: RMB12,651,000). The
expected loss rate for the remaining trade receivables as at
December 31, 2021 is determined as follows:
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

B Z2021F12A31HILFE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 MEEREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 3.1 MERBERE)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d) (b) SRR E)
() Trade receivables (Cont'd) () EBHEYKIEE)
Up to 1to 2to 3to 4to Over
lyear  2years  3years 4 years 5 years 5 years Total
December 31, 2021 R2021%12831A -EHR -2-F CEZf  ZEME @mERE RENL &zt
Collectively assessed: At -
Expected loss rate BHELX 2% 7% 16% 28% 49% 100% 7%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  ASEB(ARET L) 628,482 258446 97,050 25367 25488 7,858 1,042,691
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) BSE&E(ARETT) (14,676)  (19,026)  (15121)  (7,141)  (12,574)  (7,858)  (76,396)
613,806 239,420 81,929 18,226 12,914 - 966,295
Individually assessed: BT -
Expected loss rate BHEAE - - - - - 100% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  EEB(ARET L) - - - - - 347 3,417
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) EEEE(ARE T L) - - - - - (3417)  (3417)
613,806 239,420 81,929 18,226 12,914 - 966,295
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

B F2021F12A31HIEFE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 M¥ERERGE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 3.1 MEEBRERE)
Credit risk (Cont’d) (b) SRR E)
Trade receivables (Cont’d) () EBHEYKIEE)
Upto 1to 210 3to 410 Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 5 years 5 years Total
December 31, 2020 H2020%12A318 —EHRN  —E-f ZE=F ZENF QEERF  AFNE &5t
Collectively assessed: At -
Expected loss rate BHEAE 1% 10% 20% 30% 50% 80% 6%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  AREB(ARET L) 692,651 232,022 59575 45517 7,583 8,617 1,045,965
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) BEAE(ARETT) (6,927)  (23202) (11,915 (13,655  (3,791)  (6,894)  (66,384)
685,724 208,820 47,660 31,862 3,792 1,723 979,581
Individually assessed: BT -
Expected loss rate BHELX - - - = = 100% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  AEEB(ARET L) = = = = = 3,417 3417
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) EEEE(ARE T L) - - - = = (3.417) (3417)
685,724 208,820 47,660 31,862 3,792 1,723 979,581
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’'d)

(b)

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

Credit risk (Cont’d)

(i) Trade receivables (Cont’d)

MBEREE(F)

3.1 EEBEEE)
b) (ERERE)

@)

The provision for trade receivables as at December 31, 2021

reconciles to the opening loss allowance for that provision

as follows:

B S REWGRIE(E)
REEKEZ 5 E WK
EM2021F12H31H
WHEIRIBRBEHERAE
ZEHYIELEE A
BEINE :

Provision for trade

receivables

B REBRERE

RMB’000

ARBTR

As at January 1, 2020 7202051 81H 55,234
Provision for impairment of trade REEFHERNE 5 RBGRIE B KB H 1

receivables recognised in profit or loss n(pEE22(0))

(Note 22(b)) 27,218
As at December 31, 2020 M20205612H31H 82,452
Provision for impairment of trade REEFHERNE ZEBGRIER KB E T

receivables recognised in profit or loss n(PIEE22(0))

(Note 22(b)) 11,767
Written-off during the year as uncollectible 74 & 1% §4 &9 A U Bl /9 FE U R (4)
As at December 31, 2021 720215128311 94,215

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the provision for
loss allowances were recognised in the consolidated income
statement in “net impairment losses on financial assets” in

relation to impaired trade receivables.

As at December 31, 2021, the gross carrying amount of trade
receivables was approximately RMB3,835,187,000 (December
31, 2020: RMB3,579,608,000), and thus the maximum
exposure to loss was RMB3,835,187,000 (December 31, 2020:

RMB3,579,608,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE2021912H31HILFE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 MERREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 3.1 Bi¥EMEEE)
(b) Credit risk (Cont'd) (b) EHERE)
(i) Notes receivable (i) EWEE

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide expected
credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected loss provision for all notes receivable. As
at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the impact of the expected
loss rate for notes receivable is assessed to be insignificant.
The loss allowance provision for notes receivable was not
material for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. As
at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the gross carrying amount
of notes receivable were approximately RMB107,019,000 and
RMB127,769,000, and thus the maximum exposure to loss
was approximately RMB107,019,000 and RMB127,769,000,
respectively.

Other receivables

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.

The Group uses four categories for other receivables, which
reflect their credit risk and how the loss provision is determined
for each of those categories.
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7N 52 B £ R B R B i
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MIBHBARERFZETDT
B AN R2021F &
2020F12831H ' &
WEBNBEBELTE
K ° 720214 22020
F12AH318 Bl
ZEMNEEEAAR
# 107,019,000 7T &
AR #127,769,000
7T Bt KB KRE
Bt B9 Bl A AR
107,019,000 A R
#127,769,0007C °

H b e

AR BN S S B
BERBBEENISHER
BRENBREIARER
[ f = A N EIE AN e
RAGHERRRES
ANEEN - A&EH
HEENHEHMNE
KRR K Z R A
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b - AEEEEET
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BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)
(iii)  Other receivables (Cont’d)

3.

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s

expected credit loss model is as follows:

Category
bl

Group definition of category

FEBGHRENESR

MBEREE(F)
1 MEEREEGE)

(b) EARKGE)

(iiy  EHAEYGR(E)
AEB BB REE
REE RN A RER A A
UM

Basis for recognition of expected
credit loss provision

BRARRERBRABENEE

Performing

Underperforming

RAE

Non-performing

TR

Write-off

%38

Customers have a low risk of default
and a strong capacity to meet
contractual cash flows

BEFPENRRREALGRE

==
REmE

mERR

Receivables for which there is a
significant increase in credit risk;
as significant increase in credit
risk is presumed if interest and/or
principal repayment are more than
30 days past due

ERRRBRZEMNEKFIE &
B R B E B30
X - RIRERIE R EREREE N

Customers has difficulties in making
full payment despite numerous
reminders; and if interest and/or
principal repayments are 90 days
past due

BEZERRE  BEPDAREXN
B ME R/ IASENAH
90K

There is no reasonable expectation of
recovery

BT AR E

12 months expected losses Where
the expected lifetime of an asset
is less than 12 months, expected
losses are measured at its expected
lifetime

1218 AE9FE AR L - W FEEATF/E
HE12EA 2 ANEE » Fa5HE
KRERHFEREFEDHNE

Lifetime expected losses

ESUFEEEEEES

Lifetime expected losses

ESUNEEEEEES

Asset is written off

ZIHEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE2021912H31HILFE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 MEEREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 3.1 MBERBERE)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d) (b) SRR E)
(iliy  Other receivables (Cont’d) (i)  EMEUGR(E)
The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately providing 75 [ A A K B
for expected credit losses on a timely basis. In calculating the EHERBXRBEER

expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical loss
rates for each category of other receivables and adjusts for
forward-looking macroeconomic data.

To measure the expected credit losses of other receivables,
other receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the ageing days, and assessed collectively
or individually for likelihood of recovery. As at December 31,
2021, other receivables from YCIH Group were performing,
the expected loss rate is around 6.98% (December 31, 2020:
0.46%) with a gross carrying amount of RMB4,673,000
(December 31, 2020: RMB3,930,000), and the allowance
provision was RMB326,000 (December 31, 2020: RMB18,000).
As at December 31, 2021, deposits were performing with a
carrying amount of RMB13,106,000 (December 31, 2020:
RMB11,601,000), and the impact of the expected loss rate
for deposits is assessed to be insignificant. As at December
31, 2021 and 2020, the remaining other receivables were
performing, and the expected loss rate for the remaining other
receivables is determined as follows:

EHERGES T BRERDERAR

REGBRNAELER
Rk - EFEEBE
RBXXE  A£H
SEEZREMEK
RHE £ (EAERE
I 48 IR AT IE 14 7 B
BERZEMEHRE -

BT = H A FE MR8
BHIEAEX A&
B 1z B HE R & {= AR
B 45 10T BR R K B
HihERRSE - I
£ 88 o M Bl B Uk 1=
BRI BE 1% - 720214
12A318 ' EEEKR
SEMEMERRA
EEER - EHEBX
L4 56.98% (20204F
12A31H : 0.46%) °
EEEAARE
4,673,000 7£(2020
F£12A318 : AR¥
3,930,000 ) © &
A AR #326,0007T
(20204128318 :
AR ¥ 18,0007T) °
2021 F 12 A 31
B RELAEHE
Al BEEEAARE
13,106,000 7t.(2020
F£12A318 : AR¥E
11,601,0007T) ' {R&&
CHBHBRAREE
TEK ° R2021F &
2020412 A318 -
ol &4 EL fth & U 5125 1F
¥ HEHERAX
EKEBEMT :
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BT EHmRMEE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE20214F12H31HIFFE

3

219

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(iii)

Other receivables (Cont’d)

MEREREE(E)

3.1 MEBRARREERE)
ERRR (M)

(b)

(i)  EMEUGR(E)

Up to 1to 2to 3to 4to Over
lyear  2years  3years 4 years 5 years 5 years Total
December 31, 2021 R2021%128318 -FHR -2 ZEZF  ZERE  QNFERF  RENE &zt
Expected loss rate BEEREXE - - 41% 81% 100% 100% 93%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BRE&E(ARK T Ir) 1 - 395 738 1,811 2,472 5,417
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) B%&EE(ARE T L) - - (163) (598)  (1,811)  (2472)  (5,044)
1 - 232 140 - - 373

Upto Tto 210 3to 410 Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 5 years 5 years Total
December 31, 2020 #2020%12A318 —EHR  -EZfF ZE=F =ZEZNF M[mERF AENE 5y
Expected loss rate BHEREAX 1% 10% 20% 30% 50% 80% 44%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BREZE(ARE T L) 251 558 899 1,826 472 2,000 6,006
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) BABE(ARETTT) 3) (56) (180) (547) (36) (16000  (2,622)
248 502 719 1,279 236 400 3,384
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

B F2021F12A31HIEFE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 UEBERERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 3.1 MEEBRERE)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d) (b) SRR E)
(i) Other receivables (Cont’d) (iiy  EHAEYGR(E)
Since the actual loss rates for each type of the other receivables R & 48 E A FE WK
and the adjusts for forward-looking macroeconomic data did B ERRIE R ERFA
not have significant change during the year, the directors of the WE It 7R B A B BUHR E
Company consider that the change in the expected credit loss B S B S AR R B
rate for provision matrix is insignificant throughout the year. HWmERES - iR
RRBEERARME
ERERTEREREX
E N

Provision for other

receivables

Hib R BE

RMB’000

AR¥T T

As at January 1, 2020 7202051 81H 2,878
Reversal of impairment of other receivables N4 [& 5118 i A £ 4th & Uk 518 K B2 5

recognised in profit or loss (Note 23(b)) ryEE ] (B sE23(b)) (238)
As at December 31, 2020 7202012 A31H 2,640
Provision for impairment of other RNEEFHER A E A EYGRIB RS

receivables reversed in profit or loss #9300 (P 3123 (b))

(Note 23(b)) 2,730
As at December 31, 2021 2021412 H31H 5,370
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the provision B E 20214 K20204F
for loss allowances were recognised in the consolidated income 122A31HILEE @ #
statement in “net impairment losses on financial assets” in 25 B B = b e Uk 2
relation to impaired other receivables. EHEMBERABERS

HABRPERA €
BEEFRERK] -
THERZERMERELIRNERAA 220
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

3

221

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’'d)

(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(iii)

(iv)

Other receivables (Cont’d)

As at December 31, 2021, the gross carrying amount of other
receivables was approximately RMB23,196,000 (December 31,
2020: RMB21,537,000), and thus the maximum exposure to
loss was approximately RMB23,196,000 (December 31, 2020:
RMB21,537,000).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide ECL
prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

As at 31 December, 2021 and 2020, all the fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) were notes receivable
and trade receivables, the impact of expected loss of fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) was assessed
to be insignificant.

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’'d)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain sufficient cash and sources of
funding through committed credit facility and maintain flexibility
in funding by maintaining committed credit lines. To manage the
liquidity risk, management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity reserve (comprising undrawn banking facilities) and cash
and bank deposits on the basis of expected cash flows. All the
borrowings are in compliance with relevant covenant terms if any
and the Group expected to fund the future cash flow needs through
internally generated cash flows from operations and borrowings from
financial institutions.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities that will
be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity grouping based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

BHE20219F12H31HIFFZ

MBEREE(F)
3.1 MBEREEHE)

(c)

RENME R IR

EEM R E R E R B
ERFEHNES  AKH
TERRBRENAGEERE
FiRRHAIEANESIAETT
AR RREE SRR
BHEN  EEENEMRS
MERERERALERD
AeHE(BIE T XARR
HMERITEER) BeRiR
TERERETER - PAAE
I A 8RR A R (40
B)  BAREEEEEE
NHBELNKEERSRER
& B AR BO 5 FUm B R IR AT
BEREFK -

TERATARES RMREZ
HED PR ARN S AR EE
BRRRAENS B EET
DM - RPMKENSHE
REFRARBRRETE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BT EHmRMEE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE2021F12A31HILFE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 HKEREEGE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 3.1 MIBEKMEE(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (Cont’d) () REMERKGE)
Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over 5
1year and 2 years and 5 years years Total
—FEHR —E°F —ZRF BEEUE st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETRE ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR

As at December 31, 2021  #2021512831H
Lease liabilities HEAE 22,992 18,516 11,043 3,862 56,413
Financial liabilities included in & AE 5 & & A &I 578

trade and other payables BeraEHEE31)

(Note 31) 3,052,330 - - - 3,052,330
Borrowings B 205,133 - - - 205,133
3,280,455 18,516 11,043 3,862 3,313,876

As at December 31, 2020  A2020512A831H
Lease liabilities HEAE 22,211 4,638 11,522 6,421 44,792
Financial liabilities included in 5t AE 5 & E b fE 4 XA

trade and other payables ERBEME)

(Note 31) 2,874,295 = = - 2,874,295
Borrowings B 158,845 - - = 158,845
3,055,351 4,638 11,522 6,421 3,077,932
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for equity holders. The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to equity holders, return capital to equity holders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on basis
of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debts divided by total

IR RR MR ()

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BHE20219F12H31HIFFZ
BERREREE)

3.2 EXERER

$%lm§$ﬁﬁ&%'%%E$

BRAEIEE - ARBIRIRME
ﬂﬁﬁ@ﬁm%%%%ﬁﬂé'ﬁ
B 445 RAER B AR EBLURIEE A
R o BT B ABRENERS
REBET LR AR N FREMNR
SHE RRRREER - BTH
MRk E B EARIERER -

BENRMAT—H AR
ARAELFRRIAR © JILE
JRRGF R B ABARE < FR

capital. Net cash is calculated as below. Total capital is calculated as “equity”
SEENAT o BERGER] (0
BHBBARRRAFIDINFEE -

as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position plus net debts.

R2021%12 8318 @ @BEFEREK
REBERBITER  MAEEEE

As at December 31, 2021, total borrowings are lower than cash and bank
deposits, accordingly, management of the Group considers the relevant

risk is not significant. [BR R NEX °
As at December 31,
M12831H
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBT T
Total borrowings (Note 32) BrER(pEE32) 200,473 156,140
Add: Lease liabilities (Note 29) jJu  HEAEMEE29) 51,089 37,726
Less: Cash and bank deposits (Note 25) & : 3% RiR1TF 71 (K&E25) (355,812) (529,389)
Less: Restricted cash (Note 24) B ZBRHIERE (FEE24) (119,036) (32,280)
Net cash (Note 34(c)) FIRE (MI5E34(0)) (223,286) (367,803)
Total equity ‘e 1,347,446 1,401,612
Total capital BENK 1,124,160 1,033,809
Gearing ratio BRBELE FEH TiE

R20214F 5202012 A31H - M
RERFREMRR - RERB R
EER

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the gearing ratio is not applicable
due to net cash position.
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o B 155 SR BT ot (48

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

3

225

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

3.3 Fair value estimation
(@)  The Group adopts the amendment to IFRS 7 for financial instruments
that are measured in the consolidated statement of financial position
at fair value, which requires disclosure of fair value measurements
by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1);

o Inputs other than quoted prices in level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2); and

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

3 MBERAREEGE)
3.3 DABEEME

(a)

ARER B R A B R B 7 e
AIE7R(EBTR)FEES
HEBRARPUARABE
AEMERTIA  AAEE
REREATRER

. HREEXAGBLER
TS RECREH
B)(F1E):

. BRTE1EMEREMN
WEN  ZEEME
ERABEN Lt
A AT RE RN
ER)EE(ARE
B (FE2-): &

. BEEMABETIFKRE
AEET SRR E
ACENEAT B R @A)
(£3E) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE2021912H31HILFE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d) 3 MEEREEE)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AAEBEME(E)
(b)  The Group’s financial assets that are measured at fair value include: (b) AEBEBURABESTENS
MEERE
Relationship of
Fair value at Valuation technique and  Significant unobservable unobservable inputs
Financial assets December 31,2021  Fair value hierarchy  key inputs input(s) to fair value
R2021E L LLDN-vek
SREE 12A31BNAAEE  DABEER HERNRIZAAEN EXFUBRBAEH MEENBEE
RMB'000
ARETT
Note receivables at FVOCl 95,221  Level 3 Discounted cash flow with  Expected future cash flow, The higher the future
future cash flows that discount rates that correspond cash flow, the
are estimated based on to the expected risk level. higher the fair
expected recoverable value; the higher the
amounts, discounted discount rate, the
at rates that reflect lower the fair value.
management's best
estimation of the
expected risk level.
AR BEE AEETH AL 95221  E3E BFRASR : AXRE  ARERER  REEHE  RRRLREX 2
FalianEIZE TR AT £ 5 RIKEMTRE - ABEEK 7R
REBEREMH LgK 2B
SERKEETE - ) -

EHERGERMERERLIRNERAA
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BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d)
(c) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised
cost.

The fair values of the following financial assets and liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts:

. Trade receivables;
3 Other receivables;
. Restricted cash;

o Cash and bank deposits;

o Lease liabilities;
o Financial liabilities included in trade and other payables; and
o Borrowings.

The fair values of non-current lease liabilities are estimated by
discounting the future cash flows at the current market rate available
to the Group for similar financial instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

4.1 Critical accounting estimates
Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience

and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk

of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Recoverability of trade receivables

The Group grouped trade receivables based on shared credit risk
characteristics, ageing days and applied simplified approach, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the trade receivables. Management assessed the
expected credit loss allowance of trade receivables using the risk
parameters including exposure default and expected credit loss rate,
which is determined based on probabilities of default and default
rates.

The lifetime expected credit loss allowance is determined based
on past settlement profiles and the observed default rates over
the expected life of the trade receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics and is adjusted with current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors that affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. In assessing forward-looking
information, the Group considers factors including economic policies,
macroeconomic indicators, industry risks and changes in customers’
conditions.

B HTEHRRMEE)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BHE20219F12H31HIFFZ

BEEgtHEs
&)
4.1 EEGHEE

HET A E SRR AR - WRIR
BEKBMEMERETHE B
REARBR T REEREEFH
BIRIEA -

REBEERRIEL HEHMIRER - B
SHEAIEESE  ROSH
HERGRER - RAKEEHRT
BEFRFENEEMBENREE
R ER R A (A 5T MR R & & 20
T e

(a) EZEWFIRKTEKME
AEBEIZRAARERRER
RN AR e X B E 5 IR UK
RIS - WEABIETE
H 2R 6 TR E 5 UK
TR ANERTRHEAIER o
EEERBE S EIGIRE
#IE e A TR B R K R 5T
BB S RWIRTREMERE
KW ERENRERNE
MR KR HEEBHERER

EHFEHBEARHERBE
$HE BB E N TG KR
ERRERFE SRR
FEMABRINEDER -
EE AR OR S PR SR e PN
MABREBLERZNE
B RATEEERMIELE - f£5F
RATIEEERE - AEEZE
BHRREBREKEERE - &
BRERR  TERRME
PERNELSE -
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BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Cont’d)

229

(b)

(c)

Estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

The Group’'s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment with reference to the estimated periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits from the
use of these assets. Management will revise the depreciation charges
where useful lives are different to that of previously estimated, or
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives and actual residual values may
differ from estimated residual values. Periodic review could result
in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore
depreciation charges in future periods.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in different areas in the PRC.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations
during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred income
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred income tax assets and taxation
charges in the period in which such estimate is changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION, REVENUE AND OTHER 5 %2 3% - xRk EHEMR
INCOME A
5.1 Operating segment information 5.1 K&EFWER

Entity-wide disclosures

The Group’s revenue and contribution to consolidated results are mainly
derived from the research, development production and sales of ready-mixed
concrete and related products, which is regarded as a single reportable
segment in a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s senior management for the purposes
of resource arrangement and performance assessment. In addition, all the
assets employed by the Group are located in Mainland China. Accordingly,
no segment information by profit, asset and liability is presented, other
than the entity-wide disclosures.

Geographical information

All of the Group's revenue is derived from customers based in Mainland
China, and all of the Group’s external customers and non-current assets are
located in the PRC. Accordingly, no segment information by geographical
segment is presented.

REEENE

REERPARERE ZEN TR
FEREEHERE RABERD
e - EEREE - WRIEE—
ESE - EAERAEEN SR
EREREANEREREEME
BEREMOERN AN -8 - It
N REBEFERBEEEHMR
FEIANL o Eitt - BREBEEEE
G WERET) BERAEESR
D ERE R ©

i &R
AEBEfAWRESHDRAMAHERA
HWHEE @ BEAEERIINIRS
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BT EHmRMEE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE20214F12H31HIFFE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION, REVENUE AND OTHER 5

231

INCOME (Cont’d)
5.2 Revenue

THER  WERHEME
A (&)
5.2 A

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A318LLEE

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®BTT ARBFIT

Sales of ready-mixed concrete HETEROR AT 2,086,038 3,977,477
Sales of polycarboxylic admixtures SHE BABE SN I 16,143 24,001
Sales of aggregates HEW AR 345 1,214
Quality and technology management service & & /il & 12 AR TS - 1,334
2,102,526 4,004,026

(@  The Groupis principally engaged in research, development, production
and sales of ready-mixed concrete and related products and providing
quality and technology management service.

The Group’s most senior executive management regularly reviews its
consolidated financial information to assess the performance and make
resource allocation decisions.

All of the revenue is recognised at the point in time when the control of
goods or service is transferred to the customers.

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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SEGMENT INFORMATION, REVENUE AND OTHER 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

INCOME (Cont’d)
5.2 Revenue (Cont’d)

(b)

Revenue from major customers is set out below:

BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

THER  hERHEME
A (%)

52 WA(#)
() FEEFHBARIMT :

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A318LLEE

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBFIT

Group A £@A 1,294,055 3,037,538
Group B £EB 83,933 128,139
Group C £EC 58,456 135,496
1,436,444 3,301,173

The customer portfolio of the Group is concentrated, which is
consistent with the industry practice. Group A represents YCIH Group
(Note 36(b)). If major customers substantially default in payment or
terminate the business relationship with the Group, it could materially
affect the Group’s financial position and results of operations.

AEENEPEAESD
BITXRED - REAKRTRE
FEREE (MEE36(b)) ° fif
TREPEBREEONKILE
AEBMEXBREE  JES
HAEBENP BN REE
REEREATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION, REVENUE AND OTHER 5
INCOME (Cont’d)

5.2 Revenue (Cont’d)
() Contract liabilities
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract

THER  WERHEME
A (&)

52 WA(#)
© AE&ME
AEEE BRI T KA

liabilities: MeRAaE :
As at December 31,
R12A318
2021 2020
20214 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT
Contract liabilities related to sales HEEEHERTEHENARAR

of ready-mixed concrete 5,981 1,093

(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows the amount of the revenue
recognised in the respective year related to carried-forward
contract liabilities.

iy ®REARAESEH
A
TRIRN S FE
REEESREE
BRAMKRATHE

Year ended December 31,

BEENANALEE
2021 2020
2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Revenue recognised that was SAFAEREEERT RN
included in the contract liabilities balance Yt A
at the beginning of the year
- sales of ready-mixed concrete ~HEBHERL 431 13,476
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION, REVENUE AND OTHER
INCOME (Cont’d)
5.2 Revenue (Cont’d)

(c)

Contract liabilities (Cont’d)
(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities (Cont’d)

As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated
to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed, because the
contracts have an original expected duration of one year or less.

(i) Contract liabilities represent advanced payments received from
customers for sales of ready-mixed concrete that have not yet
been delivered to the customers.

5.3 Other income

BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

THER  hERHEME
A (%)

5.2 WA (&)
() EREREE)

i) ®REARAESLH
B (48)
B0 200 8 O B g S
AIFE 155 B T A
oA RER/R
BEHFEHR—FHNA
T B EAEE D AL
EZFERENARD
R 5E °

(i) AREEERBER
PR MRXAT
5T AE SRR
TR -

5.3 Hitslzs

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A318LLEFEE

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥ETT ARBFIT

Government grants (Note (a)) B RS (B 3E(a)) 19,078 13,834
Rental income WA 97 407
Others HAth 1,068 1,705
20,243 15,946

Government grants mainly represent awards for the initial public
offering and grants for subsidising the Group’s general operation and
research and development activities received from PRC government
authorities. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies
attaching to these grants. The Group did not benefit directly from
any other forms of government assistance.

(@) BFMREERIER T EBA
HERENERAREER
) Ko P LA 5 B 7 4R (B 1) — AR
X R EEBEOMEE o Z
S5 773 i 07 8 B 7 AT 1l RS2
AR REMKEEIR - K
SEYEERZEEMT A
R AT RB)
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BHMBHRRNMEE)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE2021F12A31HILFE
6 OTHER GAINS - NET 6 HAuRIE-FHE
Year ended December 31,
BENA3MALEE
2021 2020
20215 20205
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETT
Gains/(losses) on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEARBE - BiE k& ERE/(B8E) 1,590 (36)
Others Hi 916 1,355
2,506 1,319
7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BRMESEMER
Year ended December 31,
BZN2AB31ALLEE
2021 2020
20214 20205
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
Raw materials and purchased goods consumed BRANEMHEMBEER 1,321,272 2,697,676
Transportation expenses BHAX 201,046 299,723
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) BIENRx (F:E8) 255,105 253,866
Outsourcing costs MR 130,537 189,268
Lease expenses HERX 44,513 91,355
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 13(a)) e PR (Fi7E13(a)) 945 703
Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment (Note 14(a)  FBE - B Rk EHE (HiEE14(a) 68,215 83,381
Depreciation of investment properties (Note 15) BREMEMERE (fiz15) 162 215
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16(a)) ER ARG (E16() 205 195
Net impairment losses on trade receivables (Note 22(b)) B S IE SR ERX (H22(0) 11,767 27,218
Net provision/(reversal) of impairment losses on HitERFFRBERE /(8E)
other receivables (Note 23(b)) (F3E23(b)) 2,730 (238)
Taxes and levies BRAREE 16,250 23,910
Utilities and electricity AREXREER 12,372 13,994
Maintenance expenses #ERX 13,270 12,741
Office expenses PARX 7.511 6,794
Travelling expenses EIRAS 5,854 4,031
Auditors’ remuneration RS 2,716 2,900
Miscellaneous Hitfix 17,118 32,517
Total cost of sales, selling expenses, administrative HERK PHEANTHERAREHE
expenses and net impairment losses on financial assets &EEFREBALE 2,111,588 3,740,249
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S

BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

BIEMNHAX(BREESERK
EREEENE)

EMOLUMENTS)
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLFE
2021 2020
2021F 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARETTT
Salaries, wages and bonuses e ITERTELA 167,605 197,344
Contributions to pension plans (Note (a)) R EIHER (M 7E(a)) 30,282 2,717
Housing fund, medical insurance and other social FREAESE - BERBEEM
insurance (Note (b)) g AU () 39,696 31,234
Other benefits Hhtas 17,522 22,571
255,105 253,866

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group contributes
to state-sponsored retirement schemes for its employees in the PRC. The
Group's employees make monthly contributions to the schemes at 8% of
the relevant income (comprising wages, salaries, allowances and bonus,
and subject to maximum caps), while the Group contributes 16% to 19%
of such relevant expenses, subject to certain ceiling and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement schemes are responsible
for the entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable to the retired
employees. According to the notice issued by the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security on June 22, 2020, the Group enjoyed a
pension insurance exemption policy from February to December in 2020.

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to participate in various
government-supervised housing funds, medical insurance and other
employee social insurance plan. The Group contributes on a monthly
basis to these funds based on approximately 22% to 24% of the salaries
of the employees, subject to certain ceiling. According to the notice
issued by Yunnan Human Resources Bureau on February 28, 2020 on the
implementation of phased relief of social insurance for enterprises in Yunnan
Province, enterprises will enjoy the preferential policy of halving medical
insurance from February to June in 2020. The Group's liability in respect
of these funds is limited to the contributions payable in each period.

As at December 31, 2021, the Group had no forfeited contributions available
to offset contributions payable in future years. For the year ended December
31, 2021, the Group did not have any defined benefit plan.

() WBEFHEBREFENRT  A5EH
BRERBRESMERE BRI
ST - AEERE S ARA
BUA(BIELE & 2HK
TEA (PR —E LBR))HI8% M
STEIMER  MASER AR
FISTE16% = 19% it ZK (R E —
ELER) o AEMEEEIEAENE
L AR SR A SN AR AR 18 AR F) B0 B R A
Mo BREMMRIKRSHEIEERE
N FRKEENZIBRIKERFE
f - BREBRADE RS RESD
202046 A22 B MmERL » A
EEMR2020F2 AZ 12 ARHER
BERBBABEER o

by AEEHNFEEESEESEBFTR
EMEEARS « BERBEEA
EEMSRBR:TE - AEBEF AR
EBEFEMNH2%E24% T EH
BotRZEESHARCIBB—
ELER) - BRIBZEEANERBR
20202 A28 HEMHEm AR
MR tELASRBEHEORBA
2020F2 AZ6 A EZREBER
BIRFRERECR - RELES
ms » AEFNETRBRRES—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

£ BB T R 2 I ()

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

9 DIRECTORS’, CHIEFEXECUTIVES'ANDSUPERVISORS’ 9 EE - ES{THAERE

EMOLUMENTS E$00)

(a) Directors’, chief executives’ and supervisors’ (a) EEX - BETHABRE
emoluments = 5
Directors’, chief executives’ and supervisors’ emoluments are set out as BE TR ABREZHHH

237

follows:

FHHaT

Employer's contribution to

BEFHHATHE
Discretionary
Fees Salaries bonuses Benefit scheme Others Total
e ¥¢ BfERA RAlE Hit @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETR ARETR AR¥TR AR¥TT ARETT
Year ended December 31, 2021 HZ0E
12A318LEE
Executive directors WIER
Mr. Ma Minchao (541i) (i) it k() - 39 382 9 - 430
Mr. Zhang Yingyue (&) (ii SRAER A (i) - 490 392 79 2 963
Mr. Li Zhangjian (ZZ32) (iii) FERILA) - 49 - 3 - 52
Mr. Rao Ye (/%) (v) B () - 539 392 94 - 1,025
Mr. Lu Jianfeng (&5 #132) & 3% - 588 392 97 - 1,017
Mr. Zhang Long (&) (v) REELHEW) - 470 274 97 - 841
Ms. Hu Zhurong (4%425) T - 500 il 97 18 889
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Jiang Qian () (vi), (x) ERTEV), ) - - - - - -
Mr. He Jiangiang ({1E2) (x) WEBILE () - - - - - -
Mr. Liu Guangcan (BI6/8) (i), () BIEREAEV), ) - - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors  BUFH{TES
Mr. Yu Dingming (F7€8) TEARE 96 - - - - 96
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas (E£f)  TfEMEE 156 - - - - 156
Mr. Li Hongkun (Z4138) FRRE 9% - - - - 9%
Supervisors %
Mr. Gu Feng (A2) (viii, (x) AL i), (x) - - - - - -
Mr. Yang Guanglei (155 ) (viil), () #5XE £ i), ) - - - - - -
Mr. Guo Huan (3P&0) PEEA - 180 39 9% 28 3
Ms. LiNa (24 it - 217 37 85 1 340
Mr. Wu Xinhe (R377) (x) RIAEE () - - - - - -
Ms. Li Yan (Z38) (ix), (x) FELE(K), () - - - - - -
Mr. Chang Hongbing (F4LE) (ix), (x) FALEIEA(X), (¥ - - - - - -
348 3,072 2,182 655 49 6,306
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

9 DIRECTORS’, CHIEFEXECUTIVES'ANDSUPERVISORS’ 9 E=E - B {THAERE

EMOLUMENTS (Cont‘d) S5 (&)
(a) Directors’, chief executives’ and supervisors’ (a) EEX - BETHABRE
emoluments (Cont’d) EHM(E)
Employer's contribution to
BEEELHATER
Discretionary
Fees Salaries bonuses  Benefit scheme Others Total
i e FfsEa TR Eth 5y
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Year ended December 31, 2020 HZE2020%F

12A31ALEE

Executive directors BTES
Mr. Ma Minchao (&) e Gtk - 557 162 53 12 784
Mr. Rao Ye (E/%) BT - 557 165 53 3 778
Mr. Lu Jianfeng (2 &13) EFlS - 557 166 53 6 782
Ms. Hu Zhurong (Fi%4%) ilC Sean - 476 73 53 42 644
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. He Jiangiang ({1 2%) Gty - - - - - -
Mr. Liu Guangcan (Z15¢4) sk - - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors  BUFFHITES
Mr. Yu Dingming (F7EE) TEREE 9% - - - - 9%
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas (Ef£ff) ~ FEMESE 156 - - - - 156
Mr. Li Hongkun (Z41%) TR E 96 - - - - 96
Supervisors 22
Ms. Li Yan (%) E> 3o - - - - - -
Mr. Chang Hongbing (41 &) BALEE - - - - - -
Mr. Guo Huan (302 PEsEE - 206 60 48 29 343
Ms. Li Na (345) Fiat - 179 52 Y] 2 275
Mr. Wu Xinhe (237)1) RIAEE - - - - - =

348 2,532 678 302 94 3,954
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BT EHmRMEE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE20214F12H31HIFFE
9 DIRECTORS’,CHIEFEXECUTIVES' AND SUPERVISORS’

239

EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

(a) Directors’, chief executives’ and supervisors’
emoluments (Cont’d)

(i) Mr. Ma Minchao ceased being the chairman of the Board in January
2021.

(i) Mr. Zhang Yingyue was appointed as the chairman of the Board
in January 2021 and ceased being the chairman of the Board in
November 2021.

(i)~ Mr. Li Zhangjian was appointed as the chairman of the Board in
December 2021.

(iv)  Mr. Rao Ye ceased being an executive director and the vice chairman
of the Board in November 2021.

(v)  Mr. Zhang Long was appointed as an executive director and the vice
chairman of the Board in December 2021.

(vi)  Mr. Jiang Qian was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Board in January 2021.

(vii)  Mr. Liu Guangcan ceased being a non-executive director of the Board
in January 2021.

(viii)  Mr. Gu Feng and Mr. Yang Guanglei were appointed as Supervisors
in January 2021.

(ix)  Ms. Li Yan and Mr. Chang Hongbing ceased being Supervisors in
January 2021.

(x)  The directors and supervisors who did not receive any remuneration
from the Group during 2021 and 2020 take part-time positions in the
Group only. All of their remunerations were paid by the Company’s
shareholders and/or their subsidiaries, not by the Group.

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

DIRECTORS’, CHIEFEXECUTIVES’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits
There is no directors’ retirement benefits operated by the Group.

Directors’ termination benefits
There is no directors’ termination benefits operated by the Group.

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, no consideration
was provided to third parties for making available directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, bodies corporate
controlled by or entities connected with directors

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, there were no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors, bodies corporate
controlled by or entities connected with directors.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the years ended

December 31, 2021 and 2020.

B FE2021F 1231 HIEFFE

9 EE RETHRAERE
SHM(E)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

9 DIRECTORS’, CHIEFEXECUTIVES'ANDSUPERVISORS’ 9 EE - B {THAERE

EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d) E$00 1€,
(g) Five highest paid individuals (9) EUERSHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group HZE2021F12A31HIEFE » &
included 4 directors during the year ended December 31, 2021 (2020: 4), EEEaFMNRAMLALRENS
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 9(a). The BEQ020FF 1 4%) - I E
emoluments payable to the remaining 1 individual during the year ended BB 52 9(a) FT R 2 AT P I B © &L
December 31, 2021 (2020: 1), are as follows: F2021F12A31BHIEFE » R
BT —2 ALTQ020%EE  1R)ME
[ UNNE

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A318LLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Salaries and wages e I8 470 445
Bonuses TEAT 363 116
Contributions to pension plans RSB REMATE
and other social insurance IREREER 95 53
Other benefits HibaF| - 8
928 622
The number of highest paid non-director individuals whose remuneration M EE 7 NG = S 5 A B9 2 B
fell within the following bands is set out below: Eidll N
Number of individuals
A
Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31BLFE
2021 2020
2021 2020%F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,000/ 7C 22,000,000 70 1 -
1 1

241 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

10 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

10 BigW=ER

gH

Year ended December 31,
HZE12A31BLLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT ARET T
Interest income: B -
- Bank deposits —RITER 9,618 4,403
— Deposits placed in YCIH Financial Company —{FREmEREF KA RFR
(Note 36(f)) (FF7E36()) 314 342
Exchange gains P& 5 W e - 171
Total finance income B e 485 9,932 4,916
Interest expenses: FMEER :
— Bank borrowings —IRITIER (5,318) (4,303)
— Lease liabilities —HEaE (2,203) (3,147)
Exchange losses FE W18 2K (648) -
Others Eith (413) (531)
Total finance costs B T5 B FREE (8,582) (7,981)
Finance income/(costs) — net FEEWE(ER) 1,350 (3,065)
ETHERGESMUREEREIBROBRAR 242
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BT EHmRMEE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

B Z2021F12A31HILFE
A
11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 FEBER
The amount of income tax expense charged to the consolidated income statement EHFERAZENMEHERE
represents:
Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31BLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Current income tax EHMEH 15,593 56,312
Deferred income tax (Note 18) RIEPTIS B (M45E18) (7,249) (5,424)
Income tax expense FIEHER 8,344 50,888
(@  Under the Law of the PRC on Corporate Income Tax (the “CIT Law") and (@) IRIBREMEFRERE(DERSE
implementation regulations of the CIT Law, the tax rate of the Group is BiE D) ROEFREREEmMAE -
25% from January 1, 2008. The income tax rate of 25% is applicable to the AREEBE2008%F1 81 BT =X
Group, except for: i) the Company and Polymer Company are qualified as B25% o AEER  VAATERS
High-tech Enterprises and enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15% for SF A EEBETRTCEEEE
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020; ii) Qujing Building Material 2021%2020%F12 B3 1B RAAER
is qualified as a High-tech Enterprise and enjoys a preferential income tax BEXA15% : i)HEEMEES
rate of 15% for the year ended December 31, 2021; iii) Baoshan Building HEMOCEEEE20219F12 A31
Material enjoys a preferential income tax rate of 15% according to the AiEAREHEREA15% i)z
policies of Western Area Development for the year ended December 31, Ll 2 PR P SR A B B S 722021
2021. FI2ANBERABHEEREXRL
15% @ HErFARIREAMET X
#25% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d) 11 FIBHERE)

Year ended December 31,
HZE12A31BLLEE

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBT T
Profit before income tax B P45 B AT A B 15,037 277,977
Tax calculated at the domestic CIT rate applicable &3 A A E TSR =R
FTERTIE 25% 25%
3,759 69,494
Tax effect of: HIERE -
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose NRIHIBEE A 1,008 1,596
Additional deduction of research and BIMNBEEEMERE
development expenses incurred (1,278) (691)
Effect of preferential income tax rate of the Group AEBEERATSHENTE 4,855 (19,511)
Income tax expense HIEZH 8,344 50,888
ETHERGESMUREEREIBROBRAR 244
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

245

(a)

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares issued or deemed to be issued.

12 SRz
(a) HAERUZBEFENRARRR
BENFE  BRUAFASEITHIR
[T EITR T AR INETHER
Year ended December 31,
HZ12A31BLLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Profit attributable to equity holders of the — SRBR AR RIFTE &K FIE
Company (RMB’000) (AR¥FT) 701 206,451
Weighted average number of ordinary BT EERINEF S
shares in issue in thousands (F5&%) 446,272 446,272
Basic earnings per share (RMB) EARFGREE(ARE) 0.00 0.46

The diluted earnings per share was the same as the basic earnings per
share as there was no potential dilutive share issued during the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE2021912H31HILFE

13 LAND USE RIGHTS 13 tTibFERRE
The Group and Company's interests in land use rights are recognised as right- AR B R AN B A+ AP R 2 R A T AR
of-use assets and represent prepaid operating lease payments for land located in REAEEE  BAPEIRATMEASE
the PRC, the net book values of which are analysed as follows: HBENEEREER - EREEFESN

T

Year ended December 31,

BE12A318LFE

2021 2020

2021F 20204

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBFIT

Cost XA 49,256 37,176
Accumulated amortisation BT (6,569) (5,624)
Net book value BREFE 42,687 31,552
Opening net book value B BREDFE 31,552 20,102
Additions N 12,080 12,153
Amortisation charges (Note 7) o > (k7)) (945) (703)
Closing net book value HRAREF A 42,687 31,552
(@)  Amortisation of land use rights has been charged to the consolidated (@) THERAEBREREHAIERNE

income statement (Note 7) as follows: S (fEE7)0T -

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HLLEE

2021 2020

2021F 20204

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETTT

Administration expenses TRER 945 703
ETHERGESMUREEREIBROBRAR 246
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

B SRR (E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 T 8E  BERRZRE

247

Right-of-
Right-of-  use assets-
use assets-  machinery Machinery
buildings and  Buildings and Motor Electronic Other  Construction
and facilities ~ equipment  and facilities  equipment vehices  equipment  equipment in progress Total
kR kR
EE-87R EE-BER gz &
Edi] Bt e RRE B ETRE  AbEE  REIR it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TR  ARMTR  ARBTr  ARETn  ARMTR  ARBTz  ARETn  ARETR  ARET:
As at January 1, 2020 HNE1R18
Cost Ak 51817 2309 234683 208,934 11,791 7,635 3,009 4579 645,540
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZiERAE (04760 (16106)  (152368)  (1506%)  (92,744) (6,064 (2628) - (51,09
Net book value ERSE 034 6,986 82315 58,282 19,047 157 B 4579 194,502
Year ended December 31, 2020 BR0ENENRLLEE
(Opening net book value SRERE 134 6,986 82315 58,28 19,047 151 381 4579 194,502
Additions HE 7805 29,126 6,670 8,599 103 688 605 35,791 89,387
Transfer from investment property (Note 15) REkEEER (M) - - 13 - - - - - n3
Transfers &4 - - 7615 4,169 - - - (1 =
Disposzls RE - - (151) (344) (61) ) - - (562)
Other decreases Efhg) - - - - - - - (839) (839)
Depecition (ot ) FEH) 0% (188 o4y @am 60 (1069 ) - BB
(Closing net book value SRELFE 19,180 1724 47 47819 13,025 1,190 561 2,141 199,280
As at December 31, 2020 H2020$128318
Cost Bk 34,164 29238 23193 216,466 109,876 8,145 3614 20,141 661,183
Accurulated deprecition and impairment ZitiERiE (14984 (12014 (159459  (168587)  (96851) (6955) (3053) - (461,903
Net book value FEAE 19,180 1724 474 47819 13,025 1,190 561 2,141 199,280
Year ended December 31, 2021 BEENNENANALER
Opening nt bock vle HIERIE 080 T MM Hgm RS 1,190 0 mm 199280
Addtions e 30,683 20,530 5 4889 1189 1390 30 12,00 71,506
Transer fom investment property (Note 15) REEEHEER () - - 2205 - - - - - 2,205
Transfers & - - 20,14 338 - 5 8 ) -
Disposals RE (4541) - (25) (252) (20) (17) @ - (4857)
Depreciation (Note 7) REM) (18,866) (14,449) (12,138) (16,808) (#209) (1,298) (427) - (68,215)
(Closing net book value BREESE 26,456 3305 83,002 39,056 9,965 1836 112 15,007 199,919
As at December 31, 2021 H01E02E318
Cost Bk 45,111 27,163 236,589 14783 110,406 9,520 4527 15,007 663,196
Accumulated deprecition and impairment EERAE (18,655) (3858)  (153497)  (175721)  (100,441) (7,68) (3415) - e
Net book value KESE 26,456 23,305 83,09 39,056 9,965 1,836 1112 15,097 199,919
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE2021912H31HILFE
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 14 TBE  BRERREE)
(a)  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment has been charged to the (@) THBE - WERZEITEREHH
consolidated income statement as follows: BREOIZHEINT -

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A310LLEE
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREET T
Cost of sales SHE KA 58,432 76,004
Administrative expenses THER 9,783 7,377
68,215 83,381
ETHERGESMUREEREIBROBRAR 248
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BHMBHRRNMEE)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE20214F12H31HIFFE

15

249

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15 REUFEHBE

Buildings
and facilities
BFREE
RMB’000
AR®T T
As at January 1, 2020 7420201818
Cost BXA 5,427
Accumulated depreciation BEITE (2,606)
Net book value BREFE 2,821
Year ended December 31, 2020 B ZE2020F12831HILEE
Opening net book value ERFARE A 2,821
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (Note 14) & | T EE - BE K& (HiE14) (173)
Depreciation (Note 7) e (fEE7) (215)
Closing net book value EARBREDR(E 2,433
As at December 31, 2020 742020128318
Cost %N 5,183
Accumulated depreciation 2ETE (2,750)
Net book value AR A 2,433
Year ended December 31, 2021 HZE2021F12A318 LEE
Opening net book value HRFAREFE 2,433
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (Note 14) #EE BT HE - M= K& (HiE14) (2,205)
Depreciation (Note 7) & (fIEE7) (162)
Closing net book value BRSRAREDFE 66
As at December 31, 2021 7"20215E12A31H
Cost B 2,978
Accumulated depreciation ZEHITE (2,912)
Net book value BREFE 66
Fair value at end of the year (a) FRANEEQ) 344

(@)  As at December 31, 2021, the investment properties, located in Kunming
city, are valued by the comparison approach with reference to comparable

market transactions. The fair value of these properties falls into the category

of fair value measurements using significant observable inputs (Level 2)

including comparable price in the market.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

EE20219F12H31 HIFFE
15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd) 15 REMFEHE(E)
Amounts recognised in profit and losses for investment properties: KREMHEED TIBm AEREEE -

Year ended December 31,

BE12A31ALFE

2021 2020

2021F 20204F

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARBFIT

Rental income HeWA 27 46
Direct operating expenses from property ELXHSBANKREEEHE

that generated rental income WEZLELER 6 7
Direct operating expenses from property TEEHSWANKRE LR

that did not generate rental income ENEELEER 156 208

THERZERMERELIRNERAA 250
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BHMBHRRNMEE)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE
16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16 BI&EE
Purchased Computer
software
BEITEREY
RMB’000
AR®T T
As at January 1, 2020 7420201818
Cost (BN 1,272
Accumulated amortisation RET R (342)
Net book value BREFE 930
Year ended December 31, 2020 HZE2020F128318 LEE
Opening net book value HRYNARE FE 930
Additions NE 320
Amortisation (Note 7) BGE(M7E7) (195)
Closing net book value HRAREFE 1,055
As at December 31, 2020 7A202012H31H
Cost BRAR 1,592
Accumulated amortisation EETHEEH (537)
Net book value BREFE 1,055
Year ended December 31, 2021 HZE2021F12A318LLEE
Opening net book value B BREDFE 1,055
Additions NE _
Amortisation (Note 7) B (PfI5E7) (205)
Closing net book value HREREFE 850
As at December 31, 2021 A2021%12H31H
Cost BN 1,592
Accumulated amortisation EETHEE Y (742)
Net book value BREDFE 850
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

(@)  Amortisation of intangible assets had been charged to the consolidated

income statement (Note 7) as follows:

16 BIELEEGAE)

(a) BREEHERAHIBRPIIE
(MEE7)8F

Year ended December 31,

BZE12A318LFE
2021 2020
2021F 20204F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBFIT
Administrative expenses THER 205 195
17 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 17 HEpEREEE
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Prepayment for land use rights — i fE M E A AEE
and other right-of-use assets ETARK - 16,933
Prepayment for certificate of gravel mining — R AREETENRK 800 800
Prepayment for equipment — WS RABTENT 5,397 649
6,197 18,382
THERZERMERELIRNERAA 252
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BHMBHRRNMEE)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

B Z2021F12A31HILFE
18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS 18 RILFAEREE
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2021 2020
2021F 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBFT
Deferred income tax assets: RIEFEHEE -
- to be recovered within —1£ 1218 A AU E HIRIEFT 1S T & 2
12 months 26,789 19,550
— to be recovered after more — BB 12(8 A2 Uk Bl H IR IEFT 1S T & 2
than 12 months 495 751
27,284 20,301
Movements in deferred income tax assets, without taking into consideration the BIEFEHREE(CRBZEBERAIIER—
offsetting of balance within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: BB EEER NS NESHNT :
Difference
between
Provision for accounting
Impairment close down treatment Financial
onproperty  Provision  restoration and and tax law assets
plantand  for doubtful ~ environmental  Provision for Accrued  onlease  Accelerated  measured at
equipment debts cost inventories  expenses contract  depreciation  fairvalue  Tax losses Total
£itRE
T3E- g2 HREARN HAREE
HER Rk RitEh ENEHER
Deferred income tax assets BEfEnEE RERE  ARER HARE  RERE  BER 2 IBAE %9 REEE g
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB00  RMB'00  RMB'OOO  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARET
ARETR  ARMTR ARETR  ARETR ARMTR  ARETZ  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR T
As at January 1, 2020 H202081818 359 10,159 133 8 13 a4 194 31 14791
Recognised i the consoldated income statement ~ HARFIERHERER ) 4579 i) (28) (55) 51 694 = 544
Recognised in the consoldated statement RelGAEERERE]
of comprehensive income - - - - - - - 8 86
As at December 31, 2020 A2000%128318 3 14738 1,564 - 68 505 2658 f7 - 0301
Recognised i the consoldated income statement  IABHIERBERRR - 1676 (979) - - (128) (13%) - 806 749
Recognised i the consoldated statement ReGAEERERE]
of comprehensive income - - - - - - - (266) - (266)
As at December 31, 2021 HONENENA M 16,414 565 - ) 307 128 m 8076 2.8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

19 2RITESE

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2021 2020
2021F 2020%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFTT
Assets per consolidated statement GO BRRKRE2INNEE
of financial position
Financial assets carried at amortised cost AR AT EHN S RIZE
— Trade and notes receivables (Note 22) —& 5 UL ZRIE & BN ZE 1 (MizE22) 3,847,991 3,624,925
— Other receivables (Note 23) — Hfth YR (B 5E23) 17,826 18,897
— Restricted cash (Note 24) —ZRHIRE (KfizE24) 119,036 32,280
— Cash and bank deposits (Note 25) — 8% RIRTTFER(HE25) 355,812 529,389
Financial assets at fair value through A AR EEE B HE T AHMARS W
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) =SB E (MEE21)
(Note 21) 95,221 80,003
4,435,886 4,285,494
Liabilities per consolidated statement EHFBRRAERZETNEE
of financial position
Financial liabilities carried LA SRR AT EN BE
at amortised cost
— Lease liabilities (Note 29) —HEaE(HE29) 51,089 37,726
— Financial liabilities included in trade and — & 5 K £ 4th & {xt 308 (M47E31)
other payables (Note 31) 3,052,330 2,874,295
— Borrowings (Note 32) —fER(FI5E32) 200,473 156,140
3,303,892 3,068,161
THERZERMERELIRNERAA 254

2021F EW|E



)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

B SRR (E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

20 INVENTORIES

20 F7E

As at December 31,

MW12831H
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TF AREET T
Cost: AN
Raw materials R 26,888 30,427
Spare parts fEmE 576 482
27,464 30,909
Provision for write-down: BB A
Raw materials Err Rt _ _
Inventories — net FEFEAE 27,464 30,909

The cost of inventories recognised as cost of sales amounted to approximately
RMB1,321,272,000 for the year ended December 31, 2021 (2020:
RMB3,569,094,000).

No provision for inventories has been made during the year ended December
31, 2021 (2020: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21 URAAEBEEBEH&F:
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AHMGERENERMEE

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBT T

Notes receivable — related parties JE Uk 22 9% — R O (P E36(1))

(Note 36(i)) 11,908 31,649
Notes receivable — third parties EWEE-%=7 83,313 48,354
95,221 80,003

22 TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 22 ESRWFERERERE

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARBT T
Trade receivables — related parties B 5 MW R IE — BB 77 (M EE36(3))
(Note 36(i)) 2,791,014 2,543,273
Trade receivables — third parties BHRYKIE—E=7 1,044,173 1,036,335
3,835,187 3,579,608
Less: Provision for impairment of B FEMER OB E 2EH (M aE(b))
receivables (Note (b)) (94,215) (82,452)
Notes receivable — related parties JE Uk = 9 — R O (P 5E36(1))
(Note 36(i)) 61,895 -
Notes receivable — third parties EREE-%=7 45,124 127,769
Trade and notes receivables — net B 5 REWGRIE N R — F R 3,847,991 3,624,925

R20214 %2020 12 8318 - AEBMEH
SRR REREEA A BEEERE
EART -

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the fair values of trade and notes receivables
of the Group approximated their carrying amounts.

MN20214 220209128318 » E5EK
FIB R EWEER T A BREE A RS
@ °

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, all the carrying amounts of trade and notes
receivables were denominated in RMB.

As at December 31, 2021, the notes receivable of RMB30,473,000 (December
31, 2020: RMB56,140,000) were pledged for borrowings of RMB30,473,000
(December 31, 2020: RMB56,140,000) (Note 32(b)).

M20214F12A318 + AR#30,473,000
7t(20205 128318 : AR¥56,140,000
TTOMEWZREFGAET  EALE
B ER A R #30,473,000 7T & 5 EY &R
(2020412 A31H : AR¥56,140,000
70) (Ki5E32(b)) ©

THERZERMERELIRNERAA 256
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BT EHmRMEE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE20219F12H31HILFE
22 TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 22 BESRBURERERERE
(#&)
(@)  The ageing analysis of trade and notes receivables at the respective statement (@ RNBEEEBERA BHEKNE
of financial position dates, based on the recording dates, are as follows: FERERER AR B HNRER Y
Wi

As at December 31,

M12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFIT
-Within one year ——F A 1,867,233 2,772,317
—One to two years ——EZF 1,678,380 778,952
-Two to three years ——E=%F 315,651 87,196
~Three to four years —=ZENF 41,462 47,502
—Four to five years —NERF 26,493 9,195
—Over five years —RFNRE 12,987 12,215
3,942,206 3,707,377

The Group did not hold any collateral as security over these debtors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

22 TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(b)

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected credit
losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of the life time expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The expected credit losses also
incorporate forward-looking information. Note 3.1(b) provides for details
about the calculation of the allowance. As at December 31, 2021, provision
of approximately RMB94,215,000 was made against trade receivables
(December 31, 2020: RMB82,452,000).

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as

BHE20219F12H31HIFFZ

22 ESRURERERREE
(&)

(b)

NEEIRBI PR U B RS 2RI 95
B E F A AL R S TR B fE B R
ELBE - EHTEHAMEESER
SRIBE A BB EAIB R EE o ARl
EEBEREBX - EH5RUGIER
REEEARBREHLEHA#S
¥ o BHIERBRTERAEEE
B o i3 ()i TIREEEN
FEANETE o M2021%12A8318 -
B SRR FIBREERD AL AA
R #94,215,0007T (2020412 A 31
B : AR#¥82,452,0007T) °

B REGIRBEEFZLFMT

follow:
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A318LLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARBFIT
Beginning of the year F4 82,452 55,234
Provision for impairment on trade 2 S REYGRIBREER
receivables 11,767 27,218
Write-off for impairment on trade & 5 [EWGRIER B 1% 5
receivables (4) -
End of the year FR 94,215 82,452
THERZERMERELIRNERAA 258
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

B SRR (E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

23 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

259

23 FEF IR H UK

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2021 2020
2021F 2020%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Other receivables — related parties ot pE R — RA 5 (BT EE36(1)
(Note 36(i) 4,693 3,932
Other receivables — third parties HtpERR—E=7 18,503 17,605
23,196 21,537
Less: Provision for impairment of other  J& : E fth R UCFURE X4 (FT 5 (b))
receivables (Note (b)) (5,370) (2,640)
Other receivables — net B fth fE Wk — 558 17,826 18,897
Prepayments TEfTFRIE 10,358 3,483
Interest receviable FEWH S 7,555 2,571
Other current assets Hihmeh & E 3,266 4,682
Prepayments and other receivables — net F&/s #kIE K E Ath fE UL 3k — %48 39,005 29,633

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the fair values of other receivables of the
Group approximated their carrying amounts.

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, all the carrying amounts of prepayments

and other receivables were denominated in RMB.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

23 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 23 FENERRHMEWKR(E)

(@)  The ageing analysis of prepayments and other receivables at the respective (@) REAEABRA  BANFERH
statement of financial position dates, based on the recording dates, are as b FE WOR EE A AR B ER B9 BREC D AT
follows: UM

As at December 31,

R12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETTT
~Within one year ——F A 30,579 20,813
—One to two years ——ECfF 3,229 2,249
~Two to three years —ZE=fF 2,004 2,760
~Three to four years —=ENEF 2,296 2,628
—Four to five years —NEREF 2,606 582
—Over five years —hFNAE 3,661 3,241
44,375 32,273
The Group did not hold any collateral as security over these debtors. REFNFA FAEAKMNER
2.
EHERGERMRRERLIRHDAR AR 260
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

23 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont‘d)

(b)  To measure the expected credit losses, other receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the ageing days. The expected
credit losses also incorporate forward-looking information. Note 3.1(b)
provides for details about the calculation of the allowance. As at December
31, 2021, provisions for impairment of approximately RMB5,370,000 were
made against other receivables (December 31, 2020: RMB2,640,000).

Movements on the provision for impairment of other receivables are as

23 FEMNRRREMEYK(E)

(b)

AFrETEEEREL - HtERR
BIREE{E RS BRI R B
DHE - BHIME ABKRINE RATE
MER o MEE3.1(b)IRHE T RE %
HRFFMAETE - R2021F12 /831
H @ EttERREEEAARE
5,370,0007C(20204 12 A318 -
AE#2 640,0007T) °

HAio R EE RN T

follows:
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A310LLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AR®ET T
Beginning of the year F7]) 2,640 2,878
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment E U FOREEERT R/ (EE)
on other receivables 2,730 (238)
End of the year FR 5,370 2,640
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE2021912H31HILFE
24 RESTRICTED CASH 24 ZRERE
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2021 2020
2021F 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBFT
Restricted cash at banks ZPRHRITIRE 119,036 32,280
Restricted deposits represented cash set aside for the issuance of notes payable STHREIFERERBTENEZE RBEH -
and provision for close down, restoration and environmental cost, as well as EREBRKKABRERENIRS - Hd
RMB14,431,000 freezed by courts as at December 31, 2021 due to business 2021612 A31 HER & DA 5 % R
disputes which was subsequently released in February 2022. HEHEEAARE14,431,0000T © BER

202242 RRBRRES ©

25 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS 25 BERIETER
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Cash and cash equivalents — RekB2EEY - ROIKEFRS
at banks and on hand 189,635 254,256
Cash and cash equivalents — at a ReRREEEBY — S mkE
financial institution (Note 25(c), 36(i)) (FffzE25(c) ~ 36(i)) 66,177 105,133
Term deposits — at banks TE B R—R1T 100,000 170,000
Cash and bank deposits RERBITER 355,812 529,389
THERZERMERELIRNERAA 262
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

25 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (Cont’d)
(@) All cash and bank deposits were denominated in RMB

263

25 RERBITER(AE)
(a) IERERBITERIU

or HKD. AR¥MBTFE
As at December 31,
MW12831H
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TF ARBT T
RMB AR 340,409 509,984
HKD BT 15,403 19,405
355,812 529,389

All cash at banks were deposits with original maturity within 3 months.
The Group earned interest on cash at banks at bank deposit rates ranged
from 0.01% to 0.35% during the year ended December 31, 2021 (2020:
0.01% to 0.35%).

All deposits at a financial institution were deposited in YCIH Financial
Company. It has original maturity within 3 months. The Group earned
interest at a deposit rate of 0.35% during the year ended December 31,
2021 (2020: 0.35%).

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ
26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 R
As at December 31,
®W12A318
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
Registered, issued and fully paid 2t - BITRAR
Number of shares (in thousand) &R (FR) 446,272 446,272
Share capital (in RMB’000) BRA(AREFT) 446,272 446,272
27 RESERVES 27 {248
Statutory
Capital reserve Other
surplus (Note 27(a)) reserve Total
EERE
EARBE (KFzE27(a)) Hit S #ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T T AR®T ARET T
As at January 1, 2020 7"2020F181H 417,342 43,059 (1,743) 458,658

Appropriation to statutory reserve 51z % 5F 7 {8 (M 7528)
(Note 28) - 17,444 - 17,444
Changes in the fair value of FVOCI LA R {BETE2 A HE
SFAHE MR A W K&
BEEQABER = - (308) (308)

As at December 31, 2020 7A2020%12A31H 417,342 60,503 (2,051) 475,794

Appropriation to statutory reserve #5#Z % 5F 7 {8 (HI7528)
(Note 28) - 323 - 323
Changes in the fair value of FVOCI A A BB S HHE
SEARMERAE R ENS

RMEEAEEE - - 1,389 1,389
As at December 31, 2021 720214128318 417,342 60,826 (662) 477,506
EHERFEEMERRLIRABRAR 264
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

27 RESERVES (Cont'd)

(a)

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the articles of
association of the PRC companies of the Group (the “PRC Companies”), the
PRC Companies are required to allocate 10% of their profits attributable to
the respective owners of the PRC Companies as set out in their statutory
financial statements, to the statutory surplus reserve until such reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of the respective PRC Companies.
The appropriation to the reserve must be made before any distribution of
dividends to the respective owners of the PRC Companies. The statutory
surplus reserve can be used to offset previous year ‘s losses, if any, and
part of the statutory surplus reserve can be capitalised as the share capital
of the respective PRC Companies provided that the amount of such reserve
remaining after the capitalisation shall not be less than 25% of the share
capital of the respective PRC Companies.

28 RETAINED EARNINGS

265

27 f#E(4E)

(a) EERE
RIBCPZEARKEFMBE R RLE) LA
SEHFENB(EEBIRBEAR A
512 FEARKRBATHERE

BBERPERQRSHEE AEFIN
10% RECATRHBATES © %
TEKAES RTHEINSHERN
Al E ABH50%E - A NER
o BENBERTRBEARSHES
ADERR B ZATIRI ° A &
AT MR8 A BT & FE 1 (10
BB EERBEBAI TINE
NMetEASREAAT Z A - HEE
TEBERE  EERBRFEED
SHEEE TMENS T EARRAH
25% °

28 Bl

The Group

TEH

RMB’000

AR®T T

As at January 1, 2020 720201818 262,937

Profit for the year FE A 206,451
Dividends to equity holders of the Company ARER AR 2 (B 7E33)

(Note 33) (60,470)
Appropriation to statutory reserve (Note 27(a)) B R E B (MEE27()) (17,444)
As at December 31, 2020 72020612A31H 391,474
Profit for the year FENHE 701
Dividends to equity holders of the Company BE A B (MI7E33)

(Note 33) (54,936)
Appropriation to statutory reserve (Note 27(a)) EREEERFETF27) (323)
As at December 31, 2021 M2021%12H831H 336,916
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

B F2021F12A31HIEFE
29 LEASE LIABILITIES 29 HESE
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2021 2020
2021F 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Minimum lease payments due FALATT BRI 2 R e AR R AR E < s
—-Within one year ——F AR 22,992 22,211
—Between one and two years ——E 18,516 4,638
—Between two and five years —ZEhRF 11,043 11,522
—Later than five years —RFENRE 3,862 6,421
56,413 44,792
Less: future finance charges W ARREI T (5.324) (7,066)
Present value of lease liabilities HEARERE 51,089 37,726
As at December 31,
®12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AR®ETTT
Within one year ——FUA 20,856 19,326
Between one and two years ——EfF 17,318 3,560
Between two and five years ——ERF 10,276 9,484
Later than five years —RAFNUE 2,639 5,356
51,089 37,726
EHERGERMRRERLIRHDAR AR 266
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

29 LEASE LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

267

The Group leases various properties and equipment and these lease liabilities
were measured at net present value of the lease payments during the lease terms
that are not yet paid.

Extension options are included in a number of property leases across the
Group. Extension options whether to be exercised are determined by the actual
manufactory period.

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to volume
of production. Variable lease payments that depend on volume of production
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers
those payments occurs, excluding minimising the fixed costs base for the volume
of production which is less than the agreed volume.

The total cash outflow for leases including payments of lease liabilities, payments
of interest expenses on leases for the year ended December 31, 2021 was
RMB42,288,000 (2020: RMB35,709,000).
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AREBEZBNERRE  RSUER
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AEBENZEMEENR B RREE
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==}

E °

ETHEROBRENESH BN MR
R o BURRE 2/ A] B8 & 4 5N 7%
SN TRAOAE B R (T B A e IR AN 1R 2 T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

& BRI AR (4)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ
30 PROVISION FOR CLOSE DOWN, RESTORATIONAND 30 BRI - EE R B R K &
ENVIRONMENTAL COST e
As at December 31,
R12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREBT T
Provision for close down, restoration and AR - 1B R RIRRA AN
environmental cost 5,217 11,255
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2021 2020
2021F 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARET T
Beginning of the year F4] 11,255 11,865
Reversals for the year FREEE (4,999) (1,929)
Additions for the year FRARNE 486 1,179
Unwinding of interest expense for the year FRTREENFEER 235 588
Payment for the year FRZA (1,760) (448)
End of the year FAR 5,217 11,255

As at December 31, 2021, according to related contract maturity, RMB3,157,000
(December 31, 2020: RMB8,035,000) was reclassified into current liability. Provision
for close down, restoration and environmental cost represented the estimated

amount and timing of future closure and restoration projects.

R2021F 128318 @ REHEBERE
w0 AFR#3,157,0007C(20204E12 A 31
B : ARK¥8,035,00070) W EH D EER
FEE - B - BB RIRERAREIE
RIREEEIREZEIEE OEFT B R -

EHERGZERMERERLIROHERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

31 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

269

31

As at December 31,

BS REMENKE

M12A31H
2021 2020
2021F 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFIT
Notes payable FERT IR 251,455 78,532
Trade payables — related parties B 5 R aaE — B 7 (M EE36())

(Note 36(i)) 141,267 147,151
Trade payables — third parties BORNRIE-—F=7 2,559,539 2,563,002
Other payables — related parties L FE ST RRIE — BB 5 (M RE36()

(Note 36(i)) 27,511 24,879
Other payables — third parties HibEARE-F=H 64,640 54,884
Staff salaries and welfare payable FERT B TH B R AEF 63,321 84,847
Interest payable JEAFIS 222 145
Dividends payable FERTAR S 7,696 5,702
Accrued taxes other than income tax FEET L IE (RIS BIBR SN 28,234 24,746

3,143,885 2,983,888

(@)  As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, all trade and other payables of the
Group were non-interest bearing, and their fair values, except for the
staff salaries and welfare payables and accrued taxes other than income
tax which are not financial liabilities, approximated their carrying amounts
due to their short maturities.

(b) At each of the end of the reporting periods, the Group's trade and other
payables are denominated in RMB.
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31 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d)

(0

The ageing analysis of trade payables at the respective statement of financial
position dates, based on the recording dates, are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

31 ESREMENRKIEE)

(0 REBEEAFEXRA

ERARBHRRESITOT

As at December 31,

- BHENOR

M12A31H
2021 2020
2021F 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
~Within one year ——F A 1,453,989 2,067,835
—One to two years ——ECfF 925,611 428,678
—Two to three years e 174,041 157,354
—Three to four years —=ENEF 100,506 34,492
—Four to five years —NERE 26,827 16,918
—Over five years —hFNAE 19,832 4,876
2,700,806 2,710,153
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

o B 155 SR BT ot (48

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE
32 BORROWINGS 32 &R
As at December 31,
R12831H
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREET T
Secured bank borrowings (Note (b)) BEMRITER (D)) 30,473 56,140
Unsecured bank borrowings I RIRITERK 170,000 100,000
200,473 156,140
(@) Al the borrowings were denominated in RMB. (a) FIBERHEURARKEE -
(b)  As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, analysis of secured borrowings are as (b) MR2021F K2020%F12A8318 ' &
follows (Note 21): B RBERERDTET ¢
As at December 31,
M12H831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARET T
Secured by trade and notes receivables  F JE Uk Z K 30,473 56,140
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

& BRI AR (4)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

32 BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

(c)  The maturity of borrowings is as follows:

32 fER(&)

(0 (EFRHEEMNT -

As at December 31,

®W12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Within 1 year —FR 200,473 156,140

(d)  The weighted average effective interest rates for borrowings at each year
end are as follows:

(d MNEEERBEXRA - EFXEOMET

BERMZMT

As at December 31,

M12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBFIT
Borrowings &k 4.53% 4.75%

(e)  The fair values of current borrowings equal their carrying amounts as the
discounting impact is not significant.

() BRIAROFTETEKN @ ELRE)
AR AR BEEARAERS -

EHERGZERMERERLIROHERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

33 DIVIDENDS
(a) Ordinary shares

(b)

273

33 KRR

(a)

BEERKRE

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2021 2020
2021F 2020%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Final dividend for the year ended HZE2020F12 8318 L FEHIRRK
December 31, 2020 of RMB0.1231 B &RE AR H ARE0.12317¢
per fully paid share (2019: (20194 € : AR¥0.13557T)
RMBO0.1355) 54,936 60,470

On March 26, 2021, the Board of Directors recommended a final dividend of
RMBO0.1231 each share for the year ended December 31, 2020, amounting
to a total amount of RMB54,936,000 calculated based on the total number
of shares in issue of 446,272,000. On May 25, 2021, the final dividend had
been approved by the shareholders at the annual general meeting and had
been distributed to the Shareholders on June 23, 2021.

Dividends not recognized as liabilities at the end of
year

(b)

R202143H268  EEEEED
K2020F EARHARR B TR A R
0.12317T ' HEBTRRMEE
446,272,00051E + HFtAARE
54,936,000 T ° Eit & B 72021
F5R25HBRAMKRREAFRE AR
R LE - WER2021F6H23H
e ZFHERER ©

any payment of final dividend

for the year ended December 31,
2021. The directors recommended
the payment of a final dividend of
RMB0.1231 per fully paid ordinary
share for the year ended December
31, 2020. The aggregate amount
of the dividend for 2020 paid in
2021 out of the retained earnings
as at December 31, 2020, but not
recognised as a liability at year
end, is

The directors have not recommended #(Z2021F12A31HILFE @ &5

EERTOIRERIE - 2122020

F12A31BLEFE  EFEZES

IEHARREEREHNERBRAR
#0.12317T @ LiliiRE S EREE
2020412 A31 BB FRER DR
BETERAFRBEE  BE12021
FIXfMN - @BEFA

TRIABREREBHRE

As at December 31,
M12A831H

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREFTT

- 54,936

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

EE20219F12H31 HIFFE
34 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 3 REFEENRE
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash (a) BBRFBBANERAGTA
generated from operations REEENES
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLFE
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREFTT
Profit for the year before income tax [&Fr5%: 1 FE 15,037 277,977
Adjustments for: FAEIER
—Depreciation of property, plant and — T EE - BE MR EHTE

equipment (Note 14) GEAE) 68,215 83,381
—Depreciation of investment properties—#% & 4 = &= H#7 & (Mf5£15)

(Note 15) 162 215
—Amortisation of intangible assets —ERAERE(MEE16)

(Note 16) 205 195
—Amortisation of land use rights — (b PR S (PR 13)

(Note 13) 945 703
~Finance (income)/costs (Note 10) — I ER— FE(HEE10) (1,350) 3,065
—(Gains)/losses on disposal of property, —BE & T EE - BB MR ENERE

plant and equipment (Note 6) (P 5E6) (1,590) 36
—Interest received on financial assets —{EAREFBHEREENFE

held as investments (400) =

81,224 365,572
Changes in working capital: EEEEY
—Restricted cash (Note 24) —ZBRHI13RE (FizE24) (86,756) (11,508)
—Trade receivables, prepayments —BSEKEIE « BARRREAME

and other receivables & (296,025) (1,187,663)
~Inventories (Note 20) — & (Mt3E20) 3,445 16,565
—Trade and other payables —EB 5 REMPERKRIE 163,905 837,657
Cash (used in)/generated BE(TH) EENRS

from operations (134,207) 20,623
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

34 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Cont’d)
(b) Non-cash investing and financing activities

275

(c)

ot R R M ek (AR

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

4 REELENRE(E)
(b) FRERENMETEE

Year ended December 31,

BZE12A3MBLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT

Convertion of other payable to
non-controlling interests

LA 8 A R TR AN FE 2R ) 1M A i ) 4R

- 4,200

Net cash reconciliation
This section sets out an analysis of net cash and the movements in net cash
for each of the years presented.

(o) FHREEHR
AEHHIFRSES R 2IIE
FEFREEED -

As at December 31,

®12A318

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBT T
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 255,812 359,389
Term deposits TEBATE R 100,000 170,000
Restricted cash 2GRS 119,036 32,280
Borrowings &k (200,473) (156,140)
Lease liabilities HEaE (51,089) (37,726)
Net cash H& 558 223,286 367,803

As at December 31,

M12H31H

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTIT
Cash and restricted cash RERZBHIES 474,848 561,669
Gross debt — fixed interest rate 1RETS — [EE F| = (170,000) (100,000)
Gross debt — variable interest rate 1EETS — F B FI R (81,562) (93,866)
Net cash I EFRE 223,286 367,803

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

34 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Cont’d) 3 REEEWNRE(E)

(c) Net cash reconciliation (Cont’d) (c) FHRESBEHRE)
Assets Liabilities
gz &f

Lease Lease

Cash Borrowings  Liabilities Liabilities

and cash Term  Restricted  due within ~ due within ~ due after

equivalents deposits cash 1 year 1 year 1 year Total
BER -ER -EREE -EEDE

REEEN  EARR  ERMBE  HEER  ZERAE  CERAE it
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARRTR ARETR  ARETR  ARRTR

Amounts as at January 1, 2020 R202051 A1BHIEE 640,009 - 20,172 (114,618) (13,132) (15,601) 517,430
Cash flows Reng (280,620) 170,000 11,508 (91,492) 35,709 - (154,895)
Non-cash change EES 5
- Acquisitions of leases -MEHEEH - - - - - (36,931) (36,931)
~ Interest expenses on lease liabilities ~ ~TEBEZHEHT = = = = = (3,147) (3,147)
- Offset notes receivable -BHENEE - - - 49970 - = 49,970
- Reclassffication -ENR - - - - (37,890) 37,890 £
~ Movement of provision for close down, —2 2185 - B2 RERNAEE

restoration and environment cost - - - - - (611) (611)
~ Movement to other non-current assets —~ 233 E MRS EE - - = - (4,013) = (4,013)
Amounts as at December 31, 2020 202012731802 % 359,389 170,000 32,280 (156,140) (19,326) (18,400) 367,803
Amounts as at January 1, 2021 R202151A1BRIEE 359,389 170,000 32,280 (156,140) (19,326) (18,400) 367,803
Cash flows Reing (103,577) (70,000) 86756 (100473) 4,288 - (145,006)
Non-cash change ESEES &)
- Acquisitions of leases -EHEEH - - - - - (46,676) (46,676)
~ Interest expenses on lease liabilities  ~TEEEZFEFHR - - - - - (2,203 (2,203)
- Offset notes receivable -BRENZE - - - 56,140 - - 56,140
~ Redlassification ~EHAE - - - - (43,083) 43,083 -
— Movement of provision for close down, —2¥EZIER « BERRRRAAR

restoration and environment cost - - - - - (6,037) (6,037)
- Movement to other non-current assets ~AEZIE t3EREEE - - - - (735) - (735)
Amounts as at December 31, 2021 K201 E12A318M2% 255,812 100,000 119,036 (200,473) (20,856) (30,233) 223,286
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

ot R R M ek (AR

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE2021F12A31HILFE
35 COMMITMENTS 35 A&
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of reporting period but REEBEABERAPEITNEMRELEDN
not recognised as liabilities is as follows: BARMZ AT
As at December 31,
®W12A318
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Property, plant and equipment TEE - BFEREE 8,433 15,276
36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 BHARXS
Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party has the ability, directly AR EEEES AN EENIT R
or indirectly, to exercise control or significant influence over the Group in making ISR ITRIE RIS eI EATE » %
financial and operating decisions. YCIH is the Company’s controlling shareholder. ﬁi’ﬂ}ﬁﬂfzﬁﬁlﬁ’jﬁﬁﬁﬁyﬁ o EFEIG JIA
NAEIZERRARR -
The Company is controlled by YCIH, which is a government-related enterprise KA EFEEIEY 4 E AREFEY
established in the PRC by Yunnan SASAC. In accordance with IAS 24 (Revised), léf;y\q: B 2 BT % o iBIERE
"Related Party Disclosures”, issued by the IASB, government-related entities and SR E eI Y B @ %8524
their subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled, jointly controlled or significantly 2 (KYSET) fﬁaa@gj‘j—pﬁﬁﬂ  BEERES
influenced by the government are defined as related parties of the Group. On BT W%\J&%ﬁij{%%mﬂ(
that basis, related parties include YCIH and its subsidiaries (other than the Group), }ﬁg‘gﬁ&ﬁ% BT A 7K 2 [ v R R
entities controlled by Yunnan SASAC, other entities and corporations in which the F oo B - @a B4t 7’5@%@ HEERE
Group is able to exercise significant influence and key management personnel of FATNAREBERKRIN) EEEREE TS
the Company and as well as their close family members. The Group'’s significant TR  ANEFETTHEEASEHZ Hit
transactions and balances with the PRC government and other entities controlled, FEELEEH  AQNFTETEAERHER
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC government mainly include ERREERK S o z]x’% BEACBBF -
deposits and borrowings, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and BRI T2 ) Pl EEATE Y
cash and bank deposits. The directors of the Company believe that the meaningful HipE LZF'EJE’]EKX%& T BT
information of related party transactions has been adequately disclosed in the FHRED ZE5EWERIEREfmREKR
consolidated financial statement. B RHEMENZIBEIANRES RET
G - ARREFRAEEEEEZZHEA
TRGERBEREHMBREANELRT D
BE o
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Management believes that all material related party transactions and balances,
of which they are aware of, have been adequately disclosed. Sales of goods to
related parties are at market prices or agreement prices. The Group considers
that these sales are activities in the ordinary course of business. In addition to
the transactions detailed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statement, the
Group had the following material transactions or balances with related parties.

(@)  The directors of the Company are of the view that the following parties/
companies were related parties that had transactions or balances with the
Group:

List of related parties

Name of related parties

RS S8

BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

36 BBARS (&)
EEEREEMNENEERBEB RS
FHEHEER R EE - EmaeNIRIT
BEMBHREELE - AEERANEH
EBHEERITE - RAaHUBHREE M
WA RZIN  AEEEBE A
INTEAR Sk -

(@ ARAREBRBATEH AR
HR B 772 R 5 sk R 7 Y B B
7o

B SR

Relationship with the Group
R % £ B Y B R

YCIH Group, including YCIH and its subsidiaries

TEERER(EEEREEFRAF])

KMEIC Group, including KMEIC and its subsidiaries

EREE(BELREETFRAT)

Yongchang Investment Group, including Yongchang Investment Co., Ltd
and its subsidiaries (i)

KERBEE(BRFRUMKERERZ(EE)EGRAREET ARG

Controlling shareholder of the Group
REE 2 Z IR

A minority shareholder of the Company
KRR Z LERER

Significant non-controlling interest

EAIFE RS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, during the years ended December
31, 2021 and 2020, the Group had the following significant transactions
with related parties.

(i) Yongchang Investment Co., Ltd. disposed its non-controlling interest of
Baoshan Building Material to Baoshan Yongchang Industrial Development
Co., Ltd. on January 8, 2021. Therefore, Yongchang Investment Group
ceased being a related party of the Group since January 8, 2021. Baoshan
Yongchang Industrial Development Co., Ltd. did not have any transactions
with the Group in 2021.

BRAREEM THEEI - B
E2021F K 2020F12 A31H IE4F
B AEBEBHESEUATEAR
5] °

()  M2021F1A8H ' RILTIXKEHK
ERHE(RE)ARARBEERL
EM R FEE B R B ARILT
XEEFZERARAR - At * »
202151 A8H » RILTIKERE
AZE(SE)ERARTHEEAEE
BAEE T o BEON - RILTIOKEEERE
RAR A BFE2021F LR E FH#T
RAE R 5 °
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BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(b) Sales and purchase with related parties

YCIH Group

36

AL X5 (&)

(b) EEEBLTWER
ERRREE

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARET T
Purchase of raw materials BB RN 48,066 127,239
Purchase of construction service BETRERSEK 27,306 24,304
Purchase of comprehensive services & B4R 4 R 3,739 2,200
Purchase of equipment HERE 406 1,128
79,517 154,871
Sales of ready-mixed concrete HERHRRET 1,293,685 3,037,280
Sales of polycarboxylic admixtures SHE BIRBE SN N 367 258
Sales of aggregates HEW AR 3 _
1,294,055 3,037,538

Other related parties HAinRgRE S

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HLLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Sales of ready-mixed concrete HERRELT

—Yongchang Investment Group —KEREEE 13,057 12,010
—KMEIC Group —KIREH 75 206
13,132 12,216
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B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BHE20219F12H31HIFFZ
36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 36 BBARS (&)
(c) Leasing () HE
Acquisition of right-of-use assets WEEREEE

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31A0LEE
2021 2020
202145 2020%F
Classification of leasing assets RMB'000 RMB'000
HEAEBE AR®F T ARBT T
YCIH Group Highway projects batching plants
THEEEE SR ARKIE B Bk 17,890 =
YCIH Group Property and land
EEEREER EER L 7,123 3,748
25,013 3,748
Interest expenses relating to lease liabilities HEEBANELH
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLLFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®EF T ARETTT
YCIH Group TR ER 615 628
THERZERMERELIRNERAA 280
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BT EHmRMEE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE
36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 36 BHARXR (&)
(c) Leasing (Cont’d) (c) HE(HE)
Property and land rental fee MERTHHES
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A310LLEE
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREET T
YCIH Group ErEREE 3,742 4,889
Yongchang Investment Group KEKRELEH - 18
3,742 4,907
Highway projects batching plants BEAKRIER BRI,
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HLLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®F T ARET T
YCIH Group TR ER 3,751 =
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B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
(d) Deposits placed into YCIH Financial Company

BHE20219F12H31HIFFZ
36 BABARS ()

(d) FAERERMBEIFAN

B

Year ended December

HZE12A318LLEE

31,

2021 2020

20215 20204

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®F AREET T

YCIH Group ERERER 591,875 767,444

(e) Deposits withdrawn from YCIH Financial Company

(e) RNEMERMBLAMN

G

Year ended December
BZ12A318LEE

31,

2021 2020
20214 20204F

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETTT

YCIH Group EEERER 630,831 770,321

(f) Interest income and expenses
Interest income from deposits placed in YCIH Financial Company

(f) RMBWRARBRAX

FERERERMBARNNERDN

FMEWA

Year ended December
BZ12A31HLLEE

31,

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARET T

YCIH Group EHEREE 314 342

EHERGERMERERLIRNERAA
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BT EHmRMEE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE20214F12H31HIFFE

36

283

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)
(g) Financial services provided by YCIH Financial Company

(a)

Service charge on assistance in fund receipt and payment by
YCIH Financial Company

36

BB A RS (&)

(9) ZEXEMERMBLIFR

HE IR %5

(a) EHERUBQAABBES

W 3 BR 7% & A

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A310LLEE
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T
YCIH Group TERBEE 12 21
(h) Dividends declared and paid (h) EERERIKRSIKRE
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HLLEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBT T
YCIH Group EEERER
—Dividends declared —BEEIRRE 28,141 30,975
—Dividends settled —BIRFRE 28,141 30,975
Yongchang Investment Group KEKRELEH
—Dividends declared —BEEIRERE 1,959 3,369
—Dividends settled —BEIRAR S 5,329 —
KMEIC Group K EE
—Dividends declared —EEIRRE 3,981 4,382
—Dividends settled — BRI E 3,981 4,382
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B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

EE20219F12H31 HIFFE
36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 36 BBA RS ()
(i) Balances arising from related party transactions (i) EHEEBAINXIHREE
As at December 31,
R12831H
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT
Receivables from related parties FE Uk BB 5 30E
Trade receivables FEUBR X
“YCIH Group —~EHRREE 2,789,079 2,530,226
—Yongchang Investment Group —KEREEH - 10,984
“KMEIC Group — iR EE 1,935 2,063
2,791,014 2,543,273
Other receivables H A FE UK
~YCIH Group —EEEREE 4,673 3,930
—Yongchang Investment Group —kEREEHE 20 2
4,693 3,932
Notes receivable EWERE
—~YCIH Group —ZEEKREE 73,803 31,649
Deposits placed in YCIH FEREEERMBE A RINFER
Financial Company
—YCIH Group (Note 25) — Em RS B (MiFE25) 66,177 105,133
THERZERMERELIRNERAA 284
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o B 155 SR BT ot (48

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
Balances arising from related party transactions

285

(i)

36

AL X5 (&)
(i) HEBTNRZERE(H)

(Cont’d)
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2021 2020
2021F 2020%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Payables to related parties JE 1S A FE’JTAIE
Trade payables B 5 AR
“YCIH Group —%ﬁ‘é%&% 141,267 147,151
Other payables H b FE5RIE
~YCIH Group —EHEREE 27,511 24,879
Dividends payables FERTRR B
—Yongchang Investment Group —kEREEHE - 3,369
Contract liabilities ERAE
—~YCIH Group —EEEREE 4,303 48
Lease liabilities HEARE
—~YCIH Group —ZERKREE 5,824 7,786
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B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(j)) Key management compensation
Key management includes directors (executive and non-executive),

supervisors and senior management (includes joint company secretary,

deputy general managers, chief financial officer, chief engineer and chief

economist). The compensation paid or payable to key management for

employee services is shown below:

BHE20219F12H31HIFFZ

36 BEBARS (&)

()

FEREEAEMS

MREEAEMSBREER(HT
EZRINTER) EERER
EEREAB(BEBEARWE
BIAEACIE - BITSAED - AR TARARAN
ISR ) - MBREE NS XM
EREERBHE KBNS

N

_|

Year ended December 31,

BE12A31BLFEE
2021 2020
2021F 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETTT
Salaries, wages and bonuses e TERMEA 10,415 7,777
Contributions to pension plans MRS T8 R Mt 2R R
and other social insurance 1,268 743
Other benefits E fth 43 A 50 164
11,733 8,684
THERZERMERELIRNERAA 286

2021F EW|E



)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

BHMBHRRNMEE)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

BE20219F12H31HILFE
37 SUBSIDIARIES 37 F2H
As at December 31, 2021, the Company had direct interests in the following M2021F12A318 » KR EEFEMNU
subsidiaries: TFARER
Percentage of equity attributable to the
Company
RRAREERE A
Place and date of December Date of
Directly held establishment Issue and paid-up capital 31, 2021 this report  Principle activities Note
R EETR 01E
BERE RAH B&EA 12A318 ARERE  TEED i
YCH Aggregate Co,, Ltd. PRC, September 30, RMB23,000,000 100% 100%  production and sales of (@
1999 construction sand and stone
EHRRDANERAR HE - 19995 AR23,000,0007C 100% 100% HEREEREDRH 4
9A30A
YCIH Polymer Material Co., Ltd. PRC, September 3, 2013 RMB33,000,000 100% 100%  research and development, 0]
production and sales of
concrete admixtures
ERERAATIHARAA RE - 2013F ARE33,000,0007 100% 100% % EEREERERLN ()
9A3A i)
YCIH Qujing Building Material Co., Ltd. PRC, August 19, 2014 RMBA0,000,000 50% 50%  research and development, 2,4
production, sale,
transportation and pumping
of commercial concrete
EERRAERIERAR RE 20145 ARE40,000,0007 50% 0% HEEE - HECEERR (2.0
8A198 FAmRET
YCIH Baoshan Yongchang Building Material Co., Ltd. PRC, January 21, 2015 RMB26,000,000 50% 50%  research and development, (3), (@)
production, sale,
transportation and pumping
of commercial concrete
EBERRIKERMBRAR RE  2015F ARH26,000,0007 50% 50% HEEE - HEEERR ()0
1A21H RAmEAL
YCIH Yuxi Building Material Co., Ltd. PRC, July 10, 2015 RIB40,000,000 55% 55%  research and development, (@
production, sale,
transportation and pumping
of commercial concrete
ERRRTERMARAA RE < 2015% ARE40,000,0007C 5% So% R EE - HECEERR ()
7A108 ABmERT
YCIH 14th Metallurgical Green New Material Co., Ltd PRC, January 3, 2014 RMB30,000,000 100% 100%  research and development, @)
production, sale,
transportation and pumping
of commercial concrete
EERR TR ERTHARAR RE 20145 ARE30,000,0007 100% 100% &% £E BE EERR ()
1838 FEmRRLT
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37 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Q)

All the companies comprising the Group are with limited liability, and have
adopted December 31 as their financial year end date.

According to Articles of Association of Qujing Building Material, the
shareholders shall exercise their voting rights in accordance with the
proportion of capital contribution. For the major issues in Qujing Building
Material’s daily business activities, other shareholders should act in concert
with the Company in exercise of their voting power at the general meetings,
unless they cause substantial damage to the rights and interests of other
shareholders. In addition, the Company has power to appoint majority of
the board members. Thus the Company has controlled operational and
financial decision of Qujing Building Material.

According to Articles of Association of Baoshan Building Material, the
shareholders shall exercise their voting rights in accordance with the
proportion of capital contribution. For general resolutions related to
production, operation and management, etc. that do not involve changes
in business registration, only approval by the Company is required. Thus
the Company has controlled operational and financial decision of Baoshan
Building Material.

None of subsidiaries had issued any debt securities as of December 31,
2021.

/\

IR RR MR ()

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

37
(1)

BHE20219F12H31HIFFZ

TR ()

AEEETHMERFHEAFRA
A WHEMN12A31BIEAKRSH
BREEHIEBAH -

REHBEEMARER  RRE
SHARRRBHELPITERR
- HNARAELEEBTNE
REE - BIFHE MR R EREK
EEHRTE - HETERRERE
BHEARNBRE B o WO - AR
AERZERZHESEKE - &)
RRREEH BN 0 EE NI
RE

BERLUEMARER  RRE
SHARRRBHELPITERRR
B R —RRE - BEAFE
E &ZE ERAREETSRIR
BREREFTNHEE - BARFR
=N IR N SN Tﬁﬁé%&t
SHEEENE - WA REEEL
M B 8 I B TR 3R

HZE2021F 1283181 * AR A
TARKRBEITEBIA -
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BT BEmERME(E)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38 AATEBBURIREGHE

RESERVES MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY 25
As at December 31,
R12A318
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ETT AREBT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land use rights T fsh A 30,979 19,601
Property, plant and equipment TBIE - BB K& 132,533 119,830
Investment properties HEMEEHE 66 2,433
Intangible assets ERAE 850 1,055
Investments in subsidiaries RFREZ’E 164,678 164,678
Deferred income tax assets BB EE 18,418 12,283
Other non-current assets HEMIEmENEE 5,397 17,582
352,921 337,462
Current assets MENE
Inventories "E 19,805 22,704
Financial assets at fair value through ARAAREEEBEZeET AHM
other comprehensive income HEWENEREE 30,896 56,397
Trade and notes receivables B 5 W RIA & B E i 3,138,050 3,142,538
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIE K H b FE UK 52,221 60,180
Restricted cash ZIREIFRE 118,039 31,285
Cash and bank deposits R RIRTTENR 322,955 495,874
3,681,966 3,808,978
Total assets BEE 4,034,887 4,146,440
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B ERERMATE(E)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
BLZE2021F12A31HIFFZ

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

38 ARRMBRRREHE
28 (&)

As at December 31,

R12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREBT T
EQUITY g
Share capital [N 446,272 446,272
Reserves (a) (6] 557,216 555,679
Retained earnings (a) Bz (a) 198,823 254,589
Total equity AR 1,202,311 1,256,540
LIABILITIES B&
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Lease liabilities HEEE 27,777 15,114
Provision for close down, restoration AR - B2 RIRIRAC AR
and environmental cost 2,060 3,220
29,837 18,334
Current liabilities B AE
Trade and other payables B 5 R H b FERTIE 2,594,951 2,688,274
Lease liabilities HEAE 19,961 18,358
Provision for close down, restoration B - B2 MIRRA A S
and environmental cost 2,877 7,761
Contract liabilities ARAE 5,677 1,033
Current income tax liabilities EHFSHARE - =
Borrowings &k 179,273 156,140
2,802,739 2,871,566
Total liabilities FY=N 2,832,576 2,889,900
Total equity and liabilities BEnkEE 4,034,887 4,146,440

KRR BANKER2022F3 5290 %
EEeix YHTIESRAERE -

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by the Board
of Directors on March 29, 2022 and was signed on its behalf.

Chairman: Li Zhangjian

EER  FEE

Director: Lu Jianfeng

Ex: malE
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o B 155 SR BT ot (48

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Bt R2021F12A31HILF/ZE

38 STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38 AQATBBURIRREGHHE

RESERVES MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d) 2E (&)
(a) Reserves movements of the Company (a) ARIRERE
Capital Statutory Other Retained
surplus reserve reserve Total earnings
ERDE EERE Hitfhtts #@at B s

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTRE ARETR AREBTR ARETR AR%®TR

As at January 1, 2020 ®2020F181A8 496,735 43,059 (1,560) 538,234 154,033
Profit for the year FEFE - - - - 178,470
Appropriation to statutory reserve  EEEETERE - 17,444 - 17,444 (17,444)
Changes in the fair value of FVOCI ’&ﬁf‘@ﬁiﬂﬁ“
st AE 4R ilﬁl
BMEEAAE “@ - - 1 1 -
Dividends to equity holders AAR KRR SRR
of the Company RS - - - - (60,470)
As at December 31, 2020 720205128318 496,735 60,503 (1,559) 555,679 254,589
As at January 1, 2021 R2021F181A8 496,735 60,503 (1,559) 555,679 254,589
Profit for the year FERE - - - - (507)
Appropriation to statutory reserve B EATFERE - 323 - 323 (323)
Changes in the fair value of FVOCI Qﬁfﬁfﬁufgﬂﬁ\“@)
u$AHf1ﬂZ*A4&
BEEALE ”@J - - 1,214 1,214 -
Dividends to equity holders AARBRR SRR
of the Company RS - - - - (54,936)
As at December 31, 2021 20215128318 496,735 60,826 (345) 557,216 198,823
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